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This cover design is themed with “Reducing Carbon
Footprint to Embark A New Chapter”, implying that
Everbright Water, with a strong spirit of riding the wind and
waves, overcame all the challenges and forged ahead in
2021. With a focus on water environment management,
Everbright Water explored new development directions and
embarked a new development layout.
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Corporate Profile
N EEN

focusing on Water Environment Management \'

nKBRIBEE A

EBRIEN

China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water” or the
“Company” together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an
environmental protection company focusing on water environment
management. It is listed on the Mainboard of Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX” or “SGX-ST”) and the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) (stock
codes: U9E.SG & 1857.HK), with its direct controlling shareholder
being China Everbright Environment Group Limited (stock code:
257 HK, “Everbright Environment”).

Everbright Water has developed a full-fledged business coverage,
which includes raw water protection, water supply, municipal
waste water treatment, industrial waste water treatment, reusable
water, river-basin ecological restoration, and sludge treatment
and disposal. Meanwhile, the Company has formed a full industry
chain in the water business, including project investment, planning
and design, technology research and development, engineering
and construction, operations management, among others.
Its geographical footprint spans across East, Central, South,
North, Northeast and Northwest China, covering 12 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions in China, namely Beijing,
Tianjin, Hebei, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Shandong, Shaanxi, Henan,
Hubei, Guangxi, Liaoning and Inner Mongolia. The Company also
has overseas business presence in Mauritius. As at 31 December
2021, the Company invested in and operated water treatment
projects with a designed daily water treatment capacity of over
7 million md.

With the leadership of its experienced management team, the
Company will seize opportunities and strive to emerge as a
leader in the water industry of China.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERAEH

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
HEIERKBERD

MR. HU YANGUO
HAREE o4

Executive Director and Chairman

HITESRESFEK

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2021 marks an exceptional year for countries across
the world. Amidst the ongoing novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”)
pandemic, supply chain disruption and frequent extreme weather
events, the global economy experienced a slow recovery and
was full of uncertainties. Facing the unprecedented change in a
century, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) has
once again delivered remarkable results in terms of the COVID-19
pandemic control and economic development. This marks a good
start to the country’s “14™" Five-Year Plan”.

In the opening year of the “14" Five-Year Plan”, China continued
with the tough battle against pollution to serve the overall national
economic development. Adhering to the commitments of “Peaking
Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Achieving Carbon Neutrality”
(“Dual Carbons”), China has also made “Carbon Emission
Reduction” a key strategy in its ecological conservation progress,
actively promoted “Reducing Pollution and Carbon Emission” and
“Boosting Synergy and Efficiency”, and carried out comprehensive
green transformation in economic and social development. This
reflects China’s commitment as a big country in “putting words in
action”. These initiatives opened up new ideas, new requirements
and new challenges for the water environment management sector
and the entire environmental protection industry.
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The year 2021 represents a fruitful year for Everbright
Water. Facing the severe and complex external environment and
the inherent needs of strategic transformation, Everbright Water
remained committed to its original aspiration and strategic focus,
and worked hard with strong cohesion. As such, the Group
has achieved remarkable results in growing market presence,
improving management efficiency, enhancing “Innovation-Driven”
development, and solidifying its financial position. It ventured
into the water markets of Tianjin Municipality, Hebei Province and
Mauritius  successively; gained recognitions from authoritative
organisations for its technology research results, indicating a strong
momentum in application and commercialisation of technologies;
continuously improved management efficiency through measures
such as optimising relevant systems and introducing innovative
methods; and developed more flexible financial resources by
solidifying its diverse financing channels that provide for long- and
short-term financing tools. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had invested over RMB28 billion in projects and recorded total
assets of approximately HK$33 billion. The Group’s projects have
an aggregate designed daily water treatment capacity of over
7 million mé, with water treatment service covering 12 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions across China, in addition to
1 overseas market.

Thanks to its excellent operation, the Company was shortlisted as one
of the “Top 10 Influential Enterprises in China’s Water Industry” for the
fourth consecutive year and received the “ListCo Excellence Award”
for the second consecutive year. The Company also, for the first time,
won awards conferred by authoritative organisations in Hong Kong
such as the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Such awards included:
the “Award of Excellence in Corporate Governance”, the “Award of
Excellence in Environmental, Social and Governance” (category for
newly-listed companies) and a Special Mention for Environmental,
Social and Governance (‘ESG”) in the Non-Hang Seng Index (small
market capitalisation) category. In addition, the Group’s Jiangsu
Zhenjiang Sponge City Construction Public-Private Partnership
(“PPP”) Project was shortlisted as a Top 5 and an Honorary Mention in
the “Building Back Better Infrastructure Award” of the United Nations
Economic Commission for Europe (“UNECE”). A technological
and application project, in which the Company’s subsidiary joined
as a key participant, received the second prize of the 2020 State
Scientific and Technological Progress Award. It was a challenging yet
rewarding journey. On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) and the management team of the Company,
I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all staff who remained at
their posts with hard work, as well as the people from all social circles
who have given their long-term support to the Group’s development.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERAEH

In October 2021, myself and Mr. Tao Junjie were appointed by
the Board as Executive Director and Chairman, and Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer, respectively. On behalf
of the Company, | would like to thank Mr. Wang Tianyi and
Mr. An Xuesong for their significant contributions to Everbright Water
over the past years. We will work with the Board members, the
management team and all staff to strive for further success of the
Company. In line with the principle of sharing the fruitful operating
results with the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
the Board recommended a final dividend of 6.83 Hong Kong cents
(“HK cents”) (equivalent to 1.19 Singapore cents (“Sing cents”))
per ordinary share to the Shareholders for the financial year ended
31 December 2021 (“FY2021” or the “year under review”) (for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020”): HK6.07 cents
(equivalent to 1.04 Sing cents) per ordinary share), which makes
the total dividend for FY2021 amount to HK12.58 cents (equivalent
to 2.20 Sing cents) per ordinary share (FY2020: HK9.81 cents
(equivalent to 1.71 Sing cents) per ordinary share).

We can achieve our dreams on this long journey by working
hard and staying pragmatic. L.ooking ahead to 2022, amidst an
ever-changing environment with both challenges and opportunities,
Everbright Water will adhere to its corporate mission of being
“Devoted to Ecology and Environment for a Beautiful China”, deeply
participate in the national development process and actively study
the industry trends. While prioritising its stability, the Group will firmly
adhere to the “Innovation-Driven” development approach, and
enhance its strategic vision to be more market-oriented, professional
and international. In the process of corporate development, the
Group will tap into the potential of traditional businesses through
innovative means to optimise existing businesses while exploring
new areas to foster business expansion. It will also enhance
development agility, improve technology strengths, and nurture
open ecospheres to steadily “Make Progress in Stability, Pursue
Excellence in Progress, and Seek Innovation in Excellence”.
Looking forward, Everbright Water is full of confidence and
determination to continuously pursue “high-quality development”
with a new paradigm of innovative development. The Group strives
to create sustainable and good returns for the Shareholders
and other stakeholders, and to contribute to China's green and
low-carbon development process.

MR. HU YANGUO

Executive Director and Chairman
8 March 2022
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

BAWME

Business Review and Prospects

Operating Results

During FY2021, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has caused
increasing challenges and complexity to the global macroeconomic
environment. Despite various external pressure, China’s economy
continued demonstrating strong resilience and navigating through
the new development outlook to pursue “high-quality development”.
This marked a good start to the “14'" Five-Year Plan” period.

In the first year of the “14™ Five-Year Plan”, China successfully
achieved all the eight binding targets in the areas of ecology
and environment as set out in the national economic and social
development plan. This demonstrates good progress in terms of
the domestic ecological and environmental protection work and
shows China’s full attention and firm determination on environmental
protection tasks. As the global sense of crisis and voices on climate
change are getting stronger, promotion of green and low-carbon
development has also become an important task in China’s tough
battle against pollution and climate change. Following China’s
strategic goals of Dual Carbons, “Reducing Pollution and Carbon
Emission” and “Boosting Synergy and Efficiency” have become
key development themes for the water environment management
sector and even the whole environmental protection industry.

MR. TAO JUNJIE
PEERANLE

Executive Director and CEO
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

BREBE

Amidst the new landscape, new opportunities and new challenges,
the Group, during the year under review, made steady progress
with unremitting effort. Moreover, with the hard work and concerted
effort, the Group has achieved fruitful results in the areas of market
expansion, technological innovation, engineering and construction,
operations management, safety and environmental management,
among others. In the meantime, the Group has further developed its
strategies which emphasise the “Innovation-driven Development” in
various aspects such as business, management and research and
development (“R&D”) to nurture competitive businesses. During the
year under review, the Group achieved steady operating results and
continued solidifying its competitive advantages and market position
in the water environment management sector.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group invested in and held 153
environmental protection projects, with a total investment of
approximately RMB28.43 billion. In addition, it undertook 4 engineering,
procurement and construction (“EPC”) projects and 3 operation and
management (“O&M”) projects (including 1 overseas O&M project).
A summary of the number of projects and water treatment/supply
capacity is set out below:

EE L - FkE - S - AEERER
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BEEE  weRERE ( [RER] ) 8BS
| ORERE  BVER EORE - 8RBT
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Project Type Number of Water Treatment/
EHEERO Projects Supply Capacity
EHEHEE (m/day)

IKEE/MKRE

(3LF3K/8)
Municipal waste water treatment projects® — M5 /KEIEIEH@ 120 5,639,000
Industrial waste water treatment projects® TEREKERIBIER® 15 206,000
Reusable water projects FoKEIAIEER 8 250,600
River-basin ecological restoration projects i AEIEE 6 115,000
Water supply projects HIKIEE 3 250,000
Raw water protection project JRKIREIHE 1 600,000
Leachate treatment project BRI EEIEIER 1 600
Waste water source heat pump projects VEKIREARIE B 2 N/A TiE A
Total st 156 7,061,200
Notes: Bt -

(1) Excluding EPC projects
2)  Including O&M projects

(1) TZEPCHEH
(2) BZTELER
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In terms of operating results for FY2021, with its stable operating
momentum, the Group recorded revenue of HK$6.91 billion,
representing an increase of 22% from HK$5.66 billion for FY2020;
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
(‘EBITDA”) was HK$2.25 billion, representing an increase of 16%
from HK$1.93 billion in FY2020; profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company reached HK$1.20 billion, representing an increase
of 17% from HK$1.02 billion in FY2020; basic earnings per share
were HK41.96 cents, indicating an increase of HK6.16 cents or 17%
from HKB5.80 cents in FY2020; overall gross profit margin was 41%,
up 2 percentage points (“ppt”) compared to FY2020. The Group has
ready access to diverse financing channels with comprehensive long-
and short-term financing tools, holds quality assets and sufficient funds
with a reasonable gearing ratio, and is in a healthy financial position.

With respect to market development, the Group, during the year
under review, firmly pursued “high-quality development” and
made its first entry into the water markets in Tianjin Municipality,
Hebei Province and Mauritius. Thereby, the Group has solidified
its business footprint in China’s strategic regions such as the
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, and successfully entered the water
market along the “Beltand Road” route, further expanding its business
outlook. During the year under review, the purchase of 65% equity
interest in Tianjin Binhai New Area Huantang Sewage Treatment Co.,
Ltd. (“Tianjin Huantang”) helped the Group tap into Tianjin’s water
market and gain valuable experience in pursuing opportunities under
the mixed-ownership reform of China’s state-owned enterprises;
securing Hebei Cangzhou Huanghua Waste Water Treatment
Plants PPP Project enabled the Group to achieve comprehensive
development in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei market; and securing the
O&M project in relation to the Mauritius St. Martin Waste Water
Treatment Plant, through the Company’s 80%-owned subsidiary
E+B Umwelttechnik GmbH, marked an important milestone and a
good start of the Group in developing overseas markets. Additionally,
the Group, duringthe year under review, signed aframework agreement
for Shandong Qingdao Maidao Waste Water Treatment Plant
Expansion and Upgrading Project, as part of its effort to transform the
Group’s Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project (Maidao Plant) into an
iconic “community-friendly” project that integrates high-quality water
treatment facilities and a neighbourhood-friendly park. In FY2021,
the Group secured 14 waste water treatment projects and 1 reusable
water project, commanding a total investment of approximately
RMB3.76 billion. The Group also undertook 1 EPC project and
1 overseas O&M project. These newly-secured projects contribute
an additional designed daily waste water treatment capacity of
489,000 m?® (including capacity of the O&M project) and an additional
designed daily reusable water supply capacity of 54,000 m?.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

BREBE

Against the backdrop of China’s “Dual Carbons” strategic goals, the
Group has carried out the relevant research and pilot programmes
relating to “Reducing Pollution and Carbon Emission” and “Boosting
Synergy and Efficiency”, by leveraging on its own business
characteristics and competitive strengths. The Group, during the year
under review, proactively established working teams that specialised
in six different areas, such as reusable water, in-plant solar energy and
waste water source heat pump, to provide the necessary support for
its future strategic development. Among them, the Group launched
the in-plant solar energy pilot programme at its Shandong Zibo Waste
Water Treatment Project. The solar energy facilities were successfully
connected to the power grid in August 2021, which are expected to
generate electricity to satisfy 9% of the project’'s power consumption.
This enables the Group to accumulate valuable experience to further
promote such programmes in the future. In addition, the Group,
during the year under review, participated in the first batch of pilot
projects for monitoring and evaluation of greenhouse gas emissions,
which was organised by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the PRC (“MEFE”), to carry out water sample analysis and data
collection for carbon calculation.

As for technological innovation, the Group continued focusing on
the digital transformation which is driven by technological innovation,
and has achieved good progress. The Group, during the year under
review, further promoted its “Intelligent Water” management system.
The application of various systems, such as smart inspection system
and smart dosing system, has reduced the workload of frontline staff
and enhanced the management proficiency of the water projects. In
addition, the Group actively developed the “Intelligent Water” blueprint
which covers various aspects including design and operations, and
promoted the development of an information and supervisory system
and the implementation of smart plants. The Group has widely
applied the operations management system to more than 20 waste
water treatment plants. In FY2021, the Group provided its in-house
developed technological processes to its internal and external clients,
with a total contract value of over RMB100 million. The Group, during
the year under review, was granted 28 patents (including 1 invention
patent, 25 utility models, and 2 software copyrights), and published
28 technical papers.

In terms of safety and environmental management, the Group is
devoted to safeguarding the health and safety of individuals and the
environment. It increases awareness of safety and environmental risk
prevention and strictly complies with the requirements of “zero work
safety accident, zero excessive discharge of pollutants, and zero
case for violation of regulations or discipline”. The Group, during
the year under review, comprehensively fostered the accountability of
safety and environment, carried out the specified rectification tasks
on safe production, and enhanced management and training relating
to project safety and environmental protection. A solid foundation
has been built for safe production and operation and compliance
with emission standards.
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In relation to project construction, the Group, during the year under
review, firmly implemented measures to ensure safety and quality of
project construction as well as pandemic prevention and control for
the smooth progress of its project construction works. In FY2021,
the Group had 6 projects that commenced construction, which
have an aggregate designed daily waste water treatment capacity
of 130,000 m?3; 5 projects that completed construction (including
EPC projects), which have an aggregate designed daily waste water
treatment capacity of 72,500 m?; and 11 projects that completed
construction and commenced operation, which have an aggregate
designed daily waste water treatment capacity of 249,000 m®. As at
31 December 2021, the Group had 13 projects in the preparatory
stage, with an aggregate designed daily water treatment capacity
of 396,000 m?.

In relation to operations management, the Group continued exploring
various opportunities to boost its operations management efficiency.
The Group, during the year under review, proactively explored energy
structure optimisation of waste water treatment plants by leveraging
on its projects in operation. The Group co-operated with its partners
to participate in market-based electricity transactions in Jiangsu
and Shandong Provinces, effectively reducing the electricity cost.
In FY2021, 9 waste water treatment plants of the Group received
regulatory approval for tariff hikes, ranging from 4% to 58%; and
subsidies of approximately RMB71.35 million in total were granted
to the Group.

In relation to the capital market, the Group, during the year under
review, continued with its flexibility in selecting suitable financing tools
to match with its business development plan and keep its finance
costs within a reasonable range. In January 2021, the Company
issued the second tranche of medium term notes (“MTN”), with a
principal amount of RMB1 billion and a subscription rate of 1.97 times;
and in August 2021, the Company issued the first tranche of super &
short-term commercial papers (“SCP”), with a principal amount of
RMB800 million. The funds raised from such financing arrangements
effectively replenished the working capital of the Company’s
subsidiaries. While expanding its financing channels, the Group also
reviewed its loan structure and finance costs on a regular basis,
and made adjustments and improvements as and when appropriate,
to provide solid capital protection for “high-quality development”
in the future.
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The Group highly values the concurrent enhancement of economic,
social and environmental benefits as part of its business development,
and therefore incorporating social and environmental responsibility
initiatives into its day-to-day work. The Group, during the year
under review, actively organised various online and offline charitable
environmental protection activities in conjunction with several
environmental protection-themed days, such as the “World Water
Day”, “Earth Day” and “World Environment Day”. These activities
have enhanced the local communities’ knowledge and concepts on
treasuring water resources and fostered a positive and interactive
relationship with the local communities. In addition, the activities
increased the local residents’ understanding and recognition of
environmental protection facilities. During the year under review, the
Group’s projects received more than 400 batches of visitors from all
walks of life.

In view of its outstanding performance in business development,
operations management and sustainability, the Group, during the
year under review, received a number of awards from various well-
known domestic and international organisations. The major awards

AEBEERBETSEEGRES L
SMERBEXFENRFREA - Bitt— E%BH—H@
Tﬂia,ﬁ&iﬁ = TEABBER - EFE
N AEBEERGES [HRKA ]
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are summarised as below:

Award
5B &5

Awarding Organisation(s)

BEEEE

One of the Top 10 Influential Enterprises in China’s Water
Industry (for the fourth consecutive year)

[PEKE+ARFENDE] 27— (EEEF)

E20 Environment Platform
E20RIRF A

Award of Excellence in Corporate Governance
(category for newly-listed companies)
NRERF MR

(Fr EmREEERD)

The Hong Kong Corporate Governance and
ESG Excellence Awards 2021 by organisations
including the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies (“CHKLC”)

BRI RATRHEEH SRR
[BBRBEREIRE « g NEIRS 122021

Award of Excellence in ESG
(category for newly-listed companies)
RS HegRELEHE
(Fr EmREEER)

The Hong Kong Corporate Governance and
ESG Excellence Awards 2021 by organisations
including CHKLC
BE LT ARESSHA RN
[BEENRERERE g RERSEHE2021]

A Special Mention for ESG in the Non-Hang Seng Index
(Small Market Capitalisation) Category
FEERKHIRA TR (INHEREER)

[ESG Frhliz & # |

The Best Corporate Governance and
ESG Awards 2021 organised by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BAGHMAGRPN_T - —FF
[REREEREIRE g RERAE]

ListCo Excellence Award 2021
(for the second consecutive year)
B _ET A RIK 822021
(BEE—F)

The annual “ListCo Excellence Awards” by
organisations including Hong Kong stock channel of
ifeng.com and Hong Kong media “am730”
(REABR) -~ BEEE (am730) FHiBHS
SBe) [ T ARIKE] FEE
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R -FERS
Award Awarding Organisation(s)
HA E5I TRBBE
The Group’s Jiangsu Zhenjiang Sponge City Construction UNECE
PPP Project was shortlisted as Top 5 in the GBS E

Building Back Better Infrastructure Award of UNECE and
awarded an Honorary Mention
REEE N IARILEAMMERPPPIERE ABBS
By [FrEg] ERReRETEnsg  WERE
REHE

The project on “Key Technologies and Applications for
Intelligent Monitoring and Optimal Operation of
Municipal Waste Water Treatment Plants”, in which
Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Limited joined as a
key participant, received the second prize of the
2020 State Scientific and Technological Progress Award

KRR OFRIN) BRATHEREESBLZ —2HH
[R5 7K BT B R S e BR 1 AB LB A TR BT 2

ER| MBS T _TFE [BXRMERMESE]

—ER

The National Office for Science and
Technology Awards

BRMERMBER TERAE

The whole process technology research on the
construction of sponge city in Zhenjiang City
received the third prize of the Huaxia Construction
Science and Technology Award 2020

HLEMMMER D BRERINATERS
—Z_THFE [EERERNERME] =FH

Huaxia Construction Science and
Technology Award Committee

EERRMERNEREZE S

Several water projects of the Group in multiple places,
including Jiangsu, Shandong and Henan Provinces,
were shortlisted in the fourth batch of the
National Environmental Protection Facilities and
Urban Waste Water and Waste Treatment Facilities
Opened to the Public

$$lﬁﬂl% LI ERFDA] B 9 2% (K H5 18 B AGE

S5 VOt 2 B 3R R 2R b AN 11T )5 7K By 3% B B 2% e
MARFREBE

MEE and Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the PRC
HRE A REIRIRED - (£ A AR R AR ED

Second Prize at the “Narrators for Ecology and
Environment” Competition

[RELRIRIRARE ] —F8

MEE
Bl A AR IR AP

The Company remains dedicated to creating value for, and sharing fruitful
operating results with the Shareholders. The Board recommended ZRE
a final dividend of HK6.83 cents (equivalent to 1.19 Sing cents) per
ordinary share to the Shareholders for FY2021 (FY2020: HK6.07 cents
(equivalent to 1.04 Sing cents) per ordinary share), which makes the
total dividend for FY2021 amount to HK12.58 cents (equivalent to it -
2.20 Sing cents) per ordinary share (FY2020: HK9.81 cents (equivalent

to 1.71 Sing cents) per ordinary share).

K@ﬂﬁﬂ%%h%ﬂﬁﬁ@ I 83 A% 3R >
ER BEEGREN T —MHF
Fﬁh%ﬁ%i% B B A% m A% 6. 83811
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BRTERO.81BIW (FE1LT1HFD) ) °



14.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXARKBEERD A

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

BREBE

Business Prospect

In 2022, the global macro-economic situation is expected to remain
fluid and keep changing, due to the impact brought by several global
issues, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, inflation and monetary
policy adjustments. Notwithstanding the slowdown in the global
economic recovery momentum and divergent recovery trajectories,
China will continue responding to various changes with its stability.
This is to ensure that its domestic social-economic development will
move forward steadily, with the fundamentals remaining positive in
the long term.

Despite the divergence in the economic recovery and policy tightening of
different countries, governments around the world are firmly determined
to promote “Carbon Emission Reduction” in response to climate
change, which is a pressing global issue. Following China’s proposal of
“Dual Carbons” strategic goals, “Carbon Emission Reduction” has been
regarded as a strategic key task of ecological conservation. “Reducing
Pollution and Carbon Emission” and “Boosting Synergy and Efficiency”
will remain the key missions for the water environment management
sector and the whole environmental protection industry. As the traditional
water market gradually becomes saturated and more competitive and
the industry has higher expectations for innovative developments, there
is a pressing need for businesses to transform their development model.
“Intelligent Water”, pipe network construction, sludge utilisation and
other sub-sectors will open up new space for development and drive
the industry to enhance its core competitiveness through technological
upgrades, management optimisation and other measures. This will bring
steady progress in terms of green and low-carbon transformation.

Marching into 2022, with both opportunities and challenges
presenting, the Group is determined to adhere to the national
strategies and overall industry trends, focus on stability, explore
opportunities, be innovative, and work exceptionally hard. Focusing
on “Carbon Emission Reduction”, the Group will proactively carry out
pilot programmes, develop landmark projects, and explore industry-
leading operation models, all of which are relating to low carbon.
Focusing on the key areas such as the Yangtze River Economic Belt,
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area, Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region and the “Belt and Road” route, the Group will solidify its
strength in the existing markets, actively expand its business footprint,
and enhance the coordination and synergy among different regions.
Following the consolidation and extension of the industrial chain,
the Group will actively explore new businesses and new business
models to expand new sources of business growth, while enhancing
its competitiveness along the existing industry chain. The Group will
work diligently and continuously to achieve its goals. In 2022, the
Group will strive and forge ahead with determination towards the
goal of becoming a water environment management company that is
driven by green innovation.
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Financial Results

In FY2021, the revenue of the Group increased by 22% to
HK$6,912.37 million compared with the revenue of HK$5,663.29
million in FY2020. Gross profit of the Group increased from
HK$2,200.54 million in FY2020 to HK$2,801.59 million in FY2021,
representing an increase of 27%. The profit of the Group increased
from HK$1,086.36 million in FY2020 to HK$1,282.99 million in
FY2021, representing a rise of 18%. The profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company in FY2021 amounted to HK$1,200.33
million, representing an increase of 17% over FY2020.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total assets amounted
to approximately HK$32.97 billion with net assets amounting to
HK$13.16 billion. Net asset value per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$4.15 per share, representing an
increase of 13% as compared to HK$3.68 per share as at the end of
2020. As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio (total liabilities over
total assets) of the Group was 60.1%, which increased by 2.5 ppt
from 57.6% at the end of 2020.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts a prudent approach to cash and financial
management to ensure proper risk control and low cost of funds. It
finances its operations primarily with internally generated cash flow
and loan facilities from banks, supplemented by funds raised from
issuance of corporate bonds, asset-backed securities (“ABS”),
MTN and SCP. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash
and bank balances of HK$2.28 billion, representing an increase of
HK$562.46 million as compared to HK$1.72 billion at the end of
2020. Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances, representing
approximately 99%, was denominated in HK$ and RMB.
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Borrowings and Debt Securities of the Group

Amounts payable within one year or less, or on demand

At 31 December 2021
R-B-_—F+=-A=+—H

rEENEEREERS
—FUAENT H I B E R

At 31 December 2020
R-E-FF+-A=+—A

Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
Bk fRIK 4R B A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FHET FHET
385,514 3,006,514 217,228 2,029,445
Amounts payable after one year —FERENSE

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

R-ZE-_—-F+=-HA=+—H RZZEZEF+=_A=+—H
Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
BiEA KA BHEM R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH&xT FHET FHET
2,121,674 8,928,236 1,658,100 7,173,360

The Group is dedicated to improving financing methods and
increasing banking facility limit to reserve funding for developing
the water environment management business. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had outstanding borrowings of HK$14.44
billion, representing an increase of HK$3.36 billion as compared
to HK$11.08 billion as at the end of 2020. The borrowings
included secured interest-bearing borrowings of HK$2.51 billion
and unsecured interest-bearing borrowings of HK$11.93 billion.
The borrowings are mainly denominated in RMB, representing
approximately 69% of the total, and the remainder is denominated
in HK$, United States dollars (“USD”) and euros (‘EUR”). Most
of the borrowings are at floating rates. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group had bank loan facilities of HK$15.36 billion, of which
HK$6.26 billion have not been utilised. The bank loan facilities are
of 1to 17 years terms.

AEBBMORE ﬂﬁﬁt&kﬂﬁﬂgﬁﬁ
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Foreign Exchange Risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC. Currency exposure
arises within entities of the Group when transactions are mainly
denominated in foreign currencies such as USD, EUR, Singapore
dollars (“SGD”), HK$ and RMB. In addition, the Group is exposed
to currency translation risk upon translation of the new assets in
foreign operations into the Group’s reporting currency of HK$. During
FY2021, the Group was affected by the changes in the exchange
rates and did not adopt any formal hedging policies nor used any
financial instrument for hedging purpose.

Although the Group was exposed to foreign currency exchange risks,
the Board believes that the future currency fluctuations will not have
any material impact on the Group’s operations.

Pledge of Assets

Certain bank loan facilities and ABS of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 were secured by certain revenue, contract assets,
receivables and intangible assets in connection with the Group’s
service concession arrangements and the equity interests in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate
net book value of assets and equity interests in subsidiaries under
pledge arrangements amounted to HK$8.51 billion.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding purchase
commitments of HK$1.70 billion in connection with the construction
contracts and an outstanding capital commitment of HK$25.52
million in connection with an unlisted equity investment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Company provided financial guarantees
to two subsidiaries. The Board does not consider it probable that a
claim will be made against the Company under the guarantees. The
maximum liability of the Company as at 31 December 2021 for the
provision of the guarantees was HK$934.70 million. Nonetheless, the
Group did not recognise any contingent liabilities at the consolidated
level as at 31 December 2021.
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Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held the following

BHENEBAR - BE

REAREER

ENEARE - EXRBREE

(a)

BE-Z-_-5+=-A=+—B ' &&

other financial assets: EEEUTHMSHEE !
The Group rEHE
At 31 At 31
December 2021 December 2020
R-B=-—%F RZTE_FTF
t=RA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAT
Non-current JERNHEA
Unlisted investments, at fair value AR BEFEIELETIRE - 409,147
Unlisted equity investment, AR BEFEIELD
at fair value etz E o 34,051
Current BNER
Unlisted investments, at fair value AR EBEFERFELETIRE 222,880 -
Total st 259,002 443,198
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the above unlisted RZBEZ—FR-ZZE_ZFF+=A
investments were wealth management products issued by =4— EI J:L?H: m Tx BERBAETRE
financial institutions in Hong Kong and the above unlisted equity MEEITNIEMER - L3E EmRE

investment represents the 6% interest in Yancheng CCCC
Shanghai Dredging Water Environment Investment Co., Ltd.
They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest. Details of the other financial
assets are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

Acquisition of 65% equity interest in Tianjin Huantang

On 1 March 2021, the Company has, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Beijing Everbright Water Investment Management
Co., Ltd., completed the acquisition of 65% equity interest in
Tianjin Huantang from an independent third party, Tianjin Binhai
Environmental Protection Asset Development Co., Ltd. (the
“Acquisition”). The purchase consideration for the Acquisition
was RMB666.34 million (the “Purchase Consideration”) and
was determined through a competitive online bidding process.
The Purchase Consideration has been paid in full in cash and
funded entirely through internal resources. For further details,
please refer to the announcements released by the Company
on 22 January 2021 and 2 March 2021.

RERERPRZ FMKIRRREBRA
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(c) Securing of Hebei Cangzhou Huanghua Waste Water
Treatment Plants PPP Project

On 18 November 2021, the Company entered into the
cooperation agreement and the PPP project agreement
with  Huanghua City Management and Comprehensive
Administrative Law Enforcement Bureau; and incorporated a
project company with Huanghua Urban-Rural Development
Co., Ltd. pursuant thereto. For further details, please
refer to the announcement released by the Company on
19 November 2021.

(d) Disposal of 20% equity interest in Hebei Xiong’an
Huashen Water Engineering Technology Limited
(“Xiong’an Huashen”)

On 10 December 2021, the Company has, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Limited,
completed the disposal of 20% equity interest in Xiong’an
Huashen to an independent third party (the “Disposal”).

The sale consideration for the Disposal was RMB1.02 million
(approximately HK$1.22 million) (the “Sale Consideration”)
after taking into consideration the appraised value of 100% of
the equity interest in Xiong’an Huashen as at 31 December 2020
using market-based approach, which was determined to be
RMB5.09 million. The net asset value of the 20% equity interest
in Xiong’an Huashen as at 31 December 2020 was RMB1.01
million. The Sale Consideration was received in full in cash.

Upon completion of the Disposal, the Company and its
subsidiaries no longer held any equity interest in Xiong’an
Huashen and therefore, Xiong’an Huashen ceased to be an
indirect associate of the Company.

Transaction in the Securities of the Company or
its subsidiaries

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Significant Investments,
Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures” in the Chief Executive Officer’s Report of this Annual
Report, the Group did not have other transactions in the securities of
the Company or its subsidiaries during FY2021.
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Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the listing document issued by the Company dated
24 April 2019, the Group did not have other future plans for material
investments or capital assets during FY2021.

Internal Management

Corporate management and risk control are of paramount importance
in ensuring efficient, healthy and sustainable corporate development.
The Group has established a sound management structure with
four committees under the Board (the “Board Committees”),
comprising the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nominating Committee and the Strategy Committee. The
Company has also established the Management Committee as the
decision-making body for its daily management. The Management
Committee holds a meeting at least once a month to deliberate the
matters regarding the Group’s business and management, ensuring
its sustainable development. The Company has also set up various
functional departments, including the Legal & Risk Management
Department, the Internal Audit Department, the Finance Management
Department, the Budget Management Department, the Human
Resources Department, the General Management Department, the
Operations Management Department, the Safety & Environmental
Management Department and the Investment & Development
Department. Moreover, in response to business needs, the Group has
also set up four regional management centres, in order to manage
its projects by region and create favourable synergies. The Group
has continuously improved the internal management, established
complete management systems and emergency response capacity,
and fully implemented the Environmental, Safety, Health and Social
Responsibility (‘ESHS”) Management System (‘ESHS Management
System”) and the Risk Management System at all levels in order to
standardise the management of all aspects in the process of project
investment, construction and operations, identify and control risks,
and enhance the overall operational efficiency and profitability. The
Group has continued to promote the establishment and improvement
of corporate governance and integrated compliance management into
its business activities and processes. During the year under review,
the Group established an investigation mechanism, conflict of interest
mechanism relating to family members, anti-corruption mechanism and
accountability system, and clarified the relevant rules in the “Sunshine
Declaration” signed with the suppliers. Accordingly, the suppliers can
report the misconduct of the Group’s employees in accordance with
the channels provided in the agreement in order to assist the Group
to supervise the integrity of its employees. This has further regulated
the operation of the Group and enhanced its corporate governance.
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Human Resource Management

The Group highly values its employees and adheres to the “People-
Oriented” philosophy and competency-based recruitment approach.
Additionally, the Group evaluates its employees based on their
integrity, knowledge, ability and performance, and establishes
an open, competitive and merit-based recruitment mechanism.
During the year under review, the Company has established an
evaluation model assessing the employees’ competency level
and ability to perform their duties. Such model is to effectively
identify outstanding high-potential talents. Moreover, the Company
continuously summarised its human resources (“HR”) management
experiences, optimised HR management systems, established HR
management information systems, and improved the proficiency
of the management team. These measures assure the Company’s
sustainable development.

The Group puts great emphasis on talent training. Based on its strategic
development goal, the Company has organised comprehensive
trainings to enhance the capability of its employees in all kinds of
positions as well as the development courses and management
courses to enhance their vocational skill. The Company has
established its internal trainer team to enhance the professional skill
and comprehensive quality of its employees by adopting diversified
methods of online and offline training. The Company has steadily
developed its talent pool comprising various professionals so as to
provide internal assurance and support for its long-term development.

The Group cares for its employees and always puts employees’
personal safety as priority. Following the ongoing global pandemic,
the Group quickly adopted prevention measures and actively
coordinated various resources to provide its employees with
adequate preventive and protective materials and conduct health
testing to safeguard employees’ safety and health.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,318 employees, who are
remunerated according to their qualifications, experience, job nature,
performance and with reference to market conditions. Apart from
discretionary bonuses, the Group also provides employees with other
benefits such as setting up and maintaining a pension scheme pursuant
to the laws and regulations in the relevant jurisdictions. During the year
under review, in order to further enhance the employee’s sense of
belongings and improve medical and health protection schemes, the
Group purchased long-term medical insurance and health protection
plan for eligible employees. In addition, the Group is committed to
providing all employees with equal opportunities in various aspects
and making efforts to employees’ continuous education to keep
improving employees’ knowledge, skill and engagement. Details of the
salaries and other benefits of the employees are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

During the year under review, the Group continued with the
implementation of the risk management system, establishment of
risk identification and assessment procedures, and the adoption and
evaluation of risk control measures. Based on the requirements set
out in its “Risk Management Policy” and “Risk Management Manual”,
the Group has summarised and analysed the principal risks faced
during the year under review including policy changing risk, new
business investment and market competition risks, environmental
compliance and safe production management risks, accounts
receivable risk, engineering management risk, staffing risk, financing
management risk, cost control risk, technology and innovation risks,
and compliance risk.

During the year under review, the PRC government proposed its
targets on “Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Achieving
Carbon Neutrality”, and issued multiple policies on the eco-
environment-oriented development (the “EOD”) model. Amidst
the new opportunities and challenges presented to the domestic
environmental water industry in China, seeking differentiated
products and services and discovering new business growth points
have become the common issues of major water enterprises.
Therefore, the new business investment and market competition
risks faced by the Group are on an upward trend. Given the effect of
the implementation of internal controls throughout the Group during
the year under review and the past years and taking into account
the complexity and diversity of external factors of other key risks
which are beyond the Group’s control, the risk levels of other key
risks remain unchanged during the year under review.
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Effectiveness of Changes of trend
No. Name of risk control measures in risk level (Note)
iR BB £ 78 EEREREEN RBERBEBE (4:2)
1 Policy changing risk Effective
R B E A B -
2 New business investment and market Effective
competition risks B T
EBREETISHFRR
3 Environmental compliance and safe Effective
production management risks B —
REERETSFEEIRERR
4 Accounts receivable risk Effective
JE LS BR 5 =R e B -
5 Engineering management risk Effective
THREERR B -
6 Staffing risk Effective
ABEERR HHK —
7 Financing management risk Effective
BEEERR B —
8 Cost control risk Effective
A IR BHK g
9 Technology and innovation risks Effective
RHEL LRI R B B -
10 Compliance risk Effective
aEeHER B -
Note: Bzt -
Change of trend in risk level: JElfg SREEEE
™ means that the risk level remains unchanged; > JEZEREREIFTE
4 means that the risk level is on an upward trend. V mEmEBEgE FAHES -

During the year under review, the Group has effectively controlled — BIEEFE A » 7N £ B % R &Y @ 1T A &
and managed the risks faced. B o
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Policy Changing Risk

The Group is subject to risks associated with changes in
regulations and policies in respect of waste water treatment,
river-basin ecological restoration, sponge city construction,
reusable water, water supply and waste water source heat
pump projects in the PRC. During the year under review, the
PRC government issued a number of policy documents on the
EOD model. This has enabled the EOD model to become a
new research headline in the environmental water industry after
“Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Achieving Carbon
Neutrality”. In order to maintain its leading position in the
environmental water industry and maintain its stable business
growth, the Group is required to continuously monitor the PRC
government’s environmental policies, and study changes in the
market and new industry patterns. During the year under review,
the Group actively responded to the PRC government’s policies
by setting up special teams to study topics such as reduction
of pollutants and carbon and carrying out pilot projects such
as water resource utilisation and solar energy, while closely
monitoring the changes in government policies and market.
The existing control measures are effective as a whole and the
risk level remains unchanged.

New Business Investment and Market Competition Risks

With the intense market competition faced by traditional water
projects, the Group needs to expand new business investments.
Massive capital and numerous competitors are entering the
environmental water industry where the Group operates. If the
Group fails to effectively analyse and predict market trends
and industry developments in the future, or fails to effectively
integrate existing resources based on its own advantages,
it will lead to unsatisfactory investment return or unapparent
competitive advantages. During the year under review, the
Group strengthened its efforts in research and expansion on new
businesses and actively explored development opportunities,
such as suitable merger and acquisition opportunities, overseas
environmental water projects and new business models. The
existing control measures are effective as a whole. However,
the risk level is on an upward trend due to the intensifying
competition of the environmental water industry in China and
the direction of new policies issued by the PRC government
during the year under review.
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Environmental Compliance and Safe Production
Management Risks

During the year under review, the Group was able to control the
environmental compliance and safe production management
risks, and no major risk incident took place. During the year
under review, the PRC government issued and revised various
laws and regulations to strengthen the supervisory and
enforcement power on environmental compliance and safe
production management. This has resulted in the tightening
of external regulations. As such and following the increasing
number of its construction and operation projects, the Group
was exposed to increasingly stringent pressure in environmental
compliance and safe production management. If any incident
(such as excessive discharge of pollutants or unsatisfactory
safety management) caused by the external environment or
any human factors occurs, the Group might be subject to
liabilities such as administrative penalties, which might affect
its reputation and revenue. The existing control measures are
effective as a whole. However, the risk level remains unchanged
since the Group has a large number of construction and
operation projects.

Accounts Receivable Risk

Due to its business model, the business, financial condition,
operating results and prospects of the Group are significantly
affected by the revenue and creditworthiness of the customers
of the Group’s environmental water projects. If the customers’
abilities to settle service charges are affected due to financial
difficulties, or the customers delay their payment of service
charges, the Group’s capital management and profit may be
affected. The major customers of the Group are local PRC
governments of the places where the environmental water
projects are located. During the year under review, the Group
was still subject to high accounts receivable risk since the
local PRC governments’ financial capability was affected by
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group has put in place various
measures to strengthen the recovery of accounts receivable.
The existing control measures are effective as a whole. However,
the risk level remains unchanged due to the uncontrollability of
the relevant factors.
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Engineering Management Risk

Engineering management risk refers to the mismanagement
in different areas, such as the safety, quality, progress and
budget of engineering constructions, that potentially leads
to losses. Such mismanagement could be due to insufficient
staff, tight timelines, and failure of contractors to supervise the
participating units properly. In relation to the environmental water
industry where the Group operates, engineering construction is
the paramount factor in ensuring the subsequent stable and
up-to-standard operation and cost control of projects. The
Group has closely monitored the engineering management,
and no major risk incident took place during the year under
review. The existing control measures are effective as a whole.
However, the risk level remains unchanged due to the large
amount of business and a lot of construction units and staff
involved as well as the continuity of the COVID-19 pandemic
prevention and control.

Staffing Risk

The Group relies on the experience and capability of its key
management team and qualified staff in managing different
businesses. The training of key staff, management and
technical personnel is a cyclical process. Due to its business
development and the increasingly competitive conditions in
the environmental water industry, the Group needs to bring
in suitable management and technical talents as and when
appropriate to ensure the stable development of the Group’s
businesses. During the year under review, the Group remained
dedicated to talent training and recruitment, implemented
management systems such as “Measures on Management
of Reserve Talents” and “Measures on Assessment and
Recruitment of Professional and Technical Staff”, established
and refreshed the talent pool, organised professional training
regularly, and strengthened the effort on external recruitment for
a few relatively remote projects. The existing control measures
are effective as a whole, and during the year under review, the
team was stable and all relevant works were carried out in an
orderly manner. The risk level remains unchanged.
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Financing Management Risk

In order to maintain its competitiveness and implement growth
strategies, the Group is required to have sufficient capital
resources. In view of the industry model, the Group spends a large
sum of monies in construction during the early stage of projects
and gradually receives cash flow during the operation process at
the later stage. If it fails to reasonably control the finance cost or
fails to obtain a reasonable amount of financings from the financial
market as and when needed, the Group may face difficulties in
carrying out business and achieving its profit target. To ensure that
the Group maintains a sufficient capital reserve and good control
of finance cost, the Group, during the year under review, continued
monitoring the domestic and overseas financing environment
and the trend of the RMB exchange rate, adjusting the Group’s
borrowing structure as appropriate, and strictly controlling the use
of capital. The existing control measures are effective as a whole
and the risk level remains unchanged.

Cost Control Risk

The Group’s business involves engineering construction and
operation relating to environmental water projects. Substantial
changes in the costs of relevant raw materials, energy, financing
and labour would adversely affect the profit of the Group. During
the year under review, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
relevant policy adjustments by the PRC government, the prices
of certain raw materials and energy required for the Group’s
construction and operation substantially fluctuated. This led
to an adverse impact on the Group’s cost control. The Group
continuously optimised the tender and procurement systems
and procedures, and adopted various measures to control
procurement costs and ensure procurement quality. In addition,
it strengthened budget management, strictly controlled project
investment and operation costs, and conducted regular
evaluations. The existing control measures are effective as a
whole and the risk level remains unchanged.

Technology and Innovation Risks

During the year under review, the competition in the environmental
water industry in which the Group operates became very intense
and the PRC government continuously promulgated new
policy documents on environmental protection and ecological
management. This has accelerated the Group’s urgency in bringing
technological innovation to drive business development. The
Group, during the year under review, continuously strengthened
its efforts and allocated resources in research and development
of relevant technologies, proactively brought in technology
specialists and facilitated the technological transformation and
project application, with a view to pursuing technology-driven
development. The existing control measures are effective as
a whole. However, the risk level remains unchanged since the
technology research and innovation is a time-consuming process
and its outcome may not meet the expectation.
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10. Compliance Risk

The Group has established a relatively comprehensive
compliance procedure, including the provision of effective legal
protection through internal legal personnel and external legal
experts, to ensure relevant matters are effectively reviewed
and handled. During the year under review, the Group strictly
complied with the requirements of the relevant PRC laws and
regulations, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the SEHK (the “SEHK Listing Rules”), the listing manual
of SGX (the “SGX Listing Manual’) and relevant industry
specifications, and achieved a good compliance record. The
existing control measures are effective as a whole and the risk
level remains unchanged.

Environmental and Social Management

With a focus on environmental protection, the Group is
committed to actively promoting national ecological civilisation
and sustainable urban development through its high-quality water
environment management business. The Group has been actively
evaluating its environmental and social performance based on
internationally recognised standards, including the World Bank
Group’s Environmental, Health, and Safety Guidelines, and has
been submitting annual monitoring reports to International Finance
Corporation since 2016. Such monitoring reports cover all projects
of the Group, including projects in the preparatory stage, projects
under construction, projects that completed construction and
projects in operation. All of the Group’s projects have obtained or are
actively applying for international management standard certificates,
including 1SO 9001 Quality Management System, ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, and ISO 45001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System. In addition, the Group will
identify and evaluate the project’s environmental and social risks prior
to investment so as to effectively control environmental and social
risks, and ensure that the requisite administrative permissions and
approvals, such as environmental impact assessment approvals, are
duly obtained before commencing construction.
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In order to protect the environment, prevent and control pollution and
other public nuisances, protect public health and promote ecological
civilisation, sustainable economic and social development, the Group
strictly complies with the PRC’s laws, regulations and standards
related to environmental protection, safe production, occupational
health and social responsibility. Key laws, regulations, and standards
applicable to the Group include Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, Marine
Environment Protection Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes,
Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment, Law of the
PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution,
Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, Work
Safety Law of the PRC, Labour Law of the PRC, Social Insurance
Law of the PRC, Discharge Standard for Pollutants of Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plants (GB18918-2002) and the relevant
discharge standards for pollutants prescribed by local governments,
etc. In addition, the Group is committed to continually improving the
water environmental conditions of the places at which the Group’s
projects are located, with all the projects in operation complying with
the Grade 1A or higher standard under the Discharge Standard of
Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB18918-
2002). The Group’s projects greatly minimise the environmental
damage caused by waste water discharge, protect public health
and promote sustainable development of the water environment. No
breach of these laws and regulations which resulted in any significant
loss or impact to the Group was recorded in FY2021.

The Group implements and organically integrates the comprehensive
ESHS Management System and Risk Management System into its
daily operations management, and makes timely and comprehensive
information disclosure. This will ensure that the Group’s management
structure and core values in social responsibility, as well as risk
management, are safeguarded and applied across various business
units at all times. In FY2021, the Group continued implementing
the ESHS Management System at all levels, covering all of its
employees, on-site third party contractors and subcontractors.
This is to standardise the internal management and risk control in
all aspects, continuously optimise the management system, and
strengthen emergency response ability, for the purpose of sustainable
development. The system also minimises the environmental, safety,
health and social impacts on the project areas.
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BREBE

The Group is determined on disclosing transparent, reliable and
consistent operation performance information to the public by
proactively uploading such information to its corporate website or any
other websites designated by the government authorities for public
checking and scrutiny, including environmental impact assessment
reports, annual environmental monitoring plans, environmental
emergency preparedness and response plans, and monitoring
results of effluent discharge/odour emissions/noise/sludge, etc. This
demonstrates the Group’s willingness to undertake greater social and
environmental responsibilities and accept public scrutiny to actively
promote sustainable development.

Furthermore, to respond to the national initiatives, the Group has been
active at the forefront of environmental science popularisation and
education enhancing the public awareness of water environmental
protection and the soft power of community sustainable development.
The Group continued opening up its waste water treatment facilities
and plant areas to the public, enhancing its role as an environmental
protection publicity base which integrates public visits, practice and
training. Provided that the local requirements relating to pandemic
prevention and control are complied with and all the safety measures
are in place, certain projects have resumed physical visits by the
public. In FY2021, a total of 31 projects of the Group had been
officially opened to the public and received 9,430 visitors in 267
batches in aggregate. The Group continues actively organising
public visits through both online and offline methods. In particular,
the Group offered the public to virtually visit its waste water treatment
facilities by using various methods, such as: uploading videos to the
official media, playing pre-recorded videos and live streaming, for a
wider outreach. Such methods attracted more than 550,000 online
views during FY2021. At the same time, the Group, in collaboration
with local environmental protection, technology associations and
government organisation, encourages the public to treasure and
conserve water and gain environmental protection knowledge. Such
activities also aimed to enhance public awareness and responsibility
relating to environmental protection. A total of 13 projects of the Group
were awarded with the honorary titles of “Environmental Education
Hub” or “Science Popularisation and Education Hub” at the national,
provincial and municipal levels and 2 projects were awarded with the
title of “Open Day Promotion and Education Centre”.
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Dividend

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Current financial year reported on

Any dividend declared for the current financial year reported on?
Yes

As part of the Directors’ continuing efforts to enhance the
Shareholder’s return, the Directors have recommended a final
dividend of HK6.83 cents (equivalent to 1.19 Sing cents) per
ordinary share for FY2021, which is subject to the approval by
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on or around 26 April 2022 (Tuesday) (the “AGM”).
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Name of Dividend RE&H FY2021 Proposed Final Dividend ~ —Z— — BB FEE# A E
Dividend Type BREEE Cash Re
Dividend Amount RESXE HK6.83 cents (equivalent to 1.19 &AL @N6.83781L
Sing cents) per ordinary share (FE1.19815)
Tax Rate B=x One-Tier Tax Exempt — R FRIERA R
Corresponding period of the immediately preceding (b) — BB R AE FEEA
financial year
Name of Dividend RE &8 FY2020 Final Dividend —E_THBFERPKRE
Dividend Type BREESE Cash e
Dividend Amount BRESEE HK6.07 cents (equivalent to 1.04 S EE6.0778(L
Sing cents) per ordinary share (ZFE1.04515)
Tax Rate Bizx One-Tier Tax Exempt —REIBF R

Date payable

Subject to the Shareholders’ approval, the FY2021 Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on or around 18 May 2022
(Wednesday).

Books closure date

Details on closure of books are set out in the section below
entitled “Closure of Register of Transfer and Register of
Members — (b) For determining the entitlement to the FY2021
Proposed Final Dividend”.
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Annual General Meeting

The AGM is expected to be held on or around 26 April 2022
(Tuesday). The notice of the AGM will be published on the SGXNet
and the websites of the Company and HKEx and despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

Closure of Register of Transfer and Register of
Members

(a)

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM

For Singapore Shareholders

The Register of Transfer and Register of Members of the Company
will be closed at 5:00 p.m. on 20 April 2022 (Wednesday) for the
purpose of determining the entitlement of Singapore Shareholders
to attend and vote at the AGM. Duly completed registrable
transfers received by the Company’s Singapore Share Transfer
Agent, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte. Ltd.,
1 Harbourfront Avenue, #14-07 Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore
098632 up to 5:00 p.m. on 20 April 2022 (Wednesday) will be
registered to determine Singapore Shareholders’ entitlements to
attend and vote at the AGM.

For Hong Kong Shareholders

The Hong Kong branch register of members of the Company
will be closed from 21 April 2022 (Thursday) to 26 April 2022
(Tuesday), both days inclusive, for the purpose of determining
the entitlement of Hong Kong Shareholders to attend and vote
at the AGM. Duly completed registrable transfers of Shares
received by the Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar and
Transfer Office, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited,
2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, up
to 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on 20 April 2022 (Wednesday),
will be registered to determine Hong Kong Shareholders’
entitlements to attend and vote at the AGM.
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(b)

For determining the entitlement to the FY2021 Proposed
Final Dividend

For Singapore Shareholders

The Register of Transfer and Register of Members of the
Company will be closed at 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on
29 April 2022 (Friday) being the Singapore Books Closure Date
for the purpose of determining the entitlement of the Singapore
Shareholders to the FY2021 Proposed Final Dividend.

Duly completed registrable transfers of Shares received by
the Company’s Singapore Share Transfer Agent, Boardroom
Corporate & Advisory Services Pte. Ltd., 1 Harbourfront Avenue,
#14-07 Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore 098632 up to 5:00 p.m.
(Singapore time) on 29 April 2022 (Friday) will be registered
before entittements to the FY2021 Proposed Final Dividend
are determined. Members whose securities accounts with The
Central Depository (Pte) Limited are credited with Shares as at
5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on 29 April 2022 (Friday) will rank for
the FY2021 Proposed Final Dividend.

For Hong Kong Shareholders

The Hong Kong branch register of members of the Company will
be closed from 3 May 2022 (Tuesday) to 5 May 2022 (Thursday),
both days inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares
will be registered. Shareholders whose names appear on the
Hong Kong branch register of members of the Company as at
4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on 29 April 2022 (Friday) will be
entitled to the FY2021 Proposed Final Dividend.

Duly completed registrable transfers of Shares received by the
Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, 2103B, 21/F,
148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, up to 4:30 p.m.
(Hong Kong time) on 29 April 2022 (Friday), will be registered
before entitlements to the FY2021 Proposed Final Dividend are
determined.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its listed securities for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Convertibles, Preference Shares and Treasury
Shares

The Company did not have any outstanding convertibles, preference
shares and treasury shares as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no sales,
transfers, disposal, cancellation and/or use of treasury shares.

MR. TAO JUNJIE

Executive Director and CEO
8 March 2022
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Financial Highlights
MBERE
FY2021 FY2020 PERCENTAGE
—E= —EC-E CHANGE
MREFE MBEE  FY2021 VS FY2020
B MHRFE
RESULTS ¥Lb
*2% HK$’000 HK$’000 -z ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂliﬁ
T FB EBES L
Revenue WA 6,912,371 5,663,292 22%
Gross Profit EF 2,801,589 2,200,536 27%
EBITDA BRFIS - BiIE - TER 0
8 34 3 B R 2,245,235 1,931,379 16%
Profit Attributable to RRFERFFRB A 0
Equity Holders of the Company FEIE BT 1,200,329 1,024,271 7%
Return on Shareholders’ Equity (%) FXEE£EFHRE (%) 10.7 10.6 0.1ppt
Basic Earnings per Share BREREF o
(HK cents) () 41.96 35.80 7%
Total Dividend per Share ERE2FRE
(HK cents) (B 12.58 9.81 28%
(equivalent to Sing cents) (HEHD) 2.20 1.71 29%
31 31 PERCENTAGE
DECEMBER DECEMBER CHANGE
2021 2020 31 DECEMBER 2021
+=A + A 31 DECEMBER 2020
=+—H =+—H B F
+ZA=+—H%
FINANCIAL POSITION . :gigi
B N HK$’000 HK$’000 A= H
SRR Tl Fgx 00 FEHEH
Total Assets HEE 32,969,256 26,907,534 23%
Total Liabilities SR 19,806,024 15,501,675 28%
Equity Attributable to RARERFEA
Equity Holders of the Company  fE{h#EzS LB IALLS 10,534,293 13%
Net Asset Value per Share (HK$)  BREEFE (BiT) 4.15 3.68 13%
Gearing Ratio BEAMEX
(Total Liabilites/Total Assets) (%) (eaEesE) (%) 60.1 576 2.5ppt
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Corporate Milestones
TEEEE

FIRST QUARTER OF 2021

—B--FE-3E

EERIESRT)5KEIERETLESTER

Issued the second tranche of MTN to institutional investors in
the national inter-bank bond market of mainland China (the
“Institutional Investors”), with a principal amount of RMB1
billion and an interest rate of 3.75% per annum

Purchased majority equity Interest in Tianjin Huantang, exploring

the mixed-ownership reform of China’s state-owned enterprises
and tapping into Tianjin’s water market

Won the bid for St. Martin Waste Water Treatment Plant Operation
and Management Project in Mauritius, laying a good foundation
for the Company’s further expansion in overseas markets

Announced FY2020 annual results, with profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company increasing by 23% year on year

Launched environmental protection charitable activities that were
themed with “Living in Harmony with Water and Protecting Our
Home Planet” in celebration of the “World Water Day” and the
“China Water Week”

)

R BERAmEBERITERES T SEE
KEE ( [BBREE] ) ZTAER
10 TARBHE —BFHER - B17F
M=3.75%

BERRIREZEEE  RREELEER
EANRERRN - HRXEMKETHS

RREERNEF T IkEERETES
BB BAREE-TRBBINTISEE
RAFES

NME—Z TP REREFEE - ARF
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$1523%I8 K

B tFUKE] A [HEKB] - AR
A TMEEAK  TERE] BEENRE
NEEE

__In conjunction with the “World Water Day” and the

“China Water Week”, Everbright Water (Ji’nan) Limited
played an animated video titled “The Journey of a Water
Droplet” via the WeChat platform, explaining to the
public how waste water is treated at the waste water
treatment plant
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SECOND QUARTER OF 2021
B -FFFE

Trophy for the “Top Ten Influential Enterprise in China’s Water Industry” Award

[FPEKE+ARTENEE] B

e Named as a “Top Ten Influential Enterprise in China's Water o EEFINFLEE20IRBEFLEFE [FEH
Industry”, as announced by E20 Environment Platform annually, IKETRTENITE] BE
for the fourth consecutive year

e Jiangsu Zhenjiang Sponge City Construction PPP Project e I TNII&FH/L/EMRM T ERPPPIER

(“Zhenjiang Sponge City Project”) of the Group was shortlisted ( fﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁiﬁimlﬁ Bl ) AEBsEER
as Top 5 and granted an Honorary Mention in the Building Back Ke—_T——F [FifERg] EMREiE
Better Infrastructure Award 2021 organised by UNECE 18 u?Lﬂ?ﬁ WG RBR G R

e launched various environmental protection charitable o E#% [HRIRFAE ] - A [ELEX
activities, such as the Science Popularisation Lecture and the HEXF] RERE  HHEBMEREE D
Kids Craft Contest, with the theme of “Building a Beautiful RERARFLEAEL BT AR E T HIRER
World Together on the Blue Planet”, in conjunction with the TEH

“World Environment Day”
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In conjunction with the “World Environment Day”, the Group partnered with UNECE’s Honorary Mention certificate for Zhenjiang Sponge
Shandong Society for Environmental Sciences in providing the Environmental City PrOJect
Science Popularisation Lecture AR R FHELSANMIERNEBIZLES
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Corporate Milestones
TEEEE

THIRD QUARTER OF 2021
— B _EE=FF

Boxing Waste Water Treatment Project Upgrading
2 IRIE B IRIFEUE LR

e Issued the first tranche of SCP to the Institutional Investors, o MEBREERTALASETAREK
with a principal amount of RMB800 million and an interest rate MEHERHRES  BITFNE2.4%
of 2.4% per annum

e The Company’s in-plant solar energy pilot program, which o MIETIWEMEHSKEEIEER ( [HiE

was implemented at Shandong Zibo Waste Water Treatment B\H] ) E78 [THAXRK] SBHE
Project (“Zibo Project”), was connected to the power grid and BE - REEFAMITIENE—FPHER
began to generate electricity, providing the relevant experience HAE LR

for future promotion of the pilot program

e Mr. Hu Yanguo appointed as Executive Director and Chairman o MEBTAEBAIARNANITESRES

of the Company and Mr. Tao Junjie appointed as Executive K BENCEEEARARARNITESFHR
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, both with B REABRBE-_ZE-_—FTHAA
effect from 5 October 2021 HEAE K

The in-plant solar energy pilot program at Zibo Project
ST IR B A S R B IE B
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The project on “Key Technologies and Applications for Intelligent
Monitoring and Optimal Operation of Municipal Waste Water
Treatment Plants”, in which Everbright Water (Shenzhen)
Limited under the Group joined as a key participant, received
the second prize of the 2020 State Scientific and Technological
Progress Award

Secured Hebei Cangzhou Huanghua Waste Water Treatment
Plants PPP Project, marking the Company’s breakthrough
in Hebei Province’s water market and solidifying its business
portfolio in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region

Signed a framework agreement for Shandong Qingdao Maidao
Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion and Upgrading Project,
to transform the project into an iconic “community-friendly”
project that integrates high-quality water treatment facilities and
a neighbourhood-friendly park

Received the “ListCo Excellence Award” for the second
consecutive year by organisations including the Hong Kong
stock channel of ifeng.com and Hong Kong media am730

Received the “Award of Excellence in Corporate Governance”
and the “Award of Excellence in ESG” under the category
of newly-listed companies in the “Hong Kong Corporate
Governance and ESG Excellence Awards 2021”7, which
was jointly organised by the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies and the Centre for Corporate Governance and
Financial Policy of Hong Kong Baptist University

Given “A Special Mention for ESG” in the Non-Hang Seng Index
(Small Market Capitalisation) Category of the “Best Corporate
Governance and ESG Awards 2021”, which was organised by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Secured Shandong Ji'nan International Centre for Medical
Sciences Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |, boosting
the Company’s aggregate designed daily water treatment
capacity to more than 1.5 million m? in Ji’nan and solidifying the
Company’s local market position
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Board of Directors
EEERE

MR. HU YANGUO
HHIE B St £

Executive Director and Chairman

HTESRESR

Mr. Hu, aged 55, is the Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company. He is also the chairman of the Strategy Committee and
a member of the Nominating Committee, and a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Hu is an executive director and a vice president of Everbright
Environment. Mr. Hu is also a member of the disclosure committee
and a director of several subsidiaries of Everbright Environment.

Mr. Hu was a non-executive director of China Everbright Greentech
Limited (a subsidiary of Everbright Environment and the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the SEHK). Prior to joining the
Group and Everbright Environment, Mr. Hu was the person-in-charge
of the accounting department of the Guangzhou branch of China
Everbright Bank Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the SEHK and Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Hu
also worked for Northeast Forestry University in the PRC.

Mr. Hu obtained a Master’s degree in Forestry Economy and
Management and a Bachelor’s degree in Mathematics from Northeast
Forestry University in the PRC. He is a Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC.

Mr. Hu joined the Board in October 2021.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
HEIERKBERD
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MR. TAO JUNJIE
PR

Executive Director and CEO
HITEEFRAR

Mr. Tao, aged 56, is the Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is also a member of the Strategy
Committee, and a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Tao has rich experience in engineering construction and
operations management. Mr. Tao was formerly the general manager
of the Department of Safety and Environmental Management
of Everbright Environment, a Vice President of the Company,
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company, the deputy general
manager of Everbright Environmental Engineering (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. and the general manager of China Everbright Water
Investments Limited. Mr. Tao also worked for Shandong Jianzhu
University (formerly known as Shandong Institute of Architecture
and Civil Engineering) in the PRC.

Mr. Tao holds a Doctorate degree in Environmental Engineering
from Wuhan University of Technology in the PRC, a Master’s
degree in Architecture and Civil Engineering from Xi’an University of
Architecture and Technology in the PRC and a Bachelor’s degree in
Water Supply and Sewerage Engineering from Shandong Jianzhu
University in the PRC. He also holds the certificate of Certified
Supervision Engineer and the title of Engineering Technology
Researcher in the PRC.

Mr. Tao joined the Board in October 2021.
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Board of Directors
EEERE

MR. LUO JUNLING
BRERE

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

BITESREFEMEE

Mr. Luo, aged 48, is the Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. He is also a member of the Strategy
Committee and a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Luo has rich experience in accounting management and
operations management. Mr. Luo was formerly a Vice President of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group and Everbright Environment,
Mr. Luo worked at China Construction Bank (Fujian Branch), Fuzhou
Guang Min Road and Bridge Construction and Development Co.,
Ltd., and Fujian Min Xing Accounting Firm.

Mr. Luo holds a Bachelor’s degree in International Accounting from
Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics. He is a Certified Public

Accountant and a Certified Tax Agent in China.

Mr. Luo joined the Board in May 2018.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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MR. ZHAI HAITAO
BgRrsE
Independent Non-Executive Director

BAFATES

Mr. Zhai, aged 53, is the Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company, the chairman of the Nominating Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
He is also the Independent Non-Executive Director of Everbright
Environment.

Mr. Zhai has extensive experience and knowledge in banking, capital
market and management. He is currently the President and Partner
of Primavera Capital Group, and the Independent Non-Executive
Director of China Life Insurance Company Limited (the shares of
which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange, the SEHK and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He was formerly the Managing
Director of Goldman Sachs Asia LLC and the Chief Representative
of Goldman Sachs Beijing Office. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs,
Mr. Zhai worked at the International Department of the People’s
Bank of China in Beijing, and was the Deputy Representative of
the People’s Bank of China Representative Office for the Americas
based in New York.

Mr. Zhai holds a Master’s degree in International Affairs from
Columbia University, a Master of Business Administration degree
from New York University and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Peking University.

Mr. Zhai joined the Board in August 2015.
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Board of Directors
EEERE

MR. LIM YU NENG PAUL
M BE R &
Independent Non-Executive Director

BMKHTES

Mr. Lim, aged 59, is the Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Nominating Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Lim has over 25 years of banking experience with international
investment banks including Morgan Stanley, Deutsche Bank,
Salomon Smith Barney and Bankers Trust. He is currently the
Managing Director and Head of Private Equity of SBI Ven Capital
Pte. Ltd., and the Independent Director of Golden Energy and
Resources Limited (the shares of which are listed on SGX). He was
formerly the Independent Director of Nippecraft Limited (the shares
of which are listed on SGX).

Mr. Lim holds a Master of Business Administration degree in
Finance and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science
from the University of Wisconsin, Madison, United States. He is
also a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Lim was first appointed as the Independent Director of the
Company in July 2007 and continued to be the Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company upon the completion of reverse
takeover in December 2014,

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
HEIERKBERD
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MS. CHENG FONG YEE
BREL L

Independent Non-Executive Director

BAFATES

Ms. Cheng, aged 65, is the Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. She is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

Ms. Cheng has more than 20 years of experience in the insurance
industry and is an Associate of the Australian Insurance Institute.
She has been involved in major overseas insurance projects,
particularly in the Asia Pacific region, and is actively involved
in utilising insurance as a financial tool for project development.
Ms. Cheng is currently the head of the Insurance Division of AsiaOne
Insurance Agency Pte. Ltd. in Singapore. She also headed the
Business Development Department of Aon Insurance Brokers, the
biggest broking house in Asia, and managed the insurance division
of the Singapore Technologies Group.

Ms. Cheng completed her insurance study at the Australian
Insurance Institute.

Ms. Cheng was first appointed as the Independent Director of the
Company in July 2007 and continued to be the Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company upon the completion of reverse
takeover in December 2014,
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Board of Directors
EEERE

MS. HAO GANG
MBIz £

Independent Non-Executive Director

BAFHTES

Ms. Hao, aged 63, is the Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. She is also a member of the Audit Committee and
the Strategy Committee.

Ms. Hao is currently an Associate Professor at the Department
of Management Sciences, the Associate Dean (Graduate
Programmes and Executive Education) of the College of Business,
the Co-Director of CityU-Tsinghual EMBA/MPA (PPP) dual degree
programme at the College of Business and the Director of EMBA
(Chinese) programme, City University of Hong Kong. Prior to that,
she took a number of roles at the City University of Hong Kong,
mainly responsible for university development and international
programme, amongst others. Ms. Hao also worked in Techno-
Economic Research Institute of National Economic Commission of
the PRC and participated in a number of major national investment
and research projects in China.

Ms. Hao holds a Doctorate degree in Decision Sciences and
Operations Management from University of Pittsburgh in the United
States, a Master’s degree in Industrial Administration from Tianjin
University and a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from
Sichuan University.

Ms. Hao joined the Board in March 2018.
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FEXARKBEERD A

ML - WEFE635R  /RARBEUIFNTE
= ERESLEBBEEESERE -

BELLTHEEEERTAEHZREEN S
REHExIEERERE (FRERE
kEEEIN) H EEBHARKE—FEKE
EMBA/MPA (PPP) & E3{718 B B [F I £ A
REBWTAZBEMBA (FX) BEEME -
BERT - RERBER D KBEEZ BB -
TEREARERERE BEREBFEL
ML LT ERBR T EBEREER 8GRl
RBEMEAALSBZATEBFKEKRKRER
REIHE

MEZTIFEERCLZEABRRR BN ES
B RERETEXEETEETULMNII
ANEYEPEBE ] o

RELELR T N\F=ZAMAEES -



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
SR -FERE

Senior Management
SNEERE

MR. WANG YUEXING Vice President

Mr. Wang, aged 53, is the Vice President of the Company. He is
also a director and/or the general manager of several subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Wang has rich experience in engineering construction and
operations management. Mr. Wang was formerly the Deputy
General Manager of Everbright Environmental Protection Technology
Development (Beijing) Limited and Everbright Environmental Protection
Engineering (Shenzhen) Limited, and the Plant Manager of Ji'nan
Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1).

Mr. Wang holds a Master’s degree in Environmental Engineering from
Tsinghua University, a Master of Business Administration degree from
Shandong University and a Bachelor’'s degree in Civil Engineering from
South China University of Technology. He also holds the titles of Certified
Cost Engineer and Certified Senior Engineer.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2016.
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MR. WANG GUANPING Vice President

Mr. Wang, aged 49, is the Vice President of the Company. He is
also a director and/or the general manager of several subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Wang has rich experience in technology management and
R&D. He was granted several invention patents and utility models.
Mr. Wang was formerly the Assistant Dean of Everbright Environmental
Research Institute, Chief Technology Officer of China Environmental
Protection Science and Technology Holdings Limited, Deputy Chief
Engineer of Shenzhen Liyuan Water Design and Consultant Limited
and Chief Engineer of Operation Branch of Wuhan Kaidi Water
Services Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wang holds a Doctorate degree in Environmental Engineering
from Tsinghua University, a Master’s degree in Municipal Engineering
from Tongji University and a Bachelor’s degree in Water Supply and
Sewerage Engineering from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology. He holds the title of Certified Senior Engineer.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2016.
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Senior Management
SNEERE

MR. ZHANG GUOFENG Vice President

Mr. Zhang, aged 45, is the Vice President of the Company. He is also
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Zhang has rich experience in project investment, operations
management and mergers and acquisitions. He was formerly the
General Manager of the Investment Development Department at
Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Limited, the Deputy
General Manager of Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited and the Supervisor
of Everbright Environmental Energy (Xintai) Limited.

Mr. Zhang holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
Yunnan University of Finance and Economics and a Bachelor’s degree
in Engineering from Qingdao University of Science and Technology. He
is a Certified International Accountant with China Association of Chief
Accountants, a Certified Management Accountant with the Institute of
Certified Management Accountants in the USA and a member of the
Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Zhang joined the Group in March 2017.
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MR. NIU KESHENG CEO Assistant

Mr. Niu, aged 58, is the CEO Assistant of the Company. He is also
a director and/or the general manager of several subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Niu has rich experience in operations management within the
environmental protection industry.

Mr. Niu holds a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering on Mechanical
Manufacturing Process and Equipment from Shandong University
of Technology. He also holds the title of Engineering Researcher on
Environmental Protection Engineering.

Mr. Niu join the Group in December 2014.
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MR. WU ZHIGUOQO CEO Assistant

Mr. Wu, aged 44, is the CEO Assistant of the Company. He is also
a director and/or the general manager of several subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Wu has rich experience in waste water treatment and engineering
construction management.
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Mr. Wu holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Civil Engineering from Xuzhou
University of Technology. He also holds the titles of Human Resources
Professional (Intermediate) and Certified Senior Economist.

Mr. Wu joined the Group in May 2016.
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MR. AN PINGLIN Technical Director

Mr. An, aged 58, is the Technical Director of the Company. He is also
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. An has rich experience in technology management and R&D. He
published multiple papers and was granted several patents. Prior
to joining the Group, he was formerly the General Manager and
Technical Director of a German company, BHU Umwelttechnik GmbH
(China branch), the Deputy Director for Education Division of Publicity
Department of Qingdao Municipal Committee and the Associate
Professor of Qingdao University.

Mr. An holds a Doctorate degree from Karlsruhe Institute of
Technology (KIT) in Germany, a Master's degree from Shanghai
Donghua University and a Bachelor’s degree from Qingdao University.
He is currently a member of the German Association for Water,
Wastewater and Waste (DWA).

Mr. An joined the Group in January 2017.
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MS. PENG PEI Legal Counsel and Joint Company Secretary

Ms. Peng, aged 35, is the Legal Counsel and Joint Company Secretary
of the Company. She is also the General Manager of the Legal and
Risk Management Department of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Peng was a practising lawyer at the
Singapore office of Allen & Gledhill LLP. Her areas of practice included
mergers and acquisitions and derivatives. She also participated, as
a core member, in a major research project of the Supreme People’s
Court of the PRC on disregarding the corporate entity to propose the
relevant judicial interpretations.

Ms. Peng holds Master of Laws degrees from New York University,
National University of Singapore and Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
of Laws degree from Tianjin University. She is called to the PRC Bar and
the State Bar of California, United States. Ms. Peng is also an associate
member of The Chartered Secretaries Institute of Singapore and The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).

Ms. Peng joined the Group in May 2015.
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This is an abstract of Everbright Water’s Sustainability Report for
FY2021. The full Sustainability Report for FY2021 is prepared in
accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”) Standards:
Comprehensive option, the SGX Listing Manual (Rules 711A and
711B and Practice Note 7.6 Sustainability Reporting Guide) and
the Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Reporting
Guide published by the SEHK. To assess the potential climate-
related risks and opportunities that the Group may encounter, the
Group adopts the framework of Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”) and CDP’s climate change and
water security questionnaires to enhance ESG disclosures in the
Sustainability Report for FY2021. In addition, the Sustainable
Development Goals of the United Nations (“SDGs”) are fully
integrated into the Group’s environmental and social management
strategies to align with its core value of being “Devoted to Ecology
and Environment for a Beautiful China” and to demonstrate its
commitment to tackling the world’s most pressing issues.

The full report, in both Chinese and English languages, will be
available for download on the SGXNet (www.sgx.com) and the
websites of Everbright Water (www.ebwater.com) and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) (www.hkexnews.hK)
in May 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICIES
BRERMEEEE

In response to the requirements on ecological environmental
protection in the “14" Five-Year Plan” issued by the PRC government,
and the commitment to progressively reduce carbon emissions after
reaching its peak, the Group bears the important responsibility in
promoting green development, ecological environmental protection
and efficient water management. The Group has established a sound
enterprise operations management system to enhance its operational
efficiency and ensure the continuous provision of efficient and high-
quality water environment management services, contributing to the
country’s ecological civilisation and sustainable development.

The Group has always been committed to fulfiling its corporate
social responsibility. By actively and fully implementing the ESHS
Management System and the Risk Management System at all levels,
the environmental, occupational health and safety risks encountered
by each project company are effectively managed. Comprehensive
and standardised contingency plans have been established to ensure
more stable operations. The Group has extended its corporate social
responsibility management into its contractor management. In order
to identify and control the relevant environmental, social and safety
risks derived from the contracted work process, the Group has also
specifically formulated and implemented the Contractors ESHS
Management Measures. Such measures require the Group to review the
contractors in different aspects, including background, qualifications,
construction operations and environmental performance.

The Group firmly adheres to the concepts of corporate social
responsibility and green operations. The Group has been actively
evaluating its environmental and social performance against
internationally recognised standards, including the World Bank
Group’s Environmental, Health, and Safety Guidelines, and has
been submitting annual monitoring reports to International Finance
Corporation since 2016. Such monitoring reports cover all projects of
the Group, including projects in the preparatory stage, projects under
construction, projects that completed construction and projects in
operation. All of the Group’s projects have obtained or are actively
applying for international management standard certificates, including
ISO 9001 Quality Management System, ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System and ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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\ [ SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES TO ADDRESS CLIMATE CHANGE
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Climate change affects all regions around the world. Storms, floods and
droughts caused by extreme weather have occurred more frequently
with higher magnitude in recent years. To improve the Group’s resilience
against climate change, the Group has included climate change risk
into its Risk Management System to formulate more comprehensive
emergency and natural disaster contingency plans.

The Group understands that climate change will bring various risks to the
Group’s business. Physical risks, such as water stress, floods and extreme
weather, will cause damage and negative impacts on its assets and supply
chains; transition risks, such as policy changes and reputation risk may
also cause potential financial impacts to the Group. Everbright Water is
proactively taking actions to address the impacts of climate change. The
Group is committed to reducing and offsetting greenhouse gas emissions
and enhancing the resilience of the Group and its projects against climate
change. In addition, the Group seizes relevant opportunities to build a
cleaner water environment in order to enhance cities’ climate resilience
and contribute to sustainable development.

Through a series of comprehensive water environment management
services, the Group actively participates in constructing sustainable
cities, creates a better ecological environment and enhances cities’
overall resilience to floods. The Group’s Jiangsu Zhenjiang Sponge
City Construction PPP project was shortlisted as Top 5 in the Building
Back Better Infrastructure Award by the United Nations Economic
Commission for Europe and awarded an Honorary Mention during
the year under review. This represents an affirmation of the Group’s
excellent performance in environmental sustainability and response and
adaption to climate change. By adopting the concept of “sponge city”,
such project controls surface runoff and relieves pressure on urban river
channels, thereby improving the city’s ability in absorption, infiltration,
retention, release and purification of rainwater and enhancing the city
as an urban ecosystem. The project was included in the PPP project
database of the Jiangsu Provincial Department of Finance in 2015.
It is one of the provincial-level pilot projects in Jiangsu Province and
was successfully selected as a national PPP demonstration project as
recommended by the Jiangsu Provincial Department of Finance.

Everbright Water actively implements carbon reduction strategy.
During the year under review, the Group established special
teams for various topics such as carbon reduction, in-plant
photovoltaics and waste water source heat pumps, to carry out
related policy studies, research and pilot projects. During the year
under review, the Group’s first in-plant photovoltaic facility started
operation in Shandong Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project
(Plant 1) and was connected to the grid for power generation. In
addition, the Group’s waste water treatment plants have become
pilot projects for the monitoring of greenhouse gas emissions by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC, contributing to the
improvement of the energy structure and carbon emission reduction
work plan of waste water treatment plants.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
RERE

Amidst the increasingly challenging environmental issues, the Group
has aligned itself with the national directions and strictly complied
with the environmental regulations and discharge standards.
Focusing on the water environment management, the Group’s
projects cover the entire industry chain in the water business,
including raw water protection, water supply, municipal waste
water treatment, industrial waste water treatment, reusable water,
river-basin ecological restoration, and sludge treatment and disposal.
The Group’s projects are equipped with online effluent monitoring
systems, and qualified third-party laboratories are commissioned to
test the water discharge samples regularly to ensure their consistent
compliance with the relevant discharge standards. The Group
continued to improve China’s waterbody conditions and facilitate
enhancement on its sanitation standards through various business
developments such as the implementation of “Intelligent Water”
and enhancement of water resource protection measures, thereby
significantly reducing the environmental impact caused by waste water
effluent and safeguarding the health and well-being of the public.

Waste Water and Waste Management
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE (CONT’D)
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Waste Water and Waste Management

The Group applies stringent discharge standards to its waste water
treatment projects. Through continuous upgrading works, water
discharged from all of the Group’s waste water treatment projects
complies with the requirements as stipulated in the environmental
impact assessment reports approved by the local governments, whilst
the effluent quality of projects in operation complying with or beyond
Grade 1A standard of Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plants (GB18918-2002). During the year under
review, the Group treated 1,698,710,000 m® of waste water and
reduced approximately 417,371 tonnes of chemical oxygen demand
(COD) discharge.

In addition, the Group’s reusable water projects purify effluent
discharged from waste water treatment plants in accordance with the
Reuse of Urban Recycling Water-Water Quality Standard for Industrial
Uses (GB/T19923-2005) or equivalent standards. To reduce freshwater
consumption in cities, reusable water produced by reusable water
projects can be used as in-plant cooling water or for general industrial
use by other corporations. During the year under review, the Group’s
reusable water projects produced 28,530,000 m? of reusable water.

Sludge Management

Apart from treating the sludge produced by its waste water treatment
plants in accordance with the national standards such as Discharge
Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant
(GB18918-2002), the Group also adopts relevant international
standards including the World Bank Group’s General Environmental,
Health, and Safety Guidelines and Environmental, Health, and Safety
Guideline for Water and Sanitation to reduce environmental impacts of
sludge treatment and disposal.

Most of the treated sludge with satisfactory testing results is sent to
qualified third-parties for further treatment, reuse and/or utilisation,
such as utilisation as construction materials and incineration.
A small amount of sludge is sent to designated landfills for disposal
after undergoing dewatering process for the reduction of water
content and volume.
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é% TALENT DEVELOPMENT
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The Group emphasises the importance of innovation and
transformation in corporate development, and having an excellent
team is the key to achieving innovation and development. The
Group has been adhering to the “People-Oriented” philosophy
and pays great attention to talent development in achieving mutual
success between the teams and leaders. Through a sound human
resources management system, the Group provides employees with
attractive career development opportunities and a caring working
environment. The Group’s Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct
cover topics including compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest days, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, the prevention of child labour and forced labour,
and other benefits and welfare. The policies also advocate a fair and
open workplace and ensure that employees are protected from all
forms of discrimination against gender, age, race, nationality, marital
status, religions, etc.

During the year under review, the Group continued focusing on talent
training and recruitment. Through the development of backup talent
pool, the overall quality and management ability of staff have been
improved. The Group has also carried out ethics training activities,
focusing on the mental health and civilisation for all employees, and
strengthening employees’ sense of responsibility to the Company,
others and the society.

During the year under review, the Group has implemented the following
staff development plans to establish a proactive and innovative team.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXARKBEERD A

AEBRFAMBLREEFERNER —
R MEAEFEGEERAFTERNLE
fRtF - AEBREEFNEKMAE ZHIE
EEABHBEER U FR-EZR (A
ABER] MEZ  SEERATKMEER -
BOBBAEYNANEREERR  RET
REARSI INBXEREE LT NEE
M TERE - NEER (BT FM) 1 (47
ASTRD) RETHIE AR - BERE
TR RE - FEEE  Zl R
B e ET R b B E) AR A58 M AR
NEZE BEREQAFAFNRETE @
RETETIERAEHEMR - Fic - Bk -
BIZE - AR - REFERM X B ERE
EVEAR ©

AEEREEFEAKERIRATBEEAN
HEE T - BBRREH BT 058 e RKFH
RBBABHFMER  BRARBHHINEESR
BENEEREN AKENTARTEEBEEE
JEE - EOREEREXAER - NRE
THRA] - AL ENEER -

CIEEFEENR - NEBEHETTT T8 THRE
g BREI-XEBRIHEEREEND
EP



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
SR -FERE

©)
()

61 .

TALENT DEVELOPMENT (CONT’D)

AT BB (@)

[ e |

Comprehensive
Appraisal System

mETREE

Through its internal assessment mechanism, the Group closely monitored employees’ career
development by setting achievable goals along with ongoing evaluation. The system also
helped cultivate outstanding employees who embraced the core values of the Group.
NEBEZH#H A B THEY BN TIER RIETHEENTE - UL ETRERETHBE
R o WmBUILET  REBRMEEREEAROEBENESET -

Tiered Talent
Development
Strategy

BERAATHE

The Group established a managerial and technical backup talent pool to recognise high
performing talents by offering them internal promotion opportunities.
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Apprenticeship
Programme

[EDsHE | T8l

The apprenticeship programme allowed the skilled workers to lead newcomers, which
effectively passed valuable skills and knowledge to new employees and helped the fresh blood
establish practical career plans.
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Technical
Talent Training
Programme
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Through “Industrial-Academic” collaboration, the Group invited local and overseas technical
experts to provide trainings to managerial and technical employees of its projects, to widen
their horizons.
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Internal Through sharing and benchmarking exchange for operation and management experience
Benchmarking between the Group’s project companies, the Group achieved purposes of mutual learning and
Exchange improvement of operational efficiency.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY
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With its priority on safe production, the Group is committed to
avoiding non-compliance and ensuring each operational milestone of
the Group are achieved, thereby safeguarding the health and safety
of its employees and the public.

The Group has implemented a comprehensive ESHS Management
System to monitor the operational safety and occupational health of
employees at projects in operation and under construction. ESHS
management teams have been established at every project company
to ensure continuous management on safe production and enhance
the awareness on risk prevention. Furthermore, the Group extends
the ESHS Management System to its supply chain by clearly stating
relevant occupational health and safety requirements in the supplier
contracts, thus monitoring the health and safety performance of its
key suppliers.

In order to further enhance the safety and environmental awareness
of personnel in various positions, the Group is determined to carry
out the “Safe Production Month” every year at the project level.
To achieve the goal of “zero work safety accident, zero excessive
discharge of pollutants, and zero case for violations of regulations
and discipline” and enhance the safety and environmental awareness
of the employees, the Group organised various online safety and
environmental knowledge competitions, themed lectures, training,
safety inspections, emergency drills, etc.

In addition, the Group protected its employees’ health by providing
annual medical check-ups and occupational disease prevention
inspections. Moreover, the Group set up an Employee Safeguard and
Safety Fund, which can be disbursed upon application to support
employees who suffer from accidents or diseases, relieving the
financial burden of their families.

The Group achieved zero work-related injuries during the year under
review.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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As a leading enterprise in China’s water industry, Everbright Water
is committed to promoting the idea of ecological civilisation and
shoulders the important responsibility of environmental protection and
education. With its competitive advantages in technology, resources
and talent, the Group actively joins hands with various tertiary
education institutions, environmental, technological associations and
government organisations in organising various activities to promote
the importance of water resource protection and green living.
15 waste water treatment projects of the Group received various
awards and recognitions such as the “Science Popularisation and
Education Hub”, “Environmental Education Hub” and “Open Day
Promotion and Education Centre”. During the year under review,
Everbright Water (Suzhou) Limited was selected as “Ecological
Civilisation Education Practice Base in Jiangsu Province” and “Suzhou
Environmental Protection Demonstration Enterprise”; Sanmenxia
Everbright Water Limited (“Sanmenxia Project Company”) was
awarded the title of “Top Ten Environmental Protection Facilities
Open to Public in 2021” in Henan Province.

The Group actively responded to the requirements under the Notice
on Further Opening the National Environmental Protection Facilities
and Urban Waste Water and Waste Treatment Facilities to the Public
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment and the Ministry
of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC, and opened
its waste water treatment facilities to the public. The Group is
committed to developing itself into an advanced hub for public visits
and environmental education that provides on-site visits, practical
learnings and technical trainings simultaneously.
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2021 “World Water Day” and “China Water Week” Environmental Public Welfare Activities
2021%F [HHRKA] R [HEKE]| RRASEE

In conjunction with the 29" “World Water Day” and the 34™ “China Water Week”, Everbright Water organised
“Harmonious People and Water, Protecting Homeland - 2021 World Water Day and China Water Week Environmental
Public Welfare Activities”.
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This activity aims to promote the harmonious coexistence of people, water and nature, and encourage the public
to protect and preserve precious water resources. The activities were carried out in both online and offline modes
and in accordance with the requirements of pandemic prevention and control. Each project company of the Group
has organised various innovative online activities, such as “Cloud Animation”, “Cloud Classroom”, and “Cloud Visit”
based on the local conditions. Such activities enabled the public to learn about the complete process of waste water
treatment in the comfort of their own homes and communicate and interact through the cloud platform. The project
companies also carried out various offline public welfare activities to practise corporate social responsibility with
actions.
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Online “Cloud Animation” - “The Journey of a Water Droplet”
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Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited (“Ji’nan Project Company”)
uploaded an animated video on its Wechat public account of the
Science Popularisation Hub. Such video showed how waste water
is transformed into a clean water droplet with “Shui Bao Bao”
illustrating the whole treatment process, thereby introducing to
the audience the waste water treatment process through “Cloud
Animation”.
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2021 “World Water Day” and “China Water Week” Environmental Public Welfare Activities (cont’d)

2021 [HHRKB | & [HEKE] BRAZES ()

LLLTH

A

Offline Public Welfare Activities to Fulfill Corporate Social
Responsibility

BTREED  ARTHRTOXMEER

Everbright Water (Xianyang) Limited organised the “World Water
Day” and “China Water Week” activities, inviting the public to
visit Xianyang Waste Water Treatment Project. The staff vividly
introduced the company profile and treatment process flow which
enabled the public to easily understand the complicated waste
water treatment process. The activity also helped the public
understand the current situation of water resources in China
through a question-and-answer session, and enhanced the public
awareness of water conservation.

KAKD (BiF5) BRARSEN [HFRKA] Kk [HEKE]

EEEY BFEEATREEREGSKEEERE - ATEAR
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IRFEEFE - RHEBBRATREEARTEHBEIKER
Bk - ISR A REKEKEE o

Sanmenxia Project Company together with the municipal
government organised a visit to Sanmenxia Waste Water Treatment
Project which was participated by more than 60 university students
during the Chinese New Year. The activity promoted environmental
protection and green living, as well as encouraged the participants
to take an active role in building a beautiful China.
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% COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (CONT’D)
& HEZHE @)
9 April 2021
—E-_-FWMAANA
Teachers and Students from a “Project 211” University Administered by the Ministry of Water Resources

visited Everbright Water (Nanjing) Limited (“Nanjing Project Company”)
KABEB2MNEMAZBMESBAAKE (BR) GRAR ( [MREEAR] )

10 I Y

o e

FaT=y CerEas NI FPETNET VEEV

115 teachers and students from Nanjing Pukou District Urban Construction Group and School of Environment,
Hohai University, visited the Group’s Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment Project. The students, majoring in water
management, showed great interest and actively engaged during the visit. The detailed explanations given by the
professional guides from Nanjing Project Company to the students enabled them to gain practical and technical
knowledge on waste water treatment and know more about Everbright Water from the visit.

MR AEARRESER  ERBIRFBERMAENI1I5A  MAKENERFERSKERIEEET2HES -
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5 June 2021
—E-—-%5XHEH

“World Environment Day”
[t IR H |

In conjunction with the 50" “World Environment Day”, Everbright
Water held a series of online and offline activities with a theme of
“Strive Together for a Blue Planet”.

RESERTE [HRRFE] - KRKBU [EEER - £
HE| BEE - BPT -ZINREKTHERESHES -

The Liaoning Regional Management Centre of Everbright Water
cooperated with the streaming media for the first time and
invited Wang Zizhen, a famous host of Dalian Radio and TV
Broadcasting, to host an online visit to the Dalian Malanhe Waste
Water Treatment Project. Such “Science Popularisation Lecture”
on the cloud platform enabled the audience to learn about the
waste water treatment process in an interactive manner.
RRKBEZRIFERROEREREREE  BERETRERE
ERAERTFATIFBEEEDSHRTTKEEER - H8
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Ji'nan Project Company and Shandong Society for Environmental
Sciencesjointly launched an online and offline visit. During the event,
more than 160 teachers, students and parent representatives
from the Primary School Affiliated to Shandong Normal University,
Nanshangshan Street Primary School and Hengxin Primary
School gathered at Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project
(Plant 2), where experts in the environmental field of Shandong
Province presented an interactive environmental science
popularisation seminar to them. It also enabled the live streaming
of the whole seminar and online voting system to evaluate the
environmental handcrafts award.
BEEEARBSLRRENBESHARR TR LETHE
HEN2BEEEE EBEBRE LRMBAZMBENE
MElENE - BN EN160REMERERRAREREESR
EKEEIEE (ZF) ALRERREFER/REFLT
—i5AEE - ATE  AIBRAOVEAREMERE 4R ERERE
PRERMEARBZEARTAR TRRFILIEMR L RENE
EE o

As at 31 December 2021, a total of 31 projects of the Group had been officially opened to the public. In FY2021, these
projects received 9,430 visitors in 267 batches in aggregate. The Group continued to launch various online and offline
activities. Due to the pandemic restrictions, the Group offered the public to virtually visit its waste water treatment
facilities through “Cloud Opening” by using various methods, such as: uploading videos to the official media, playing
pre-recorded videos and live streaming, for a wider outreach. In FY2021, the online activities attracted more than
550,000 online views. At the same time, the Group, in collaboration with local environmental protection, technology
associations and government organisation, organised environmental education activities to encourage the public to
treasure and conserve water and gain environmental protection knowledge. Such activities also aimed to enhance
public awareness and responsibility relating to environmental protection. The Group has achieved its goals in public
education via opening its projects to the public. In line with the national strategies, the Group has also participated
actively in domestic and international activities related to environmental technologies, established policies on open
day activities and encouraged employees to practise low-carbon living.

BE_ZT_—F+_A=+—H0 A5EEAMEEAMARERRAKR - RS- —HNHRFE - SLBA H#E
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China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed
to achieving high standards of corporate governance to ensure
investor confidence in the Company as a trusted business enterprise.
The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the
management of the Company (the “Management”) will continue
to uphold good corporate governance practices to enhance long-
term value and returns for the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and protect the Shareholders’ interests.

This report outlines the Company’s corporate governance practices
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021” or the
“year under review”) with specific reference made to the principles
and provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance 2018 (the “SG
CG Code”), which forms part of the continuing obligations of the
listing manual (the “SGX Listing Manual”) of Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX” or “SGX-ST”). Throughout
FY2021, the Company has complied with the principles and
provisions of the SG CG Code unless otherwise specified herein.

Since the listing of the Company’s ordinary shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on 8 May
2019, the Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “HK CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the SEHK (the “SEHK Listing Rules”) as part of its governance
framework, in addition to the principles and provisions under SG CG
Code. In the event of any conflicts between the SG CG Code and
the HK CG Code, the Company will comply with the more stringent
requirements. Throughout FY2021, the Company has complied with
the principles and code provisions of the HK CG Code.

(A) BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s conduct of its affairs

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of
the Company. Its key responsibilities include providing leadership
and supervision to the Management with a view to protecting the
Shareholders’ interests and enhancing long-term Shareholders’
value.

All Directors recognise that they have to discharge their duties
and responsibilities at all times as fiduciaries who act objectively
in the best interest of the Company and hold the Management
accountable for performance, and the Board is accountable to the
Shareholders through effective governance of the business.
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The Board’s principal functions include the following:

(1)

(11)

(12)

providing entrepreneurial leadership, setting strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the necessary financial and
human resources are in place for the Group to meet its
objectives;

reviewing and approving corporate strategies, financial
objectives and direction of the Group;

establishing a prudent and effective control system to assess
and manage risks, including safeguarding the Shareholders’
interests and the Group’s assets;

establishing goals for the Management and monitoring the
achievement of these goals;

ensuring the Management’s leadership of high quality,
effectiveness and integrity;

reviewing the Management’s performance;

approving annual budgets and investment and divestment
proposals;

reviewing the internal controls, risk management, financial
performance and reporting compliance;

identifying the key stakeholder groups and recognising that
their perceptions affect the Company’s reputation;

setting the Group’s value and standards (including ethical
standards), and ensuring that obligations to the Shareholders
and other stakeholders are understood and met;

considering the sustainability issues, such as environmental,
health, safety and social factors, as part of its strategic
formulation; and

assuming responsibility for corporate governance.

In respect of its corporate governance functions, the Board is
responsible for the following:

(@)

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

EEENIZBERENATAR

(1)

(1)

(12)
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(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and the Directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the SG CG Code,
HK CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The Board performed the above duties during the year under review.

The Board has adopted a policy where the Directors who are
interested in any matter being considered, should recuse themselves
from deliberations and abstain from voting in relation to any such
resolution(s) relating to such matter.

All Directors exercise due diligence and independent judgment, and
are obliged to act in good faith and consider at all times the interest
of the Company.

The Board meets regularly, at least on a quarterly basis (four times
a year). Ad-hoc meetings are held at such times, as and when
required, to address any specific significant matters that may
arise. In FY2021, the Board held six meetings in total. In respect
of the regular meetings of the Board, all Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agenda. In addition, formal
notices and agenda are sent to all Directors at least 14 days before
the respective meetings. For all other Board and Board Committee
(defined below) meetings, a reasonable notice is generally given. In
general, the detailed meeting materials for each agenda (including
meeting papers and explanatory or background information) are sent
to the Board or the Board Committees at least three days before
the meeting to ensure that the Directors or the members of the
Board Committees have sufficient preparation time for the meetings.
The minutes of the Board and the Board Committee meetings are
recorded with sufficient details regarding the matters considered and
decisions reached. Draft and final versions of the minutes are sent
to all Directors or Board Committee members for comments and
records within reasonable time after the meetings. The minutes of
the Board and the Board Committee meetings are confirmed at the
subsequent meetings. The original signed minutes are properly kept
at the registered office or principal business address of the Company
as required under the relevant laws, rules and regulations, and the
minutes are open for inspection by the Directors and the Board
Committee members, as the case may be.
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During the Board meetings, the relevant Management personnel may
be invited to make presentation and answer the Directors’ queries
on the relevant agenda, and the Directors are free to discuss and
openly challenge the views presented by the Management and
other Directors. The Chairman of the Board ensures that each
agenda is allocated sufficient time for discussion and each Director
is given sufficient opportunity to express his/her opinions. Where
necessary, the Company also engages external consultants to
provide professional opinions on specific projects or corporate
exercises to facilitate the Board’s decision-making process. The
Board’s decision-making process is an objective one. The Directors
are given separate and independent access to the Management
to address any enquiries. When necessary, the Directors can seek
independent professional advice, concerning any aspect of the
Group’s operations or undertakings in order to fulfill their roles and
responsibilities as Directors, at the Company’s expense.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against the Directors arising from corporate activities.

Below are (i) the number of meetings and the Directors’
attendance at the meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nominating Committee, the
Strategy Committee, and the annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”), held during FY2021; and (i) the number
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of meetings and the Directors’ attendance at the meetings of the ~ +— EI Hﬁ FEEZESVUNGRARBENRESN
Management Committee” held during the period from 1 January &5
2021 up to 11 August 2021.

Audit Remuneration Nominating Strategy Management Annual General

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee™ Meeting

Directors/ Ezg FifZE88 ¥HzE8 REZE8 BHZEE EBZEE0 REBEAS
Board Committee members Held | Attended | Held | Attended | Held | Attended | Held | Attended | Held | Attended | Held | Attended | Held | Attended
EZ/E39Z8968 SHEAH| HEAH (SHAH| HREAH |BERH| HRAY |SEAH| HEAH (SHRH| LRERH |BERH| LRI |SEAH| HEAR
MrWangTenyi®  TRE%RE | 6 52 NA NA 2 2 2 2 1 NA NA. NA. 1 1
Mr.HuYanguo®  {EEEIEE Y| 6 19 NA NA NA NA 2 NA 1 1 % NA 1 NA
M. AnXuesong?  RENREEY| 6 54 NA. NA. NA. NA. NA. NA. 1 NA % % 1 1
Mr. Teo Junje ® BmEneE©| 6 10 NA NA NA NA NA NA 1 1 % NA. 1 NA
Mr. Luo Juniing Vi 6 6 NA. NA. NA. NA. NA. NA 1 1 % % 1 1
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEREE 6 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 NA. NA NA NA 1 1
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul - #8855 4 6 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 NA. NA NA NA 1 1
Ms. ChengFong Yee  BIElEZ L 6 6 2 2 2 2 NA. NA. NA. NA NA NA 1 1
Ms. Hao Gang il 6 6 2 2 NA. NA. NA. NA. 1 1 NA NA 1 1
N.A. — Not a Director or a member of the relevant Board Committee when the NA - EEEEFE T EEFXIHEFS LSS

meeting(s) was/were held.
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Notes:
(1) The Management Committee has ceased to be a Board Committee with
effect from 11 August 2021.

(2)  Mr. Wang Tianyi resigned as a Non-Executive Director, the Chairman
of the Board, the chairman of the Strategy Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nominating Committee
with effect from 5 October 2021.

3) Mr. Hu Yanguo was appointed as an Executive Director, the Chairman of
the Board, the chairman of the Strategy Committee, the chairman of the
Management Committee, and a member of the Nominating Committee
with effect from 5 October 2021.

(4)  Mr. An Xuesong resigned as an Executive Director, the Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEQ’), the chairman of the Management Committee and a
member of the Strategy Committee with effect from 5 October 2021.

(5)  Mr. Tao Junjie was appointed as an Executive Director, the CEQO, the
vice-chairman of the Management Committee and a member of the
Strategy Committee with effect from 5 October 2021.

In lieu of physical meetings, written resolutions are also circulated for
approval by members of the Board and the Board Committees. The
Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) also provide for meetings to be
held by way of telephone, electronic or other communication facilities.

Board Authority and Delegation

The Board approves a document, known as the Board Authority
Matrix, with guidelines setting forth the matters reserved for the
Board’s decision and clear directions to the Management on matters
that must be approved by the Board. The Board Authority Matrix is
reviewed by the Board at least once a year and revised accordingly
when necessary. The matters reserved for the Board’s decision
include but are not limited to changes in share capital, acquisitions
and disposals of assets with value exceeding certain threshold,
venturing into non-core business, setting up of joint venture with value
or shareholding exceeding certain threshold, corporate or financial
restructuring, obtaining borrowings exceeding certain threshold,
appointment of key management personnel, decision on major
legal actions, share issuance and dividends, financial results, annual
budget and corporate strategies. The Board will provide directions
to the management teams of the Group’s business divisions through
presentations at Board and Board Committee meetings.

The Board sits at the top of the Company’s governance framework.
To execute its responsibilities, the Board delegates specific functions
to its committees (the “Board Committees”), currently comprising
the Nominating Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Strategy Committee. The Management
Committee has ceased to be a Board Committee with effect from
11 August 2021. The Board Committees function within written terms
of reference and operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular
basis. The terms of reference of each of the Board Committees are
available on the SGXNet and the websites of the Company and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (‘HKEX”). Each of the Board
Committees reports its activities regularly to the Board. Please refer
to the other sections of this Corporate Governance Report for further
information on the activities of the Board Committees.
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Directors’ Orientations and Trainings

The current members of the Board are familiar with the Group’s
business operations and corporate governance practices. In particular,
a majority of the Directors (including a majority of Independent Non-
Executive Directors) have more than eight years’ experience serving
as an executive officer or a director of a company in the environmental
protection industry. The Nominating Committee (the “NC”) ensures
that new Board appointees are provided with trainings and information
to familiarise themselves with the Group’s business, strategic goals
and directions and corporate governance practices.

Upon the appointment of a new Director, the Company will provide
a formal letter to the Director, setting out his/her duties and
obligations. Such Directors are given appropriate briefings when
they are first appointed to the Board. Appropriate orientations are
conducted for all new Directors appointed to the Board to ensure
that they are familiar with the Company’s business, operations,
governance practice and regulatory requirements. The Joint
Company Secretaries or the external lawyers also provide trainings
to the new Directors on his/her duties and responsibilities as a
Director and the Company’s ongoing obligations as a company
listed on both SGX and SEHK. If the newly-appointed Director
has no prior experience as a director of an SGX-listed company,
he/she is also required to attend courses and training organised
by institutions such as the Singapore Institute of Directors and
the SGX-ST. During FY2021, as the newly-appointed Directors,
Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr. Tao Junjie have attended the trainings
organised by Singapore Institute of Directors.

The Company provides ongoing education on Board procedures,
corporate governance practices and industry developments to
all Directors. The Company also invites external experts (such as
auditors, lawyers, sustainability consultants, technical experts or
other professionals) to provide regular trainings to the Directors and
the Management on legal, financial, technical and business topics,
depending on the Company’s development needs. The Management
further provides (i) monthly updates on the Group’s performance,
position and prospects; and (i) regular updates on changes in
the relevant laws, regulations and commercial risks, to enable the
Directors to make well-informed decisions and to ensure that the
Directors are competent in carrying out their respective roles and
responsibilities. The Company also arranged project site visits for
the Directors. At the same time, the Directors are encouraged to
keep themselves abreast of the latest developments relevant to the
business of the Group.
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Below is a summary of the trainings which the Directors received A TREEME_ZT - —HMRFEEZHIE

during FY2021: b

Directors Types of Trainings N°t
- EEEEE
Non-Executive Director HPITESE

Mr. Wang Tianyi * FRERAE AB,C
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Hu Yanguo ** HARERE ST A AB,C

Mr. An Xuesong * TENTAE AB,C

Mr. Tao Junijie ** fREARLE ~ AB,C

Mr. Luo Junling ELEEE AB,C
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHBITESE

Mr. Zhai Haitao BEErE A,C

Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul M BE S A AC

Ms. Cheng Fong Yee B EEZ+ A,C

Ms. Hao Gang RO 22+ A,C

* Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. An Xuesong resigned as the Directors on * FAFEFEREENHFEAR —_E-_—F1+HAH

5 October 2021. BIHIEZE -

“* Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr. Tao Junjie were appointed as the Directors on o BB ERBERAER - E - —F+AAA
5 October 2021. BEIRESE -

Note: HFT -

Types of Trainings: 1EERE

A: Attending seminars/ conferences/ forums A BIitsIE/25 5

B:  Giving talks at seminars/ conferences B: HEWEIE/SE FETTRE

C:  Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, C: FEBEBGHAE RIREFXEFBRET ST HLH
environmental protection business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, - BT IR AE B

etc
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Company Secretaries

The Joint Company Secretaries are accountable to the Board for
ensuring that Board policy and procedures are followed and Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. They also advise
the Board on governance matters and facilitate the induction
and professional development of the Directors. Ms. Peng Pei and
Ms. Ho Wing Tsz Wendy have been appointed as the Company’s
Joint Company Secretaries. Ms. Peng Pei has been the Legal
Counsel and Company Secretary of the Company since 20 January
2017, and she is a full-time employee of the Company. She is mainly
responsible for the legal and company secretarial matters of the
Group. Although she reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
CEQ, all the Directors may call for her assistance and advice at any
time in respect of their duties, so as to ensure effective operation of
the Board and the Board Committees.

Ms. Ho Wing Tsz Wendy, an executive director of corporate services
division of Tricor Services Limited, which is a global professional
services provider specialising in integrated business, corporate and
investor services, has been engaged by the Company as one of
its Joint Company Secretaries. Her primary contact person at the
Company is Ms. Peng Pei, the Legal Counsel and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. During FY2021, Ms. Ho has undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the SEHK Listing Rules.

At least one of the Joint Company Secretaries attends all Board
meetings and Board Committee meetings and ensures that they
are conducted in accordance with the Bye-laws and the relevant
rules and regulations. The appointment and removal of any Joint
Company Secretary are subject to the approval of the Board. The
Joint Company Secretaries, under the direction of the Chairman
of the Board, ensure good information flows within the Board and
the Board Committees and between the Management and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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Board Composition and Balance

The Company has a Board with a balanced composition of
Executive and Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board
currently comprises seven Directors, with four Directors being
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Directors as at the date
of this Annual Report are:

(i
(i
(iii
(
(

=

iv)

<

(Vi

)
(vii)

Mr. Hu Yanguo (Executive Director & Chairman of Board);

Mr. Tao Junjie (Executive Director & CEQ);

Mr. Luo Junling (Executive Director & CFO);

Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Non-Executive Director);

Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Non-Executive Director);
Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (Independent Non-Executive Director);
and

Ms. Hao Gang (Independent Non-Executive Director).

An updated list of the Directors with their respective roles and functions
is available on the SGXNet and the websites of the Company and

HKEX.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified in all

corporate communications that disclose the names of Directors.

In addition, none of the members of the Board is related to one
another during FY2021.

Below are the changes in the composition of the Board during
Fy2021:

(1)

Mr. Wang Tianyi resigned as an Non-Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Strategy
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nominating Committee with effect from
5 October 2021;

Mr. Hu Yanguo was appointed as an Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Strategy
Committee, the chairman of the Management Committee,
and a member of the Nominating Committee with effect from
5 October 2021;

Mr. An Xuesong resigned as an Executive Director, the CEO,
the chairman of the Management Committee and a member of
the Strategy Committee with effect from 5 October 2021; and

Mr. Tao Junjie was appointed as an Executive Director, the
CEO, the vice-chairman of the Management Committee
and a member of the Strategy Committee with effect from
5 October 2021.
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The Board has determined that it is of an appropriate size, structure
and composition to facilitate effective decision-making, and to meet
the objective of having a balance of skills and experiences, taking
into account the size and scope of the Company’s operations.

Independence of Directors

The independence of each Director is assessed and reviewed
annually by the NC based on the definition of independence as
provided in the SG CG Code, SGX Listing Manual and SEHK Listing
Rules. The Board and the NC consider an independent director
as one who is independent in conduct, character and judgement
and has no relationship with the Group, its related corporations,
its 5% shareholders or its officers that could interfere, or be
reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Director’s
independent business judgment in the best interest of the Company
and the Group.

Each Independent Non-Executive Director is required to complete
a Director’s Independence Checklist annually to confirm his/ her
independence based on the guidelines as set out in the SGX
Listing Manual and SG CG Code. The Company has also received
from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors an annual
confirmation on his/her independence as required under Rule 3.13
of the SEHK Listing Rules. For FY2021, the NC has determined that
all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

In particular, Mr. Zhai Haitao is also an independent non-executive
director of the Company’s controlling shareholder China Everbright
Environment Group Limited (“Everbright Environment”), but he is
not involved in the daily management and operation of Everbright
Environment. The NC and the Board determined that Mr. Zhai
Haitao is independent in conduct, character and judgment and
his role as independent non-executive director of Everbright
Environment will not affect his judgment as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul and Ms. Cheng Fong Yee were appointed
as Independent Directors of the Company in July 2007. Since then,
the Company experienced changes in controlling shareholders and
the management teams twice. The current controlling shareholder,
Everbright Environment, only gained control of the Company in
December 2014 and the current management team and executive
officers joined the Company following that change. Thus, although
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul and Ms. Cheng Fong Yee served the Board
beyond nine years from the date of their appointment, both the
NC and the Board held the view that they remain independent in
conduct, character and judgement.
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In addition, Ms. Hao Gang, who was appointed in March 2018 as
the Independent Director, has no relationship with the Group, its
related corporations, its 5% shareholders or its officers that could
interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere with the exercise
of her independent business judgement in the best interest of
the Company and the Group. Therefore, the NC and the Board
considered Ms. Hao Gang to be independent.

The Board and the NC will undertake more rigorous review
annually on the independence of any Director who has served
the Board beyond nine years, and in doing so, the Board will
also take into account the need for progressive refreshing of
the Board. In addition, when a director who has served the
Board beyond nine years seeks for continued appointment
as an independent director, his/her re-appointment will
also be subject to more stringent Shareholders’ resolutions
mechanism in accordance with the requirements under the
SGX Listing Manual and SEHK Listing Rules. The continued
appointment of Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul and Ms. Cheng Fong Yee
(both have served the Board beyond nine years) as the Independent
Directors have been approved by the Shareholders during the AGM
held in FY2021 in accordance with Rule 210(5)(d)(iii) of the SGX
Listing Manual.

The Board is able to exercise objective judgment on corporate
affairs independently from the Management. No individual or group
of individuals is allowed to dominate the Board’s decision-making.
Currently, a majority of the Board members are Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Board has complied with the requirements
of SG CG Code that the independent directors make up a majority
of the Board where the chairman of the Board is not independent.
The Company has also met the requirements of Rule 3.10 of the
SEHK Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or
related financial management expertise. The NC and the Board are
thus of the view that there is sufficiently strong independent element
on the Board to enable independent exercise of objective judgment
on corporate affairs of the Group, taking into account factors such
as the number of independent directors and the size and scope of
the affairs and operations of the Group.
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Furthermore, the Audit Committee (the “AC”), the Remuneration
Committee (the “RC”) and the NC are chaired by Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The AC and the RC currently comprise
only Independent Non-Executive Directors and the majority of the
NC members are also Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
Company currently has no Lead Independent Director. Considering
the Company’s current business operations and Board size of
seven members with a majority being Independent Non-Executive
Directors, the Company is of the view that the appointment of
a Lead Independent Director for the year under review is not
necessary. Nevertheless, the Board will annually examine the need
for such appointment.

Independent Non-Executive Directors play an important role in the
Board’s decision-making process. They constructively challenge and
assist to develop proposals on strategy, review the performance
of the Management in achieving targets and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. In particular, the Chairman
of the Board ensures that each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors is given sufficient time to express his/her opinions during
the Board meetings. During FY2021, the Chairman and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors met at least once without the
presence of the other Executive Directors and the Management.

Board Diversity

The Company recognises the importance of having a diverse Board
in enhancing the Board effectiveness and corporate governance.
Therefore, the Company has established the Board Diversity Policy
to ensure the diversity of the Board members and balance of skills.
A diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in
the skills, industry knowledge and professional experience, cultural
and education background and other qualities of the Directors and
does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender or religious
belief. These differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be
balanced appropriately.

The NC has responsibility for identifying and nominating candidates
for appointment to the Board and recommending the same to
the Board for approval. It takes responsibility in assessing the
appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills and diversity required
on the Board and assessing the extent to which the required skills
are represented on the Board and overseeing the Board succession.
The NC is also responsible for reviewing and reporting to the Board
in relation to board diversity.
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The current Board members comprise business leaders, industry
experts, professionals and academia experts, with industry,
accounting, financial, business, management and academic
backgrounds. With two female Directors sitting on the Board,
a majority of the Directors (including a majority of Independent
Non-Executive Directors) have more than eight years’ experience
serving as an executive officer or a director of a company in the
environmental protection industry. This composition and diversity
of the Board enable the Management to benefit from a diverse and
objective external perspective, on issues raised before the Board.
Each Director has been appointed based on the strength of his/her
calibre, expertise, experience and his/her potential contribution to
the Group and its businesses. Profiles of the Directors are set out
in the section entitled “Board of Directors” on pages 44 to 50 of this
Annual Report.

Following a review of the Board’s composition, expertise and
experience, the NC and the Board are satisfied that the current
Board composition is sufficiently diverse in terms of the gender, skills
and experience. Therefore, the Board has not set any measurable
objectives. Nonetheless, the NC will review the Board Diversity Policy
and set any measurable objectives (if necessary) from time to time to
ensure its diversity and effectiveness.

Chairman and CEO

The Board recognises the recommendation of SG CG Code and
HK CG Code that the Chairman and the CEO should be separate
persons to ensure that there is an appropriate balance of power and
authority within the Company.

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hu Yanguo and the CEO
is Mr. Tao Junjie. The Chairman bears the responsibility for the
effective conduct of the Board whilst the CEO bears the executive
responsibility for the operations of the Group’s business. The
Chairman and the CEO are not related to each other.

The Chairman is responsible for exercising control over the quality
and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management
and the Board and ensuring compliance with the Group’s guidelines
on corporate governance. The Chairman ensures that Board
meetings are held regularly in accordance with the agreed schedule
and sets the agenda of the Board meetings.

The Chairman also builds constructive relations within the Board and
between the Board and the Management, and facilitates the effective
participation of Independent Non-Executive Directors by promoting
a culture of openness and debate of the Board. The Chairman
further ensures effective communication with the Shareholders and
promotes high standards of corporate governance.
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The duties of the CEO include taking responsibility for the Group’s
operation and management, implementing decisions and plans
approved by the Board, making day-to-day operational and
managerial decisions and coordinating overall business operations.

The Board is of the view that there are sufficient safeguards and
checks to ensure that the process of decision-making by the Board
is independent and based on collective decisions without any
individual exercising any considerable concentration of power or
influence.

Nominating Committee
The NC comprises:

(i) Mr. Zhai Haitao (NC Chairman & Independent Non-Executive
Director);

(ii) Mr. Hu Yanguo (Executive Director & Chairman of Board); and

(iii) Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Non-Executive Director).

Majority of the NC, including the NC Chairman, are Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

The key terms of reference of the NC are as follows:

(1) reviewing annually the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

@) establishing procedures for, reviewing, assessing and making
recommendations to the Board on the review of board
succession plans for Directors, in particular, the Chairman,
the CEO, and the key management personnel (as defined in
the SG CG Code), the process and criteria for evaluation of
the performance of the Board, the Board Committees and the
Directors, the review of training and professional development
programmes for the Board and the Directors, and the
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors;

(3) assessing the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors while bearing in mind the circumstances set out in
Rule 3.13 of the SEHK Listing Rules and Provision 2.1 of the
SG CG Code and other salient factors;

4) deciding whether or not a Director is able to and has been
adequately carrying out his/her duties as a Director, taking
into consideration the Director's number of listed company
board representations and other principal commitments;
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(5) developing a process for evaluation of the performance of the
Board as a whole, the Board Committees and the Directors
and assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and
its Board Committees and for assessing the contribution by
the chairman and each individual Director to the effectiveness
of the Board; and

©6) reviewing training and professional development programmes
for the Board.

The NC has adequate resources to perform and discharge its
responsibilities properly. During FY2021, the members of the NC
reviewed the (i) independence status of each of the Directors
(including the Independent Non-Executive Directors); (i) performance
of each individual Director, each individual Board Committee and the
Board as a whole; and (iii) re-election of the retiring Directors.

Board Membership

Where a vacancy arises under any circumstances, or where it
is considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a
new Director with particular skills, the NC, in consultation with the
Board, determines the selection criteria and selects candidates
with the appropriate expertise and experience for the position in
accordance with its nomination policy. Besides the qualification and
experience of each candidate, the NC takes into consideration the
candidate’s ability to increase the effectiveness and the diversity of
the Board and to add value to the Company’s business in line with
its strategic objectives. Before appointment of any new Director, the
NC conducts an interview with the candidate and holds a meeting
to discuss the candidacy (and the independence, where applicable)
of the candidate. If appropriate, the NC makes recommendation to
the Board on the proposed appointment. The Board will then review
and discuss the candidacy of the candidate, and if appropriate,
approve the appointment of the new Director. The Company makes
immediate announcement on any new appointment of Directors in
accordance with the SEHK Listing Rules and SGX Listing Manual.

In considering the re-appointment of a Director, the NC evaluates
such Director’s contribution and performance, such as his/her
attendance at meetings of the Board or the Board Committees
(where applicable), participation, candour and any special
contributions. Upon the NC’s recommendation, the Board will
review and if appropriate, approve the nomination of a Director for
re-election for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGMs.

Each Independent Non-Executive Director is appointed for a term of
three years until 11 April 2022, subject to renewal.
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All Directors (including the Chairman of the Board and the CEO) are
subject to the provisions of the Bye-laws whereby:

(@) each Director shall retire at least once every three years and
shall be eligible for re-election (Bye-law 86(1)); and

(b) any Directors appointed by the Board shall retire at the next
AGM of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election
(Bye-law 85(6)).

Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr. Tao Junjie are subject to retirement
pursuant to the Bye-law 85(6) at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Luo
Junling is subject to retirement pursuant to the Bye-law 86(1)
at the forthcoming AGM. Following a review of their expertise,
experience, overall contribution to the Company, the Board and/or
Board Committee meetings, the NC and the Board recommended
them be nominated for re-election at the forthcoming AGM and
accordingly, the above-named Directors will be offering themselves
for re-election. The relevant information on each of the above-named
Directors can be found in the section entitled “Board of Directors”
on pages 44 to 50 of this Annual Report and the Circular to
Shareholders dated 22 March 2022.

All Directors are required to declare their board representations.
When a Director has multiple board representations, the NC wiill
consider whether he/she is able to adequately carry out his/her
duties as a Director, taking into consideration such Director’s number
of listed company board representations, the efforts and time
required for his/her other board representations and his/her other
principal commitments.

The NC has reviewed and is satisfied that all Directors, who sit
on multiple boards, have been able to devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company to adequately discharge their
duties as Directors of the Company, notwithstanding their multiple
board appointments. The NC did not recommend setting of limit as
to the number of listed board representations that every Director can
hold, as the time and efforts required for each board representation
may vary, depending on the type of directorship (executive or non-
executive). The Board will determine the maximum number of listed
company board representations which any Director may hold as and
when required.

There is no Alternate Director on the Board.
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The dates of initial appointment, last re-election/re-appointment and
other listed company board representations of each of the Directors
are set out below:

85 .

BHRESFENVIREE - F—REE/EEUR
EEEM EMAREFBBNFBNT

Directorship/
Chairmanship both
present and those

Membership held over the preceding
Country of of Board three years in other
Principal Date of Initial Date of last Committees listed companies
Director Position Residence  Appointment  Re-election EEZeZEE BRIMAI = FEEES/
5= B TEREE  REEEH L-XREERH RE EERNHEM LT AR
Mr. Hu Yanguo Executive China 5 October 2021 N.A. SC Chairman Present:
BB Director and F -5+ H TNER NC Member China Everbright
Chairman hH BBZEQEE  Envionment Group Limited
WITESR RBHZEQZRE  (isted on SEHK);
HER Bt
REXRIRE (RE) AR
nA] (EBRM L)
Over the preceding three
years: None
R =TS - &
Mr. Tao Junjie Executive China 5 October 2021 N.A. SC Member None
FEATE Director and F “E--%+H TEH BRLZERZE &
CEO fH
WITEER
o
Mr. Luo Junling Executive China 10 May 2018 12 Apr 2019 SC Member None
ERETE Director and i ZE-N\FRA ZZE-NFMA BHEZESZE &
CFO +A +=H
WITESHR
BREIEE
Mr. Zhai Haitao Independent Hong Kong 14 Aug 2015 27 Apr 2021 NC Chairman Present:
BERLE Non-Executive ~ SAR, China  —Z—RFNA ZZT=—FMA AC Member China Everbright
Director HEFHE +HA —++tH RC Member Environment Group Limited
BUFRITES REEZEE®ER  (isted on SEHK)
EZEEZE  China Life Insurance
¥HMZEEZE  Company Limited

(listed on New York Stock
Exchange, Shanghai Stock
Exchange and SEHK)
Bt
REERRE (RE) AR
NF] (RSP L)
FRASRBRDERAR
(EROBSR M - LF
BHR BN L)

Over the preceding three
years: None

AI=FAER - &
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Directorship/
Chairmanship both
present and those

Membership held over the preceding
Country of of Board three years in other
Principal Date of Initial Date of last Committees listed companies
Director Position Residence  Appointment  Re-election EEZgeZE8 BAIMAI = FREES/
Bz B IEEGEE  RBERA —-REEHH HE ESRWEMETAR
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Independent Singapore 31 July 2007 27 Apr 2021 AC Chairman Present:
Paul Non-Executive  #Th0%% ZTELEEA ZTZ—%MA  RC Member Golden Energy and
MEaE LA Director =+—A —t++A NC Member Resources Limited
BUERTESE %Aﬁé%ﬁiﬁ (listed on SGX);
HHEEE B
REZEEZE  Golden Energy and
Resources Limited
(FE3T 2P £7)
Over the preceding three
years:
Nippecraft Limited
(listed on SGX)
Al = FEER :
Nippecraft Limited
(FE3T 2P E77)
Ms. Cheng Fong  Independent Singapore 31 July 2007 27 Apr 2021 RC Chairman None
Yee Non-Executive  ¥TAN% ZETHFER ZTZ—FMA AC Member i
HEELL Director =t+—H —t++A FHEEEER
BUFHITES B1LE8%E
Ms. Hao Gang Independent Hong Kong 16 March 2018 27 Apr 2021 AC Member None
oMzt Non-Executive ~ SAR, China  —Z—/\f=f ZZ-—%MA SC Member i
Director hEEE T7°H —t+H BILEEE%E
BUIETES BEZERZE
Notes: P&t -
AC:  Audit Committee FLIZEE . FANZEE
RC:  Remuneration Committee FWEES . FWEZED
NC:  Nominating Committee BEZTE® : [BEZEE
SC:  Strategy Committee EHRESE - BHLTES
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Board Performance

The Board and the NC have adopted a formal process for the
assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, and of
each Board Committee separately, as well as the contribution by
the chairman and each individual Director to the effectiveness of the
Board.

Following the end of each financial year, each of the Directors is
requested to complete a Board Evaluation Questionnaire and a
Director Self-Appraisal Form. Each of the NC members is also
requested to complete a Board Committee Appraisal Form. The
performance criteria for the Board as a whole include, amongst
others, the Company’s financial performance for that financial year,
an evaluation of the size and composition of the Board, the Board’s
access to information, accountability, Board procedures and Board
performance in relation to discharging its principal responsibilities.
The assessment criteria for an individual Director include, amongst
others, meeting attendance, adequacy in meeting preparation,
generation of constructive ideas, leadership, keeping abreast of
industry developments, and contribution in specific areas. The
evaluation criteria for the Board Committees include, amongst
others, committee composition, the contribution in assisting the
Board for better decision-making, sufficiency of expertise of Board
members, Board Committee chairman’s performance in discharging
responsibility, quality of Board Committee’s communication with
the Board. To facilitate the candour in providing feedback by the
Directors in the appraisal process, all completed appraisal forms are
sent to the Joint Company Secretaries directly for summarisation,
and then the appraisal summaries (on a no-name basis) and findings
are circulated to the NC for analysis and discussion during the NC
meeting. The NC will then report its findings and recommendations
to the Board for discussion with a view to enhancing the
effectiveness of the Board. The Board discusses and determines
the areas for improvement and enhancement relating to the Board’s
effectiveness as well as the implementation.

Following the review, the NC assessed the Board’s performance as
a whole, the Board Committees’ performance and the contribution
by individual Directors in FY2021, and is of the view that the Board’s
performance as a whole, the Board Committees’ performance and
the contribution by individual Directors are satisfactory.

No external facilitator was used in FY2021.
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(B) Remuneration Matters and Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Committee
The RC comprises:

(i) Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (RC Chairman & Independent Non-
Executive Director);

(ii) Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Non-Executive Director); and

(iii) Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Non-Executive Director).

The key terms of reference of the RC are as follows:

(1) reviewing and submitting its recommendation to the Board
for endorsement by the entire Board, on the policy and
general framework of remuneration for the Board and key
management personnel (including senior management), and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

@) reviewing and recommending to the Board for endorsement
(or determining with delegated responsibility) the remuneration
packages and terms of employment for each Director and
the key management personnel (including but not limited to,
Directors’ and key management personnel’s fees, salaries,
allowances, bonuses and benefits-in-kind);

Q) reviewing and approving compensation arrangement relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

4) reviewing and recommending to the Board in consultation
with the Chairman of the Board for endorsement by the
entire Board, share option schemes, share award plans or
any long-term incentive schemes which may be set up from
time to time, in particular to review whether Directors and key
management personnel should be eligible for such schemes
and also evaluating the costs and benefits of such schemes
and doing all acts necessary in connection therewith.

The RC has adequate resources to perform and discharge its
responsibilities properly. During FY2021, the members of RC
reviewed the 2020 remuneration payment and 2021 remuneration
framework for the individual Directors and the key management
personnel (including senior management) of the Company.
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Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

The RC is responsible for ensuring appropriate formality,
transparency to the Shareholders and a formal and transparent
procedure is in place for developing an appropriate executive
remuneration policy and a competitive framework for determining
the remuneration packages of Directors and key management
personnel. The RC recommends for the Board’s endorsement,
a framework of remuneration, including but not limited to, fees,
salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-in-kind for the
Directors and key management personnel. No Director is involved in
any decision-making relating to his/her own compensation.

The Company will also engage a third-party remuneration consultant,
on a regular basis or as requested by the RC, to review and make
recommendations on the remuneration framework and level for the
Directors and key management personnel. The Company did not
engage a third-party remuneration consultant in FY2021.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Under the framework developed by the RC, the RC uses the
following factors to determine the Directors’ remuneration:

(1) qualifications and experience of the Directors required by the
Company;

2 for Independent Non-Executive Directors, the general level of
fees earned by such Director in his/her professional capacity
or billed by professionals in their industry;

Q) time spent in preparing for meetings and actual attendance;

4) indirect costs and expenses incurred by the Directors;

5) such remuneration as may be considered fair and reasonable,
having regard to the nature and size of the business of the
Company;

(6) level of remuneration which is directly linked to the extent
of involvement and participation in and contribution to the
business of the Company;

(7) the level of commitment and the ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to the business of the Company; and

8) where special circumstances justify, the payment of additional
remuneration.
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Annual reviews are carried out by the RC to ensure that key
management personnel are appropriately rewarded, giving due
regard to the financial health and business needs of the Group
without being excessive and thereby maximising the Shareholders’
value. The Group’s remuneration framework, remuneration packages
and bonus distribution plans for the Directors and key management
personnel for each financial year are reviewed and discussed by the
RC, which comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
before submitting to the Board for endorsement.

The Executive Directors have entered into service agreements
with the Company. Their compensation consists of basic salary,
fixed allowance and performance-linked bonus. The bonus of
the Executive Directors and the key management personnel are
dependent on the Group’s performance and such individual’s
performance and contribution to the Company in that year. In
particular, the Company sets up a bonus pool and an objective
bonus determination mechanism for the Executive Directors and
the key management personnel at the beginning of each financial
year, which is reviewed and approved by the RC as delegated by
the Board. To incentivise the Executive Directors and the key
management personnel to successfully manage the Company,
the performance-linked bonus makes up a substantial portion
of their total remuneration in a financial year. The amount of the
performance-linked bonus for each Executive Director and key
management personnel is linked to the achievement of certain key
financial indicators of the Company in that financial year and his/her
annual appraisal result.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide remuneration
packages appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the Directors
and the key management personnel.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors receive directors’ fees
according to their level of contributions and other factors such
as effort and time spent for serving on the Board and the Board
Committees, as well as the responsibilities and obligations of the
Directors. The Company recognises the need to pay competitive
fees to attract, motivate and retain the Directors without being
excessive to the extent that their independence might be
compromised.

Directors’ fees are recommended by the Board for approval by the
Shareholders at the AGMs.
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The Board believes that it is not in the best interest of the EFEHE B BERRRKBITE  LERHE
Company to fully disclose precise remuneration given the highly — F BIFIRRKISITR MR F BN - £
competitive industry conditions for the environmental water sectors, 5 B BEEFH M A& RN QAN R AN H -
particularly in China. The disclosure of the Directors’ and the senior ~AMERNEEZNSRE R EFHBE S K
management’s remuneration in this report is appropriate. BERRRE -

A breakdown of the remuneration of the Directors and the senior EEMIIEEE SHEBER T~ —BHE

management (who are not Directors) for FY2021 is set out below. EAREBERAAR | -

(@  The level and mix of each Director’s remuneration are as follows: (a) BREZFMFHFHOKFEAAEAEAT :
Remuneration Band and Directors’ Benefits

Name of Director Fee Salary Bonus in kind Total
FHIEEMESH S EEHE(%) IE%) %®E2%) BYUER(%) #E(%)

SGD500,000 to below SGD750,000
500,000%7 0% 7T Z 750,000 M1 7T L~

Mr. Hu Yanguo * HAER S A - 57 31 12 100
Mr. An Xuesong ** TENLE ** - 40 48 12 100
Mr. Tao Junijie * PRRTRE * - 32 57 11 100
Mr. Luo Junling EIRLESTE - 27 61 12 100
Below SGD250,000
250,000%7 % T X T
Mr. Wang Tianyi ** FRE|ELE - - - - -
Mr. Zhai Haitao NSy v 87 - - 13 100
Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul A BESE A 89 - - 11 100
Ms. Cheng Fong Yee HElEZ LT 89 - - 11 100
Ms. Hao Gang B2+ 90 - - 10 100
Notes: Bist -
* Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr. Tao Junjie were appointed as the Directors on * BIREE S RIFER LR —ZFE = —F+AAHA
& October 2021. BEIREE -

“*  Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. An Xuesong resigned as the Directors on o FRESAERZEUNAER _E=—FF+ARA
5 October 2021. BHIEE -
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(b) The level and mix of each senior management’s (who is not a

(b) BIFEFZESREEENHHMKFME

Director) remuneration in bands are as follows: PN (I N

Remuneration Band and Name of Benefits

Senior Management Salary Bonus in kind Total
FHEENSREEBELES TE (%) 8/E(%) BUEN(%) BE(%)
Below SGD500,000

500,000F7 004 7T T~

Mr. Wang Yuexing FARESE A 34 54 12 100

Mr. Wang Guanping FRFiE 35 50 15 100

Mr. Zhang Guofeng REUSR S 34 50 16 100

Mr. Niu Kesheng GBI A 34 43 23 100

Mr. Wu Zhiguo RERLE 33 53 14 100
Mr. An Pinglin ML 37 42 21 100
Ms. Peng Pei EZliReann 45 51 4 100
The aggregate amount of the total remuneration paid to the key —ZET - —BHHEEXNLBREEAE
management personnel (including but not limited to the senior (@?§1E7rﬁEEAJ:5;,%?&EEEJ') B3 BN 4a%E
management listed above) is HK$16,442,000 during FY2021. 516,442,000/ 7T °
There are no employees of the Group who are immediate family #HE-_E-—BHREERXN  TMIEESREHE

members of a Director or the CEO and whose remuneration exceeds
SGD50,000 during FY2021.

The Company does not have any employee share scheme.

(C) ACCOUNTABILITY, AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Group’s internal controls and management systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance to the
integrity and reliability of the financial information and to safeguard
and maintain the accountability of the assets. While no cost-
effective internal control system can provide absolute assurance
against loss or misstatement, the AC, with the participation of the
Board, has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and risk management systems to ensure that
they are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, operational controls are in place, business risks are
suitably managed, proper accounting records are maintained and
the integrity of financial information used for business and publication
is preserved. The AC reviews the risk management and internal
control systems at least once a year.
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The internal auditors conduct annual review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s key internal controls including
management of financial, operational, compliance, information
technology and sustainability risks. The external auditors during
the conduct of their normal audit procedures may also report on
matters relating to internal control. Any material non-compliance
and recommendation for improvements are reported to the AC. The
AC also reviews and continues to monitor the effectiveness of the
actions taken by the Management on the recommendations made
by the internal and external auditors in this respect. Based on the
work performed by the internal and external auditors, the AC reviews
the findings from the internal and external auditors on the Group’s
internal controls and the Management’s responses to the auditors’
recommendations for improvement to the Group’s internal controls
and discussions with the auditors and Management. The Company
may, from time to time, appoint external advisers to facilitate the
Company to assess and identify the key risks and the related key
controls established by the Company.

In addition, the Company has implemented two major management
systems to address risks in different aspects of the Company,
namely the Risk Management System and the Environmental,
Safety, Health and Social Responsibility (“ESHS”) Management
System (“ESHS Management System”). The Risk Management
System provides the procedures for risk identification and
assessment, risk register compilation, risk tactics development,
risk event management, risk event reporting, and the review and
audit of such system. The Company updates its risk register on a
quarterly basis. Any material findings on the risk management will be
escalated to the AC and the Board. The ESHS Management System
provides a series of standard operating procedures to address the
environmental, safety, health and social responsibility risks.

The Board has received assurance from the CEO and the CFO that
the financial records of the Company have been properly maintained
and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Company’s operations and finances; and regarding the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems (including financial, operational, compliance and
information technology controls).

The risk management is under the purview of the AC, and no other
dedicated committee at the Board level is set up. Nonetheless, a
Risk Assessment Committee is set up by the Company to assist the
Management Committee in making decisions on new investment
projects. In relation to the investment project which is subject to
the Board’s approval, the Risk Assessment Committee’s findings
and recommendations will also be submitted to the Board for
consideration. More details about the Risk Assessment Committee
are set out in this Corporate Governance Report under sub-section
“Internal Management”.
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The Company’s Legal and Risk Management Department is
responsible for summarising the risk management results of each
department and regional management centre and assessing
the potential material risks faced by the Group according to the
risk management programme of the Group, formulating and
implementing the risk management plans for the next year. The
Legal and Risk Management Department is also responsible for
maintaining and updating the Company’s register of risks. Ms. Peng
Pei, the Legal Counsel and Joint Company Secretary, currently
heads the Legal and Risk Management Department of the Company.

The Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is satisfied with the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems in addressing financial, operational,
compliance and information technology controls and sustainability
risks as at 31 December 2021.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements. The Finance Management Department of the Company
is supervised by the CFO. With the assistance of the Finance
Management Department, the Directors ensure that the Group’s
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with relevant regulations and applicable accounting principles.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

A statement by Ernst & Young LLP, the external auditor of the
Company, about its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is included in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 136 to 144 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee
The AC comprises:

(i) Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (AC Chairman & Independent
Non-Executive Director);

(ii) Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Non-Executive Director);

(iii) Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (Independent Non-Executive Director);
and

(iv) Ms. Hao Gang (Independent Non-Executive Director).

The Board considers Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul, who is a Chartered
Financial Analyst and has extensive and practical financial
management knowledge and experience, well qualified to chair the
AC.
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Majority of the AC members have accounting or finance
background. The members of the AC, collectively, have recent and
relevant accounting or related financial management expertise or
experience to discharge the AC’s responsibilities.

The AC does not comprise former partners or directors of the
Company'’s existing auditing firm or auditing corporation: (a) within a
period of two years commencing on the date of their ceasing to be
a partner of the auditing firm or director of the auditing corporation;
and in any case, (b) for as long as they have any financial interest in
the auditing firm or auditing corporation.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its
terms of reference. It has full access to, and the co-operation of
the Management and full discretion to invite any Director or any key
executive to attend its meetings. The AC has adequate resources,
including access to external auditors, to enable it to discharge its
responsibilities properly.

The AC met twice in FY2021 and the relevant Directors and
Management were invited to attend the meetings.

The AC is guided by the terms of reference which stipulate its
principal functions.

The functions of the AC include:

(1) reviewing the significant financial reporting issues and
judgements and monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and annual reports and accounts,
half-year reports and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and any announcements relating to the Company’s
financial performance;

2) reviewing and reporting to the Board at least annually on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
comprising financial, operational, compliance and information
technology controls and risk management systems (such
review can be carried out internally or with the assistance of
any competent third parties), which shall cover the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness,
scope and results of the Group’s internal audit function;

4) reviewing the scope and results of the external audit, and the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

B RBEGNAZENEYRE SRS

R B REGNEMRLABRITENZE
SRAEMF R SERRRM BB IR T AT
B REERRAEMNKERARAEER

RN E ST BAT A RIR AW AT E A B AL
B% (o) BRIEEERAEBMABALE
BARPESZEEMFA  REEMIBER
T (b) /\zzm{FﬁEE%%quEﬂ?%%%ﬁﬁi%ﬁr

AP HEA EMT R o

.:Jri,\é/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂx%Xﬂgﬁﬁaﬂéﬁa
BERNERNEER E2EEREEEELFE
BEENEKS TETTJ&E;& FEMEENL
MREEABHFESS - B ZE2HA
RANER (BRIEFIBERE) £28
BHETRE -

B ZERE_T - -MBFREABRTMR
“Srax

% HEEENEEERELEET S
EEITRE -

(1) BHEBRNUBHREFENGEwm - B
REBEBHRE FERSLEKE - F
FERE FTERSE (WEEM) UKk
EEARBMBRREBOEAAE

M B
(2) BFRI-RBHALANEFFRELE
BEM 5 - EE - | RAEBRMIES

%HJ_LIEA*”EE%w%%“’lﬁﬂlﬁxﬁlIi (1
=2 R IVNE PN TW*BF‘%JEEZ%EE
BENNE=FHBT#IT) - RAER
RASESH MU BRERENER
Eééﬁ%ﬂi@ﬁ B RMIEEN T
T

@) EEMERAEENBETBENTD
MARABE  NEHEFER

(4) BRI EBEANBEMER - ARINE
RO AVARAIE=S: S 1k



96 .

Corporate Governance Report

i

(11)

XERMSE

making recommendations to the Board on the proposals
to the Shareholders on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

reviewing any interested person transactions as defined in the
SGX Listing Manual and connected transactions as defined in
the SEHK Listing Rules, and to review the procedures;

reviewing potential conflicts of interest, if any, including
reviewing and considering transactions in which there may be
potential conflicts of interests between the major shareholder,
controlling shareholder (as defined in the SEHK Listing
Rules), interested/ connected persons (as defined in the
SEHK Listing Rules) and recommending whether those who
are in a position of conflict should abstain from participating
in any discussions or deliberations of the Board or voting
on resolutions of the Board in relation to such transactions
as well as ensuring that proper measures to mitigate such
conflicts of interest have been put in place;

reviewing the rectification measures and internal control
measures relating to regulatory issues involving the Group’s
licences, permits or certificates etc;

reviewing the investments in customers, suppliers and
competitors made by the Directors, controlling shareholders
and their respective associates who are involved in
management of the Group or have shareholding interests
in similar or related business of the Group and making
assessments on whether there are any potential conflicts of
interests and ensuring that proper measures to mitigate such
conflicts of interests have been put in place;

reviewing the statements to be included in the annual reports
concerning the adequacy and efficiency of internal controls,
including financial, operational, compliance and information
technology controls, and risk management systems;

monitoring the implementation of outstanding internal control
recommendations and/or observations highlighted by the
external auditors in the course of their audit of the statutory
financial statements;

(11)
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(12)  establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (eg.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence,
with the AC about possible improprieties in any matter related
to the Company, and reviewing whistle-blowing investigations
within the Company and ensuring appropriate follow-up
action, if required;

(13)  reviewing and overseeing the implementation of the measures
in respect of the legal representatives of the subsidiaries
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”);

(14)  undertaking such other reviews and projects as may be
requested by the Board, and reporting to the Board its
findings from time to time on matters arising and requiring the
attention of the AC and matters in the HK CG Code; and

(15)  generally undertaking such other functions and duties as
may be required by statutes or the SGX Listing Manual, SG
CG Code, SEHK Listing Rules or HK CG Code, and by such
amendments made thereto from time to time.

During FY2021, the members of the AC reviewed (a) the audited
consolidated financial results of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020”); (b) the unaudited
consolidated financial results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2021; and (c) the internal auditor’s report and the external
auditor’s report.

The AC meets regularly with the Management and the external
auditors to review auditing and risk management matters and
discuss accounting implication of any major transactions including
significant financial reporting issues. It also reviews the internal audit
functions to ensure the adequacy and that an effective system of
control is maintained in the Group.

On a regular basis, the AC also reviews the interested person
transactions (as defined in the SGX Listing Manual), connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions (as defined in
the SEHK Listing Rules) and the financial results announcements
before their submission to the Board for approval.

The AC is well informed by the Management and the external
auditors of change to accounting standards, the SGX Listing
Manual, the SEHK Listing Rules and other regulations which could
have an impact on the Group’s business and financial statements.

The AC met with the internal auditors and external auditors
separately twice in FY2021 without the presence of the Management
to review any matter that might be raised.
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The AC and the external auditors have discussed the significant BitZE& MIMNIEAICNEBFEZESSH
issues in financial reporting throughout FY2021 at the AC meetings. tH - - — B HFEEHBRENEASZIAEE
As set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 136 1T 7 #l#® ° HANAFEREF136E EF 144
to 144 of this Annual Report, the following significant issues were B2 B E:tAIERE | s U TEAEE
discussed with the Management and the external auditors and were ~ DA HBTE E @ HEIRE MM EBETADETT

reviewed by the AC:

T WEKBETZRESER

Significant issues

EXERE

How the issue was addressed by the AC

BT RESEEMEELNBRTE

Service concession arrangements and revenue
recognition

ARTSHr R HE 22 B B A TERR,

The key area reviewed by the AC on revenue recognition
was the service concession arrangements of water
environment management projects under IFRIC 12. The AC
received confirmation from the Management that consistent
accounting policy was applied throughout the year for
recognising revenue under IFRIC 12. The AC assessed
the competency, capability and objectivity of the Group’s
independent financial model consultant. The AC also
considered the approach, methodology and key assumptions
applied to the financial model for the determination of the
fair value of construction services. The AC is satisfied with
the appropriateness of the methodology applied and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used.
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Significant issues

EXRER

How the issue was addressed by the AC

BT REEEEMEELNBRTE

Recoverability of trade receivables

& W AR 35K B AT g [ 14

The AC and the Board receive regular updates from the
Management on the ageing analysis of trade receivables,
the progress of trade receivables collection and repayment
schedule discussions with customers in the year. The
AC is satisfied with the attention and effort taken by the
Management on the receivables collection. Besides taking
into account the opinion and findings from the Management
and the external auditors, the AC also considered and
reviewed the methodology used in the estimation of expected
credit loss (“ECL”) allowance of trade receivables and the
appropriateness, completeness and reasonableness of the
factors used in the estimation based on their knowledge
of the business of the Group, the industry, the current and
future economic environment, and the lingering impact and
potential fundamental changes on them brought by the novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic.
BB EFe T PRI ER B AASEE NIRRT
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The AC is satisfied that ECL allowance of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2021 was adequate.
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Significant issues

EXRER

How the issue was addressed by the AC

BT REEEEMEELNBRTE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

R E R

The AC considered the approach and methodology applied
by the Management on both the assessment for impairment
indicators and the impairment assessment of goodwill.
In addition to considering opinion and findings from the
Management and the external auditors, the AC also reviewed
the approach used in the valuation and the reasonableness
of key assumptions used in the cash flows forecast, including
future revenue growth rate, operating margin, terminal
growth rate and discount rate based on their knowledge of
the business of the Group and the industry, and the lingering
impact and potential fundamental changes on them brought
by the COVID-19 pandemic.
BEZEeZR T EEEANGAETFRUEERENRD
ERARMAE - RERE T BEREMIMNIELTAIEE LA
EHIN - B L EGERBEHAEENAITERBN T
AR REFEREIEEESREOFECE REENRAR
FHEEAR T ENMRERERAREANEERS (BEXR
RPARRE EEFEE  REBRIRITRE) a8
METTERE] -

The AC is satisfied with the appropriateness of the
methodology applied and the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used.
B L EQYUMRAREZ A ERERIMEEERZRZE
BRERTME

Following the review and discussions, the AC recommended to the K& NAIwE @ Bl ZE8gEREFTSIE
Board to approve the full-year financial statements for FY2021. R -URFENEFYBHRE

External Auditors

ShEBE AT AT

The AC has reviewed the non-audit services provided to the Group — #atZ B & &EH T /MBEFTRIEMSt & Young
by the external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP during FY2021, and is  LLPEZZT - —HBFERNRALERME T I
of the opinion that the provision of such services does not affect — &at RS » IR RIS LL R T2 B I
the independence and objectivity of the external auditor. The AC ~ FrTATEVE L MAMEZEE - FFtZEEGE LA
is pleased to recommend its re-appointment to the Board for the = EF&EBIMIETRIAVER - T LR
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM. Accordingly, the — RBFAE FFEGERENIE - EHit - AR
Company has complied with Rule 13.88 of the SEHK Listing Rules. AR B STH T E AR AIZE 13.8816% ©
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The aggregate amount of fees paid or payable to the external auditor
and its affiliates for FY2021 in respect of the audit and non-audit
services is as follows:

T~ —BIRFEE A S EN R NERER TR
HEERENET RIS E B EET RIS E AR
WBREINR

FY2021 FY2020
—E-—% —B-B5F
MBEE M FEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FET

Type of services ARTE X8 Rl
Audit services ERHRTE 3,380 3,000
Non-audit services* FEEET RS> 1,620 2,663
5,000 5,663

*

Non-audit services include tax advisory and other related services.

Further details on fees paid or payable to the external auditor and its
affiliates are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The AC is satisfied that the Company has complied with Rules
712, 715 and 716 of the SGX Listing Manual in relation to the
appointment of its external auditor for FY2021 and in making the
above-mentioned appointment recommendation.

Whistle-Blowing Policy

The Company has put in place a whistle-blowing policy which sets
out the procedures for a whistle-blower to make a report to the
Company on misconduct or wrongdoing relating to the Company,
its officers and employees, including any concern or complaint
regarding financial reporting and questionable accounting practices;
criminal offences, unlawful and/or unethical acts, fraud, corruption,
bribery and blackmail; failure to comply with legal or regulatory
obligations and concealment of any of the abovementioned issues.

An e-mail address and a special telephone number are set up
to allow whistle-blowers to contact the AC Chairman directly.
Whistle-blowers are also able to contact the CEO directly through
the CEO e-mail address which is provided on the Company’s
website. The identify of the whistle-blower and all the concerns or
irregularities raised will be treated with confidence and every effort
will be made to ensure that confidentiality is maintained throughout
the process.

* FEEFETIRTF I I a5 R A AE R IRT

BAIS S Bk B (S 4G S BB B At Bl K EL B BB B 1Y
ERNEZHIEHN T RAMGES -

EBAEEEHR  ARAE_T_—BHEE
PR Fal R T RS TP EHF
MET1215 ~ BT7151EM716156 RIS M=
ETREARE o

FHBFE

ARBIGE T RIBEER - LR TRFAS
HARE]  HEEME THHERITEITRE
TERHNERF - BEREMEINEENEEY
BmEMAISGE1TA ~ MIFILT - IDEM/L
PERITR - BGF - 875 - BERMERIRRE
BTEEERBALSTE AR BN EETS

RRARRY T HRWBHRNETBHENERE
o BRRARAEZRBBEEAZBESERE
RBALREBBEINE TS (EEARF
UL E ) BEERBEM - BHMANSHME
PRIRH B FTA BE = IRSE R1T RE AR A
RREEL - ARARE LS NEEREES
HBIZHBREH ©



102 .

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

Corporate Governance Report

a3

BRWmE

The Company has designated its Internal Audit Department to
investigate whistle-blowing reports made in good faith. The Audit
Committee, which is responsible for oversight and monitoring of
the whistle-blowing policy and mechanism, will make decisions on
further actions (if needed) based on the investigation made by the
Internal Audit Department.

The Company is also committed to ensure protection of the
whistle-blower against detrimental or unfair treatment.

Internal Audit

The Company has an Internal Audit Department (“IA”) to strengthen the
internal audit function and promote sound risk management, including
financial, operational, compliance, information technology controls,
sustainability and good corporate governance. The AC approves the
recruitment, removal and evaluation of the internal auditors.

The IA reports primarily to the AC and has full access to the
documents, records, properties and personnel of the Company and
of the Group, and has appropriate standing within the Company. The
IA reports to the AC at least twice in a year regarding the progress
and major findings of the internal audit process. The AC reviews at
least annually the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit
function of the Company and ensures that the Company’s internal
audit team is formed by the sufficient number of personnel with
relevant qualifications and experience.

The IA comprises employees whose roles and responsibilities are
dedicated to carrying out the internal audit function for the Company.
In FY2021, the IA was headed by Mr. Li Ke, who has nine years of
working experience in internal audit. He was supported by a team
of five employees, all of whom have finance, internal audit or project
operation experience. None of the personnel of the IA had any
relationship or conflict of interest that could impair their objectivity
and independence in conducting their internal audit function. The
AC is of the view that the Company’s internal audit function is
independent, effective and adequately resourced.

The Board recognises that it is responsible for maintaining a system
of internal control to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments
and the Group’s businesses and assets, while the Management is
responsible for establishing and implementing the internal control
procedures in a timely and appropriate manner.
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IA's main scope of work covers the review and evaluation of
processes and areas of concerns identified. |IA assists the
Management in enhancing existing risk management initiatives
and carrying out regular independent monitoring of key controls
and procedures. The findings and recommendations in relation to
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and process
improvements will be presented to the AC and the Management.

Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses noted
during reviews are reported together with recommended corrective
actions to the AC on a regular basis. In particular, the Company
had certain outstanding licenses and/or permits in relation to
its business and operations as at November 2014 (“Licenses
and/or Permits”) as disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
12 November 2014. Most of such Licenses and/or Permits had
been obtained in the financial years ended 31 December 2015,
2016 and 2017, as disclosed in the relevant annual reports. During
FY2021, the IA continuously followed up on the status of such
Licenses and/or Permits and noted that the Company obtained the
following additional Licenses and/or Permits:

Project Company (Plant/Project)
HBEAR (IK/EE)
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MEIBE o
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Licenses and/or Permits obtained

NS B3 T =8 A/ S L

Everbright Water (Yangzhou) Limited (formerly known as
Yangzhou HanKore Water Development Co., Ltd.)

KARKB (BMN) BRAR (REMERVKEEERBERLIR])

Land Use Right Certificate
and Environmental Completion
Acceptance

THE AR - RIRE TR

The results of the internal audit findings are also shared with the
external auditor to assist it in its audit planning and also for it to
perform further checks on the weak areas identified.

(D) INTERNAL MANAGEMENT
Management Functions

As mentioned above, the Board approves a document, known as
the Board Authority Matrix, with guidelines setting forth the matters
reserved for the Board’s decision and clear directions to the
Management on matters that must be approved by the Board. The
matters delegated by the Board to the Management are generally
considered and decided by the Management Committee of the
Company (the “MC”).
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The MC comprises:

(i) Mr. Hu Yanguo (MC Chairman, Executive Director & Chairman
of the Board);
(ii) Mr. Tao Junjie (MC Vice-Chairman, Executive Director & CEQ);

(iii) Mr. Luo Junling (Executive Director & CFO);
(iv) Mr. Wang Yuexing (Vice President);
(v Mr. Wang Guanping (Vice President);
(Vi) Mr. Zhang Guofeng (Vice President);
i Mr. Niu Kesheng (CEO Assistant);
i) Mr. An Pinglin (Technical Director); and
(ix) Mr. Wu Zhiguo (CEO Assistant).

The MC is responsible for the management of daily business
operations, formulating and implementing annual work tasks
and medium-term development plans for the Group. The MC is
the decision-making authority for the day-to-day administration,
operations, management and personnel matters.

The MC holds meetings on a regular and ad hoc basis. It holds
meetings at least once a month and has a weekly communication
mechanism. The MC reviews and discusses, the Group’s investment
proposals on new projects, appointment and removal of key
executives at headquarters departments, regional management
centres and project companies, performance appraisals, status of
financial budget execution and the major works done and progress of
the headquarters departments and regional management centres, etc.

To assist the MC in decision-making process, the Company
also established a Risk Assessment Committee (“RAC”) and an
Engineering and Technology Committee (“ETC”) to assess the
risks and make recommendations in undertaking new investment
projects and construction works. Any new investment project, before
submitted to the MC for consideration, will be reviewed by the RAC
and the ETC respectively. The MC will then take into account the
findings and recommendations made by the RAC and the ETC. In
relation to investment project with investment amount exceeding
certain threshold, Board’s approval will be sought before the
definitive agreement is executed.

In relation to each meeting held by the MC, minutes duly signed by
its chairman will be retained by the Company as records.

The MC has ceased to be a Board Committee with effect from
11 August 2021. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
entitled “Management Committee Ceasing to be a Board
Committee” dated 11 August 2021 for further details.
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(E) SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND ENGAGEMENT
Shareholder Rights and Conduct of General Meetings

The Company treats all Shareholders fairly and equitably, and
recognises, protects and facilitates the exercise of the Shareholders’
rights. Shareholders are informed of changes in the Company’s
business that are likely to affect their assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.

The Management supports the SG CG Code’s principle to encourage
shareholder participation. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings to ensure a high level of accountability and to stay
informed of the Company’s strategy and goals. The Shareholders
are informed of general meetings through notices contained in
annual reports or circulars sent to all Shareholders. In FY2021, the
notice of AGM was despatched to the Shareholders, published in
the Business Times as well as uploaded onto the SGXNet and the
websites of HKEX and the Company. The Company also uploaded
the Management’s presentation slides to be used at the AGM
in advance and the minutes of the AGM. The Board welcomes
questions from Shareholders who have an opportunity to raise issues
either informally or formally before or at the general meetings. To
facilitate the Shareholders’ communication with the Directors and the
Management, a question and answer session is held at all the general
meetings before voting is carried out.

Resolutions at general meetings are on each substantially separate
issue. All the resolutions at the general meetings are single item
resolutions.

The Company encourages all the Directors to attend its general
meetings to address Shareholders’ questions relating to the
Company’s development and the work of the Board Committees.
For the AGM held in FY2021, all the seven Directors (including
Mr. Wang Tianyi as the Chairman of the Board, Mr. An Xuesong and
Mr. Luo Junjie as the two Executive Directors and the chairmen of all
the Board Committees at the time when the AGM was held) attended
such meeting. In view of the COVID-19 situation, all the Shareholders
were allowed to participate the AGM held in FY2021 via electronic
means, i.e. live audio-visual webcast or live audio-only webcast or
live audio-only stream, submission of questions in advance of the
AGM, submission of questions during the AGM via an online chat
box, addressing of substantial and relevant questions at the AGM
and voting by appointing the chairman of the AGM as proxy at the
AGM and/or voting electronically during the AGM, pursuant to the
COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for
Meetings for Companies, Variables Capital Companies, Business
Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020.
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The Company’s external auditor and the Legal Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary are also invited to attend the general meetings
and are available to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant
queries by the Shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report.

The Company conducts poll voting for all resolutions to be passed
in its general meetings. The rules, including voting procedures,
will be explained by the scrutineers in the general meetings. If any
Shareholder is unable to attend general meetings, Bye-laws allow
each Shareholder to appoint up to two proxies to attend and vote at
all general meetings on his/her behalf. Meeting minutes are prepared
for all the general meetings (including the details of the question
and answer sessions therein) and are uploaded on the Company’s
website and properly maintained as the Company’s records.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting and to Put Forward Proposals

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting are prepared in accordance with Bye-law 57 of the
Bye-laws.

(1) One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Joint Company Secretaries, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

2 The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of those Shareholders.

(3) The requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Joint Company Secretaries.

4) The special general meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of the requisition.

(5) If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Companies Act’).
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The written requisition to convene a special general meeting shall be
submitted to the Board or the Joint Company Secretaries at 9 Battery
Road, MYP Centre, #20-02, Singapore 049910 or Room 3601, 36/F,,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

Dividend Policy

The Group has adopted a policy on payment of dividend (the
“Dividend Policy”) since 2019 in compliance with the HK CG Code
and SG CG Code, which establishes an appropriate procedure on
declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the Company.

The Company will declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to the Shareholders after the Board considering the
factors, such as: the funding needs to the operation and business
development of the Company from time to time; the market situation
from time to time; the solvency requirements of the Bermuda
Companies Act; cash flow and financial condition of the Company;
the requirements of the Bye-laws and the relevant laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Company; and so on. When assessing
the Company’s performance for each financial year or interim
financial period, the Board shall seek to maintain a steady dividend
depending on the capital expenditure and cash flow for each
financial year or interim financial period, while smoothing the effect
of any variation in the cash flow that may be due to one-off gains or
losses in the same period. The Board shall have the full discretion on
whether to pay a dividend, subject to the Shareholders’ approval, if
applicable.

The Board shall review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.

In accordance with the Dividend Policy, the Company declared
and paid an interim one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 5.75 Hong
Kong cents (equivalent to 1.01 Singapore cents (“Sing cents”)) per
ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2021. In addition,
the Board recommended a final one-tier tax exempt dividend of 6.83
Hong Kong cents (equivalent to 1.19 Sing cents) per ordinary share
for FY2021, which will be subject to the Shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming AGM.
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Engagement with Shareholders

The Company recognises the importance of good communications
with its Shareholders and the investment community and also
recognises the value of providing current and relevant information to
the Shareholders and the investors. The Company has established
a Shareholders Communication Policy which is available on the
SGXNet and the websites of HKEX and the Company.

To facilitate the Shareholders’ ownership rights, the Company
ensures that all material information is disclosed on a
comprehensive, accurate and timely basis on the SGXNet and
the websites of HKEX and the Company, especially information
pertaining to the Group’s business development and financial
performance which could have a material impact on the share price
of the Company, so as to enable the Shareholders to make informed
decisions in respect of their investment in the Company. To ensure
a timely and equal disclosure to all its Shareholders, the Company
also uploads all its press releases, presentation slides to be used
at analyst briefings and other disclosure documents which includes
material information on the SGXNet and the websites of HKEX and
the Company.

In line with continuous disclosure obligations of the Company, and
pursuant to the SGX Listing Manual, SEHK Listing Rules and the
Bermuda Companies Act, the Board ensures that the Shareholders
are fully informed of all major developments that impact the Group
on a timely and equally basis.

Information is disseminated to the Shareholders on a timely basis through:

(i) SGXNet announcements;

(ii) HKEX announcements;

(iii) press releases;

(iv) results briefings and analyst briefing presentations;
(V) annual reports;

(Vi) interim reports; and

(vij  the Company’s website at www.ebwater.com, at which the
Shareholders can access information on the Group.

The Company does not practise selective disclosure of material
information. All the material information is available on the SGXNet
and the websites of HKEX and the Company.

The Management acknowledges that effective communication with
investors is of paramount importance to the Group. In order to
reinforce mutual understanding between the Shareholders and the
Company, the Company established and maintained a number of
ways to strengthen its communication with investors.
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Measures that the Company has taken are as follows:

() organising analyst briefings to explain its latest published
financial information as well as to provide its business update
when necessary;

(b) attending meetings or telephone conferences requested
by investors, Shareholders or analysts on an ongoing basis
throughout the year to assist them in understanding the latest
updates relating to the Company;

(c) organising road shows for the investors or potential investors.
This may be done solely by Company or coordinated with
investment banks;

(d) organising site visits by investors or potential investors to the
Group’s projects; and

(e) ensuring important information of the Group will be
announced in a timely manner without delay.

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the investor relations department via
ir@ebwater.com.

(F) STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY
Strategy Committee
The Strategy Committee (the “SC”) comprises:

(i) Mr. Hu Yanguo (SC Chairman, Executive Director & Chairman
of Board);

(ii) Mr. Tao Junjie (Executive Director & CEO);

(iii) Mr. Luo Junling (Executive Director & CFO); and

(iv) Ms. Hao Gang (Independent Non-Executive Director).

The SC is primarily responsible for assisting the Board in providing
strategic direction to the Company and overseeing the strategic
planning of the Company and the implementation of such strategies;
reviewing the medium-term and long-term strategic objectives
proposed by the Management and overseeing the Management’s
performance in relation to such strategies; considering sustainability
issues in formulating strategies and overseeing the monitoring and
management of the environmental, social and governance factors
that are material to the business of the Company.
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The SC was established in May 2018, with the main objective to
assist the Board in oversight responsibilities relating to the planning
and implementation of the Company’s development strategies. It
currently comprises Executive, and Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The SC will hold meetings as and when necessary. During
its meetings, the SC may invite the key management personnel to
join and discuss on the Company’s strategies and development
directions. The SC will then report its recommendations on the
Company’s development strategies to the Board for discussion and
approval.

Engagement with Stakeholders

Stakeholder engagement is an indispensable part of the Group’s
sustainable development strategy. The Board adopts an inclusive
approach by considering and balancing the needs and interests
of materials stakeholders, as part of its overall responsibility to
ensure that the best interests of the Company are served. The
Group maintained constant interaction and close communication
with stakeholders through various communication channels, to
gain insights into how its business affects different stakeholders.
Through collecting valuable suggestions and expectations from the
stakeholders in relation to the Group’s sustainable development,
the Group pinpoints areas for improvement on business policies
and project operations, and identifies issues that have significant
impacts on its sustainable development, hence allowing the Group
to formulate long-term development strategies.

Further information on engagement with stakeholders is set out in
section “Sustainability Report” on pages 55 to 68 of this Annual
Report.

(G) DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted an internal code (the “Internal Code”)
governing dealings in securities by Directors, officers and relevant
employees of the Group who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information of the Group. Following its
listing on the SEHK, the Company has updated the Internal Code
to be in line with the requirements of the SEHK Listing Rules and
HK CG Code on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the SEHK Listing Rules, in
addition to the requirements of the SGX Listing Manual and SG CG
Code. This revised Internal Code has been disseminated to all the
Directors, officers and relevant employees of the Group.
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The Directors, officers and relevant employees of the Group have
been informed not to deal in the Company’s securities at all times
whilst in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information and
during the periods commencing:

(a) 30 days immediately preceding the publication date of the
announcement of the Company’s interim results (and quarterly
results, if any) or, if shorter, the period from the end of the
relevant half-year (and the relevant quarter, if applicable) up to
the publication date of the results; and

(b) 60 days immediately preceding the publication date of the
announcement of the Company’s full-year results or, if shorter,
end of financial year and up to the publication date of the results.

The Directors, officers and relevant employees of the Group are also
expected to observe relevant insider trading laws at all times, even
when dealing in securities within permitted trading period or while
they are in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of
the Company and they are not to deal in the Company’s securities
on short-term considerations.

Having made specific enquiries to the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard as set
out in the Model Code and the Internal Code throughout FY2021.

(H) INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY AND PROCEDURES

The Company has formulated inside information policy and
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
The insider information policy provides the guidelines to the
Directors, officers and relevant employees (likely possessing the
unpublished inside information) of the Group to ensure that the
inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to the public in
equal and timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations. The procedures include, among others, regularly remind
the Directors, officers and relevant employees of the Group about
the compliance with the securities dealing restrictions as set out in
the Model Code and the Internal Code and the notification of the
relevant blackout periods applicable to the publication of the interim
and full-year results of the Company respectively.

All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such
information. The employees of the Group are prohibited from using
inside information for their own benefit.
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(1) MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in this Annual Report, there are no material
contracts of the Group involving the interests of any Director
(including the CEQ) or controlling shareholder subsisting at the
end of FY2021, or entered into since the end of the previous
financial year.

(J) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted a set of new bye-laws with effect from
8 May 2019 pursuant to the special resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 16 November 2018.
During the year under review, there was no change in the Bye-laws.
An up-to-date version of the Bye-laws is also available on the
SGXNet and the websites of HKEX and the Company.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to submit
this Annual Report to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) together with the audited financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021” or the “year
under review”).

In the opinion of the Directors:

(@) the financial statements are drawn up so as to present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and the
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Group for the year ended on that date in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to
believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they fall due.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year under review.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year under
review, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of FY2021 (if any), an analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators
and a discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Chief Executive
Officer’s Report” on pages 4 to 34 of this Annual Report. Description
of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group is set
out in the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in
the “Chief Executive Officer’s Report” on pages 22 to 28 of this
Annual Report. A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationship with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
is provided in the section headed “Environmental and Social
Management” in the “Chief Executive Officer’s Report” on pages
28 to 30 of this Annual Report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the major customers and suppliers of
the Group respectively during FY2021 is as follows:

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

FREFRHER

AEER T —FRFEAZETERTP Lt
JERERIT :

Percentage of the Group’s total

HAEETIRE2ADL
Revenue Purchases
WA 24 o
The largest customer ST 12%
Five largest customers in aggregate hAREFER 45%
The largest supplier AR 6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARMEEEEGT 21%

None of the Directors, their associates and the Shareholders (which,
to the knowledge of the Directors, each own more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Results

The financial results of the Group for FY2021 and the Company’s
financial position at the end of FY2021 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 145 to 306 of this Annual Report.

Interim Dividend

An interim dividend of 5.75 Hong Kong cents (“HK cents”)
(equivalent to 1.01 Singapore cents (“Sing cents”)) per ordinary
share was paid to the Shareholders on 10 September 2021 (for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020”): HK3.74 cents
(equivalent to 0.67 Sing cent) per ordinary share).

Final Dividend

The Board recommended a final dividend of HK6.83 cents
(equivalent to 1.19 Sing cents) per ordinary share for FY2021
(FY2020: HK6.07 cents (equivalent to 1.04 Sing cents) per ordinary
share), subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).
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Share Capital

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year under review. Details of the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Debentures Issued

As announced by the Company on 15 January 2021, the
Company had completed the issuance of second tranche of
RMB-denominated medium term notes (the “Second Tranche
MTNSs”) to the institutional investors in the inter-bank bond market
of mainland China (the “Institutional Investors”) with a principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000. The Second Tranche MTNs were
fully subscribed for by the Institutional Investors, with a maturity
period of 3 years and an interest rate of 3.75% per annum. The
proceeds from issuance of the Second Tranche MTNs were used for
replenishment of working capital for the subsidiaries of the Company.
Details of the Second Tranche MTNs are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 11 January 2021 and 15 January 2021.

As announced by the Company on 10 August 2021, the
Company had completed the issuance of the first tranche of
RMB-denominated Super & Short-term Commercial Papers (the
“First Tranche SCPs”) to the Institutional Investors with a principal
amount of RMBB800,000,000. The First Tranche SCPs were
fully subscribed for by the Institutional Investors, with a maturity
period of 120 days and an interest rate of 2.40% per annum. The
proceeds from issuance of the First Tranche SCPs were used for
replenishment of working capital for the subsidiaries of the Company.
Details of the First Tranche SCPs are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 6 August 2021 and 10 August 2021.

In relation to the second tranche of RMB-denominated corporate
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of RMB800,000,000 (the
“Second Tranche Corporate Bonds”) which comprises Type 1
Second Tranche Corporate Bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of RMB400,000,000 (“Type 1 Bonds”) and Type 2 Second
Tranche Corporate Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
RMB400,000,000 (“Type 2 Bonds”) issued by the Company on 16
August 2018, the Company had, during the FY2021:

()  repurchased Type 1 Bonds with an aggregate value of
RMB79,100,000 (“Repurchased Type 1 Bonds”) and resold
Repurchased Type 1 Bonds with an aggregate value of
RMB70,000,000. The remaining unsold Repurchased Type 1
Bonds with an aggregate value of RMB9,100,000 were
cancelled by the Company; and
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Debentures Issued (cont’d)

(i)  repurchased Type 2 Bonds with an aggregate value of
RMB183,050,000 (“Repurchased Type 2 Bonds”) and
resold Repurchased Type 2 Bonds with an aggregate value
of RMB180,000,000. The remaining unsold Repurchased
Type 2 Bonds with an aggregate value of 3,050,000 were
cancelled by the Company.

Details and results of the sell back option and resale exercise in
respect of the Second Tranche Corporate Bonds are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 14 July 2021,12 August 2021
and 14 September 2021.

Details of the debentures issued during FY2021 are also set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not issue any other
debentures during FY2021.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to approximately HK$8,104,897,000
(31 December 2020: HK$7,823,775,000).

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during FY2021 amounted
to HK$12,000 (FY2020: HK$2,192,000).

Directors

The Directors during FY2021 and up to the date of this Annual
Report are:

Non-Executive Director
Wang Tianyi (Chairman)
(Resigned on 6 October 2021) (Note 1)

Executive Directors

Hu Yanguo (Chairman)
(Appointed on 6 October 2021)

An Xuesong (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 6 October 2021) (Note 2)

Tao Junjie (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 5 October 2021)

Luo Junling (Chief Financial Officer)
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Directors (cont’d)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Zhai Haitao

Lim Yu Neng Paul

Cheng Fong Yee

Hao Gang

Notes:

1. Mr. Wang Tianyi resigned as a Non-Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board of the Company on 5 October 2021 in order
to focus on his responsibilities as the chairman of the board of
directors of China Everbright Environment Group Limited (“Everbright
Environment’), the indirect controlling shareholder of the Company.

2. Mr. An Xuesong resigned as an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on & October 2021 due to change in
work arrangements.

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 44 to 53 of this
Annual Report.

In accordance with Bye-law 85(6) of the bye-laws of the Company
(the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr. Tao Junjie will hold office
until the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Luo Junling
will retire from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The current four Independent
Non-Executive Directors hold office for a term until 11 April 2022,
subject to renewal. They are all subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws as indicated above.

Changes in Information of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules (the “SEHK Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”), the change in information of the
Directors since the Company’s last published 2021 Interim Report is
as follows:

Mr. Zhai Haitao (Independent Non-Executive Director) was elected
to be an independent non-executive director of China Life Insurance
Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the New York
Stock Exchange, the SEHK and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) on
30 June 2021; his qualification as the independent non-executive
director was approved by the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission and his term of office commenced on 14
October 2021.
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Changes in Information of Directors (cont’d)

Mr. Lim Yu Neng Paul (Independent Non-Executive Director) ceased
to be an independent director of Nippecraft Limited (the shares of
which are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(*SGX”)) with effect from 31 August 2021. He was appointed as a
director of SBI Sygnum Azimut — Digital Asset Opportunity Fund
VCC (a variable capital company incorporated in Singapore) with
effect from 28 January 2022.

Ms. Cheng Fong Yee (Independent Non-Executive Director)
ceased to be an executive director (principal representative) of the
Cambodia Branch of AsiaOne Insurance Agency Pte. Ltd.

Ms. Hao Gang was appointed as the Associate Dean (Graduate
Programmes and Executive Education) of the College of Business
and the Director of EMBA (Chinese) programme, City University of
Hong Kong.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of other
information which is required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1)
of the SEHK Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under review.
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Directors’ Interests EEER
Under Singapore Law TR IE T AN LE

According to the Company’s register of Directors’ shareholdings,
none of the Directors holding office at the end of FY2021 had any

REANRRESREESCHMASE  R-F——
MREER  SECRESNAQ R AR

interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related A& Z AR ) S EREE T HEA AR - HUT
corporations, except as follows: EBRON
Holdings in which
Holdings registered in Director is deemed
the name of Director to have an interest
UESERBTZRE BEERAARERBEZRE
As at As at As at As at
Name of Director and Corporation in 1/1/2021 31/12/2021 1/1/2021 31/12/2021
which interests are held R-EBZ—F R-B-—F R-EBZ—F R-EB-—F
BERGeEESRERAFER —A—H +=ZHA=+—H —A—H +=—HB=+—H
The Company ¥iN/NE]
Ordinary shares Tim
Lim Yu Neng Paul RN RE - - 1,608,909 1,608,909
Cheng Fong Yee L) 622,266 622,266 - -
As at As at
5/10/2021 5/10/2021
(Note (2)) As at (Note (2)) As at
N8 31/12/2021 N8 31/12/2021
+AEHE R=F=—%f +AAE R=F=—Ff
(HHEE(2)) +t=A=+—H (HHEE(2) +t=A=+—H
China Everbright FRERE KR EBIRR
Greentech Limited (Note (1) BFREAE (1)
Ordinary shares S n il
Hu Yanguo (Note (2)) FARER]  (PiHEE(2)) 287,000 287,000 - -
Notes: Kt -

(1) China Everbright Greentech Limited (“Everbright Greentech’) /s a

subsidiary of Everbright Environment, the controlling Shareholder of the

Company.
(2)  Mr. Hu Yanguo was appointed as a Director on 5 October 2021.

(1) PEAARERRERAA ( [AARBE
R ) BAERAERRKRRAXNREZ I E R
5 o

(2) HEEFHE-F-—F+ ARAEEZER
EE-
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Directors’ Interests (cont’d)

Except as disclosed in this statement, none of the Directors who
held office at the end of FY2021 had interests in share options,
warrants or debentures of the Company or of related corporations,
either at the beginning or at the end of FY2021.

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests in the
Company and its related corporation between the end of FY2021
and 21 January 2022.

Under Hong Kong Law

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and/or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”))
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the SEHK Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Long position in shares of the Company

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

EsgEs (8

BRAZARTTREIN  R-T - —MBFEH
ISR £ - —MBFEHRERNE
SMER AR B SEER A B 2 HE - REERE
SIEHERE P A

RZE - BRFERE_ZT__F—H
“t+—HIEEE PR ARRREBB AT
ZRES AT ) o

RIEFEEE

EERBEITBRAEREZRS - HEARA R
R R RAR

NZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H E2ZRAEAAQT
ZEREITBRABRESE 2 SEHEALTRA
NAINR/RETMEBRELER (TR (55
EREREET—E) (FBHFREBEEN)
([ CEHBHEBD) | ) B XVEB) 2k - 8
Bl hEEETHAECHNAQFIE (F
FIEB) EBI52(EB EAEF 2 B MARE
wmIOKE  HARIEEE R AT AR R M 1 Pk
(EMBTAESETELAR ZNIZESTE)
([ CEESFRD) | ) @ BHEARERBR
FreosEmsR BT

() RAEARBRDZER

Approximate
percentage of

total issued
Nature of Number of shares shares (Note)
Name of Director Capacity interest (ordinary shares) KB BITRHAE
EEfE 514 EaMtE ROEHE (HER) HESH (FE
Lim Yu Neng Paul Custodian (other Personal 1,608,909 0.06%
M BE than an exempt A
custodian interest)
REAN (BRRRE
AREZRBRIN)
Cheng Fong Yee Beneficial owner Personal 622,266 0.02%
ZP Bl EnEEA EA
Note: Based on 2,860,876,723 issued ordinary shares of the Company Hist - RER=-F-_—F1+=-A=+—H&R

as at 31 December 2021.

AE #772,.860,876, 7238 &iER:1E -
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Directors’ Interests (cont’d)

(ii) Long position in shares of Everbright Greentech, a listed
associated corporation of the Company

121 .

EEEs (A
(i)  RARRR Lz EHEEER X K ERIR
Btz i’

Approximate
percentage of
total issued

Nature of Number of shares shares (Note)
Name of Director Capacity interest (ordinary shares) HNEERITRMEE
EENR 514 EEME RAHE (HBER) HESH F:E
Hu Yanguo Beneficial owner Personal 287,000 0.01%
HAREEY EnEA A EA

Note: Based on 2,066,078,000 issued ordinary shares of Everbright
Greentech as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year under review was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the
following persons (other than any Directors or chief executive of the
Company) were Substantial Shareholders (as defined in the SEHK
Listing Rules) and had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company or the SEHK:

Kl : RER-—E-—#+=-H=+—H
JEAAR BIRIRE #772,066,078,000/%
ZERTE -

B EXFratESN R T —F+ A =+—
B ARBISESERGEETTRAERFESESE
ZW%AtWﬁE$QﬁﬁEEMﬁ%%%E
(BEER GEHIEH) EXVED) A SN
B S EREERHEERE (BHEEDH) F
3&%&&%?2%@%@2% &ﬁé'ﬁ
*M?<METm»AﬁW7K 32 i 2 1
EJZ/)\E °©

EERBERODEET ZER

CEFEER » AR5 AEFAME AR - 21
NSIEAEES =N TIQ/AEHKH ﬁ@
EEAHEBEAR R SEMEMEABRRD
Sk (EHERE T RS Allak o

FERREHEMALTRED TR RADER G
RN AR

BEEMA R —F+-_A=+—H"
THAL (AR FESSHZRSITHRAER
SN BEERE (T RBFT EmEAD
W AR BRI MABRER (D R E IRE (F
%MW>%&%W%%T2§£%W&E%M
AAA SRR ESESOR BT
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company (cont’d)

Long position of Substantial Shareholders in shares of the Company

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

HEIERKBEERD A

FERRREMATRAQTRG K EBERG

HESRKXE (&)

T ERRERRARBRN L TR

Approximate
percentage of total
issued shares

Name of Substantial Nature of Number of shares (Note (1))
Shareholder Capacity interest (ordinary shares) N BITROEE
FTERRES 14 EmME RHOBE (FER) BIL M)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest of controlled  Corporate 2,084,724,572 72.87%
(“Huijin”) (Note (2) corporation interest
hRfESIREBREEAA 2k | NG [E o NCIL o

(TE£] ) WHEE)
China Everbright Group Ltd. Interest of controlled  Corporate 2,084,724,572 72.87%
(“China Everbright Group”) corporation interest
(Note (3)) R e NGIE o NRER
A B S K SR B AR 19 A R

( [hERAEH] )

(MI5E(3) )
China Everbright Holdings Interest of controlled  Corporate 2,084,724,572 72.87%
Company Limited (“CE Hong corporation interest
Kong’") (Note (4)) a2k | VNI [E o e NG
FEXREEBR AR

([RKEHB] ) (M)
Datten Investments Limited Interest of controlled  Corporate 2,084,724,572 72.87%
(“Datten”) (Note (5)) corporation interest

GED) SREIAFNEE AR
Guildford Limited (“Guildford”)  Interest of controlled  Corporate 2,084,724,572 72.87%
(Note (6)) corporation interest

(H32(6) SERARANER AR
Everbright Environment Interest of controlled  Corporate 2,084,724,572 72.87%
(Note (7)) corporation interest
KHRBE (H(7)) RS AR R NEER
China Everbright Environmental  Interest of controlled  Corporate 2,084,724,572 72.87%
Protection Holdings Limited corporation interest
(“CEEPHL”) (Note (8)) v NG £ NElEE
H B KIRRIZIR B R A A

( [RRBR] ) (M)
China Everbright Water Beneficial owner Corporate 2,084,724,572 72.87%
Holdings Limited (‘CEWHL”) EnEB A interest
P B S ROK SRR B BR A B NRER

( [HERABIER ] )
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (cont’d)

Long position of Substantial Shareholders in shares of the Company

123 .

FRERREHEMALTRED TR RADER G
HERR XA (F)

I2RERARERNZ TR (B)

(cont’d)
Notes:

(1) Based on 2,860,876,723 issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
31 December 2021.

2 Huijin is indirectly wholly owned by the State Council of the PRC and
holds 63.16% equity interest in China Everbright Group. It is deemed to be
interested in the 2,084,724,572 shares indirectly held by China Everbright
Group.

(8)  China Everbright Group holds 100% equity interest in CE Hong Kong. It is
deemed to be interested in the 2,084,724,572 shares indirectly held by CE
Hong Kong.

4) CE Hong Kong holds 100% equity interest in Datten. It is deemed to be
interested in the 2,084,724,572 shares indirectly held by Datten.

(5) Datten holds 55% equity interest in Guildford. It is deemed to be interested
in the 2,084,724,572 shares indirectly held by Guildford.

(6)  Guildford holds 39.57% equity interest in Everbright Environment. It is
deemed to be interested in the 2,084,724,572 shares indirectly held by
Everbright Environment.

(7) Everbright Environment holds 100% equity interest in CEEPHL. It is
deemed to be interested in the 2,084,724,572 shares indirectly held by
CEEPHL.

(8)  CEEPHL holds 100% equity interest in CEWHL. It is deemed to be
interested in the 2,084,724,572 shares held by CEWHL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or Substantial Shareholders) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’
Contracts

Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company, or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of FY2021 or at any
time during FY2021.

(1) BER-Z-—F+-A=+—BARRIEHT
1172,860,876,723M% F @A E -

(2) EsmPEEKERE2EHRE  WiEAPEY
REE263.16%M%4E o HWiR AR PR K KE
B A 22,084,724, 5720 i () R E B 1

><
m °

(3) HEXREEFTEAAREEZ100%MHE o Hif
RANKRKEBFEEFH 22,084,724,572[%
B h A R

(4) N AEBHEADatten 2 100% M o I8 AR
DattenFriEl# 4 22,084,724 572 Bt
B -

(5)  Datten# A Guildford 2 55% & # - kR AR
GuildfordFrfEi 55 2 2,084,724,572 8 B 5
HERER -

(6)  Guildford# B X KIRIE 2 39.57 %A% - R
BRI RIREFEERG 22,084,724,572% 1%
DR EEER

(7)  RREBEFHBEAXAKREBRZI100%EE - K184
RAE KRR E 22,084,724 572 1 5
PR R -

(8) HRIBRIFHE K AKIEIZIE Z100%A%4E o Hig
RAR N KKEIERETIEE 22,084,724,5720%
BRI A s -

B EXprtESN KRB —F+_-_A=+—
B ARATEEEEFAL (ERIRQFE
ERERSTRABREERERGIN) @A -
KRN A R BB RN Ko A8 B8 B fn = B IR I
(BRG] SE336IRAETF 2 B AHE

Q22 > 3
HIAORR e

EENRS - RS aN 2R

AR B EIZER AR S EA(IE R &R
VYRZE-—HRFERI T - —HFE
AEAEENAEN - BEEElEE=aEE
CHEMEERETHEEATZ EERS -
TSR AL -
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No Competition between Everbright Environment and the
Company

In connection with the separate listing of the Company on the SEHK,
the Company implemented some corporate governance measures
to confirm that the directors of both Everbright Environment and the
Company will be able to function and operate independently and
effectively in the best interest of the respective companies. Details
relating to the non-existence of competition between Everbright
Environment and the Company are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholder” of the listing document
issued by the Company dated 24 April 2019 (the “HK Listing
Document”).

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr. Zhai Haitao are also the directors
of Everbright Environment. Everbright Environment is a listed
intermediate holding company of the Company and is engaged in
environmental protection business. Everbright Environment may be
in competition with the Group. However, as stated in the section “No
Competition between Everbright Environment and the Company”
above, the Company implemented some corporate governance
measures to ensure the independence between Everbright
Environment and the Company. Up to the date of this Annual
Report, there is no change in the details previously disclosed in the
HK Listing Document.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors are considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
Equity-linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during FY2021 and
subsisted at the end of FY2021.

Warrants

As at the end of FY2021, there were no warrants issued by the
Company to take up any unissued shares of the Company.

Share Options

The Company has no share option scheme during FY2021.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

HKRBRRERRBAFFHERTF

AR R RIRBE R FEY £ - NAFIE B
ZREEREREH - MRAERRBENARRZ
EERB Y ARUANE R B AR 2 &EF
w2 7T A BT SBAF - BRI AIRIRER
R PNFEBRF ZFFIFEIIER AR A] A3
HHEA-Z-NFOA-_+tMEZ EHXH
ﬁﬁ?%tﬁi#J)WFﬁ@%&%%%
& —&f e

ESNBRER cES

ROBFEARBEERFERSAY
ERESEENBEERERTILARNRESE
F o RRBRER/RARA zZ ETHBEERR
A AFBRFREEF - ARRITNERX
SEFEHEFE AWM WEX [ RRFER
ARBNFEHRS | —fifd > AREEE
wEREEERER - BERIEARBEARR
AlZEMNBYIE AEAFEREAHR &
BLTXHEBEARL EES -

B EXCRBES - BEEERAAEALEE
75 B o PR AR R P B B 55
i M -

E P

— = B RN TR R REER
Ty A (IR R -

AR

N BB - ARALARTER
R L A 2 RBTRIB RIS -
iR

AEER TP REENLE TS -
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Pre-emptive Rights

Bye-law 12(1) of the Bye-laws provides that (subject to any
direction to the contrary that may be given by the Company
in general meetings) any issue of shares for cash to existing
Shareholders holding shares of any class shall be offered to such
Shareholders in proportion as nearly as may be to the number of
shares of such class then held by them and the provisions of
the second sentence of Bye-law 12(2) with such adaptations
as are necessary shall apply. Bye-law 12(2) of the Bye-laws
provides, inter alia, that except permitted by the listing manual
of SGX (the “SGX Listing Manual”) or the SEHK Listing Rules
or any direction given by the Company in general meetings, all
new shares shall before issue be offered to such persons who
as at the date of the offer are entitled to receive notices from
the Company of general meetings in proportion, as far as the
circumstances admit, to the number of the existing shares to which
they are entitled. Save for the foregoing, there is no provision for
pre-emptive rights under the laws of the Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed securities during FY2021.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

Material Related Party Transactions

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year under review are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements. In relation to those related party transactions that
also constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Group as defined in the SEHK Listing Rules, the
Company has complied with the relevant disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the SEHK Listing Rules during the
year under review.

125 .

BREERE

ARBERFI2(MERE - (RFARA
EREREAE HEEEMBRIRE) MEFHE
E BRI DB BIR AR & /AR EBITRN
B MZERRIEZHTOLPIAZTERD
BRESRFANZEZRRRMHEE - WAEE
ROFHMEHENARRBETIZE12(2)1F
FE_AER - ARRIBRRF12Q)ENHER
BRI LM ( [HXAMEWF
M) sKEERAT Em RS ARRERRK
& EEHMERIERAELE - FTEMREAR
BITATA N 24 B A RKE AR R RRX
ERAMNZFALIERZ  URNBERFAT
BEEAFARA BB WL HETT © BR
LRt F SN - BHRERRAEEH T E LB
BRGSO REARBARLHIMBREGRRER
REBEHBD -

BE BORHELTES

AR EEMNBARRER -~ —8FK
FEBE  HEIBEHERE EHES

B

EEWTHERREABEARRESFMAZA
ERBRR

EXBBAIRS

AEBEREBEEENTLZERNBHR TS
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Connected Transactions and/or Continuing Connected
Transactions

During FY2021, the Company and the Group had the following
connected transactions and/or continuing connected transactions,
details of which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of
Chapter 14A of the SEHK Listing Rules.

Underwriting and advisory services

On 15 April 2019, the Company entered into the underwriting and
advisory services framework agreement (the “2019 Underwriting
and Advisory Services Framework Agreement”’) with
China Everbright Group, a controlling shareholder of Everbright
Environment, for a fixed term not exceeding three years from the
date of the agreement to 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to the 2019 Underwriting and Advisory Services
Framework Agreement, China Everbright Group shall procure CEB
International Investment Corporation Limited (“CEB International”)
and/or China Everbright Securities International Limited (“EBSI”)
and/or their respective affiliates to provide the underwriting and
advisory services to the Group based on normal commercial
terms and after arm’s length negotiations between the Group and
CEB International and/or EBSI and/or their respective affiliates.
The underwriting and advisory services to be provided by CEB
International and/or EBSI and/or their respective affiliates shall be
on normal commercial terms and no less favourable than the terms
available to the Group from independent third parties.

On 22 December 2021, the Company renewed the 2019
Underwriting and Advisory Services Framework Agreement and
entered into the new underwriting and advisory services framework
agreement with China Everbright Group, pursuant to which China
Everbright Group shall procure EBSI, CEB International and/or
Everbright Securities Company Limited (‘EB Securities”) to provide
the underwriting and advisory services to the Group in accordance
with the terms thereof for a term of one year commencing from
1 January 2022. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 22 December 2021.

During FY2021, the Group had no transaction with CEB International
and/or EBSI and/or their respective affiliates with respect to the
receipt of underwriting and advisory services.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

REXS R/RGFERERS

—E - BEEER - AARRAEES T
WER S RARERERS - BBX B HHE
DB R P L AR RIS +IUAE 2 B M
R -

R-Z-NEMA+HHA  ARFELKR
352 2 Y R IS SR AR B o K R (B BT N2 B T R
RAGIERGE ( [=TB—NEFREREHAR
BERGH] )  BETHREBABHES
ZEFTZAZTHLETEA=F -

RIE =T — N AGE M B R BRSAE 2R 7 % -
B KSR B AS IR IR — AR X R AL AR IR
BEEERR AR ( [XREK] ) K/&P
BYXAREHBEERAERAA ( [REBEE] )
KIS ER AN B BRI EREE QPR
RATE I IRBIPR R/ B BIR N/ B F & B
F) Bl B 444 18 1) AN 5% [ B2 (H 81 K o s AR A o
BEBGTETNERAEEBBILE=-TERF
Z AR

RZEBE-—F+-_A=-+=H ARaH
BXAREBEE T NFABELEZAR
TEIER W3 RET S H Al RS R IRTSIE SR
ek B PECAEEBRENLER
B HERBBR R/ REBEERDER R A
([ XKREBEF| ) HEKFREZ_ZT ==
—A—BRRAREBIRE A —FaEE N
BHARG  HEBHEN AL HEAE T ——
F+-A-+-_HRRE -

RZTZ-—PBRFER - NEEERER
Re /30 8 BIFR B/ AR 3 35 B Y B A B AR
BRARXAHEME AR S
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Connected Transactions and/or Continuing Connected
Transactions (cont’d)

Lease of the premises

On 15 April 2019, the Company entered into the property lease
framework agreement (the “2019 Property Lease Framework
Agreement”) with Everbright Environment, a controlling shareholder
of the Company, for a fixed term not exceeding three years from the
date of the agreement to 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to the 2019 Property Lease Framework Agreement,
Everbright Environment shall procure its subsidiaries and/or its
affiliates to enter into tenancy agreements with the Group in respect
of the leasing of office premises, meeting rooms and guest rooms
based on normal commercial terms and no less favourable than the
terms available to the Group from independent third parties.

On 22 December 2021, the Company renewed the 2019 Property
Lease Framework Agreement and entered into the new property
lease framework agreement with Everbright Environment, pursuant
to which Everbright Environment shall procure its subsidiaries to
lease office premises, meeting rooms and guest rooms to the
Group in accordance with the terms thereof for a term of one
year commencing from 1 January 2022. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2021.

During FY2021, the aggregate rental paid or payable to Everbright
Environment and its subsidiaries amounted to HK$7,392,000.
The said amount was below the annual cap of HK$7,690,050 for
FY2021 as stated in the HK Listing Document.

Deposit services

On 15 April 2019, the Company entered into the deposit services
framework agreement (the “2019 Deposit Services Framework
Agreement”) with China Everbright Group, a controlling shareholder
of Everbright Environment, for a fixed term not exceeding three years
from the date of the agreement to 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to the 2019 Deposit Services Framework Agreement,
China Everbright Group shall procure China Everbright Bank
Company Limited (“CE Bank”) to provide the deposit services
(including current and fixed term deposit) to the Group in
accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the People’s
Bank of China (“PBOC”) and/or other relevant rules and regulations
within or outside the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
deposit services to be provided by CE Bank shall be on normal
commercial terms and no less favourable than the terms available to
the Group from independent third parties.
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Connected Transactions and/or Continuing Connected
Transactions (cont’d)

On 22 December 2021, the Company renewed the 2019 Deposit
Services Framework Agreement and entered into the new deposit
services framework agreement with China Everbright Group,
pursuant to which China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank
to provide deposit services to the Group in accordance with the
terms thereof for a term of one year commencing from 1 January
2022. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 22
December 2021.

During FY2021, the maximum daily closing balance of the Group’s
deposits (including interests accrued thereon) placed in CE Bank
amounted to approximately HK$215,017,000. This amount was
below the maximum daily closing balance of HK$300,000,000 for
FY2021 as stated in the HK Listing Document.

Sludge treatment and hazardous waste treatment services

On 15 April 2019, the Company entered into the sludge treatment
and hazardous waste treatment services framework agreement
(the “2019 Sludge Treatment and Hazardous Waste Treatment
Services Framework Agreement”) with Everbright Environment,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, for a fixed term not
exceeding three years from the date of the agreement to 31
December 2021.

Under the 2019 Sludge Treatment and Hazardous Waste Treatment
Services Framework Agreement, Everbright Environment shall
procure its subsidiaries to provide sludge treatment and hazardous
waste treatment services to the Group based on normal commercial
terms, and after arm’s length negotiations between the relevant
subsidiary of Everbright Environment and the Group.

On 22 December 2021, the Company renewed the 2019 Sludge
Treatment and Hazardous Waste Treatment Services Framework
Agreement and entered into the new sludge treatment and
hazardous waste treatment services framework agreement with
Everbright Environment, pursuant to which Everbright Environment
shall procure its subsidiaries to provide sludge treatment and
hazardous waste treatment services to the Group in accordance
with the terms thereof for a term of one year commencing from 1
January 2022. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 22 December 2021.
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Connected Transactions and/or Continuing Connected
Transactions (cont’d)

During FY2021, the Group had no transactions with Everbright
Environment and/or its subsidiaries with respect to the receipt of
sludge treatment and hazardous waste treatment services.

Loan services

On 15 April 2019, the Company entered into the loan services
framework agreement (the “2019 Loan Services Framework
Agreement”) with China Everbright Group, a controlling shareholder
of Everbright Environment, for a fixed term not exceeding three years
from the date of the agreement to 31 December 2021.

Under the 2019 Loan Services Framework Agreement, China
Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to provide loans (including
revolving credit facilities and fixed term loans) within or outside the
PRC in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the
PBOC and/or other relevant rules and regulations within or outside
the PRC. The loan services to be provided by CE Bank shall be on
normal commercial terms and no less favourable than the terms
available to the Group from independent third parties.

On 22 December 2021, the Company renewed the 2019 Loan
Services Framework Agreement and entered into the new loan
services framework agreement with China Everbright Group,
pursuant to which China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank
to provide loans (including revolving credit facilities and fixed term
loans) in accordance with the terms thereof for a term of one
year commencing from 1 January 2022. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2021.

During FY2021, the Group had no transactions with China Everbright
Group and/or CE Bank with respect to the receipt of loan services.

Employee healthcare protection services

On 22 December 2021, Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Limited
(“Everbright Water Shenzhen”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the employee healthcare protection services
agreement (the “Employee Healthcare Protection Services
Agreement”) with Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (“Sun
Life Everbright”), an associate of China Everbright Group, for the
years 2021 and 2022.
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Connected Transactions and/or Continuing Connected
Transactions (cont’d)

Employee healthcare protection services (cont’d)

Under the Employee Healthcare Protection Services, Sun Life
Everbright shall provide employee healthcare protection services
for the years 2021 and 2022 to Everbright Water Shenzhen, which
shall include (1) management and operation of the Healthcare
Protection Entrusted Management Scheme (“EHP Scheme”)
established by Everbright Water Shenzhen for the employees (and
their respective family members) designated by Everbright Water
Shenzhen (the “Designated Employees”); and (2) provision of
insurance services and products for the Long-term Supplemental
Medical Insurance Protection Scheme (“EMI Scheme”) established
by Everbright Water Shenzhen for the Designated Employees.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 22
December 2021.

During FY2021, the aggregate fees paid or payable to Sun Life
Everbright amounted to HK$17,648,000. Such fees include (i) the
principal deposited or to be deposited under the EHP Scheme and
the relevant management fee; (i) the insurance fees under the EMI
Scheme; and (i) the recurring one-year medical insurance fee under
the Employee Healthcare Protection Services Agreement. The said
amount was below the annual cap of HK$19,200,000 for FY2021 as
stated in the Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2021.

Save for the information disclosed above, during FY2021, the
Group did not enter into any other transactions which constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that
were subject to reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the
SEHK Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

° entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;
° conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are

not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and
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Connected Transactions and/or Continuing Connected
Transactions (cont’d)

Confirmation of Independent Non-Executive Directors (cont’d)

° in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

Report of the Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young LLP has
issued its unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the SEHK
Listing Rules, and confirmed that nothing has come to their
attention in relation to the above continuing connected transactions
with regard to the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the SEHK
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the SEHK.

Interested Person Transactions Mandate and Aggregate Value
of Such Transactions

The Group obtained a general mandate (the “IPT Mandate”) from
the Shareholders for interested person transactions (the “IPTs”)
during its AGM held on 10 June 2020 pursuant to Rule 920 of the
SGX Listing Manual. The IPT Mandate was renewed during the
Company’s AGM held on 27 April 2021. The aggregate value of the
IPTs in excess of SGD100,000 during FY2021 are set out as follows:
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Interested Person Transactions Mandate and Aggregate Value

of Such Transactions (cont’d)

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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ABAIREZRERZEXRZNAEE (B)

Name of Nature of Aggregate value of all IPTs Aggregate value of all IPTs
interested relationship during FY2021 (excluding conducted under the IPT
person BERNME transactions less than Mandate during FY2021
AL B SGD100,000 and transactions (excluding transactions less
conducted under the IPT than SGD100,000)
Mandate) —EC-BREERAREREEA
TR -UBFERRERB TR EBRREPMETH BRI
ATRGWEEE (E8EIR ATRGNEEE (LR
100,000%7 tn3# T R AR IEEEEEA L 100,000%7 h03% T IR 5 BRIM)
REBREMETHRBRIM)
Everbright Controlling Nil HK$7,392,000
Environment shareholder i3 (equivalent to SGD1,277,000)
RREE PERRRR R 7,392,000/ 7T
(%5{B1,277,000% 103 7T)
Sun Life Associate of Nil HK$20,343,000
Everbright the controlling i3 (equivalent to SGD3,515,000)
FE R KA shareholder 20,343,000/ 7T
AR AR R AV B EE A (%183,515,000%F 1 7T)

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under Rule 8.08 of the SEHK Listing Rules and Rule 723 of the
SGX Listing Manual. For more details, please refer to the section
entitled “Statistics of Shareholdings” set out on pages 324 to 329 of
this Annual Report.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. There is
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at

31 December 2021 are set out in notes 27 to 28 to the financial
statements.
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Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 307 to 308
this Annual Report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year under review are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

Retirement Schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the Group’s MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, respectively.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC
are members of the retirement schemes operated by the local
authorities. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits.

The Group also makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund in
Singapore. Pursuant to the Central Provident Fund Act (Chapter 36 of
Singapore), both the employer and its employees are required to make
regular contributions at certain rate based on the employees’ income.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during FY2021 amounted to
approximately HK$124,512,000 (FY2020: HK$55,229,000).

Confirmation of Independence

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the SEHK Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that all
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent and satisfy
the requirements under Rule 3.13 and the Company has received an
annual confirmation of independence from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors pursuant to the SEHK Listing Rules.
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Audit Committee

The members of the audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) at the date of this statement are as follows:

Lim Yu Neng Paul (Chairman)
Zhai Haitao (Member)

Cheng Fong Yee (Member)
Hao Gang (Member)

All members of the Audit Committee are Independent and
Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee carried out its
functions as required by the SGX Listing Manual, the Code of
Corporate Governance 2018 (the “SG CG Code”) and the SEHK
Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code (the “HK CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the SEHK Listing Rules.

Based on the internal control established and maintained by the
Group, the work performed by the internal and external auditors (to
the extent as required by them to form an opinion on the financial
statements), and the reviews conducted by the management of the
Company (the “Management”), the Board, with the concurrence
of the Audit Committee, is of the opinion that the Group’s internal
controls addressing financial, operational and compliance risks were
adequate as at the date of this statement.

The Audit Committee has held two meetings since the last directors’
statement. In performing its functions, the Audit Committee met with
the Company’s external and internal auditors to discuss the scope
of their work, the results of their examination and evaluation of the
Company’s internal accounting control system.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the following, inter alia:

° assistance provided by the Company’s officers to the internal
and external auditors;

° half yearly and annual financial statements of the Group prior
to their submission to the Directors for adoption; and

° interested person transactions (as defined in the SGX Listing
Manual), connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions (as defined in SEHK Listing Rules).

The Audit Committee has full access to the Management and
is given the resources required for it to discharge its functions.
It has full authority and the discretion to invite any Director or
executive officer to attend its meetings. The Audit Committee also
recommends the appointment of the external auditors and reviews
the level of audit and non-audit fees.
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Audit Committee (cont’d)

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the independence and
objectivity of the external auditor and has recommended to the
Board that the auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, be nominated for
re-appointment as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

After reviewing the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group, the Board and the Audit Committee are satisfied with the
adequacy and effectiveness of such systems for FY2021.

Further details of the Risk Management and Internal Controls, Audit

Committee, Internal Audit are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 92 to 103 of this Annual Report.

Events after the Reporting Period

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 41 to the financial statements.

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as the auditor of the Company is to be

proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

There has been no change in auditor of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Hu Yanguo
Executive Director and Chairman

Tao Junjie
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

28 February 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYEFRTA®E

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

To the Members of China Everbright Water Limited
2P B EA KB IR 2 AIRE

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of China Everbright Water
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group and the statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the Group, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flows
of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of the Group and the statement of financial position of the Company
are properly drawn up in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) so as to present fairly, in all material
respects of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and of
the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public
Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYEFRTA®E

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

To the Members of China Everbright Water Limited
2P B EA KB IR 2 AIRE

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditors
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial

RRETEE

R E SRR MRBEEXAE - RSB
PBEA AR A M B RRERERNEIA &
FREHEEERMNBABERGEVHRR LA
iﬁ%%ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁWK%%%$ﬁﬁﬁ$%
HE R o

RPICRKETT T ARE [ Fa I HREEF
FEVE ] SMoBMMEE - BIEEE LR
B ERMEBRNEE - AR - WAIMEST
TEEERTT R FHE M RREAHE REA
BT EAZF o HARTEAIZFAE
R BREEHTRBRESFTAMATHE
Fo R HREBEREITEARETE

7 o

statements.

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ETONMERZSE

IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements
(“IFRIC 12”) and Revenue Recognition

BRI ERENBREEESREE 1257 - KSR
THRBAER

The Group enters into service concession arrangements
with municipals in the People’s Republic of China to
build and/or operate waste water treatment plants. The
Group recognises the consideration for the construction
services as contract assets and/or intangible assets for
service concession arrangements within the scope of
IFRIC 12. As the related amounts are material and the
application of IFRIC 12 requires significant management
judgement, we identified this as a key audit matter.

& =B B 5 BT BT 55 7K B TR IR 0 3R 3 Ko/ B 2 R
MR AR c EEBYERRMBREREES
EREF12RBENN MBI AL LHPNRERE
HERRRENEER/HBLEE - AN EBIFR R
ERELEeRER 12V EHMNERERETEEIERE
TERERAE - HMIEZFERTE RARETEIE -

We assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s
revenue recognition policies, evaluated the Group’s
process in assessing the applicability of IFRIC 12 and
also reviewed the associated agreements to assess
whether these agreements are appropriately identified as
service concession arrangements to be within the scope
of IFRIC 12.

BT ESENRARIEENBEE S  FEEEE
HEERYBREZREZEGREF12FEAMEMNE
Fr o WEZBB G ZE - AT ZFRE e S HI5E 1R
ERBRERVEREREZEeRER 12 HE AN
PRI ETHE & HE -

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the independent consultant and surveyors
engaged by management. We reviewed the progress
reports for projects under construction and the
reasonableness of the revenue recognised over time.
BMZBRTHEIE =S EERRERR TN ENE -
BENFIREM - Uhoh  BPIEBZR T ERIBE T ITHE
E#E - AKBEREERRAN GBI -



138 .

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYEFRTA®E

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

To the Members of China Everbright Water Limited
2P B EA KB IR 2 AIRE
Key audit matters (cont’d)

The key audit matter (cont’d)
BREETEE (H)

MRETEE (R

How the matter was addressed in our audit (cont’d)

BANFTOMAEEZEER (F)

IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements
(“IFRIC 12”) and Revenue Recognition (cont’d)

B EREMERREESREE 125 - RFSTE
THRBARZ (&)

The Group applies IFRIC 12 in its recognition of revenue
from service concession arrangements, which includes
revenue relating to construction services, operation
income and finance income. Disclosure of the revenue
is included in notes 2.4, 3 and 5 to the financial
statements.
EREHARR B RERELZE R ES 125 ER N
R ELZEEENEA - BRBERBGRA - E=Z
WAFIEATFUA o WA BB RS RAE B 75 R f15E2.4 -
B E3FNPI5ES o

Construction service revenue is measured based on
the Group’s estimation of the fair value of construction
services and the percentage of construction completed
during the year. Significant judgement is required in
determining the fair value of the construction services
and involves estimation of the total construction costs
and the margin for each contract. The Group engaged
an independent financial modeling consultant to assist
in the estimation of the fair value of the construction
services. The percentage of construction completed
during the year is estimated based on the survey of
work performed by independent surveyors with relevant
qualifications and industry experience. Judgement is
required in estimating the percentage of construction
completed.
BREWANGEDNREESEBEMANRZERBTNARE
BERFRAIRTIADLE - BEEZERBHALE
ERFEEREBELEAAE  2ENEEBESRMNE
SRR o & 5 B BT 8 S B AR B B R 17 Bh 1
ATREREHNAAEE IRTIAESLEXEEEGE
BEEMITELRNE=FERRRINEE RS KT
flr - et bt KRB E IR B HE -

We reviewed management’s computation of amortised
cost of contract assets and intangible assets and
allocation of consideration between contract assets and
intangible assets and the related revenue recognised
during the year and tested key estimates including
discount rates used by management by comparing
to the relevant market interest rates to identify any
inappropriate estimates.
BRABRTEREHSNEEMBEL EENBMRKAGT
H - AHEERELEENYED A SAEEE WA E
RAHABEEEHNEZME BEBEREEERN
PR RETISNFETHR  BREEEMTEERE
BIE o

We engaged our internal specialists to review the
valuation methodology and the reasonableness of certain
key assumptions such as the margin used and the
industry comparable companies in the determination of
the fair value of the construction services in the financial
model.

BB E T ZKANMBEREEETENRE LA RMEE
R AR (AnfE e FEEMTERERE A EE
FREEREE AR LA AE]) BRBIEETER -

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures
related to service concession arrangements in the
financial statements.

BAAEHE T EEEEM SRR T ERGSITRLHEA
BENEEMRTES M
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Key audit matters (cont’d)

The key audit matter (cont’d)
BREETEE (H)

MRETEE (R

How the matter was addressed in our audit (cont’d)

BANFTOMAEEZEER (F)

Recoverability of trade receivables

FE W B - AT e ]

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade
receivables amounting to HK$2,296,652,000, net
of expected credit losses (“ECL”) allowance of
HK$252,045,000. The Group determines impairment
losses by making debtor-specific assessment of ECL for
credit impaired debtors and has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment for the
remaining group of debtors taking into consideration
impact arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.
RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—0  E5EREKESHRER
2,296,652,000/8 7T - EHIMRTEMEEEE ( [REEE
518 ) #i%252,045,0008 7T - ERERIFSEHEBHA
WIEBEEBRATME KT EEREESE - E5EEE
VERESENBRTEEBBELENBEBRE - TER
BEBEARENLREBLERE (BEFTULERESES
) MREMEREEMTARE -

The estimation of impairment loss of trade receivables
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of trade receivables as well as expectation
of forward-looking factors. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, taking into consideration
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Accordingly, we identified this as
a key audit matter. Disclosures of the trade receivables
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 23 to the financial
statements.

FEW R TR BB RAR IR ST B B RT 4 - MR R ERER
DA R AR TR RHBAD T EL G T H U
RRHSRZ AT KON - BREMEEREFSANAE
BREEARGEESANUERKES - FEREHH
B AEBRMEZEFERTR/BEEETFE - BIEX
IR ER S| RER IR MIEE2.4 - PIFE3 R FIEE23 -

We obtained an understanding of management’s
processes relating to the monitoring of trade receivables.

BT AR T B E R RUERR A BRRRIR o

In assessing the adequacy of the ECL allowance,
we reviewed the ageing analysis of the debtors to
identify potential collectability issues, reviewed data
used in management’s assessment of default rates
and assessed the reasonableness of management’s
assumptions used in establishing the forward-looking
adjustments including the potential impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, we discussed with
management about the status of significant overdue
individual debtors’ balance, management’s consideration
of the debtors’ specific profiles and risks, reviewed
settlement history and assessed management’s
assumptions used to determine the ECL allowance.
We also requested direct confirmations and considered
receipts subsequent to the year end.
AHMETEHEEEBERELA R D - BfIEZ T RUERZH R
B UEREERIWIERERE BB T EERERNU
STHBERNEE  WAAHEREEREZAIRIEREER (8
EHAERESEETE) ARFMANRKNGE
Mo BN RFEREEEREBHE BN EKE
AR N EIR EH Z B AR RIE AR E R
Talem o MPVEBR T RABIWHESL - W TERE
EANBERMEEBERENRRE - RMEZREUW
FRFGARE N E B - Wind T @ OREER -

We further considered the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures regarding the estimation uncertainty involved
in determining the ECL allowance.

BME— T T ERERBEREEEERBMELS
At T REMEENBRELSS RS -
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Key audit matters (cont’d)

The key audit matter (cont’d)
BREETEE (H)

BEFEEE ()

How the matter was addressed in our audit (cont’d)

BANFTOMAEEZEER (F)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

P R R =

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets requires goodwill to be tested
annually for impairment or more frequently when there is
an indication that the cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) may
be impaired. This assessment requires the exercise of
significant judgement about the future market conditions,
including future cash flows to be generated from the
continuing use of the waste water treatment plants
over the service concession period. The determination
of the recoverable amount requires judgement in both
identification and valuation of the relevant CGU given the
changes in the market and economic conditions brought
on by the COVID-19 pandemic. Accordingly, we identified
this as a key audit matter.

e ERIE365 EEMEZR REMEGFETRE
A BT REAReEHSET ( [REEHER] )

A] B H B R B RS FE SR E i ETTRE RIS - B Z 5k
HARRTISMAEH BRI - BEERBEFINS
IKEEIBMPTELNARIRESRE - IO ENETH
EZRANFEERASREITE RN TS LEBEREN
BL - EM IR T E D BT ER KA EED HIE
it WA ZEERE REREAEE -

The Group determined that the water environment
management segment was accounted for as a
collective CGU for the purpose of impairment testing.
The impairment assessment was determined using
a value-in-use model based on the discounted cash
flows projection. Assumptions such as estimated key
financial data, the growth rate and discount rate used to
determine the discounted cash flows required significant
judgements by the Group.

EEEEHEOEERSELE T - KRREFEEBED
B ETRERS - BEARDERUANRESRER
ERNERABEERALET -HBEFRBE2REMTEN
BRR - ATV B EIE - BREMTRXSE - 5
HEEEBELEAAE -

As at 31 December 2021, the goodwill carried
in the Group’s financial statements amounted to
HK$1,531,576,000. Disclosures of goodwill are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to the financial statements.
RZEBE-—F+-A=+—H E£EPERRMIE
E$FR1,531,576,0008 7T © FEMIREIREME®
FMIEE2.4 « MIFE3MMIFE18 ©

We reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s
determination of the CGU.
B TESEETREELETNERE ! -

We assessed the appropriateness of the discount rate
used by assessing the cost of capital of the Company
and comparable organisations in the industry, and
where relevant, using our internal valuation specialists
to independently develop expectations for the discount
rate, and comparing the independent expectations to
those used by management.

BRI T ERE RS L AR ERK AT EE R
BERITIRE - WHZ KA HERREITIRRETE
AR AR AR IR E IR B AT IR REI T -

We reviewed the cash flow forecasts by comparing
them to recent and past performance, taking into
consideration the approach used in the valuation. We
tested the reasonableness of key assumptions used
in the cash flows forecast, which include growth rate,
discount rate and long-term growth rate, and taking into
account management’s consideration of the potential
impact that COVID-19 pandemic has on the Group’s
operations.
BPEREEBREATNELERR - B TAHAEAN
AR eRERMMERE - BHfRE TREREANER
B BEERE  FREULRIERE - WERTH
HEARsREAREEEECELNBEERE

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in the financial statements on the impairment
assessment, specifically on the key assumptions that
have the most significant effect on the determination of
the recoverable amount of the goodwiill.

Bt T ESERRENREEHNBERES S R D #E
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Other information

The other information consists of the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Management is responsible for other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs,
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition;
and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded
as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial
statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

° Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements (cont’d)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements (cont’d)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Alvin Phua Chun Yen.

Ernst & Young LLP

Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore

28 February 2022
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Notes 2021 2020
i —E_—F ZETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAETT
REVENUE PN 5 6,912,371 5,663,292
Direct costs and operating expenses BENRAR G ERT (4,110,782) (3,462,756)
Gross profit EF 2,801,589 2,200,536
Other income and (losses)/gains, net EAUA K
(B18) M FE 6 (22,492) 53,068
Administrative and other operating T REMEEER
expenses (671,142) (441,554)
Finance income BRI A 7 21,999 15,807
Finance costs B8 A 7 (435,302) (348,795)
Share of profits and losses of BTt e 2 R 2 F) &
associates E518 (6,758) 4,224
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT E A 8 1,687,894 1,483,286
Income tax FiSHt 11 (404,908) (396,922)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEREF 1,282,986 1,086,364
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip2ms=
Other comprehensive income not to RE AR B
be reclassified to profit or loss in “*EKTE &2 EhE
subsequent periods: HE
Exchange differences arising on MBI EBE 2
translation of functional currency B EEZIER Z5E
to presentation currency 507,007 956,424
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  BRFISBBANEEHM
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME e &
TAX 507,007 956,424
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEZHEKRALEE
FOR THE YEAR 1,789,993 2,042,788

The accompanying accounting poI|C|es and explanatory notes form an |ntegral part of the financial statements.

B SRR MM AR MK NARE D
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Notes 2021 2020
i —E—— —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO: EERERZES
Equity holders of the Company KARIERFTAEA 1,200,329 1,024,271
Non-controlling interests FEVERR e e 82,657 62,093
1,282,986 1,086,364
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EiLEE2mEREEEEED
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company RRalE=FEA 1,673,707 1,927,449
Non-controlling interests SRR 116,286 115,339
1,789,993 2,042,788
EARNINGS PER SHARE RAREZIZEAEML 13
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY BREF
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
- Basic and diluted —EAR N EE HK41.96cents  HK35.80cents
4196381 35.807 11l

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
Notes 2021 2020
FiEE —E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E S 14 1,043,532 152,855
Right-of-use assets TREEE 16(a) 104,372 16,285
Investment properties "LEME 15 12,468 12,082
1,160,372 181,222
Intangible assets EREE 17 2,280,920 1,880,919
Goodwill GRS 18 1,531,576 1,295,475
Interests in associates BN TR 19 231 8,143
Contract assets BHEE 21 19,750,324 17,348,620
Other receivables Hub el srIE 23 771,809 289,902
Other financial assets HEthortEE 24 36,122 443,198
Deferred tax assets RIS E 29 6,127 -
Total non-current assets EMENEEBRR 25,537,481 21,447,479
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Contract assets BREE 21 1,990,466 1,681,187
Other financial assets Hith o mEE 24 222,880 -
Inventories FE 22 70,189 93,641
Trade and other receivables JE AR S B A FE TR 23 2,866,254 1,965,697
Cash and cash equivalents BeNReEEY 25 2,281,986 1,719,630
Total current assets MENVEERRE 7,431,775 5,460,055
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Trade and other payables FEASTBR R B A R 5 518 26 3,215,673 2,540,938
Borrowings Rt 27 3,392,028 2,246,673
Tax payable JERTHRIR 78,274 69,029
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(b) 5,234 8,388
Total current liabilities mENAEREE 6,691,209 4,865,028
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEEHE 740,566 595,027
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 26,278,047 22,042,506

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position (cont’d)

mEMBARRER @

As at 31 December 2021 A —-F-—F+_-_F=+—H

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEIXARKERRAT

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—AH
Notes 2021 2020
FiEE —E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Borrowings BE 27 11,049,910 8,831,460
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIAAE 29 2,063,737 1,801,819
Lease liabilities HEBE 16(b) 1,168 3,368
Total non-current liabilities EME B EERE 13,114,815 10,636,647
NET ASSETS EEFHE 13,163,232 11,405,859
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity RATERFEAEGER
holders of the Company
Share capital %N 30 2,860,877 2,860,877
Reserves 1 31 9,009,206 7,673,416
11,870,083 10,534,293
Non-controlling interests SRR A 1,293,149 871,566
TOTAL EQUITY RESEE 13,163,232 11,405,859

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
Notes 2021 2020
iiEsd —E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E S 14 - 5
Interests in subsidiaries NP EENGIE T 20 11,505,621 10,880,417
Other financial assets HEhomEE 24 = 409,147
Total non-current assets ERENEEBTE 11,505,621 11,289,569
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables H At U R IE 23 8,483,239 6,502,232
Other financial assets HEhemEE 24 222 880 -
Cash and cash equivalents He MIReEEY 25 134,962 23,128
Total current assets M EEBTE 8,841,081 6,525,360
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables H A ROR 26 147,539 99,253
Borrowings BE 27 2,897,360 1,954,648
Total current liabilities MENB BB 3,044,899 2,053,901
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 5,796,182 4,471,459
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERARBERE
LIABILITIES 17,301,803 15,761,028
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Borrowings BE 27 6,047,143 5,129,809
NET ASSETS BEFHE 11,254,660 10,631,219
EQUITY e
Share capital %N 30 2,860,877 2,860,877
Reserves e 31 8,393,783 7,770,342
TOTAL EQUITY s 11,254,660 10,631,219

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

FEIXARKBEERA A
Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows
= N =
FMERERER
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HiZ — T - —F+ - A=+—HILNIHRFE
Notes 2021 2020
{1E —B-—F —ET_FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETEBRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRT BT & 1,687,894 1,483,286
Adjustments for: FEEE
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERRETE
equipment 8 50,297 16,633
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 8 12,616 10,129
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 5 8 59,126 72,536
Loss on disposals of property, plant BEWE  HE&&E
and equipment 2 B8 8 7,129 406
Loss on disposal of intangible assets BREEFEEEE 6 3,217 -
Loss on disposal of contract assets BEANEEIEE 6 33,045 -
Finance costs B2 A 7 435,302 348,795
Interest income FBHA 7 (21,999) (15,807)
Share of profits and losses of FribEs & A R &R KR IEE
associates 6,758 (4,224)
Gain from disposal of an associate & — R E A R R Es 2) -
Provision for impairment of trade FEWBR RUR B B F 58
receivables, net 8 101,981 25,492
Provision for impairment of other HAth e WO IB R B S
receivables 8 16,451 3,342
Provision for impairment of contract BREEREREE
assets 8 3,533 12,695
Fair value adjustment of contingent SAREBERKFIEZ
consideration receivable NREEFARE 6 - 7,814
Fair value changes of other financial HivemEEAREE
assets, net E)FRE 6 57,615 47,746
Dividend received from other financial B H Rl E EWREA
assets [ds) - (1,929)
Effect of foreign exchange rates R B BT
changes, net 26,837 (25,021)
Operating cash flows before EEESEHAINKER
working capital changes EHE 2,479,800 1,981,893
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (Em) 34,252 (50,201)
Increase in contract assets GHIEEN (2,324,253) (2,327,398)
Increase in trade and other receivables JFEE LT BR R e L A R LA SR TR S (784,941) (635,243)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other JE AT B R B ELAth R < R IE
payables #hn CRl) 125,605 (83,802)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

&M ET R M M R AR SRR AR D o



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
e

Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (conta)

HEBRERER @

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZE - —F+ - A=+—H NI BREZE

153 u

Notes 2021 2020
[{iEs —EB-—F —ECTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Cash used in operations KESEEMEBANES (469,537) (1,114,751)
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) ERFREARKEME ( [H
income tax paid B ) FrisHt (199,604) (207,594)
Net cash flows used in operating RETHMBANRESRE
activities REE (669,141) (1,322,345)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received EUFIE 21,999 15,807
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash WEE—EMB AR (FBRUEE
acquired Frigiie) (794,616) -
Purchases of items of property, plant and B E%%¥ - BE MR E
equipment (29,744) (18,478)
Proceeds from disposals of property, BEWMZE - BENM&E
plant and equipment FriS kIR 709 14
Payment for additions of intangible REBFEEENK
assets (482,210) (164,513)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from &Y — 1B & A BIFIA
an associate WA ($Eh0) 8,201 (733)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate ~ H& —REH & A A B TS FUE 1,222 -
Decrease in other financial assets HEherEERD 137,577 -
Dividend received from other financial BEMESmEERIHRE
assets - 1,929
Net cash flows used in investing RETHMBANRERE
activities HEE (1,136,862) (165,974)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMETHREESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of BITEEX SRS ( [EBE
asset-backed securities (“ABS”), TIERE| ) FISHEIE
net of related expenses paid HBRAEEE IR - 320,426
Proceeds from the issuance of BITHHRE ( [RHRE] )
medium-term notes (“MTN”), FT{S5IE - MNBRMAEE
net of related expenses paid s 1,199,392 1,120,135
Proceeds from the issurance of super BITHEHRES ( [BEH
and short-term commercial papers BEZR ]| ) PTSHUE - IR
(“SCP”), net of related expenses paid HEEARE 962,320 -

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

FREE RKIEB R AT
Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (cont’d)
— A ‘t E =
GEEERER @
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #Z T - —F+_-_A=+—HItWBHFE
Notes 2021 2020
{1E —E--F —TCTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
New bank loans FRIRITER 5,660,898 2,665,730
Repayment of corporate bonds BEARIESH (14,615) (337,290)
Repayments of ABS BREEEXHES (64,354) (41,599)
Repayments of SCP EEREHRES (962,320)
Repayments of bank loans BEIRITEX (3,706,012) (2,164,948)
Interest paid ERFLE (380,488) (334,334)
Principal elements of lease payments MENTHEE TS (10,128) (9,605)
Interest elements of lease payments HERNFHFEH D 7 (456) (797)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BRI ETORLD 15,750 7,037
Acquisition of a non-controlling interest B JE A 2 33 - (28,990)
Dividends paid to the shareholders of ENAARRE ( [BRE] )
the Company (the “Shareholders”) [esy (338,546) (214,002)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EATHIE A RIEER
shareholders of subsidiaries R B (43,956) -
Capital contributions from non-controling B /& 2 &l A FE#5 A%
shareholders of subsidiaries RHEE 34(a) 4,223 51,859
Net cash flows generated from MEITHMEENRESRE
financing activities HEE 2,321,708 1,033,622
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HeRBEESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #m O8d) FE 515,705 (454,697)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FOzRERIALEEY
beginning of the year 1,702,855 2,052,250
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on RekReEEYREE
cash and cash equivalents, net W R A E R 62,441 105,302
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SXZRERRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 2,281,001 1,702,855
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF BHeRBESEEBYERDM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RE BN KRR S
the consolidated statement of financial NMIRSEEY
position 25 2,281,986 1,719,530
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEERERITER 25 (985) (16,675)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REREXRATHIRE
in the consolidated statement of cash &fﬁéwf}f )
flows 2,281,001 1,702,855

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda and is dual primary listed on the Mainboard of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and the
Mainboard of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The registered address of the Company is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is located at 26th Floor, Block A, Oriental
Xintiandi Plaza, No. 1003 Shennan Avenue, Futian District,
Shenzhen, PRC 518000.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company’s subsidiaries are primarily involved in the water
environment management business in the PRC.

The immediate holding company of the Company is China
Everbright Water Holdings Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). In the opinion
of the directors, the ultimate holding entity of the Company
is China Investment Corporation, an entity established in the
PRC.

As at the date of this report, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, the particulars
of which are set out below:

NREHR

ARNBAERBRAFMRINERA
AWK INERESFRZAEBRAAE
RMBEBBERSMBR AR ERE
EXTE LT o ARAFNEMMU A
ClarendonHouse ' 2 Church Street -
HamiltonHM11 » Bermuda B EF &%
=B ATBRRYTRERRRREAE
10035R R AT RMESAKE26/E (T
4% : 518000) -

ARAINEREBSREER - K27
ZHBAREEREFBEIRAKERRIAR
S5

/NI EONER 22l UNCIVE L tl= 7D P v
ERERAE (—FNEBERARES
( [RBEERHESR| ) EMKZNA
RAR]) - EFRA  NABIMRKIE
BEERTEREERETAR AR
AR BRI 2 B RS -

RAHREBH - ARFRATHEBRA
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1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (cont’d)

Notes:

)

All significant subsidiaries are audited by member firm of Ernst &
Young Global in China for group consolidation purpose. For this
purpose, a subsidiary or an associated company is considered
significant, as defined under the Listing Manual of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, if its net tangible assets
represent 20% or more of the Group’s consolidated net tangible
assets, or if its pre-tax profits account for 20% or more of the
Group’s consolidated pre-tax profits. For the avoidance of doubt,
the Group did not have any associated company which was
considered significant for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company is committed to contributing 79.6474% of EB Water
Nanning’s registered capital. The remaining 20.3526% registered
capital is contributed by three PRC joint venture partners. Except
for one of the PRC joint venture partners, who is committed to
contributing 0.0097% of registered capital and shall not be entitled
to the net profit of EB Water Nanning, the Company and other
two PRC joint venture partners share the net profit of EB Water
Nanning on the basis of their respective proportions of registered
capital contribution.

EW (Qingdao) Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the foreign joint venture partner of EB Water
Qingdao, is committed to contributing 60% of EB Water Qingdao’s
registered capital. The remaining 40% registered capital is
contributed by a PRC joint venture partner. EW (Qingdao) Holdings
is fully entitled to the net profit of EB Water Qingdao for the first 14
years of the joint venture period. From the 15th year of the joint
venture period onwards, the net profit of EB Water Qingdao is to
be shared by EW (Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC joint venture
partner on a 98:2 basis.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the local government authorities in the PRC (the
“Grantors”). Pursuant to the service concession arrangements,
the Group was granted rights to construct, operate and maintain
waste water treatment related projects in the PRC for a period
of 20 to 32 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain
and restore the waste water treatment related projects in good
condition. The service fees are based on the extent of services
rendered and are subject to approvals from the relevant local
government authorities. Upon expiry of the concession periods,
the waste water treatment related projects and facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the Grantors and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of the
terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the waste water treatment related projects are
recognised as “Intangible assets” in the statements of financial
position.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (cont’d)
Notes: (cont’d)

5) These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the Grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct
and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste water treatment
related projects in the PRC for a period of 10 to 32 years. The
Group has the obligation to maintain the waste water treatment
related projects in good condition. The Grantors guarantee the
Group will receive minimum annual payments in connection
with the arrangements. Upon expiry of the concession periods,
the waste water treatment related projects and facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the Grantors to terminate the
agreements include the failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste water treatment related projects and in the
event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements. The
standard rights of the Group to terminate the agreements include
failure to receive payments for waste water treatment service from
the Grantors and in the event of a material breach of the terms of
the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing or upgrading the waste water treatment related
projects is recognised as “Contract assets” in the statements of
financial position.

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated on consolidation.

1.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise all standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”).
All IFRSs effective for the accounting period commencing
from 1 January 2021, together with the relevant transitional
provisions, have been consistently applied by the Group in
the preparation of the financial statements throughout the
financial periods.

The principal effects of adopting these revised IFRS are as
follows:

(a) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
address the financial reporting effects when an
interbank offered rate (“IBOR”) is replaced with an
alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (“RFR”). The
amendments include the following practical expedients:

° A practical expedient to require contractual
changes, or changes to cash flows that are
directly required by the reform, to be treated as
changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to
a movement in a market rate of interest

° Permit changes required by IBOR reform to
be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued

° Provide temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR instrument is designated as a
hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Group intends to use the practical expedients in future
periods if they become applicable
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2.2

2.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION (cont’d)

22 HREEE (8)

()  Amendments to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent (b) BIRMBHRELEIE16521E
Concessions R AT T Z A % (B
On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued COVID-19-Related RZEZZEFRAZ=ZTN
Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases. A BEEeEEEg8
The amendments provide relief to lessees from #h %ﬁ Al JII MESHBAMES
applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification tE = RB TS R % B
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct 165)‘;@152@5 ° ZEEE]
consequence of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) /Dé A A R E R SRR
pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may 5 ([HEERKES] ) BB
elect not to assess whether a COVID-19 related rent ERERHEHeEERRA l s
concession from a lessor is a lease modification. B mEERF 165 HES
A lessee that makes this election accounts for any 83l e T’EZ%E[‘?%E’U%EE% :
change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19 A AT E RS AR
related rent concession the same way it would %ﬁ’_ﬂﬁﬂiifatﬁ EHESESR
account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change TEHEEETE - KHANERE

were not a lease modification.

Eﬁéﬁi%ﬁﬂﬂﬂkfatﬁfﬁﬁﬁtﬂﬁ
BETELEE N R Ef =
L& &t 5 12 77 0% IR 1 B IR
B % & ERIE 165 3 & B
(MERMEHAUFHEZLET)
RAMEETAMER °

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 23 GCEHEMEEAERNBERMBHRESER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised REE AR EREFEAUTER
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in this PR{B 18 R E R R] RS 7T BUBR B 75

financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
IF%\HM‘Q#&%QEEH 5105 & EIR = R 4R
285 2 &5

Amendments to IFRS 4
BB B T i o5 22 R B 455 2 18 5T

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

R R ERIE 15 B E] MBI B WS
/EEIJEt%uREH%ZsL%Zt%‘ET

Amendments to IAS 8
R AERIERSE 2 18]

Amendments to IAS 12
@R AERIEE 125K 218 5]

R o

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture® )

REFHABE NGl E &% BEHESTE

Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9¢

B B34 JE B R B 75 2R 25 2 R B 9958

Disclosure of Accoum‘/ng Policies®

BT R R EE

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

BT 1AATHIE.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transactior?’

B 55 LY AR B (E R R
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 23 GCEGEEREXVEBRTEREER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (cont’d) (&)

IFRS 17
B B 205 e S5 2R R SR 7R

Amendments to IFRS 17

BIFR B R SRS R B TR ZAEFT

Amendment to IFRS 17

RIS ERIENTIRZER]

Amendments to IAS 1
Rt ERE 15 2 EF]

Amendments to IFRS 3

RIS S ERIE 3R ZEET

Amendments to IAS 16
R AERIE165% 28R

Amendments to IAS 37
Rt EREITIIEE]

Various IFRS standards
% IR B RR B 7 s 22 R

Amendment to IFRS 16

BIFR B 15 s R R £ 1657 2 1EFT

Insurance Contracts®
REA AP

Insurance Contracts®
REEE AP

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 —
Comparative Information®

B KB BN BY T # 27 2E R 1 7595 K
EUBR AT 7% 3 £ 2RI 95 — AT HE BB

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®
HEESIE BB B E IR B B &

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

BERNEZR 5/ 22

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use?
YE -~ BIE KRR - (ERCE % FI 8T8 55

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfiling a Contract

BRIt — BITEKIBIKA?

2018-2020 Annual Improvements to IFRS standards?

ZE N F R F _FFER R R &SR F R

COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 20217
RIFZ—FNNA=+HEZFETR mEIEEEE EE

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. 1 RZZE-——FWWA—BzEBRARZTE
S BRI AR -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 2. N-E-—F—-F—Hk BRI ZE
[EEARI AR o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 3 R-E-_=F—F Bz F
SRR AR -

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 4 RS ESASIAE N A AR - (B AR o

adoption.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(©) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Investment in associates (cont’d)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of an associate is included
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s investment in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of
the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with the Grantors.

Under these service concession arrangements:

° the Grantors control or regulate the services the Group
must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must
provide them, and at what price; and

° the Grantors control, through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise, any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term
of the arrangement, or the infrastructure is used for
its entire useful life under the arrangements, or both
the Group’s practical ability to sell or pledge the
infrastructure is restricted and continuing right of use
of the infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout
the period of the arrangements.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Service concession arrangements (cont’d)

The Group’s infrastructure includes leasehold land, buildings,
plant and machinery that are acquired from the Grantors
and/or are derecognised by the Group when the directors of
the Company consider that the significant risks and rewards
of these assets have been passed to the Grantors.

Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the
construction services rendered and/or the consideration
paid and payable by the Group for the right to manage
and operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash if the grantor
contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a) specified or
determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between
amounts received from users of the public service and
specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment is
contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure
meets specified requirements. The financial asset (receivable
under service concession arrangement) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “Financial assets and
liabilities” below.

An intangible asset (concession right) is recognised to the
extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the
public service. The intangible asset (operating concession)
is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the operation phase of the concession
periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a
financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then each
component of the consideration is accounted for separately
and is recognised initially at the fair value of the consideration.
Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue relating to construction services is accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue recognition” below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its contingent consideration receivable
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Fair value measurement (cont’d)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

M

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.5% to 4%
Plant and machinery 2.5% to 20%
Leasehold improvements, furniture

and fixtures 20% to 25%

Motor vehicles and office equipment 12.5% 1o 25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (cont’d)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Business combinations and goodwvill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Business combinations and goodwill (cont’d)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Investment property

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

The following intangible assets are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are
as follows:

Concession rights
Patents and trademarks

20 to 32 years
10 to 20 years

Computer software 5 years
Backlog contracts 3 years
Customer relationships 5 years
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (cont’d)

The useful life of the patents and trademarks of the Group
is determined based on the shorter of their statutory validity
periods and the expected benefit periods.

The useful life of the customer relationships of the Group is
determined based on the expected benefit periods with
reference to the historical customer attrition rate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the intangible assets is
derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant intangible asset.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new water
environment technologies is capitalised and deferred only
when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or
sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project
and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Water environment technologies development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives
of the assets, as follows:

Land and buildings
Equipment and others

2 1o 40 years
2 to 3 years

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Leases (cont’d)

Group as a lessee (cont’d)

(i)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Leases (cont’d)
Group as a lessee (cont’d)
(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

M

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OClI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest’ on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

24

EXSHERRHRE (F])

TETH

TRTARKEEL EEENEREE
Mr—EEENERAEIER TAN
IRER -

M

TRBE
PIRG TR G B

TREEEVRERRDE - &8
BIZEHRR - AABEFAR
iz & Was kA R BER AR

HE -

T BYE B VA FERR I ) 0 R ER
RNERMEEN SRR REFE
MEBERELEENFEHKE
A - B ABEERREMAKE D
SAAREREC KA TRERIES
ERRWGRIESN - REBIARR
EBEMGITESHEE WRE
BMEEMNA AR BETF AR -
AN ERZKRAGTE - TEEE
ABERDHAEE D RAER
%EZ%W%%%E&Q%E%
alrE °

SLIRE R AN IR A A BERTA
Hipira Wam D B8 2mE
EMEs  HEAZRSRENH
mRgEAREEREM N ZAE
KFIB

AEBETESMEENIHEN
EEAEENAEEESRHEE
NEARER - AEEIRE T
AEReRENE RRERAUL
B ERKEREREEND
T HEMERMAL °

TREENBEHRHENRZHH
R AAEBAHBERHE
ZEBEMBE > WEREEMR
N®EEMIZ LR IIE RIS
EHREEEAN (BRXS) o



192 .

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —ZT - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWIHKFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

M

Financial assets (cont’d)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows.

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

M

Financial assets (cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(cont’d)

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through OCI. Dividends on equity investments
are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet
the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

M

Financial assets (cont’d)
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(i)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses, and interest-bearing
borrowings.

Subsequent measurerment

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in
the profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for ECLs
for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL
using a forward-looking ECL approach.

The ECL allowance is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s
original effective interest rate (“EIR”).

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group has
applied the standard’s simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Other receivables are assessed for impairment based on
12-month expected credit losses: 12-month ECLs are the
portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the asset is less than
12 months). However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise raw materials and consumables
used in the repairs and maintenance of the waste water
treatment plants, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal. When inventories are consumed, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances,
short-term deposits and short-term balances in financial
institutions with maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
management of its short-term commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
restricted bank balances are excluded whilst bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are included in cash and
cash equivalents.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Income tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Income tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a product or service to a
customer.

The Group has satisfied a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is
met:

(a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (cont’d)

(b) The Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced

(c) The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternate use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group
recognises revenue at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by reference to the surveyors’ assessment of work
performed and the costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract.

When the Group provides more than one service in a
service concession arrangement, the transaction price will
be allocated to each performance obligation by reference to
their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated
based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market
assessment approach, depending on the availability of
observable information.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Construction service revenue

The Group’s performance in respect of construction services
creates or enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, thus
the Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue from construction service over time, by reference
to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the
basis of the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and
the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a service
concession agreement is estimated on a cost-plus basis
with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross margin at
the date of the agreement applicable to similar construction
services rendered.

Operation revenue

The Group recognises revenue from environmental water
project operation services when the related services are
rendered. The operation revenue from reusable water supply
service is recognised at a point in time when the Group has
delivered water to the customer; the customer has accepted
the water; the Group has the present right to payment and
the collection of the consideration is probable. The other
operation revenue from service concession arrangements
is recognised over the period of time that the services are
rendered and the benefits are received and consumed
simultaneously by the customers.

Finance and interest income

Finance and interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the EIR method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or
provide services to the customer. The combination of those
rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset
or a net liability depending on the relationship between the
remaining rights and the performance obligations. The
contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if the
measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure of the
remaining performance obligation. Conversely, the contract is
a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure
of the remaining performance obligations exceeds the
measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer within contract assets if the Group
expects to recover those costs.

Other employee benefits - pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is RMB. This
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"), which is the Company’s presentation currency. The
Company has used Hong Kong dollars as its presentation
currency to be consistent with that of China Everbright
Water Holdings Limited, the immediate holding company
of the Company. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Foreign currencies (cont’d)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge
of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company, certain overseas
subsidiaries and an associate are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of comprehensive
income are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Foreign currencies (cont’d)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the Company, certain overseas subsidiaries
and an associate are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of these entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”),
Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”) and Build-Own-Operate
(“BOQ”) arrangements in respect of its environmental water
projects.

The Group has concluded that all the BOT and TOT
arrangements and certain BOO arrangements are service
concession arrangements under IFRIC 12 Service Concession
Arrangements, because the local government controls and
regulates the services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In respect
of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry of concession
right agreements, the infrastructure has to be transferred
to the local government at nil consideration. Infrastructure
for BOO arrangements is used in the service concession
arrangements for its entire or substantially entire useful life.

24

EXSHERHRE (F])

N (#8)

REABERBEMNE  ARF - BT
SHNHEA ARG EATNNAS RER
Ao hE R BNERRE AT £
SEEAENEHE RS REAIE
SEEIETERRE BB T -

EXERTHE R A5

m I BA TS R Iy - B IR B /AR HIET -
et lfRak - MAREHIE - At kiR
SHEMEHMBEA X  BERAE
TEALEBEHRELIRBERE -
BRAZ SRR S b FH T HEE F = Al gk
SEYBEARRTELH I ENEEN
BENREEEEHEAFE

\ /l EZE

R AR E NS Rt RS - B
1B E L R 3T A5 - TR
THH R A D RS BRREAY
e HIH

IREFFEFAEE 2 HF

AREBREKIRRAERI L ER—E
e—% ([BOT) ) HEHEELE—
B2 (ITOT] ) RER—HEAE—EZ
( [BOOJ ) ZHk -

REBDHTEMABOTMTOTLHEAK
HFTBOORBHBERM ISR E R
RERF12RBEFFEELH - Th
P A= b ST A4 B 122 1) E B ' R S B A
PR R IRTETE IR B FTZATR R 2 IR
1% o BIBOTRTOTLHM T » AR
S E - AEERRGARER
REMWBITHEEMAE - BOOZ HE i
5 BRARBEIFEERMS ko &
R E e H B A S RS E R AR (E A F
HIMEA o



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 207
e 0

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Contract assets and/or intangible assets under IFRIC 12
Service Concession Arrangements

The Group recognises the consideration received or
receivable in exchange for the construction services as a
contract asset and/or an intangible asset under a service
concession arrangement. However, if the Group is paid for
the construction services partly by a contract asset and partly
by an intangible asset, it is necessary to account separately
for each component of the operator’s consideration. The
consideration received or receivable for both components
shall be recognised initially at the fair value.

The segregation of the consideration for a service concession
arrangement between the contract asset component and
the intangible asset component, if any, requires the Group
to make an estimate of a number of factors, which include,
inter alia, fair value of the construction services, expected
future water treatment volume of the relevant water treatment
plant over its service concession period, future guaranteed
receipts and unguaranteed receipts, and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. These estimates, including revenue
recognition under the contract asset and intangible asset
components are determined by the Group’s management
based on their experience and assessment on current
and future market conditions. The carrying amounts of the
intangible assets (“concession rights”) and contract assets
at the end of reporting period are disclosed in notes 17 and
21, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than interests in
subsidiaries and gooawill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting date.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) are disclosed in notes
14 and 17.

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

The impairment loss in respect of contract assets, trade and
other receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of contract assets, trade
and other receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors of the
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
abilities to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at
amortised cost are disclosed in notes 21, 23, and 25.

Impairment of interests in subsidiaries

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the interests in subsidiaries are
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Company considers factors such as the
industry performance, technology changes, operational and
financing cash flows. Management will also consider the
financial condition and business prospects of the interest.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on the
forecasted performance of the subsidiary. The carrying
amounts of the Company’s interests in subsidiaries at the
reporting date are disclosed in note 20.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Revenue recognition for construction work

The Group recognises contract revenue over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation at the reporting date. The
progress is measured based on the Group’s effort or inputs
to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference
to the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and the
costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each performance
obligation in the contract. Significant assumptions are
required to estimate the recoverable variation works that
will affect the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation. The Group reviews and revises
the estimates in each construction contract as the contract
progresses.

Impairment losses for goodwill

As explained in the accounting policy set out in note 2.4 for
“Business combinations and goodwill”, goodwill is allocated
to a cash-generating unit or to a group of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination for the purpose of impairment assessment,
which requires significant judgement. The Group determined
that the group of cash-generating units to which goodwill
was allocated reflected the lowest level at which goodwill was
monitored for internal reporting and was not larger than an
operating segment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This involves an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at the reporting date is
disclosed in note 18.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation. Where the final
tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income and other
taxes and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified based on the internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the Company’s management (“the
Management”) and the Board for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise
mainly corporate assets and expense, interest-bearing
borrowings and related expenses and income and deferred
taxes. The Group operates in a single business segment
which is the water environment management business.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable operating segment.

Business segment

The Group had only one operating segment for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, namely the water
environment management business, the details of which are
set out below:

° Water environment management - Engagement in
municipal waste water treatment, industrial waste
water treatment, water supply, reusable water, sludge
treatment and disposal, sponge city construction, river-
basin ecological restoration, waste water source heat
pump, leachate treatment, R&D of water environment
technologies and engineering construction.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

Geographical information

(@)

Revenue from external customers

gesHER (&)
1o 35 R

211

(@ REINREFZWA

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+T—HLFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FET

Mainland China R R A 6,907,083 5,661,365
Germany = 5,288 1,927
6,912,371 5,663,292

The revenue information of continuing operations
above is based on the locations at which the services

were provided.

Non-current assets

BiFBEg e B AERTER
PRAG IR ELE )

b) FRBEE

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F T THF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FAETT
Mainland China FR R A, 25,497,214 20,997,841
Hong Kong B 1,646 5,647
Singapore s 2,237 434
Germany = 262 359
25,501,359 21,004,281

The non-current assets information of continuing
operations above is based on the locations of the
assets and excludes other financial assets.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) 4. ReEWER (B

FBREF

Major customers

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+T—HLFE

2021 2020
— B -

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FET

Customer 1** BE— 811,907 588,419

Customer 2** BE 709,115 1,136,798

Customer 3* Bp= N/A* 727,410

The corresponding revenue from this customer is not disclosed

as such revenue alone did not account for 10% or more of the

Group’s revenue.

ke

REVENUE

The customers are local government authorities.

ke

L'ON

BHRZEP WA BT REAREE AL
10% A E > BEKREELZEFPEH
WA e

B REWBTHE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Construction service revenue from ARFGAFET A L BER R E IR TS
service concession arrangements WA 3,098,448 2,794,395
Finance income from service BRAGHFET 4 L BER BT TS UA
concession arrangements 1,068,040 905,676
Operation income from service RIS AT LR HERE S A
concession arrangements 2,522,688 1,825,176
Construction contract revenue and & & #9UA N BT AR TS UL A
technical service income 223,195 138,045
6,912,371 5,663,292
Timing of revenue recognition W A i 5 B
At a point in time R — R Bh 127,607 103,376
Over time P —ER BRI A 5,716,724 4,654,240
5,844,331 4,757,616
Finance income from service ARISFFRT A & REL PER B TS U
concession arrangements 1,068,040 905,676
6,912,371 5,663,292
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REVENUE (contd)

The aggregated amount of construction service revenue,
finance income and operation income derived from the
local government authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$6,608,774,000 and HK$5,459,209,000 for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively. Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from these customers are
set out in note 40.

Included in the revenue recognised in each of the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, HK$8,205,000 and
HK$23,602,000, respectively, were related to performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as
at 31 December are as follows:

WA (&)

HE T - K- T-TF+_F=
+—HILFER  KETBEE BT
A7 BERGKA - MERAKRES
I A 42585 5l 56,608,774,00078 7T &
5,459,209,000/8 7T > HiE LR F A3
BrEERBEPF R0 -

BE_Z-—FE-_ZE-ZF+_A=
+—HIEFE  RBEAHRERNED
EEHERNWASEE S F 48,205,000
BTt M%23,602,00058 7T °

Rt A=+—8 oBEEHRTEY
B (KBTI RET) HRZE
B

2021 2020
—B--F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR TAT

Unsatisfied performance obligations

related to service concession RBHIEE
arrangements:
Expected to be recognised within TRERRG IS — F N HERR
one year
Expected to be recognised after TEHR BN —F 1R FER
one year
Total transaction price allocated to PDEERTKEAE TS
the unsatisfied performance e

obligations

BLRRAS S AT AS & LB AERE Y R 52

6,030,603 7,190,232

104,599,383 48,983,828

110,629,986 56,174,060
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6.

B - HF+ A=+ HINFKRFE

OTHER INCOME AND (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 6.

HttW AR (BHB) MzmFHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Government grants* Bt e 50,011 44,947
Value-added tax (“VAT”) refunds** HER ( [BEH] ) B 9,324 44,762
Fair value gain/(loss), net: AREEKE (BE) F8
Contingent consideration receivable FARERKFIA - (7,814)
Other financial assets — unlisted Hiv & mEE —ELTIRE (58,583) (48,629)
investments
Other financial assets — unlisted Hith & ph & E — F LR 968 883
equity investment ®E
Dividend received from other financial B Hth & gt & 2= WELA B = 1,929
assets
Gain from disposal of an associate BE—fEEE QR 2 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets ~ REEF EE 2 EIB (3,217) -
Loss on disposal of contract assets BREAHNEEEE (33,045) -
Sundry income LT PN 12,048 16,990
(22,492) 53,068

* Government grants of HK$50,011,000 and HK$44,947,000 were
granted during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, to subsidise certain waste water treatment plants of
the Group in the PRC. The receipts of such grants is not subject
to any unfulfiled conditions or any other contingencies.There is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive such grants in

the future.

= VAT refunds of HK$9,324,000 and HK$44,762,000 were received/
receivable during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, in relation to the Group’s certain environmental
water projects in operation in the PRC. The receipts of such tax
refunds is not subject to any unfulfiled conditions or any other
contingencies.There is no assurance that the Group will continue
to receive such tax refunds in the future.

ok

HE -k -_FT-_FF+=-A
Zt+—ALFER AEEDHIES
50,011,000/ 7T 544,947,000/ T &Y
BT B & A AN EEMPRABEONE T
SRR o WERE BB & N2
M ARERZ GG IR sk A BB
2o R B A E SR A 14 4 48 W ER
BEEBE -

HEZT-_—FR-_T=_TF+=A=
+—RILEFER AEERFEEER
EFRRFEIEE WE W EBUEER R
B £9,324,0005 7T 244,762,000
L o WWENE RBE R B N S AT ) 18 R R 2
IEHREMEMRAETETE o FER
B EERN BREEREERIRE
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7. NET FINANCE COSTS

7.

215 .

B E RS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+T—HLFE

Finance income
Interest income on:
Bank deposits

Amounts due from an associate

Finance costs
Interest expense on:
Bank and other loans

Corporate bonds, ABS,

MTN and SCP
Lease liabilities

Net finance costs

B FEURA
RSV ONE
RITF
B — SR 2 A B KIR

B IS &

BRI :
RITREMEE
RAEES  BEXFES

#%?ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%

FI75 8 RS

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
21,289 15,141
710 666
21,999 15,807
(226,603) (212,682)
(208,243) (135,316)
(456) (797)
(435,302) (348,795)
)

(413,303) (332,988
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. BB AT ZF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REEZBRBAIANE MR (FFA)
(crediting):
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-BA=+—-HLHFE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEE FET FAT
Depreciation* E
- property, plant and equipment -WE - BB MRS 14 50,297 16,633
- right-of-use assets -{EREEE 16(a) 12,616 10,129
Amortisation BH
- intangible assets* - B EE 17 59,126 72,536
Loss on disposals of property, plant BEWE - BERE&E
and equipment 2 518 7,129 406
Loss on disposal of intangible assets ~ RE & EE 2 B 6 3,217 -
Loss on disposal of contract assets BREAHNEEZEE 6 33,045 -
Cost of construction services from RERGEFTEERER
service concession arrangements** e BIE RS A AN 2,331,530 2,113,912
R&D costs 7 K BB A AR 50,097 47,982
Rental expenses from short-term REEE e H
leases 2,835 3,593
Provision for impairment of trade FEUWER FUR B 558
receivables, net 23 101,981 25,492
Provision for impairment of other HAtb W OB R E S
receivables 23 16,451 3,342
Provision for impairment of contract BHEERERE
assets 21 3,533 12,695
Foreign exchange differences, net P& X ZRRF R 3,691 (7,072)
Employee benefit expense EERAAZ (B
(including directors’ remuneration EEME(FHEE9)) *:
(note 9))*:
Wages, salaries, allowances and TE& - Fe 28
benefits in kind REMHE= 394,917 269,711
Retirement scheme contributions RRET IR 124,512 55,229
519,429 324,940
Fees paid to auditor of the Company: S FA A BIEHAD
WER :
Audit fees =i EH 720 680
Non-audit fees EEE
- Others - B - 270
Fees paid to affiliates of auditor of the Szt FANA & EHED
Company: BEMRENER -
Audit fees HirEH 2,660 2,320
Non-audit fees EETE
- Others - Hip 1,620 2,393
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (cont’d) 8. BREAERN (F)
* Amortisation of intangible assets, depreciation and employee * BT - —FF-_FT-_ZTF+_HA
benefit expense in total of HK$309,036,000 and HK$232,419,000 =+ —HILEFER BREE#E -
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively, MErREERIRAIZIRBS A A
are included in “Direct costs and operating expenses” in the 309,036,000 7T %232,419,000/%
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. T BEBETAGZAEEZERERAN [H

BRARKERS] -

* Included in “Direct costs and operating expenses” in the * Wt A AR RE [EERA R
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. LT o

As at the end of each financial year, the Group had no RE—BRFER  AEELEHS
forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions to WA LR D B R REE R RIKET
the retirement schemes in future years. BIHER -

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEME
The remuneration of the Company’s directors is set out RARESHEFHIIAOT -
below:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ECTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Fees we 1,968 1,913

Other emoluments: HAf & -

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYHE

in kind 3,995 3,115

Discretionary bonuses BETEAL 4,853 3,726

Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 603 427

9,451 7,268

11,419 9,181
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (cont’d) 9. EEME (F)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind  Discretionary scheme
Fees #&  EHK bonuses  contributions Total
we ENFIE BETEAL  BIRGHEMER k)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
THR THER THER TAT THER
Year ended 31 December ~ BEZZT-—fF
2021 +=-A=+—-H
HFE
Non-executive director: FEHITES
Wang Tianyi ITRERE - - - - -
Executive directors: HITES:
Hu Yanguo* HARER 5 A - 638 313 12 1,013
An Xuesong®* REMTE - 1,420 1,598 290 3,308
Tao Junjie BB E - 434 588 6 1,028
Luo Junling BmEELE - 1,205 2,354 295 3,854
- 3,747 4,853 603 9,203
Independent BERTES
non-executive directors:
Zhai Haitao BEsRE 463 69 - -~ 532
Lim Yu Neng Paul i 579 69 - - 648
Cheng Fong Yee HEELL 463 58 - - 521
Hao Gang W2+ 463 52 - -~ 515
1,968 248 - - 2,216
1,968 3,995 4,853 603 11,419
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9.

219 .

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (cont’d) 9. EEME (8)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind  Discretionary scheme
Fees %& 2R bonuses  contributions Total
we ENFIE BETEAL  BIRGHEMER k)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
THET THET THER TAT THER
Year ended 31 December ~ BE-ZT-THF
2020 +=-A=+—-H
HFE
Non-executive director: FHTEE
Wang Tianyi FREXE - - - - -
Executive directors: HITES -
An Xuesong’ TEMLE - 1,876 1,548 242 3,666
Luo Junling BikERE - 1,071 2,178 185 3,434
- 2,947 3,726 427 7,100
Independent BUFRTES
non-executive directors:
Zhai Haitao BERLE 450 45 - - 495
Lim Yu Neng Paul MR 563 45 - - 608
Cheng Fong Yee HEFER L 450 39 - - 489
Hao Gang il e 450 39 - - 489
1,913 168 - - 2,081
1,913 3,115 3,726 427 9,181
* Mr. Hu Yanguo was appointed on 5 October 2021. Starting from * HEEEEE S —F+ARARE
2021, his discretionary bonuses have been paid in installments. ig‘ \HQHEEZ*EE BB IS TEAL

Mr. An Xuesong was also the chief executive officer of the
Company and resigned on 5 October 2021. Starting from 2021,
his discretionary bonuses have been paid in installments.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the financial year.

R B EIRRAR R A B E R
R —F+ARHBE-B-T - —
FRe - ABBREAE DA -

APRFEWEE BN FK

R T B

ZRRBRETAFMAZHE -
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10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 included two directors,
whose respective remuneration is included in note 9
above. Details of the remuneration for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 of the remaining three highest
paid employees who are neither directors nor chief executives
of the Company are as follows:

10.

TEREHHES

B2 - R -_ZE-_ZF+_A1
—t+t—HIEFERN AEZEoHNE
EREMAES HEaMest AL
X9 - BET-A=+T—HIEH
—TE-—EFEER-ZE-_ZEFEEHT
—EZBREARARNBES IR ITEHA
BrzEarMEEMNEIFBOT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EBLREWAZE
in kind 3,188 2,910
Discretionary bonuses EYIEIEAL 3,928 3,603
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET B 494 389
7,610 6,902

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FAEATBEANNIFESE NIRRT
BABNER=HMEEABLT

Number of employees
EEAZ
Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T—-HLEE

2021 2020

e e I

Nil to HK$1,000,000 021,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T 21,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/8 7T 22,000,000/ 75 - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 22,500,000/ 7T 3 3
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10.

11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (cont’d)

During the financial year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company or any of the highest
paid employees who are not directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

INCOME TAX

No provision for Singapore or Hong Kong income tax was
made as the Group did not earn any income subject to
Singapore or Hong Kong income tax during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory rate of
25% based on the assessable profits in accordance with the
tax rules and regulations in the PRC. During the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, certain PRC subsidiaries
of the Group were subject to a preferential tax rate of 15%
pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations. During
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain PRC
subsidiaries of the Group were subject to tax at half of the
foregoing statutory rate or fully exempted from income tax
pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations.

10.

11

LEEEHHES (&)

RAMREE - AEEYEANAEE
FYARAHAIRHHMIEEFREE S
MEABE - FRIMAKRINAREE
2 B e SR S B B AR ME

Frig®t

HRAEERBEE T - —FRK
—ECRFE+ A=+ —HIFE
P AT I B A B I R ER (T ) FE
R B i B i 1 e e
BNISTEE -

RIEFEBRBARIER - PEEH
2 BLIRIR FE SR B B M) LUK TE B E 25%
AE-BE_T_—FR_T_TF
TZRA=T—HLEFERN  REHEH
FREIMBAR KA AEEETH
BIMEARZE15%HNEEBEK -
BEZT-_FR-FT_TF+_A
=+ BLEFEEAR - REGAREE
BEER  AKEETHEMEAQR
AR AR E TR 2 + BB IA X
ERSHHEZEHR -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current - PRC: BNEf— AR :

Charge for the year REERHE 220,030 205,721

(Overprovision)/underprovision BAFE (BEBRAF) /
in prior years BETR (16,766) 1,568
Deferred (note 29) EE (F15E29) 201,644 189,633
Total tax expense for the year REEHIBRAX 4B 404,908 396,922
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11.

B RKBERAE

INCOME TAX (cont’d) 1" Es (8)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before REARARR REKREBDHIE A RIFT
tax at the statutory rate for the country in which the Company El%zximﬁfﬁ F?%RHIJ A2 B
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax B HEEERBERAE 2 MIAT H 2
expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: HERWT -
Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-A=t+—HLHEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Profit before tax BR A% A &2 A 1,687,894 1,483,286
Tax calculated at tax rate of 25% R25% T KT E
(FY2020: 25%) MIE (ZF=FF : 25%) 421,974 370,822
Tax concession HHIREE (215,059) (163,485)
Adjustments in respect of current BB AAME 2 BN IRV
tax of previous periods oz AR (16,766) 1,568
Profits and losses attributable to AN e
associates 1,689 (1,056)
Income not subject to tax EARTIA (9,591) (15,844)
Expenses not deductible for tax EELFa 128,743 141,945
Tax losses not recognised RERBIEEGE 11,188 18,823
Tax losses utilised from previous A BT FIEEE
periods (6,436) (9,429)
Effect of withholding tax on the REBFRHMEAR
distributable profits of the Group’s 1ﬁ“/ﬁe7%a‘“lJz%ﬁ¢um
PRC subsidiaries LR 89,166 53,578
Tax expense at the Group’s effective EARSEERREGTE
rate ZHIAX 404,908 396,922
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12. DIVIDENDS

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F ZEFF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&T THT
Dividends for the financial year: KRBT EFE RS
Interim — HK$0.0575 (equivalent IR EBAR0.05758 T
to SGD0.0101) and HK$0.0374 (Z{H0.0101% b1 T) 0
(equivalent to SGD0.0067) per 0.03747% 7T (%{E0.0067%7 h¥ T)
ordinary share 164,651 106,964
Proposed final — HK$0.0683 %E/)EKHH Bz EmA%0.0683
(equivalent to SGD0.0119) and Bt (5E0.0119%7 % T) AN
HK$0.0607 (equivalent to 0.06077% 7t (Z{E0.0104%7 h0#7T)
SGD0.0104) per ordinary share 195,448 173,266
360,099 280,230
Final dividend for the previous AEBFE SN E—EFBEE
financial year which was paid KHHH S—E & E®A%0.0607
during the financial year — BT (F1E0. 0104%3%‘2%) mE
HK$0.0607 (equivalent to f% & 3E@p0.037478 7T (Z{H0.0067
SGD0.0104) and HK$0.0374 o)
(equivalent to SGD0.0067) per
ordinary share 173,266 106,645

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021 is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend
proposed after the end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

—T- —PHFERRZED IR Z KK
BAFGARBBRRNEERRBFAE
EHUERTTAMEE o RIS BRI EZ
ggziﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ@%
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on ERERBNIIEARNAIERFTE AR
the Group’s profit for the year attributable to equity holders MAREERAFEERFBRUAARF]FA
of the Company divided by the weighted average number of BT E R INE T OEETE -
ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the year.
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue FR - AEEVETMBEETABEESR
during the year. SHRE TR o

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+T—HLFE

2021 2020
—EB——F —EFF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Profit for the year attributable to AKEERARESFEA
equity holders of the Company JE(L & F 1,200,329 1,024,271
’000 ’000
TR T
Weighted average number of AFELENEBITERR
ordinary shares in issue during INiE a8
the year 2,860,877 2,860,877
HK cents HK cents
Al P

Basic and diluted earnings per share &A% EL 2N K 858 2 7 41.96 35.80




ANNUAL REPORT 2021
e

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ

14.

TEC—FH A=t —HIENMBFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥MI% - BERRE

225 .

Group REH
Leasehold
improvements, Motor
furniture and vehicles
fixtures  and office
Plant and HEMX  equipment Construction
Buildings  machinery  £15 HHR AERP  inprogress Total
BF BEREES RE AERE HEEH et
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$’000
TR TR THR TR THER TR
31 December 2021 —E2--%1+ZAH
=t-8
Cost: PR
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-—f
—A—H 110,600 55,236 13,106 93,074 - 272,016
Additions HE - 11,037 3,281 11,174 4,252 29,744
Acquisition of a subsidiary YR E LA 594,801 294,925 - 420 8,455 898,601
Disposals BE - (1,261) (253) (10,234) - (11,748)
Exchange realignment ST 14,357 7,201 393 2,756 220 24,927
At 31 December 2021 W_E_—F
+-A=+—-H 719,758 367,138 16,527 97,190 12,927 1,213,540
Accumulated depreciation:  ZEHH7E
At 1 January 2021 WZEZ—F
—A—H 38,143 20,494 9,428 51,096 - 119,161
Charge for the year AEEHE 19,227 19,568 1,462 10,040 - 50,297
Disposals BE - 1) (229) (3,680) - (3,910)
Exchange realignment [ i AR 1,504 970 249 1,737 - 4,460
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—f
+-A=+—H 58,874 41,031 10,910 59,193 - 170,008
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—5F
+-A=+—H 660,884 326,107 5,617 37,997 12,927 1,043,532
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

14.

ME - BERRE (H)
EE (&)

Leasehold

improvements, Motor
furniture and vehicles
fixtures  and office

Plant and HEMX  equipment Construction
Buildings  machinery  £15 HHR AERP  inprogress Total
BF BEREES £E NERE KEER B
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR THR TR THER TR
31 December 2020 —E-EF+CA
=t-H
Cost: P :
At 1 January 2020 RZZ_TF
—A—H 103,553 49,544 12,066 80,719 - 245,882
Additions 2E - 2,206 679 15,593 - 18,478
Disposals RE - (5) (321) (9,060) - (9,380)
Exchange realignment E%ﬁ” 7,047 3,491 682 5,822 - 17,042
At 31 December 2020 i
+7H_+ H 110,600 55,236 13,106 93,074 - 272,016
Accumulated depreciation: QEHE% :
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZE
—A—H 31,220 17,065 8,035 47,828 - 104,138
Charge for the year RERHE 4,600 2,164 1,253 8,616 - 16,633
Disposals BE - ) (305) (8,660) - (8967)
Exchange realignment EREﬂ% 2,323 1,277 445 3,312 - 7,357
At 31 December 2020 RZZZTF
TZA=+—-A 38,143 20,494 9,428 51,006 - 119,161
Net carrying amount; HEE%‘E :
At 31 December 2020 RZZZTEF
+ZA=+—-H 72,457 34,742 3,678 41,978 - 152,855

The property ownership certificates of certain buildings of
the Group in the PRC (the “Buildings”) with aggregate net
carrying amounts of HK$19,536,000 and HK$20,296,000 as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively, have not yet
been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, pursuant to the relevant
agreements signed with the local government authorities in
the PRC and based on the advice from the Company’s PRC
legal adviser, Zhong Lun Law Firm, the Group has the proper
legal rights to occupy and use the Buildings.

B ME RN R B A EE RS
FEF ( [8F] ) NEERE %Y
¥R —FR-_ZFT-_ZTF+=A
=+—HEmFE 419,536,000
T 220,296,000/ 7C ° AR ES
RE - BEEPBRE R
B mZEEA R B PBEAEBERE T mE
MEFMNER  ~NEEEBEEER
A RFERZEET -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d) 14. Y% - BERRZE (B
Company AKATH
Office equipment
WARE
As at 31 December
R+=-HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E_— TETF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
THET FAT
Cost: PR
At the beginning of the year F7) 41 38
Exchange realignment ME H 5 1 3
At the end of the year FR 42 41
Accumulated depreciation: ZEE -
At the beginning of the year F7) 36 27
Charge for the year REEHE 5 7
Exchange realignment bE 5, S 1 2
At the end of the year FR 42 36
Net carrying amount: ARTEDFE :
At the end of the year FR = 5
At the beginning of the year F1) 5 11
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWHE
Group REH
As at 31 December
R+=-HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Carrying amount at the beginning FHRREE
of the year 12,082 3,138
Additions BE - 8,287
Exchange realignment bE H A 386 657
Carrying amount at the end of FAREREE
the year 12,468 12,082

The directors of the Company have determined that the
Group’s investment properties are commercial investment
properties based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2021 and 2020 by management based on the
expected future cash flows.

The investment properties are leased or will be leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 16.

RESEME2EE - FHELER
ARREFREEAEE CRENKE
BRREME -

EEEERN-_E-_—FhK_F_FF
T A=+—BREEBRRRALRK
ENAEEMNREMEHEITER -

REMENKEHEIREBEFE=
B BEE—SERBEHNMBRE
MIEE16 °
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15.

—
=

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

As at 31 December 2021

—F+ZRA=t+—HIENHBFE

15. ®RE¥WxE (&)

EE (&)

TRRATARERANENA A HE
SRR

R—ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AAEEHBRANTEE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RIER™ S EATHRE EBEAFUTEER
KR E BABE A Total
(B—#%) (B=#&%) (B=#&%) b
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value TAEE 2 &E
measurement for: AR EBEE
Commercial investment ~ FEIRREMZE
properties - - 12,468 12,468
As at 31 December 2020 R_ZE_ZF+_-_A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
ARBEFERAUTEE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RIER™ S BEARUHE BEATTEER
HERE WA RS WA Total
(B—#%) (B=#&%) (B=#&%) B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FERT
Recurring fair value THIER 2 &F M
measurement for: AR EBEE :
Commercial investment ~ FEIRREMZE
property - - 12,082 12,082

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3.

H oo

FR - F-—REEF_RAABEAEN
BALAER - B=RINEEAIEASE
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont’d) 15. ®REYWE (#\)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the TR MR ESEGHEFRER 2 EER
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties together MREEHASBEREFEHRES
with a quantitative sensitivity analysis: -

As at 31 December 2021 KRB —F+=-A=+—H

Significant
unobservable
Valuation input Sensitivity of fair value to
technique BEAFAHEER Range the input
fh{E i WA BE &= A REEH R ABOSRY
Commercial Discounted cash Estimated rental RMB196 per 5% increase (decrease) in
investment flow method value square meter estimated rental value would
property REmITH FEEHEEKF annually result in increase (decrease) in
FEEIEE Dby BEGERHK fair value by HK$76,000
E 196TT AR ¥ A EEKFEMN ORd) 5%
eBH A BEEMN Okd)
76,0008 7T
Rent growth 5% 1% increase (decrease) in rent
MHeERE growth would result in increase
in fair value by HK$141,000
or decrease in fair value by
HK$127,000
MEEREEMN OAL) 1%
BHRABEENMN141,000%8 7T
A EER L 127,000% 7T
Discount rate 3% 1% increase (decrease) in
PriRE discount rate would result
in decrease in fair value by
HK$260,000 or increase in fair
value by HK$311,000
PRI ORD) 1%EEH
A BER 260,000 TR A
St E{EHEHN311,0008 7T
Commercial Market comparison  Estimated sales RMB4,984 per 5% increase (decrease) in
investment approach price square meter estimated sales price would
property MG EA TEFTEE Bk result in increase (decrease) in
EERE 4,9847T AR¥E  fair value by HK$450,000
S FEFEEEM Ofd) 5%8E

Fan@EEEMN (D)
450,000 7T
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont’d)

15. ®REYxE (&)

As at 31 December 2020 NZZE-_TE+-_A=+—H
Significant
unobservable
Valuation input Sensitivity of fair value to
technique BEARTAEE Range the input
TR {E BT WA BE &= A REEH R ABHSRY
Commercial Discounted cash Estimated rental RMB208 per 5% increase (decrease) in
investment flow method value square meter estimated rental value would
property REmITA FEEHEEKF annually result in increase (decrease) in
FEEIEE Dby BEFERHK fair value by HK$105,000
1) 208TLARY  BEELKTEM (D) 5%
eBH A BEEMN Okd)
105,000 7T
Rent growth 5% 1% increase (decrease) in rent
FAeER growth would result in increase
in fair value by HK$215,000
or decrease in fair value by
HK$191,000
BeBREEN OBd) 1%g
B A EEE 215,000 7T
AR EERZ2191,0008 7T
Discount rate 3% 1% increase (decrease) in
e & discount rate would result
in decrease in fair value by
HK$333,000 or increase in fair
value by HK$402,000
FRERN (AD) 1%REH
N EER A 333,0008 T3k
A7 EEE 402,000 7T
Commercial Market comparison ~ Estimated sales RMB5,228 per 5% increase (decrease) in
investment approach price square meter estimated sales price would
property B LESE TBEEE HFHK5,228  resultin increase (decrease)
HEEA TTARE in fair value by HK$437,000
iy W EEEM () 5%8E

B EEEN ORd)
437,000 7T

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including an exit
or terminal value. This method involves the projection of
a series of cash flows on a property interest. A market-
derived discount rate is applied to the projected cash flow
in order to establish the present value of the income stream
associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.

EREREFHRIDET - AABER/R
BEEZ D HN A EOENIER

(BREERHEERGEEER) MERRK
HER - EETRS NI EED LA
—ZIBRREMNIER - RIBEMIHF L
MITIRFEA R ORERE - E
e A EG A RIIRE - R
Wk BEEEBRTEN  HIFRX
DEE
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15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont’d)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

Under market comparison approach, fair value of investment
properties is determined by reference to recent sales prices
of comparable properties on a price per square metre basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the quality
of the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales and
the timing on the comparable transations. Higher premium for
higher quality buildings and a favourable adjustment on the
timing of comparable transaction will result in higher fair value
measurement.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and
buildings, equipment and others used in its operation. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the land lease
from the owners with lease periods of fifty years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these
land leases. Lease of land, equipment and others generally
have lease terms between two and three years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

15.

16.

rEME (&)

B RneHRMESRANMRLAE
BRI IEhmENHESES  HOEHM
HENEHEHE  EFREBNSSE
HRER - BRAMHBRRETSET AR
B MmBTAREEEEN — AR
B AEERIRESREMTENBRALR
BRI TR - TR EIMER - WEUE
K HERE - #IEER - RENF
ERANNEMEESHEIRER - A% -
$— R FHA M A A UR A A K 388
HiE RS TERT R ARERETTITHR o

REMGLEE  REMENAAEBE
T2 E R L MERT TR ERFTEH
BOEEET - THIZEEMNZEYN
HEHESMNHE MR ZHENALR S
SHROBEIITNBIEAR - RSEE
SEEEYPIS A 8 N 7] E A2 5 B T DA
BHHANHFAEKERESAAEE -

HE
FEBEREEA

AEBEEEZERETER T SREL
BT RELREMEENEES
#) o NEBDEL —RMERTEIN R
URmEEWEERAL +FEEL
o MAREZ S LEE 2 R - BF
TERIFE MR - 13t - R R EADIA
BNEHERR R/ _FE=F - — K
BT REBEZRIFRAAREEASIALT
EEkOHEREEEE -
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16. LEASES (cont’d) 16. #ME& (&)

REBEREEA (&)

The Group as a lessee (cont’d)

(@  Right-of-use assets @  RAEEE
The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets AEEFEAREENREEEBR
and movements during the year are as follows: REENEHERLOT
Prepaid
land lease
payments Equipment
FEftx#  Buildings and others Total
HEME BF RERHEM wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
FHExT FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE_ZTF—H—H 4,910 20,487 212 25,609
Additions RE - 9 77 86
Depreciation charge ~ #TEXH (339) (9,547) (243) (10,129
Exchange realignment [ 5 58 % 316 397 6 719
At 31 December 2020 W-—ZT-ZTF+_A
and 1 January 2021 —t+—HEZZE=—
F—H—H 4,887 11,346 52 16,285
Additions BE - 4,640 - 4,640
Addition from R — PRI B A )
acquisition of a 3 Hn
subsidairy 94,143 - - 94,143
Disposals BE - (4,134) - (4,134)
Depreciation charge ~ #T&EXH (2,688) (9,876) 52)  (12,616)
Write-back on fa B K85
disposals - 4,134 - 4,134
Exchange realignment P& 585 1,799 121 - 1,920
At 31 December 2021 WZZT=——F+_A
=1+—H 98,141 6,231 - 104,372
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16. LEASES (cont’d) 16. MHE (#&)
The Group as a lessee (cont’d) AEBIEREEA (B)
(b)  Lease liabilities by MHEAE
The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities and AEEHEAENEREEBERAR
movements during the year are as follows: FEMESHBFTAMAT

As at 31 December

R+=H=+—H
2021 2020
B —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BERmE 11,756 20,913
New leases MEIE 4,640 86
Accretion of interest recognised F AR FSIE M
during the year 456 797
Payments BEN (10,584) (10,402)
Exchange realignment M H B 134 362
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HKmEAE 6,402 11,756
The current portion and non-current portion of the AREBRSaEEEE/EYENEH
carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities are as o N IERNEAZE DI T
follows:
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THETT
Current portion BIEAER 5,234 8,388
Non-current portion JERNHRER 5 1,168 3,368
Total carrying amount at R+ A=+—BHEKE&E

31 December 6,402 11,756
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16. LEASES (cont’d) 16. HE (#)
The Group as a lessee (cont’d) AEBEREBEA (B)
()  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to © HRESXTHEIAZESHESHE
leases are as below: PN

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interest expense on lease liabilites ~ HEBBEMNFEEHA (MH7)
(note 7) 456 797
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ~ FAEEETES H
assets 12,616 10,129
Expense relating to short-term REMEENM (GtA
leases (included in “Administrative [ B2 M HALEER | )
and other operating expenses”) 2,835 3,593
Total amount recognised in profit RIBEFHERNEBE ST
or loss 15,907 14,519
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in (d) B EMRENIR S HIEERMN

note 34(c). F£34(c) ©
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16.

LEASES (cont’d)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases one of its investment properties (note 15),
consisting of one commercial investment property in PRC.
The shop had been rented out for a period of 6 years from
1 November 2019 under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the lease generally require the tenant to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was HK$168,000
(FY2020: HK$41,000).

The undiscounted lease payments receivables by the Group
in future periods under non-cancellable operating lease with
its tenant are as follows:

16.

HE (%)
AEBERHBA

AEBRBEEHELHHEELREY
% (MiEE15) - ZMEHBEIRAN—
BREEMEANX - Ao RIEEEHE
ERPU_T-NF+—A—HEHEL
PNEE o AR R — AR R SATE A S
RES - WIREEROTIHERLE A
EHle AREAFERANES WA
/3168,000/87C (ZZTZF%F : 41,000
BIT) e

A ER B B EFH A RT S0 AT RUE AR = 7

SEE T - RRHREARHTIR AR WA
S

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT
Within 1 year 1E AR 555 95
After 1 year but within 5 years 1254 734 363

1,289 458
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREEE
Group REH
Concession  Patents and Computer Customer
rights  trademarks software relationships Total
RARER  ETRER AEREY EFm% B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
31 December 2021 —E--E+ZH
=+-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—F
—A—A 2,259,081 25,795 10,235 13,191 2,308,302
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —ENE AR - - 28 - 28
Additions by 481,666 - 544 - 482,210
Disposal RE (123,604) - - - (123,604)
Wiite-off R - - (1,570) - (1,570)
Exchange realignment ERTIEES 77,867 823 311 421 79,422
At 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F
+-A=+-H 2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
Accumulated amortisation: ST
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—%F
—A—H 391,170 25,795 3,990 6,428 427,383
Amortisation provided FREHERE
during the year 54,678 - 1,596 2,852 59,126
Disposal RE (37,026) - - - (37,026)
Write-off ks - - (1,570) - (1,570)
Exchange realignment [E i % 14,755 823 128 249 15,955
At 31 December 2021 W%
+-A=+—H 423,577 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,868
Net carrying amount: RESE
At 31 December 2021 NZE-—F

TZR=+—H 2,271,433 - 5,404 4,083 2,280,920
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d) mEEE (&)
Group (cont’d) RER (&)
Concession Patentsand Computer Backlog Customer
rights trademarks  software contracts relationships Total
KICERE SAREE HEABG  kTREW EFBE okl
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FAEL FAL FAEL TET  Thn
31 December 2020 “ECER
tZR=+-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZF
-A-A 1,955,202 24,151 7,194 28,390 12,350 2,027,287
Additions RE 162,091 - 2,422 - - 164,513
Write-off HH - - - (28,782) - (28,782
. FE o M3k
Exchange realignment B 141,788 1,644 619 392 841 145284
At 31 December 2020 RIZ_ZF
+=A=+-AH 2,259,081 25,795 10,235 - 13,191 2,308,302
Accumulated amortisation: 2T A :
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZF
—-A—A 313,370 20,394 2,991 28,390 3705 368,850
Amortisation provided FREHEE
during the year 65,627 4,067 755 - 2087 72,536
Write-off HsH - - - (28,782) - (28782
Exchange realignment 5% 12,173 1,334 244 392 636 14,779
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZF
+=A=+-A 391,170 25,795 3,990 - 6,428 427,383
Net carrying amount: FREF(E :
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_TF
+-A=+-H 1,867,911 - 6,245 - 6,763 1,880,919

As At 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain of the Group’s

concession rights of the environmental water projects
(comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract
assets and trade receivables) with aggregate carrying
amounts of HK$5,786,528,000 and HK$3,627,759,000,
respectively, were pledged to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of
which are included in notes 27, 28 and 35.

Included in “Concession rights” of the Group as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are contract assets of
HK$1,317,479,000 and HK$802,437,000, respectively,
arising from performance under construction contracts in
connection with service concession arrangements.

RZEBE - —FR_FE_FF+_-A4
—t+t—H AEBETFKRREEEZ
BHEEE (BIEEFEEDPNESH
LR AR EEREWRER) MR
5D R A5,786,528,000/8 7T &
3,627,759,000/8 o E IR E AR EEE
BIRTTRIE N BITEES B A 2T
M P REEEAMIRE27 281435 °

RZEZ—FR_FE_FF+_A
=+—H8 sFFAKREEN [HHFLE
| MEHEEDRA1,317,479,0007%8
TE 802,437,000 7T  JHEAE B ERARTE
B E T MRS INEL -



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
—EC-FEHE

239 .

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)
Group (cont’d)

Impairment testing of concession rights not yet available for
use

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain projects had
not commenced operations and the carrying amounts of
the concession rights not yet available for use of these
projects were approximately HK$1,317,479,000 and
HK$802,437,000, respectively. The recoverable amount of
each of these concession rights was determined based on
value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections based
on a financial budget covering a five-year period approved
by the management. Management determined the budgets
based on the service concession arrangements governing
the relevant operations. The pre-tax discount rates applied to
the cash flow projections were 10.1% for 2021 and 10.2%
for 2020, and cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% (31 December 2020:
3%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant operations. No impairment is
considered necessary as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to the pre-tax discount rate and five-year period
growth rate, representing the key inputs to the determination
of the recoverable amount.

The headroom of the concession rights not yet available for
use is shown as below:

17.

BrEE (&)
EE (#)
fef 7T~ B P YR AR A L B 5

K:EZ—E&_?_?¢+ A
=+—B ETHBIARKEEN
ﬁ%TTZ%EEE%%%ﬁ%EE

MEEEEED R A%1,317,479,000
77T 5 802,437,0005 7T © KB
TR R IRIEEIEE &
MAFHYSEENReRETEAE
EEBAHEHR- Eﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%*ﬁf‘%
CENRGETFCELTHETEE
@%Fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁwmmmﬁﬁfﬂ
CECFRI01%R_E_BF A
10.2% ' UNBBAEFHMRESRE
TERBEERIY (ZE-ZFF+_-H
Z+—H :3%) FUHR - FTAI
WRABAIITIRE » Wik ERREZ
BEBAZBTRR RE-_—FK
—ECEF+-_A=1+—H WEN
BEHRE -

AN SR DT TORIE R AT ITIR R & i

FHIRREREF - SEE A WE R
JERMEREARE -

A O RS SR BB H IR
M

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Headroom LI 39,000 35,000
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d) 17.

Group (cont’d)

Impairment testing of concession rights not yet available for
use (cont’d)

Had the estimated key assumptions been changed as below,
the headroom would be increased/(decreased) by:

BrEE (&)
EE (#)

fe 7T~ B PR YR AR A AL B 5
(#&)

WG EE\RESHUOT - BHEIHH 8
s Crid) -

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—Ff _—T-FTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Pre-tax discount rate decreased TR HT IR E [#1K0.2%
by 0.2% 31,000 26,000
Pre-tax discount rate increased HATITIREIR=0.2%
by 0.2% (30,000) (25,000)
Five-year period growth rate RAFEHEERIES1%
increased by 1% 66,000 4,000
Five-year period growth rate AFHIERERE1%
decreased by 1% (50,000) (4,000)

A respective increase in the discount rate from the original
rate of 10.1% and 10.2% by 0.3% and 0.3% to 10.4% and
10.5%, respectively, as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
would remove the remaining headroom.

MR T —FER-_ZT_ZTF+_-A
=+ —HIWREDFWRERITIRE10.1%
$10.2% % B1250.3%50.3%210.4%
%10.5% » BlJF] /ﬁlif%a%uﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
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GOODWILL 18. MEE
Group REH
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FAT
Cost and net carrying amount at FHNA R AREFE
the beginning of the year 1,295,475 1,213,509
Acquisition in the year AU HE 191,633 -
Exchange realignment bE W R R 44,468 81,966
Cost and net carrying amount at FARNA RREFE
the end of the year 1,531,576 1,295,475
The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable mainly WHEEENPETEFRN WU EE 5 E

to the expected synergies from combining operations of
the acquiree and acquirer. None of the goodwill acquired is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the water environment management segment as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units within the water environment management segment as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was determined based on
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period using a
growth rate of 3% to 10% (31 December 2020: 3% to 10%)
approved by management. The pre-tax discount rates applied
to the cash flow projections were 11.1% for 2021 and 11.2%
for 2020, and cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% (31 December 2020:
3%). Management determined the budgets based on service
concession arrangements governing the relevant operations.
Based on the assessment, no impairment provision was
necessary as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Yo BB 7 B SR 15 B BF EE £ MY TR 15 [B) 2
JE& - WREFTIS A B & N RIH0M o

BBEARMNE RZT-Z—Fk
:;_7¢+ A=+—H BEZ®
DEENRRFAEDE

KRB —FR_FE_FF+_-A4
=+—8 KRR AENEARSER
BIRBEFERAEBREAENEEEHERN
3%FE10% (ZE_FF+_A=+—
H:3%Z10%) ERERFTEH A FH
Eﬁﬂﬁl’gngﬁw/\m EEU EE—JH&
Ol£%8 - BRANIRESRETENAF AT
BWERZE-—FAENMNA%BE_ZE-F
FE11.2%  UNBBAFHMNIREER
ENRAEELXIY (ZE-FF+ =
A=+—8: 3%) TLAHER - BEIRfE
BEBERERBEL @%ﬂﬁ“'ﬁﬁ“%?
BEERE - BIEENH  RZT=—
FZE-TF+_A=+—H " WENK
ZEHERERE -



242 .

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

18. GOODWILL (cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

Impairment testing of goodwill (cont’d)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to the pre-tax discount rate and five-year period
growth rate, representing the key inputs to the determination

of the recoverable amount.

The headroom of the group of cash-generating units within
the water environment management segment is shown as

18.

BE (&)

EE (#)

LA T SRR D AT ToAR Y e e AT U (@) 2 2R
ME B AR - BAITRE R AFH

EREET -

ARERRHAE D BARSEL BT
MR HAFIREAT

below:
As at 31 December

RT+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Headroom B D 4,442,000 3,102,000

Had the estimated key assumptions been changed as below,
the headroom would be increased/(decreased) by:

fifhst EE2RFEBOT - BHEBD A
g CRid)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ZEFF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FAET
Pre-tax discount rate increased AR EIES0.2%

by 0.2% (650,000) (555,000)
Pre-tax discount rate decreased TR HTER E[21K0.2%

by 0.2% 675,000 577,000
Five-year period growth rate AFEERIES1%

increased by 1% 1,783,000 1,341,000
Five-year period growth rate R FHAE R EBRIK1%

decreased by 1%

(1,741,000) (1,310,000)
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18. GOODWILL (cont’d) 18. & (@)
Group (cont’d) rER (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (cont’d)

A respective increase in the discount rate from the original {[p = _*iﬁ_ Z_TF+_-H
rate of 11.1% and 11.2% by 1.6% and 1.3% to 12.7% and =+—B - WEREXLHBRRFTRE
12.5%, respectively; or a decrease in the five-year period 11.1%K%11.2% % B1E®1.6%K%1.3% =
growth rate by 39% and 36% of the original five-year period 12.7%K%12.5% : &ﬂi%ﬁiET“%‘J
growth rate respectively, as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, R T HRIE R R R 1K 39% % 36% + Al
would remove the remaining headroom. AEBRFISREB LIS ©
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. HELQTER
Group REH
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —T=-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Share of net assets Frih & Z= A 231 8,143
Particulars of the Group’s associates during the financial year TR 2 BB 2N BB T8 R 35 HARS 7 5E IS

are as follows: FOENE

Percentage of

ownership
interest
Place of attributable to
Particulars of registration the Group
Name capital and business AREBEELESRE  Principal activities
8 EXF 5 BRREXBE EEEIH TEXK
Qingdao Haibohe Water Paid up PRC/ 49 Waste water
Operating Limited capital of Mainland China treatment
(“Qingdao Haibohe”) US$350,845 B/ Bl A VKRR
= %}i/El}TM“L BEHENR
Ram ([E8®ad] ) 350,845% 7T
Hebei Xiong'an Huashen Paid up PRC/ 20 R&D and
Water Engineering capital of Mainland China consultation
Technology Limited RMB5,000,000 H B/ B A, on water treatment
(‘Hebei Xiong’an”) BEHENR K BR IR HO BB
(note (a)) 5,000,0007T A R KE#

ﬁit*ﬁ?%@%vﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ
BRAF ( [Tz ] )
(Byzx (a))
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19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont’d)

19. BEQRER (&)

Group (cont’d)

Note:

(@

In the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
made a capital contribution of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,168,000) to Hebei Xiong’an. Hebei Xiong'an was established
with three other entities established in the PRC, in Xiong’an City,
the PRC, which enables the Group to further develop R&D and
construction services in Xiong’an City.

The Group had significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over Hebei Xiong’an, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions, pursuant to the Articles of Association
of Hebei Xiong’an. Accordingly, Hebei Xiong’an was classified as
an associate of the Group.

The Group had completed the disposal of equity interest in Hebei
Xiong’an on 10 December 2021,and Hebei Xiong’an was no

REBE ()

bz

@ R N\E+-A=1+—HAIUA
FJE - AREE AL % EE 1,000,000

AR (%{81,168,000/%7T) ik
fEKEEKEE&EEPI*E;ZE’U%QI\EFQE
REHREIRRAL - BRASEE T —

R N ERRT

RAIL R 2 AR ERAA - AEE

it BEEAFE (MIFEHIER

ﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬂ%) : a%%éﬁi}%}zﬁﬁﬁ%&
EHUR I&t AR IR D R

‘ilz%fé*@

R-_Z-_—F+_A+8  KEBTK

longer on associate of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,

were held by the Company’s subsidiaries.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group’s associates
material:

Té‘éﬂ"fit*&z?ﬂ?ﬂxﬁéﬁ’]réﬁ AR
THRAEENBE AR
the above investments N-ZETE = — E K—_ZE-_ZFF+_A
=+—8- &§E$ LN
AIFA o

that are not individually

DELLINE N Y LIEN-FS-PN-
BN BBIEER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—-HLEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET T8
Share of the associates’ profit AEEHERNAI PTG &N EE
and loss for the year (6,758) 4,224
Share of the associates’ total REEHERARIEIGHFEE R ERE
comprehensive income (6,692) 4,555
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBHBEARRENFEAR
Group’s investments in the
associates 231 8,143
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20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

i) NGk £
ZNNG

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTI - AR 12,767,172 12,263,369
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE A Bf B8 A R FROR 3,358,153 3,093,886
16,125,325 15,357,255
Impairment JE (4,619,704) (4,476,838)
11,505,621 10,880,417

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed repayment terms. The balances are
considered by the directors as quasi-equity investments in
these subsidiaries.

Management performs impairment testing on the Company’s
interests in subsidiaries based on the assessment of
the subsidiaries’ historical and current performance and
probability of future cash flows. The recoverable amount of
each of the subsidiaries was determined based on value-
in-use calculations using cash flow projections based on a
financial budget covering a five-year period approved by the
management.

Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows:

R B AR B AERT 28R
ﬁ.iﬁ?ﬂ c REFEREHBWEER AR
ZEMTB A RIRERRAERE -

EIRERBNENE AR ELMRAE
%%M&*%ﬂ mﬁﬁwé'%W%
NAMERETRENR - SEMEA
AR Bl S IR R E R EN T
i%ﬂ%%}%%ﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@fﬁ%%ﬁiﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ
REE-

B EBEESHIT

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—A8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FATT
At the beginning of the year F5] 4,476,838 4,191,484
Exchange realignment bE 5, SR & 142,866 285,354
At the end of the year FR 4,619,704 4,476,838

Particulars of the subsidiaries are disclosed in note 1.

Bﬁ% BN E

B a

%5
&
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS 21. AKEE
Group NEE
As at As at
31 December 1 January
R+=—A=+—H W—A—H
2021 2020 2020
—B-—F —ETHF —TTF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
[P FET FATT FATT
Non-current JEBPER
Service concession assets RIS R LB E (@) 19,766,155 17,360,815 14,144,440
Less: Impairment o ORE (©) (15,831) (12,195) -
19,750,324 17,348,620 14,144,440
Current BO A
Service concession assets RIS EF AL L E (@) 1,949,143 1,679,084 1,360,370
Less: Impairment B RE () (1,561) (1,179 -
1,947,582 1,677,905 1,360,370
Other contract assets BEMEHEE (b) 42,884 3,282 28,835
1,990,466 1,681,187 1,389,205
Total 1BExE 21,740,790 19,029,807 15,533,645
Notes: B
(a) Included in “Contract assets” as at 31 December (a) RBE-—FN_ZE-FTF+_H

2021 and 2020 are amounts of HK$534,155,000 and
HK$549,290,000, respectively, which are due from a
non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary, and amounts of HK$822,617,000 and
HK$789,747,000, respectively, which are due from a
related company of a non wholly-owned subsidiary.

Contract assets as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
totalling HK$21,715,298,000 and HK$19,039,899,000,
respectively, bear interest at rates ranging from
4.90% to 7.83% and 4.90% to 7.83%, respectively,
per annum. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
HK$11,218,763,000 and HK$8,677,273,000,
respectively, related to the service concession
arrangements with operation commenced. The
amounts for the service concession arrangements are
not yet due for payment and will be settled by revenue
to be generated during the operating periods of the
service concession arrangements. Amounts billed will
be transferred to trade receivables (note 23).

=t—H A [GHEE| 8%
RN —FEIBFE EMB AR —23E
PERR AR SRIE 53 5 /534,155,000
78 7T 12549,290,00078 7T LA K &
W—FRZE = EMTE N ey — e g
NEIFIAD 51| /822,617,000 7T
K:789,747,000/4 7T ©

RZE-Z—FER_ZT-F

+ZA=+—8  AHEEH
A& F#£21,715,298,000/ T &
19,039,899,000/8 7T * A5 Rl
FZENF4.90%27.83% 5 4.90%
E783%:itB - R _TE-—Fx
—E-ZF+-A=+—H H
1A 18 & R RIS IS R 48 2 i L BE
BREBZIESHI11,218,763,000
T %8,677,273,000/8 7T © BR
TSR R HEA i R B HA
Re8 BARSEFEERER
BB M E £ AER -
ERECEGEEEEWRX
(PB5E23) o
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21.

CONTRACT ASSETS (cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

(b)

The balance as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
comprised contract assets arising from performance
under construction management service contracts.
Such contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the service periods once
milestones are reached.

Impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, HK$17,392,000
(31 December 2020: HK$13,374,000) was recognised
as an allowance for expected credit losses on contract
assets. The Group’s trading terms and credit policy
with customers are disclosed in note 23.

The movements in the provision for impairment of

21.

BRNEE (B

AEB (M)

b) RZEBEZ—FR_ZFT_ZTF
+-A=+t—BRNEHBERA
BrTREEEREAAMEE
MENEE - ZZFA0BER
EREREBANRESHAS
HAN R R R R o

(c) RIERHE
RZE-Z—F+=-_A=+—
H 17,392,000/ (ZE=-F
F+=-A=+—H : 13,374,000

BIL) ERAEASNEENTERSE
EEEEE AEFHERFHNR

PIER A2 B BRIE B TS 3R R M
23 i EE o

BREENREREZZEH I

contract assets are as follows: T :
As at 31 December
RT+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT
At the beginning of the year F) 13,374 -
Impairment losses recognised (note 8)  EHEREHEREE (Fi:E8) 3,533 12,695
Exchange realignment ME 5, 5 B 485 679
At the end of the year FR 17,392 13,374
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting REBRKZERSBEFEHEYD
date using the probability of default approach to RS EITRESN - LAZTETE

measure expected credit losses. The probabilities
of default rates are estimated based on comparable
entities with published credit ratings. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forward-looking
credit risk information. As at 31 December 2021, the
probability of default applied ranging from 0.05% to
0.16% (31 December 2020: 0.06% to 0.08%) and the
loss given default was estimated ranging from 57.65%
to 64.87% (31 December 2020: 62.47% to 64.87%).

%E%%Eogmmfﬂgﬂa
NEEEFR I HE R EEE
ﬂﬁﬁ BT E R hnig
- EEREEEENMNHRER
%T Zﬁ%ﬂ&$#& GRS
ﬂzAﬁﬂﬁw#2§ﬂM&ﬁ
EHEERBEL - RN T ——
F+-A=+—H FIERZ
BABENT0.05%E0.16%
—ECEFF-A=+—H:
006%5008%> i 41K
RGN F57.65%%E64.87%
—ECEFf-A=+—H:
62.47%%64.87%) o
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21.

22.

CONTRACT ASSETS (cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

21. AREE (&)
FEE (&)

(©)  Impairment assessment (cont’d) €  REEE (&)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain of the RZEZ-—FR_ZFZFF
Group’s concession rights of the environmental water +=A _‘1' =N $El S #K
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible IRIRIE B W5 utFi‘«%ﬁé (8 %
assets, contract assets and trade receivables) with BEBEEPHETRLERE
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$5,786,528,000 HEEREWRERRK) EI’JEEEL
and HK$3,627,759,000, respectively, were pledged B Bl &5,786,528,000/% 7T &
to the banking facilities granted to the Group and the 3,627,759,000/% L E EHIER
issuance of ABS, further details of which are included K'El%i‘ifﬁﬂvaﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ?
in notes 27, 28 and 35. YEEASER  E—TFS
P27, 28&%535 °
INVENTORIES 22. B®E
Group REH
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET=-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Raw materials and consumables FEM R B R 70,189 93,641
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an EREHEEERER YN EESEDT
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: m

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+T—HLFE

Cost of inventories consumed

ERTFENREEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FH&T
946,643 831,595




ANNUAL REPORT 2021
e

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group

TEC—FH A=t —HIENMBFE

23.

e Bk e EL At P WK TR

AEH

249 .

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current JERNHA
Other receivables E b i W FROR 333,489 4,578
Less: Impairment B RE (6,967) -
326,522 4,578
VAT receivables FENIRIET 417,859 285,324
Prepayments TR IR 27,428 -
445,287 285,324
771,809 289,902
Current BPHEA
Trade receivables RIS BR X 2,548,697 1,365,321
Less: Impairment B RE (252,045) (97,246)
2,296,652 1,268,075
Other receivables and sundry E A UGRIE M TR
deposits 103,817 355,727
Less: Impairment B ORE (13,383) (3,521)
90,434 352,206
VAT receivables FEWIE BT 192,277 141,426
Amounts due from an associate JE Lk — [ BSe 8 A R 5RIE 9,843 17,614
Prepayments FEfTFE 277,048 186,376
569,602 697,622
2,866,254 1,965,697
Total k] 3,638,063 2,255,599

The amounts due from an associate are unsecured,
repayable on demand and interest-bearing at a rate of 4.75%

(81 December 2020: 4.75%) per annum.

JEWEt 2 AR RIBAERE  ARKE
KIBENMIRFRNRL75% (ZE_ZF
+=ZA=+—H :4.75%) t& -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont’d)

Company

23.

Amounts due from subsidiaries

JE W Ff B 2 B K IR

The amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses of

trade receivables are as follows:

Group

FEARKEERATR
FEWERR R EMmEKRE (&)
KAT]

As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHR FHT
8,483,239 6,502,232
PN/ A =i —EF
+=—A=+— EMﬁWW? ME%

R - 2R NBREREERE

JEE Y AR R
T

AR

BHREEBRBEGZEZSHM

As at 31 December

R+=-HA=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E=FE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At the beginning of the year F) 97,246 65,902
Impairment losses recognised ERERERERXL (HFE8)

(note 8) 149,289 05,492
Impairment loss reversed (note 8) EELEREERL (Hi3Es) (47,308) -
Reversal of previous write-off of HEERE DR EREREL

impairment loss 47,308
Exchange realignment M H B 5,510 5,852
At the end of the year FR 252,045 97,246
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23.

TEC—FH A=t —HIENMBFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont’d)

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses of

other receivables are as follows:

Group

251 .

iR R S EURE (&)
HiEURIBEHEERRRE ZES)

M -
AR

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2021 2020
B —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At the beginning of the year F] 3,521 -

Impairment losses recognised ERERERERL (FizEs)

(note 8) 16,451 3,342
Exchange realignment ME 5, S B 378 179
At the end of the year FR 20,350 3,521

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the date
of invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) and
net of provision, as at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

Group

RmEMK - RIEFEZHZEH (RARE
REH - URFELE) RINGREEER
Z MRS BRE DTN

REE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8

2021 2020

—B--F —TTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ExT FHET

Within 1 month TZR—EA 553,679 448,151
More than 1 month but within BiE—EAETZRN

2 months M {E A 276,958 125,719
More than 2 months but within HBiEmE B ERZ R

4 months g 1E A 235,831 165,675
More than 4 months but within HBiEm{E A ERZ R

7 months +1{EA 435,829 106,074
More than 7 months but within BiEtEAETZR

13 months T=1EA 498,179 164,376

More than 13 months BE+=EA 296,176 258,080

2,296,652 1,268,075
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont’d) 23. EWERRREMERRIE (E)
Group (cont’d) rER (&)
Trade receivables mainly represent revenue from the provision FEWEREERIEHESRBEELED
of operation services and the billed amounts of the contract WARGRHNEENFREZERTE - A5 E
assets. There was no recent history of default in respect of JEUCER S T BB AV R2 8% - AR K
the Group’s trade receivables. Since most of the debtors ZHEBARTEE iﬁzﬂ(ﬁ‘*&?ﬁﬂ*ﬁ
are local government authorities in the PRC and based on BRAEgR BEEENBERE G E
past experience, management, based on IAS 39’s incurred BISE30ORELEBEEARR EE E/\ (=
loss approach, believes that no impairment allowance was EEETES KEHAERTDER
necessary as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 in respect of AIEHWE - AR ZE :—E&
the past due balances as there has not been a significant ZE_EEJF_H fJF Bpt2 @8
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered REAEHRERE - AKBUTHE
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over M%%ﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬁcﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ oA ©
these balances.
From 1 January 2018, the Group has applied the simplified BE-ZE—N\F—A—HE AEBEEE
approach for providing impairment for ECLs prescribed by ﬁﬁ%ﬂt?ﬁ‘ii%ﬁ\W%Eﬁﬁ%i&%)&ﬂ”%%ﬁ
IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss HEMTBHEEEBELRE  H&
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade P AT B R BR SRR AR &R a 78
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk HIBERE - AERBEERE B
characteristics and the days past due. The ECLs below also B EME B R b a8 B R B FE
incorporate forward looking information. The impairment as of BRR D4 - TXTEHHTZTJEHTE?TZW)\HI
31 December 2021 and 2020 was determined as follows: EMHER T FRZT-F
+=A _-1— E BREETELT -
Group REE
Past due
more than
1 year but Past due
Past due within over
within 2 years 2 years
Current 1year BHBB-—F BAHEMF Total
HE  BE-FR BERMER BAE fzg
31 December 2021: —E--5+ZA
=+-H
Expected loss rate ERTEEXR 2.6% 4.6% 14.9% 61.2% 9.9%
Gross carrying amount REeE (FEr)
(HK$’000) 800,331 1,173,035 379,138 196,193 2,548,697
Impairment (HK$'000)  JAfE (T7T) 21,120 54,386 56,496"  120,043" 252,045
31 December 2020: —ECEE+CA
=+-H
Expected loss rate ERTEEXR 1.2% 3.7% 17.6% 40.3% 7.1%
Gross carrying amount REeE (FEr)
(HK$'000) 555,451 581,236 102,629 126,005 1,365,321
Impairment (HK$’'000) AE (FAT) 6,740 21,740 18,032" 50,734* 97,246

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

A The impairment included an amount of HK$14,257,000
(31 December 2020: HK$6,978,000) made for specific trade
receivables which were considered in default due to indicators
which showed that the Group was unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full.

* The impairment included an amount of HK$ 114,275,000
(31 December 2020: HK$39,383,000) made for specific trade
receivables which were considered in default due to indicators
which showed that the Group was unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full.

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing.

Included in “Trade and other receivables” of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were trade receivables of
HK$2,296,652,000 and HK$1,268,075,000, respectively, of
which (a) HK$11,657,000 and HK$25,068,000, respectively,
were due from a non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-
owned subsidiary, (b) HK$14,211,000 and HK$13,596,000,
respectively, were due from a related company of a non
wholly-owned subsidiary, and (c) nil and HK$61,525,000,
respectively, were due from a fellow subsidiary.

Included in “Other receivables” as at 31 December 2021 were
government compensation receivables of HK$308,020,000
(81 December 2020: nil) arising from the disposals of
service concession arrangement-related intangible assets
and contract assets in connection to relocation and
expansion of waste water treatment plants of Everbright
Water (Zibo) Limited, for which impairment of HK$6,967,000
(81 December 2020: nil) was provided as at 31 December
2021. The amount will be settled before 31 December 2024.

Included in “Other receivables and sundry deposits” of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
government compensation receivables of HK$19,381,000
and HK$17,238,000, arising from compensation of sludge
disposal cost as stipulated in the concession service
agreement of Everbright Water (Beijing) Limited.

23.

iR R S EURE (&)
FEE (&)
~ o BERFERUBERIELMNRESSE

14,257,00087C (—E-ZFF+ A
=+—H :6,978,000/#7C) * HREL
SBETAEEN AR AR EIREEA R
S8 AR ERUIR TG REL -

* BEMEERYSERIEFLNRES SR
114,275,000 7L (ZZ-ZF+-A
=+—H :39,383,000&C) ' BANA
R FUR AR EE A E] g BB B R (E R
AE]%%'E U B4 E FE YR TR AR /5
E

e BR F A BAZE B B2 30290 F 21 Hf -

RZE-—FR T -_FTF+ H
=+—8 st ALXEE [EUWEXR
E@%%,EJ@%EW$WQJ
2,296,652,00078 7T % 1,268,075,000
B Ef(a)EW— I EWE
NAEM— B IEERBERED R A
11,657,000/ 7t }2. 25,068,000/ 7T -
(b)FE U — Fﬁ#iﬁﬁﬁﬁg aH) — [ 8
BN BB D B A14,211,00008 7T &
13,596, ooo,%rc X(c )Mﬁz BHIEEIN]
BRBFIED R AZEITKG61,525,000
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23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont’d)

Included in “Other receivables and sundry deposits” of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were consideration
receivables of HK$8,095,000 and HK$11,043,000, due from
third parties arising from the disposals of service concession
rights held by Sugian City Cheng Bei Water Treatment Co.,
Ltd., and Sugian City Cheng Bei Wastewater Treatment Co.,
Ltd. years ago, for which impairment of HK$2,382,000 was
provided as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
HK$3,521,000). The ageing of which is as follows:

23.

iR R S EURE (&)
R_E-_—FR-_FT_FTHF+_H
=t+—H - ZXEEHN [HtEER
BREEZE ] BREFIREESE
ML KB ER AR 2 E R EE TN
1E75 7K B 32 B R AT IR 1 A A #s R A5 A5
AR EHENRE - 2 5I/&8,095,000/8
TT % 11,043,000/8 7T - RZTZ—4F
T A=+ -HERBAEREME
2,382,000 7T (ZE-_TF+_H
=+—H :3,521,000%7T) o HERE
DITESIIT

Group REH
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Current BIHA 7,297 10,270
Past due: Syt
- over 2 years — BB E 798 773
Amounts past due BHE R 798 773
8,095 11,043
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain of the Group’s RN—_E=Z—F &_/13 —EF+ A
concession rights of the environmental water projects =+—8 AEHEET 7J< IRIEIE B
(comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract 2R *g* T (’p]a%% EEEDHB
assets and trade receivables) with aggregate carrying AR K %ﬁ& EREENMBEWIER)

amounts of HK$5,786,528,000 and HK$3,627,759,000,
respectively, were pledged to secure the banking facilities
granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details
of which are included in notes 27, 28 and 35.

All the current portions of the above balances are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

MEEBERESD ;%‘IJ5,786,528,000;‘%fc
K%3,627,759,000/8 T EMIEA
AEBERBITRENBITEES
BEEZEFR  E£—FPFBIER
MfzE27 ~ 28 %35 °

RERR 2 B VSR D TREART IR —4F
W%Z@iﬁéu AR ©
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24.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 24. HittemEE
Group REH
Notes As at 31 December
B R+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
B T -ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT T
Non-current JEBNHR
Unlisted investments, at fair AR BESEMIFLHIRE
value - 409,147
Unlisted equity investment, AR EBEFE/IEETARE
at fair value & 36,122 34,051
36,122 443,198
Current BNE
Unlisted investments, at fair AR EBESEMIELTIRE (i)
value 222,880 -
Total 4a%8 259,002 443,198
Company AT
Notes As at 31 December
B R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Unlisted investments, at fair value AR A BEFFE/FE ETHRE (i) 222,880 409,147

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the above unlisted
investments were wealth management products issued by
financial institutions in Hong Kong and the above unlisted
equity investment represents the 6% interest in Yancheng
CCCC Shanghai Dredging Water Environment Investment
Co., Ltd. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”) as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest.

Note:

(i) The wealth management products are available for redemption at
the option of the Group after the expiry of the applicable lock-up

period.

RZEZ—FRZEFTF+H
=t+—H " L#HiEEMKELATES
MEERTNEVESR - E#iIEET
BEREAERP R EFMKRRRE
BRABIMN6%ARIE - ZERE WA
DEREANEBETAEE ( [A
AEEFAEBRZ] ) HeREE Ik
THREAGHNBEEREL LR AE
RAE RFIE -

GEE
() ZEEUERUUREAEENSEE
R R T -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group

RERRLEEY
#EH

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
B —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHIT
Cash on hand and bank balances BIFIR & MIRIT4E % 2,281,001 1,702,855
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITENX 985 16,675
2,281,986 1,719,530

Company ¥ NN
As at 31 December

R+=—H=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHIT
Cash and cash equivalents R MRSEEY 134,962 23,128

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the pledged bank
deposits are pledged to banks for the issuance of guarantees
by the banks to the grantors in respect of the specific
performance duties by the Group under certain service
concession agreements.

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are deposits of
HK$199,771,000 and HK$253,470,000, respectively, placed
with a related party bank, which is a fellow subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$2,248,575,000 and HK$1,675,469,000, respectively.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

KRB —FR_FE_FF+_A4
=—+—H8 BEEBETEHERTER
17 BRAEBERE T RIGEFEE S
BHINEEBAOSEMREITRREA
ZEHPER -

KRB —FR_FE_FF+-A4
=—+t—H AEE [ReKREEE
Y| BREFERRAAR B S RT (H
BARNBRZEZNBAR) 27 75
#$199,771,000/8 7T 2. 253,470,000/8 7T °

KRB —FR_FE_FF+_-A4
=+—H AEBNUAREFENES
MBS EEWH R AE2,248,575,0008
7T 1,675,469,000/8 7T - ARETEE
Bl LB EMER - AW RIEPH
A (IMEEBIRIEG) K (KE - SiE
LNEEEHRTE) - AEE A HBRER
MR EINE ZE TS 2 SRITHE AR B A
HiphE¥ o
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (cont’d) 25.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, cash at banks of the n=
Group and the Company were considered to be of low credit
risk, and thus the Group has assessed that the ECL for cash
at banks is immaterial under the 12-month expected losses

method.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

RITFIRZEE

R TF RNE
B2 HRTT

/7

— =

MHRE

EBEERTEAXN -

26. BENRARHMEMNK

RERAEEEY (&

TR EEH fE‘dTTqA,

|

—FR_E
——1— H ZK%.&ZK/A\EE"]IEi
Tﬂ@?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁifmf@ﬁ’* - A
b AEERRET (B OB
WEFmEe MRS
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)

*_ C MEBEEX
KETE o RITHE

%Eﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé%@%ﬂ

H*
NH

TE+ -

=

HFEMOEBRE

Group rEE
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—AH
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Trade payables JETER IR 2,307,616 1,796,446
Dividend payable to a non-controlling ER—REEENMBA _TZ
shareholder of a non wholly-owned *%3'5? ARARER 2 IR 2
subsidiary - 17,025
Interest payable FERIFI S, 125,637 85,745
Payable for acquisition FE U BB R IR 10,023 9,713
Tax payables FERI IR 30,977 23,103
Other creditors and accrued expenses E@f HERFA N EET B A 741,420 608,906
Total pake] 3,215,673 2,540,938
Company AKATH
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —F-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEA B 8 A RIFE 14,221 2,695
Interest payable FERTFI B, 126,051 85,699
Other creditors and accrued expenses ﬁﬁﬂf‘i R R EATE R 7,267 10,859

Total

“aza 147,539

99,253
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26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cont’d)

Included in “Trade and other payables” are trade payables
with the following ageing analysis based on the date of
invoice as at the end of the reporting period:

FEN AR R AN TR ()

At A TENERREEMEMRIE] 8%
FEfRRT - IIBERAHRTE - HNWR
EHRZREDITIAT

Group AEE
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T TFET
Within 6 months TZRNEA 1,451,077 1,289,456
Over 6 months FBA7~E A 856,539 506,990
2,307,616 1,796,446

Trade payables totalling HK$1,742,243,000 and
HK$1,085,901,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively represent construction payables for the Group’s
BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements. The construction
payables are not yet due for payment.

Included in “Trade payables” of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 were trade payables of HK$80,889,000
and HK$1,355,000, respectively, due to non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries, which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on credit terms similar
to those offered by the non-controlling shareholder to its
major customers.

Included in “Trade payables” of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 were trade payables of HK$12,970,000 and
HK$6,962,000, respectively, due to an associate, which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on credit terms similar
to those offered by the associate to its major customers.

Included in “Other creditors and accrued expenses” of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was a guarantee
deposit of HK$14,102,000 and HK$14,148,000, respectively,
from a former director of a subsidiary.

KRB —FR_FE_FF+_H4
=+t—H AEEESK—EE—BR -
ER—HEEENEEEE R
TH T EETRRENRES G H
1,742,243,000/% 7T }%.1,085,901,000/8
TC o EE TR EN BB AR EAFE -

RZEZ—FR_E_FTF+_=A
=+—H  FFALREEN [ERER]
BIEEMAIEZENB QG M IETE KRR
HHEEZR D R A80,889,000/8 T &
1,355,000/ 7T * MHEAFIAREEA -
RENRBREZIIERBRRETEETE
X EEHRENEERERE -

RZEZ—FR-_E-_FTF+_-A8
=t+—H stALXER [EFAER]
BIEEN—MBE AR 2B DR A
12,970,000 7t }2.6,962,0007& 7T * #H
FSEAEEE - B RAEKRZHE R
AR TEIFERFEEHEANEEH

fEI& -

RZEZ—FR-_FE-_FTF+_A8
=+—H  sFAREE [HAENFRIA
LETER| AE—EHBARN—%F
AIEE = 2 ERIEE D R /414,102,000
BT 114,148,000/ 7T °
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26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cont’d)

Included in “Other creditors and accrued expenses” of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 were other payables
of HK$228,468,000 (31 December 2020: nil),
non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary,
which are unsecured, interest-bearing at the rates announced

by the PBOC and repayable on demand.

Included in “Other creditors and accrued expenses” of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 were other payables of
HK$20,508,000 (31 December 2020: nil) due to an associate,

due to a

26. ENRE

SE [HMENS

R B IR A A

RN H A FEA R

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H"
KIE N EETE A ’PE%
EN—MFEE2EWER
Hﬁﬁzﬁ{ﬁ%1ﬁ%@§228,468,0005§ﬁ
(ZE2-_TF+-_A=+—H: &)

259 u

XE (%)
FEAR
ARy — & FFFER

BHRBEARRITIA

ﬁﬁmiﬂjfu-l— g &//\}KEX1EE

SE [HiEMNS

RZE-—4F+=-HA=+—H"
E&ﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁ

TEPET — B 2 2 B B9 E b JE N 5B

FEAR

which are payment of performance appraisal awards and VAT 20,508,000 7T (ZZE=_FF+_H
tax refunds on behalf of local government. =+—B: &)  HRAKRMITBTE
VR E R SR IR ETRT ©
BORROWINGS 27. f5E
Group REE
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
R-B-_—%+-A=+—-H RZZTTF+-A=+—H
Maturity HK$’000 Maturity HK$’000
E# A FTET FHIA FHET
Non-current JEENER
Bank loans — secured %Eﬁiéff"k BHEF 2023-2039 1,952,995  2022-2039 1,427,715
Bank loans — unsecured  $RYTE N — EIKIH 2023-2037 5,522,513 2022-2037 4,334,917
Bonds payable - J?’%Nﬁ%‘ - RiH
secured (note 28) (Ky5E28) 2023 168,679  2022-2023 230,385
Bonds payable - FER &% - EEM
unsecured (note 28) (F¥5E28) 2023-2024 3,405,723  2022-2023 2,838,443
11,049,910 8,831,460
Current B HA
Bank loans - secured IRTTE - HEE 2022 316,454 2021 153,857
Bank loans — unsecured  $RYTE X - EIKHF 2022 1,299,777 2021 1,087,316
Bonds payable - FEf &2 - HHEM
secured (note 28) (BzE28) 2022 69,060 2021 63,371
Bonds payable — JERIES - I
unsecured (note 28) (Mf5E28) 2022 1,706,737 2021 942,129
3,392,028 2,246,673
14,441,938 11,078,133
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27. BORROWINGS (cont’d) 21. B8 (&)

Company RATH

As at 31 December 2021
R-ZB-—-%+-A=+-—H

As at 31 December 2020
RZZEZTF+H=+—H

Maturity HK$’000 Maturity HK$'000
FHA THET FHEIA T
Non-current JERNER
Bank loans - secured RITEF - BER 2025 410,804 2025 528,576
Bank loans — unsecured  R{TE R — EAEH 2023-2024 2,230,616 2022-2024 1,762,790
Bonds payable - FERES - miEA
unsecured (note 28) (My7E28) 2023-2024 3,405,723 2022-2023 2,838,443
6,047,143 5,129,809
Current BN
Bank loans - secured RITER - BEM 2022 120,854 2021 120,154
Bank loans - unsecured  SRITE K - KR 2022 1,069,769 2021 892,365
Bonds payable - B EZ - IR
unsecured (note 28) (MI7E28) 2022 1,706,737 2021 942,129
2,897,360 1,954,648
8,944,503 7,084,457
Group A EE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—A8
2021 2020
B —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FA&T
Analysed into: vox ik
Bank loans repayable: AR THIERERE 2 RITEK ¢
Within one year or on demand —FANIZEK 1,616,231 1,241,173
In the second year FF 1,958,007 1,081,372
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEEFRFT (BIEERWT) 3,214,798 2,865,366
Beyond five years hFE 2,302,703 1,815,894
9,091,739 7,003,805
Bonds payable repayable: AR THHREECENES
Within one year or on demand —FRFIREK 1,775,797 1,005,500
In the second year FF 2,352,103 1,724,645
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FEFRF (BEEEME) 1,222,299 1,344,183
5,350,199 4,074,328

Total

14,441,938

11,078,133
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27. BORROWINGS (cont’d) 27. f{EE (#)
Company RAF]
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —F-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: AR TSI HARER 2 RITER -
Within one year or on demand —FAFIRER 1,190,623 1,012,519
In the second year F-F 1,092,348 846,795
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZFEZERFT (BREEHEEMTE) 1,549,072 1,444,571

3,832,043 3,303,885

Bonds payable repayable: AR T HRERE CENES

Within one year or on demand —FRHIREK 1,706,737 942,129

In the second year FF 2,183,424 1,657,721

In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FE2FERTF (BREEMT) 1,222,299 1,180,722

5,112,460 3,780,572

Total ke 8,944,503 7,084,457
Certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by AEEETRITERRERUANEEAR

%%ﬁpwgw&zmﬁaum BHE
=~ RUGE M BT EEANRAR *T%

certain revenue, contract assests, receivables and intangible
assets in connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements and the equity interests in certain subsidiaries. FHBA TZJ&%VE#&W RZE=

Such banking facilities, amounting to HK$4,308,051,000 FER-ZZE-FFF+-_A=+—H " %
and HK$3,193,828,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, ZRITEREE D A /R4,308,051,000
respectively, were utilised to the extent of HK$2,269,449,000 7T 13,193,828,000% 7T * HRIE B

and HK$1,581,572,000 respectively.

The unsecured banking facilities, amounting to
HK$11,047,629,000 and HK$9,572,153,000 as at 31
December 2021 and 2020, respectively, were utilised to
the extent of HK$6,822,290,000 and HK$5,422,233,000,
respectively. Among the unsecured banking facilities of
the Group, HK$996,964,000 and HK$995,384,000 are
guaranteed by the Company as at 31 December 2021
and 2020, respectively, and were utilised to the extent of
HK$696,964,000 and HK$695,384,000 as at 31 December
2021 and 2020, respectively.

2,269,449,000/8 7T 521,581,572,000/8 7T °

F_é:—iﬁ_;_7¢+ A
=+—8  EEFFRTERBES A
11,047,629,000,%7E&9,572,153,000
BT D RIEEA6,822,290,000
T ]2 5,422,233,0008 T © fEANE
lﬂ%fﬁ?ﬁﬂfﬁ”“rﬂé$ N —

—TE-ZTFE+-_A=+—HH 7
£996,964,00078 7T 2 995,384,000
BITEARBER EA_Y_ &
F—E-TF+-_A=+—H  9HIE
EJJEH696,964,000;‘%%)&2695,384,000
HBIT
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27.

BORROWINGS (cont’d)

Banking facilities of HK$8,368,757,000 and
HK$7,948,884,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. At 31 December
2021 and 2020, such facilities were utilised to the extent of
HK$6,285,589,000 and HK$5,227,683,000, respectively.
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Certain banking facilities also restrict some of the
Company'’s subsidiaries from declaring or paying dividends to
shareholders without obtaining prior written approval of the
banks or require the Group to process waste water treatment
operating fee via respective financial institutions. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out
in note 40.

Bank loans of HK$9,091,739,000 and HK$7,003,805,000
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively, bear
interest at variable rates ranging from 1.29% to 4.90%
and 1.21% to 4.66% per annum, and bonds payable
of HK$5,350,199,000 and HK$4,074,328,000 as at
31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively, bears interest
at fixed rates ranging from 3.20% to 3.89% per annum and
2.98% to 4.60% per annum.

The Group’s bank loans of HK$1,108,516,000 and
HK$1,221,637,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, are denominated in US$, HK$4,562,732,000
and HK$3,004,537,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, are denominated in RMB, HK$21,133,000
and HK$28,096,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, are denominated in EUR, HK$3,399,358,000
and HK$2,749,535,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, are denominated in HKS.
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BONDS PAYABLE 28. EES
Group REH
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F T THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Non-current JEBNHR
Asset-backed securities - secured BEYEFES — GiK# 168,679 230,385
Corporate bonds - unsecured NEMES — EEHF 965,958 1,657,720
Medium term notes - unsecured FRHRER Y — IR 2,439,765 1,180,723
3,574,402 3,068,828
Current BN EA
Asset-backed securities - secured BESEFES — GiEH# 69,060 63,371
Corporate bonds - unsecured NEESH — EILHF 1,706,737 942,129
1,775,797 1,005,500
Total k] 5,350,199 4,074,328
Company /N
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
2021 2020
—B--F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Non-current JEBNHR
Corporate bonds - unsecured NEES — EBIEHA 965,958 1,657,720
Medium term notes - unsecured FHRSR R — R 2,439,765 1,180,723
3,405,723 2,838,443
Current BN EA
Corporate bonds - unsecured NaEEH — BRI 1,706,737 942,129
1,706,737 942,129
Total k] 5,112,460 3,780,572
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28.

BONDS PAYABLE (cont’d)

On 15 January 2021, the Company issued the second
tranche of RMB-denominated MTN of RMB1 billion,
before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an
interest rate at 3.75% per annum, and a maturity period
of 3 years from the issuance date. The interest shall
be paid annually from 16 January 2021 and up to the
maturity date. On 10 August 2021, the Company issued
the first tranche of RMB-denominated SCP of RMB800
million, with an interest rate at 2.40% per annum and
redemption date of 8 December 2021. The interest
shall be paid on the redemption date together with the
principal. The Company has repaid the principal and
interest of the first tranche of RMB-denominated SCP on
8 December 2021.

On 4 April 2020, the Company received a notice of registration
acceptance issued by National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors of the People’s Republic of
China in respect of MTN, with a registered principal amount
of RMBS3 billion, effective for two years since the notice was
issued. On 4 August 2020, the Company issued the first
tranche of RMB-denominated MTN with a principal amount
of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,704,000,
with an interest rate at 3.60% per annum, and a maturity
period of 3 years from the issuance date. The interest
shall be paid annually from 5 August 2020 and up to the
redemption date.

The Company submitted the application to the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (“SSE”) on 28 November 2019 for a
possible issuance of ABS by Everbright Water (Shenzhen)
Limited (“Shenzhen Water”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, to qualified investors in the PRC pursuant
to an asset-backed securities scheme (the “Scheme”). On
26 March 2020, the SSE issued a no-objection letter
(the “No-objection Letter”) confirming that it has no
objections to the potential issuance of ABS. Pursuant to the
No-objection Letter, the issuance size of the ABS shall not
be more than RMB300 million and the issuance of ABS
shall be completed within 12 months from the date of the
No-objection Letter.

On 17 June 2020, the ABS were successfully issued with
total amount of RMB300 million, of which the preference ABS
amounting to RMB285 million were subscribed by qualified
investors in the PRC and the subordinate ABS amounting to
RMB15 million was subscribed by Shenzhen Water.
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28.

BONDS PAYABLE (cont’d)

The original beneficiary of the securities is Shenzhen Water.
The underlying assets of the ABS are the rights, of three
project companies in Liaoning Province in relation to four
waste water treatment projects, to receive waste water
treatment fees during a specific period of five years starting
from 1 March 2020. The relevant project companies have
pledged part of the underlying assets in favor of the Scheme.

The preference ABS are classified into five classes based on
the maturity dates of such preference ABS, comprising:

(a) Preference ABS 01 of RMB50,000,000 (“Preference
ABS 17);

(b) Preference ABS 02 of RMB54,500,000 (“Preference
ABS 2);

(c) Preference ABS 03 of RMB57,000,000 (“Preference
ABS 3");

(d) Preference ABS 04 of RMB60,500,000 (“Preference
ABS 4"); and

(e) Preference ABS 05 of RMB63,000,000 (“Preference
ABS 5).

The principal and interest of the preference ABS are
repayable pursuant to the repayment schedule of the
Scheme, with an interest rate ranging from between
3.38% to 3.99% per annum. The Company has the
option to adjust the interest rate of Preference ABS
4 and Preference ABS 5 before 26 March 2023 (“the
12" Repayment Date”), to increase or decrease
interest rate of no more than 200 base points
(1 base point equals to 0.01%). The holders of Preference
ABS 4 and Preference ABS 5 have an option to sell back
the notes to the original beneficiary at the nominal price,
and the exercisable period of this option is from the 26™ day
before the 12" Repayment Date to the 17" day before the
12" Repayment Date.

28.
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28.

BONDS PAYABLE (cont’d)

In 2021, the Company repaid the principal of RMB13,000,000
(FY2020: RMB37,000,000) of the Preference ABS 1 and
RMB40,500,000 (FY2020: nil) of the Preference ABS 2
according to the principal repayment schedule.

On 21 July 2017, the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement with the relevant financial institution in relation
to the issue of RMB-denominated corporate bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of not exceeding RMB2.5 billion
(the “Corporate Bond”) to the qualified investors in the PRC.

On 24 July 2017 (the “First Issue Date”), the Company
issued the first tranche of the Corporate Bond with
principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related expenses
of RMB5,964,000, with a maturity period of five years from
the First Issue Date. The first tranche of the Corporate Bond
bears interest at a rate of 4.55% per annum and the interest
will be repayable by the Company annually from the First
Issue Date and up to the maturity date. According to the
terms of the Corporate Bond, after three years from the First
Issue Date, the Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate
of the first tranche of the Corporate Bond for the remaining
two years before the maturity date. The Company will
announce the adjustment in interest rate, if any, 20 working
days prior to the payment of the interest for the third year
after the First Issue Date. The bondholders have an option
to sell back the first tranche of the Corporate Bond to the
Company at the nominal price, and the exercisable period of
this option is five working days immediately after the issuance
of the Company’s announcement related to the adjustment in
interest rate of the first tranche of the Corporate Bond.

On 24 June 2020, the Company had announced the
adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the First Tranche
of the Corporate Bond from 4.55% per annum to 3.28% per
annum for the period from 24 July 2020 to 23 July 2022. The
Company had repurchased the First Tranche of the Corporate
Bond totaling RMB650,000,000, of which RMB350,000,000
had been resold and the remaining RMB300,000,000 had
been cancelled.

28.

ENES (F)

—E-—F > ARAREFEZER
BFERRXEETEAREEIHESFIN
AK413,000,000 ARE (T —-F
4 : 37,000,000 ARE) MELHFE
BE X EE2H A4 40,500,000 AR
B (ZF=2F:8) -

RZT—tFEA=+—H  ARFH
APESRIREERTAAREHER
THRBETEBSEITARBHEN QR
B ( [DFES] ) BAESREE
FNESLE

N_ZT—+&F+A=+mAE ( [BX
BITHH] )  AQREITEHAK
TELHEAI0EBTARE (KB
5,964,000t A REE R ) HAFIME
5 HIRB\EXETHBRTARR
FoB—UWRAEEFLFENEL.55%
AERAARBERENETHEER
FEBALESFEARE - REQARME
527K BERETHHBH=ZF
% ARREEFAEE—MWAAES
REBBBRISG TREZFERNR o« KA
AR EREITHEE  INE=ZF
K F B AT201E TVE B Ao F | R
H1E5 (nF) - EEBEBEABE—E
HigE - nREEEREBEE ARG
HFER FARNA o ZIBEAEANITFE H
AEBARRZEHEBEARE —BHA
REABRZAMENREIIER -

RZTZZZTFNAZ+MEE - AR
AERAMEBE —HARBEFNE
HAMEXFAE R_ZT_ZFTFLA
—tHRBRE-_E-_—_HF#+ A -_+=
AIFHAREEmAERL.55% THZE

3.28% c ARAAIBEHEREE QA
54 650,000,000 ARE - Heb
350,000,000t AREBIFESE - ME
£:300,000,0007C A REE B S ©

T

=



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
e

267 .

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

28.

BONDS PAYABLE (cont’d)

On 16 August 2018 (the “Second Issue Date”), the Company
issued the second tranche of the Corporate Bond with
principal amount of RMB800 million, before related expenses
of RMB4,171,000, with a maturity period of five years from the
Second Issue Date. The second tranche of the Corporate Bond
comprises two types of bonds: (i) bonds with principal amount
of RMB400 million which bear interest at a rate of 4.60% per
annum, and (i) bonds with principal amount of RMB400 million
which bear interest at a rate of 4.58% per annum. The interest
will be repayable by the Company annually from the Second
Issue Date and up to the maturity date. According to the terms
of the Corporate Bond, after three years from the Second Issue
Date, the Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate of the
second tranche of the Corporate Bond for the remaining two
years before the maturity date. The Company will announce
the adjustment in interest rate, if any, 20 working days prior to
the payment of the interest for the third year after the Second
Issue Date. The bondholders have an option to sell back the
second tranche of the Corporate Bond to the Company at the
nominal price, and the exercisable period of this option is five
working days immediately after the issuance of the Company’s
announcement related to the adjustment in interest rate of the
second tranche of the Corporate Bond.

On 19 July 2021, the Company announced the adjustment
of the interest rate in respect of the first type of the second
tranche of the Corporate Bond from 4.60% per annum to
3.20% per annum for the period from 16 August 2021 to 15
August 2023. On 19 July 2021, the Company announced the
adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the second type
of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond from 4.58% per
annum to 3.20% per annum for the period from 16 August
2021 to 15 August 2023.

The Company repurchased the first type of second
tranche of the Corporate Bond totaling RMB79,100,000,
of which RMB70,000,000 was resold and the remaining
RMB9,100,000 was cancelled on 12 August 2021.The
Company had repurchased the second type of second
tranche of the Corporate Bond totaling RMB183,050,000,
of which RMB180,000,000 was resold and the remaining
RMB3,050,000 had been cancelled on 12 August 2021.
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28.

29.

BONDS PAYABLE (cont’d)

On 21 January 2019 (the “Third Issue Date”), the Company
issued the third tranche of the Corporate Bond with principal
amount of RMB700 million, before related expenses of
RMB3,632,000, with a maturity period of five years from the
Third Issue Date. The third tranche of the Corporate Bond
bears interest at a rate of 3.89% per annum. The interest will
be repayable by the Company annually from the Third Issue
Date and up to the maturity date. According to the terms of
the Corporate Bond, after three years from the Third Issue
Date, the Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate of
the third tranche of the Corporate Bond for the remaining
two years before the maturity date. The Company will
announce the adjustment in interest rate, if any, 20 working
days prior to the payment of the interest for the third year
after the Third Issue Date. The bondholders have an option
to sell back the third tranche of the Corporate Bond to the
Company at the nominal price, and the exercisable period of
this option is five working days immediately after the issuance
of the Company’s announcement related to the adjustment in
interest rate of the third tranche of the Corporate Bond.

DEFERRED TAX
Group

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the financial year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

28.

29.
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adjustments arising
from acquisition

of a subsidiary
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At 1 January 2021 RZ_ZE-—F—H—H -
Deferred tax from acquisition of WEEMT B A REAR

a subsidiary (note 32) BIERIEEE (M3E32) 8,122

Deferred tax charged to profit or loss MR B A EETIE (2,107)

Exchange realignment bE 5 S 112

At 31 December 2021 RZTEZ—F
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DEFERRED TAX (cont’d)

20. EEHE (F])

269 u

Deferred tax liabilities BRI E (E
Temporary
Fair value differences
adjustments on assets
arising from recognised
acquisition of under
subsidiaries IFRIC 12  Undistributed
WEREARM RIBEEBR profits of
EEXZAREBE SRBZEEE  subsidiaries
B 12RERZEE HEAT  Others Total
ZERHER ROEEF Hity ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
TR THET THET TET TET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZT-_TF—A
—H 175,641 1,094,246 239,362 (12,893) 1,496,256
Deferred tax charged/ 30/ (5t A) Bz
(credited) to profit or  HVEICFHIE
loss (11,624) 135,189 53,578 12,490 189,633
Exchange realignment (& i 3% 13,897 82,495 19,164 374 115,930
At 31 December 2020 HZZT=TF+=H
and 1 January 2021 =t+t—-Bk=%
——%—Hf—H 177,814 1,311,930 312,104 (29) 1,801,819
Deferred tax charged/ B/ (FFA) B&
(credited) to profit or FIEER I
loss (8,951) 119,322 89,166 - 199,537
Exchange realignment [ 5 5% 7,055 43,929 11,398 ) 62,381
At 31 December 2021 HRZZ=—F+=H
=+—H 175,918 1,475,181 412,668 (30) 2,083,737

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Mainland China

of approximately HK$107,188,000 and HK$82,705,000 as at

31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively, that will expire in
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets in respect of such tax losses arising in Mainland China
have not been recognised as they have arisen in certain
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX (cont’d)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company

29.

30.
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As at 31 December
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2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
Authorised: ETE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000% &I &
par value of HK$1.00 each 1.0078 7T & m A% 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: [RELERPSEE S G
2,860,876,723 ordinary shares of 2,860,876,723 I FAREE
par value of HK$1.00 each 1.00/8 70 AL @AY 2,860,877 2,860,877
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SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d) 30. K& ()
A summary of movements in share capital is as follows: RAZEBHELNT :
Group and Company NEERAA T
Number of
shares in
issue Share Share
ERTRG capital  premium Total
EgE] &N B 1058 #EE
‘000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FEx FEx AR
At 1 January 2020, Eéfgfzci A—8"
1 January 2021 and T —F-A-HEK
31 December 2021 —F-—%+—H
=+—H 2,860,877 2,860,877 1,599,765 4,460,642
RESERVES 31. @&
Notes Group Company
MiaE AEE AKATH
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BR+=—RA=+—H R+=—RA=+—H
2021 2020 2021 2020
=B —F —ZT-TF ZB--F _—T_TF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FETT THERT FH&T
Share premium I 5% 8 1,599,765 1,599,765 389,715 389,715
Foreign currency SN IR B (i)
translation reserve 598,589 125,211 (165,782) (508,101)
Statutory reserve SETE R (i) 578,129 524,810 - -
Contributed surplus ~ #IAZERFE B (iii)
reserve 1,229,302 1,229,302 7,639,082 7,639,082
Other reserves H 1 (iv) 8,203 8,203 64,953 64,953
Retained earnings RE B 4,995,218 4,186,125 465,815 184,693
9,009,206 7,673,416 8,393,783 7,770,342
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31. RESERVES (cont’d)

Notes:

U

(i)

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the Company and foreign
operations whose functional currencies are different
from the Group’s presentation currency.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the subsidiaries in the PRC are
required to allocate 10% of the statutory after tax
profits to the statutory reserve until the cumulative
total of the reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital. Subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities, the statutory reserve may
be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase
the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders of the PRC subsidiaries.

Contributed surplus reserve

Contributed surplus reserve arose from the reduction
of share premium. Pursuant to the special resolution at
the Special General Meeting of the Company held on
15 December 2015, the entire amount standing to the
credit of the Company’s share premium was reduced
to nil and transferred to the contributed surplus
reserve.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise capital reserve and other
reserve.

#E (&)

B AE
U

(i)

SN

SN E R ERE e EEE
AEBFIREETRNARE R
HIBINETS 2 B MR FTE LR
PESEZERE o

ETE R

RIBERNTEKERRH (F
EARKAMBERRE) - HBR
RIZBENATE AL B - RE
RE  ED10%RDEERTIER
NMABDEEERERHE  BEERG
RFHEREENB AR EMER
M150% &1k » AR Bl R =
% - SRE MR A BRI
RETETIRIE T B N R R
AR XERBTEARATE
AR BRRIRAS AR,

BARERFERE

BARRFESTBERTEER
MBROEE - RE_F—AF+
—ATREBARRABETORERIK
RASATEBNEFRDRESR - K
NREARMEENEASBRAET

W= AR

HAb

HibEEREE A A MR
e
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32.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 21 January 2021, one of the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, BEWIM signed an equity transfer
agreement, the supplementary agreement to the equity
transfer agreement and the cooperation agreement with
Tianjin Binhai Environmental Protection Asset Development
Co., Ltd. to acquire 65% interest in Tianjin Huantang.
Tianjin Huantang is principally engaged in waste water
treatment and recycling; pipeline engineering; municipal
engineering; construction, management, operation, technical
consultation and ancillary services of waste water treatment
and reusable water facilities; research and development
and operation of environmental protection technology and
environmental protection products; renewable resources
utilization and operation; sludge dewatering treatment and its
application. The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy to expand the water business of the Group. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form
of cash, with consideration for the acquisition amounting
to RMB666,336,000 (equivalent to HK$800,136,000). The
acquisition was completed on 1 March 2021.

As of 31 December 2021, the purchase price accounting
for the business combination of Tianjin Huantang was
completed. The table below sets forth the fair values of
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed recognised at the
acquisition date.

32.

e SN

RZEBEZ—F—H=+—H  ARA
2E M B AR 24 FUKIK B K EE G
RREFXFEREBRRAFAEZETERE
RepeR - ERXSERBRm®EK
EEHZE  WIBRXERESNWHR
o RERETFTENESKEENLS

EFA EBIRE mﬁlﬁiﬁm
RHKEBmrER - B8 - &%F - &
MBARRERYS  RREEEERR
EmNifgags  BEERMAK
g TREMILRIENREER - bR
UG B 2 AR B B4 ROK TS = A B RS A9 —
o o X KENBEBEREBUREE

AL BEREA666,336,0007T
AR (%{E8800,136,000/&7T) °
ARWER T -—F=F—H=%MK -

HEe—_ZT2-—F+-_A=+—H ' X
EREEBEMAVKBERZED T
B e TERPIEEKEHE ®RA
BRIEERBEZAREE-
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32.  BUSINESS COMBINATION (cont’d) 32,  EKAH (E)

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

WEAERZ

AREE

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment M - B M 898,601
Intangible assets BLEE 28
Right-of-use assets EREEE 94,143
Trade and other receivables JrE LA BR K B LAt FE U 3008 379,585
Cash and cash equivalents REMRSEEY 5,520
Inventories FE 9,217
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 8,122
Current liabilities mEBaRE (469,057)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAREES R A PR

BEFEAE 936,159
Non-controlling interests PR (327,656)
608,503

Goodwill on acquisition W FTE A v P8 191,633
Satisfied by cash REFNEE 800,136

The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at the RUEER - & HQE‘E?X&E@EH} 7
date of acquisition amounted to HK$379,585,000. The B2 AR EEA379,585,000/8 7T °

gross contractual amount of trade and other receivables was
HK$546,296,000, of which HK$166,711,000 is expected to
be uncollectible.

The non-controlling interests in Tianjin Huantang recognised
at the acquisition date was measured with reference to the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value
of net assets of Tianjin Huantang at that date.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$4,453,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs were expensed and
included in “Administrative and other operating expenses” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

JE LSRR SR K H At FE W IR M) AR R
546,296,000/8 7T * H+166,711,000
AILTRHIEAKE -

RFBIRENIFE IR S L R IR
an BB AMGREREEEFE
ZRRBEMLHIRETEMHER -

REBRZBRGELEZR KA S
4,453,000 7T - BB ZKAE RE
2T - —F+-_A=+—8-HM
MEREE2mB SR Wt A (17
BMEMELEER] o
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (cont’d) 32. EBEH (&)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of EHREXEREZRETESTOT:
Tianjin Huantang is as follows:

Year ended
31 December 2021
BE+=A
=t+—-HLEFE
HK$°000
FTHET
Cash consideration HERE (800,136)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WiEIR & RIR e EEY 5,520
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FFAREBEERERE
included in cash flows from investing activites ~ (R& MIR & EHEYR L FEE (794,616)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FTAKEEEFERERE
in cash flows from operating activities Z W EE R B AN (4,453)
(799,069)
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group’s goodwill ANEBMNEEEREBEESRE HHERYIM
at the beginning and end of the reporting period is presented HARM ST
below:
HK$’000
FHET
Gross carrying amount EEEFETE
At 1 January 2021 n= E A—H 1,295,475
Acquisition of a subsidiary Hﬁl,ﬁﬁ? 191,633
Exchange realignment IE)DL%J%%? 44,468
At 31 December 2021 W_ZE_—F+_HA=+—H 1,531,576
Net book value FREFE
At 1 January 2021 RZE——F—HF—H 1,295,475
At 31 December 2021 WZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H 1,531,576
The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Tianjin Huantang W RS KB IRIE T E A & a] 52 AR K
is attributable to the future growth and profitability in relation FEEBRKEIEEMEREE S - FAERE
to the water business. None of the goodwill recognised is RHI R RN TEEL o

expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.
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32.

33.

34.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (cont’d)

Since the acquisition, Tianjin Huantang contributed
HK$192,521,000 to the Group’s revenue and a loss of
HK$41,624,000 to the consolidated profit for the ten months
ended 31 December 2021.

Had the acquisition taken place on 1 January 2021, the
consolidated revenue and profit for the twelve months
ended 31 December 2021 of the Group would have been
HK$6,959,929,000 and HK$1,297,162,000, respectively. In
determining these amounts, management assumed that the
fair value adjustments to the acquired assets and liabilities
that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021.

ACQUISITION OF A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

On 25 August 2020, the Company has, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Everbright Water (Nanjing) Limited,
increased its shareholding in Everbright Industrial Waste
Water Treatment Nanjing Limited (“Nanjing IWWT”)
from 60% to 100% by acquiring the remaining 40% (the
“Target Equity”) from an independent third party, Nanjing
Zhuohong Environmental Protection Technology Co.,
Ltd., with whom it had jointly incorporated Nanjing IWWT
(the “Acquisition”). The purchase consideration for the
Acquisition was RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$28,990,000).

The Company recognised a decrease in non-controlling
interests and an increase in other reserve of HK$39,374,000
and HK$10,384,000, respectively.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, the interest expenses on corporate
bonds and MTN of HK$118,188,000 and
HK$76,418,000, respectively, were not yet
settled by the Group, and recorded in “Trade
and other payables” in the consolidated
statements of financial position as at
31 December 2021 and 2020, and have no
cash flow impact to the Group.

32.

33.

34.

EBE6 (H)

glUksER  HE—_E-_—E+=-A=+
—BHEASM  XKERERAEER
A A 192,521,000 7T © M ALGE R
RS T E51841,624,00078 7T ©

WEWBR — T - —F—A— BT
rEEHEE_E-_—F+_A=+—H
I+ =l A WS BA KRBT
7,\5\1&6,959,929,000/%%&1 ,297,162,000
BT FEFZESLRE  BEERR
ﬁ%EW%F_g_—E A—B3%
£ ZEWBRSEENBERKEER
HIFTEL 2 AR BEARDARR -

WhE — R FFERERS

—EFEFNAZF+AHH  AAQA
BRAE2EMBRAR N AKE (@
R) BRARB —RBULE=ZFR
A MREMREREAERAR K
BYXARKIEREKEERERARAQ A
( [MEIZEREK]| ) F&m40%
BRAE( W] ) MAEMATX

REIK A BRAE W 60%IE INZE100% ©
MQB%W%F%% 000,000 A R ¥
( %1E%728,990, 00057%) o

R EE B RERIEERR AE 2R 39,374,000
BT R B A AN10,384,00008 7T °

RERSREBRME

@ ERFRERH
(i)

9
||
%!

AW | B
ﬂlﬁ#ﬁﬂ?%
50

\‘
o
—_
i;
ooOO
OA
©
\U?#oo
o
Ho
o
}%Eﬂ)ﬁ

Wﬁ#ﬂ%%fﬁﬁ%m
REMEAEHE] B

SEWERCREXE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
—EC-FEHE

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

34.

277 «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 34, HZEBRESREBXRMTE (E)
CASH FLOWS (cont’d)
(@  Major non-cash transactions (cont’d) @ EXRFHR2RHS (&)

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the (ii) BHE-_T-_FTF+=A
non-controlling shareholder of a non-wholly- =+—HILFE —H3F*F
owned subsidiary made capital contribution TEMB AR —RIEE
of HK$5,059,000 to the non-wholly-owned f&% B SR @i AT 759
subsidiary by using dividends declared in 2019, :%—hi”ﬂﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬂﬁ
and have no cash flow impact to the Group. ZIIEETEWE L RE §

5,059,000/%7E £J$E
Bl EREREFE -
()  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)y BEITBAMEANBES
Dividend
payable to
non-controlling
shareholders
of non
wholly-owned
subsidiaries
Bonds Interest {2 EM
Bank loans  payable  payable B2 RFEER
RITER ENEF EAFRE BRRRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
TEn TET TiEn TER
At 1 January 2020 —“E-ZTF—A—H 6,317,168 2,762,528 84,858 20,931
Changes from financing cash mﬂ‘léfﬁémgﬁiﬁﬁ
flows o 500,782 1,061,672 (334,334) -
Finance costs BER - - 34879 -
Capital contribution by a —HfB AR —%
non-controling shareholder FEERR R R BB
of a subsidiary by using RZE-NFERK
dividends declared in 2019 W% BVE BT ER - - - (5,059)
Foreign exchange movement i 5 185,855 250,128 (13,574) 1,153
At 31 December 2020 and e 2 g ﬂ
1 January 2021 =t+—HKkZZTZ
—A—H 7,003,805 4,074,328 85,745 17,025
Changes from RERSNEEEN
financing cash flows & 1,954,886 1,120,423 (380,488) (43,956)
Finance costs HBER - - 435302 -
Dividends declared to B EYN L
non-controlling shareholders — R IR
of subsidiaries EIRARE - - - 26,582
Foreign exchange e 5 &
movement 133,048 155,448 (14,922 349
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-f
=+—H 9,091,739 5,350,199 125,637 -
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34.

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 34, HZEBRESREBXRMTE (E)
CASH FLOWS (cont’d)
(c)  Total cash outflow for leases (© HEReS R HAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FERERERMHFHEERESM
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: ﬁZ%ﬂ%ﬁEQDT
Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-A=t+—HLHEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F ZEFCFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FAT
Within operating activities EREEEP 2,835 3,593
Within financing activities ERtE )R8+ 10,584 10,402
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EEERH
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s ABS PLA SR E B E X 5 RIRAT Efﬁﬁi
and banking facilities are included in notes 27 and 28. The EME TEMR2AEBEEZFIB
aggregate net book values of assets and equity interests in ﬁiﬁf1?27&28 RZF —_$ 54
subsidiaries pledged amounted to HK$8,509,838,000 and —E-EFF-AZ j B 2K
HK$4,677,087,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, HAE LM E AR B EZ ®K®E
respectively. FMEDA%8,509,838,0008 T &
4,677,087,000/ ¢ °
COMMITMENTS 36. EiE
(@  The Group had the following commitments as at the (@) AEERSIEmMRERAAE
reporting date: LN
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&T THT
Purchase commitments BAREEREE A8
outstanding in connection PREEAEDT -

with the Group’s construction
contracts were as follows:

Contracted, but not provided for: BERTAMEREE

1,698,521 2,943,346
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36.

37.

COMMITMENTS (cont’d)

(b)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had an
outstanding capital commitment of HK$25,519,000
(31 December 2020: HK$24,730,000) relating to the
capital contribution to an unlisted equity investment.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in this financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions during
the year. Unless stated otherwise, the following related party
transactions did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions:

(@)

The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with non-controlling shareholders of non
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group:

36.

37.

i (H)

b RZE-—F+-_A=+-—
B AEE—BEIELETRER
BB 7 EREYE25,519,000
B (ZEZEF+_A=+—
A : 24,730,000/87) °

BBLIXS

BAFBEHRREMBOMBEELIRS
KA  MERN  AEBEZELET T
JIBEREBAIRS - lRIEXBHA -
TINREB T X T EREER Z AR

(@ AKEEAEEFZENBER
AR IR AR SR RIS 5B 77

R

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Revenue from project operation IHE EE RBWA
service 96,523 80,282
Finance income BSHA 17,123 17,366
Cost of construction service IS RIS A AR 70,711 93,256

Included in revenue from project operation service
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was revenue
from operation service amounting to HK$9,979,000,
which constituted a continuing connected transaction
(“CCT”) but was fully exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.76(1) of the SEHK Listing Rules (“Fully Exempt
CCT”). Included in revenue from project operation
service for the year ended 31 December 2020
was revenue from operation service amounting to
HK$8,745,000, which constituted a Fully Exempt CCT.

B2 -_—9F+=-A=+—
BIEFE  ©%49,979,000
BITHEZRB KA AEHR
BERBHKA - BERSER
BEBEERS ( [HEBERX
21 )  HEHEHERRETH
RETEMHAE14A.76(1) 1K
MER -  FEEZ  AELE
TRERE#ERE ([2EE
ReF@EBEERS] ) -&#2
—E-EF+-_A=+—H1
Fg o ©% 58,745,000/ TH)
BERBBRAGAEBEZ R
WA - BERGEKEEE
NRFBERERS -
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37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d) 37.

(b)

TEC—FH A=t —HIENMBFE

The Group entered into the following related party (b)
transactions with a related company of the Group:

BELX5 (&)

748 L7 o2 L ) — R 2 )
A TSI SRS

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2021 2020

B —E-TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Revenue from project operation I8 B & & RS

service 107,417 73,181

Finance income IR ON 53,366 50,550
The Group entered into the following related party (c) AEBEAEE—FHEEARE

transactions with an associate of the Group:

TSR RS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLHFE

2021 2020
—E——F TETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Service expenses for operation of 57K B EE R 38 i AR TS
waste water treatment plants X 59,640 42,650
The Group entered into the following related party (d) ANEBEKERR KB G

transactions with fellow subsidiaries of the Group,
which also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, details of which are disclosed under the section
entitled “Connected Transactions and/or Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the Directors’ Statement:

ETSIREB IR S - TMEKR LT
BT 0 B 2 5 3l R A R s
X5 HFBENEFSBEAN
[RIER S M/BFFEEERS

—&:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020

B —F —ECEF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

FiaE FHExT FHET

Rental expenses ALY 0] 18 13

Insurance expenses R &M (i 2,695 1,659
Healthcare protection fi2 FRIRFE & F3

services expenses

17,648 -
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37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

©)

(cont’

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

d)

The rental expenses were charged by fellow subsidiaries
and an intermediate holding company of the Group
on mutually agreed terms. With respect to the rental
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021, this
constituted a CCT which was exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirement pursuant to Rule
14A.105 of the SEHK Listing Rules. Further details
regarding the relevant framework agreement are
provided in the section entitled “Connected Transactions
and/or Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
Directors’ Statement, as included in this Annual Report.

With respect to the rental expenses for the year ended
31 December 2020, this constituted a CCT which
was exempt from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the SEHK
Listing Rules. Further details regarding the relevant
framework agreement are provided in the section entitled
“Connected Transactions and/or Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Statement, as included in
this Annual Report.

The insurance expenses were charged by a fellow
subsidiary of the Group on mutually agreed terms. This
constituted a Fully Exempt CCT.

The healthcare protection services expenses was
charged by a fellow subsidiary of the Group on mutually
agreed terms. This constituted a CCT which was exempt
from independent shareholders’ approval requirement
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the SEHK Listing Rules.

37.
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(iii)
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37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

)

Transactions with other stated-owned entities in
Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned and/or controlled by the PRC government
through its numerous authorities, affiliates or other
organisations (collectively “Other SOEs”). During
the financial year, the Group had transactions with
the Other SOEs including, but not limited to the
waste water treatment service, bank deposits and
borrowings, and utilities consumption. The directors of
the Company consider that the transactions with the
Other SOEs are activities in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business, and that the dealings of the Group
have not been significantly or unduly affected by the
fact that the Group and the Other SOEs are ultimately
controlled or owned by the PRC government. The
Group has also established pricing policies for
products and services and such pricing policies are
not carried out on non-market terms and do not
depend on whether or not the customers are the
Other SOEs. Having due regard to the substance of
the relationships, the directors are of the opinion that
none of these transactions is a material related party
transaction that would require separate disclosure.

The Group paid compensation of directors and key
management personnel as follows:

37.

BELXS (&)

)

S TR PR
25

REBE L AAEQERERTE
BT BER S - M EE
HoAth 40 4 P B 1R Sk R TR B S/ak
iz 0% (Gl [HtEA R
%)) MESMN - RATERF
ER - AEEGEEMEE DK
EITZRZBE (BARR) K
A RITEREER - ARtk
BIRE - NABRERRL &%
FHRAMBEALEZ R ZHEAR
SERARXGARTETZE
% MAKE X5 EEARE
B & oAt B8 1 519 i P B BUT
AR B S X2 EAE
B8 - NEEITEHIEEmM
ARFSEBBUR - MABTEERR
W IRZIETIZ IRFHIE] - IRTER
RREPEEREMEEEE -
RERERE FMBERsNEIR
ARRBEERBAEXHA IR
RN B CERNEHITRS

AEBEEXNTEERBRER
ANBZHmBnT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2021 2020
—EB--F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Salaries, bonuses and related e e AR
benefit 23,924 21,824
Directors’ fees ks 1,968 1,913
Retirement scheme contributions 3R REHEI4E 30 1,969 1,375
27,861 25,112
Comprising amounts paid/ BREN/IERNTIES
payable to: 8
Directors of the Company IN/NS] - =3 11,419 9,181
Other key management HMAREEAS
personnel 16,442 15,931
27,861 25,112
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37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

(),

The Group has rental contracts with three fellow
subsidiaries of the Group. At the reporting date, the
Group had total lease liabilities with fellow subsidiaries
under non-cancellable leases falling due as follows:

37.

BELX5s (&)

RE B 8 = R R B A RIRT AL

T\ﬂ%@ﬁ??&“%iﬁ%ﬁ’a\%’? ° RHE
 RNEBER KK E AR ZHE

iﬁkﬁ* BB BRI

As at 31 December

HERE - AIE
HERIE - IR

Lease liabilities — current
Lease liabilities — non-current

Under such rental contracts, the minimum lease
payment during the period wasHK$7,374,000
(FY2020: HK$7,154,000), which constituted a CCT
that was exempt from independent shareholders’
approval requirement pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of
the SEHK Listing Rules. Further details regarding
the relevant framework agreement are provided
in the section entitled “Connected Transactions
and/or Continuing Connected Transactions”
of the Directors’ Statement, as included in this
Annual Report. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group’s right-of-use assets relating to such
rental contracts amounted to HK$3,153,000
(31 December 2020: HK$8,875,000).

R+=—A=+—H

2021 2020
—= _—ﬂE = ?
HK$’000 HK$’000
T BT
2,792 6,664
377 2,411
3,169 9,075
BREZEHESN  FEK

KEENHEEAET7,374,000
BT (ZE_FTUHBRFE :
7,154,000 L) @ REBZ
ﬁﬁtﬁ%ﬁﬁ'J%MAﬂoﬂw :g
IEH AEXNFERAER S -

D%L#ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
E *ﬁF%BFWE & B
—SHBERESTEBHP
f%ﬁkﬁa%&/%?iffﬁlkx
S B R _ET-_TF+
A=+—8 ' A&EE#HZEHA
EeNBEBENTREEESRE
£3,153,0008 7 (ZE=F
#+-HA=+—8 8,875,000
BIT) °
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, current portion of trade receivables and
other receivables, trade payables and other payables, and
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s financial management department is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the financial management department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of other receivables
and borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
borrowings as at the end of each of the financial year was
assessed to be insignificant.

38.

TRTANAABERAIABEER

EEENEHE A2 FEY  BUR
TR N EL A FE MUK TR N A R R B L b e
NFERNEIEES S REE 2 AR EER
HEREEEMES  TEARZEIAR
FEEREE] o

AEEZ M EERfIERETERTA
DABEEZBRILIZF - REEHRSE
BHE - R Es e TAZE
BEF) - WEEHEMERZEERHAHK
% - MERBERYHERRRFIL - Tt
ZESFFMTmGERRTRER - A
B P I RFER RS

TREERBEZAABEAZIAR
BREX 577 (MIFREssRheE) &
A5 N2 AR5 ERBARK - FITA
KEBRIIARE R AEE -

H Al YRR R B B R SERNEIE D 2
R BEIZAEBRLGR  EEAR KL
MAFEHZ TRAZRITERNE - 18
BMARIRSREZ T AGE - R
BERHR - pEEME - AEEAFZ
TEX R E AR o
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. SRMIENAABERAAEBEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d) (&)
The fair values of unlisted investments at FVTPL as at R —FRZZFFF+A=1+—
31 December 2021 and 2020 are based on net asset value of B UAREBESABRZIELTREZ
the investees which approximate the fair value. DR BEIREFHRE A ARNEEFEE
E - BEAEFEEALBERS -
The fair value of unlisted equity investment at FVTPL RZEZ—FR-ZFE-_ZTF+=-A=+
31 December 2021 and 2020 is based on the expected —B - LWARBEFAEBRZIELTR
future cash flows of the investment. BIREZ AR BEDBERENEBHRER
KIREMEETE ©
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TEBAREZ—FR_ZT_FF
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative +ZA=+—HemIABBEZERT
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: AR AU R H ESBURMED T
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
EER EXTUEERAEE &8 ANEEHEABENSBM
Unlisted equity Discounted cash Discount rate 2021: 2.80% 2021: 1% increase (decrease) in discount
investment at flow method FriR® —E- rate would result in decrease in fair value
FVTPL TR MERN 2.80% by HK$112,000 or increase in fair value
AR EEFA by HK$113,000
BEmIFELTR ZEC-F RBREREA (THR) 1%#
iR EHAREEES 120008 T LEN

Unlisted equity
investment at
FVTPL

AAREEFA
tal:0E i)y
ERE

Discounted cash
flow method

FRBLRES

Discount rate

%

2020: 2.80%
“TIRF
2.80%

113,000/ 7T

2020: 1% increase (decrease) in discount
rate would result in decrease in fair value
by HK$433,000 or increase in fair value
by HK$442,000

ZECRF RRER (TH) 1%8
BY R EBER 433,000 k8 0
442,000/ 7T
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38 2fRIANAABERAAREBEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d) ()

Fair value hierarchy AREEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRINTAEBRERITANAREBEET
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: 2EHR

Assets measured at fair value: BRAREBEAENEE :

Group rEE

As at 31 December 2021 R-_E-_—F+-F=+1—H

Fair value measurement using

AREEFERAUTEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REBTEN BATERRAN EATTERH BE
BE (F-5) BE =R ABE (F=H)

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TAT TR THR
Unlisted investments at AR BEAER
FVTPL B EMRE - 222,880 - 222,880
Unlisted equity investment LA AR BET AEZE
at FVTPL M MR E - - 36,122 36,122
- 222,880 36,122 259,002
As at 31 December 2020 N_E-_TF+_F=+—H
Fair value measurement using
DARBEFERAUTEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WEBMEN BEATBEBA BEATTERH Total
BE (F-%) #E (F=R) A®E (F=%) k)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FET FET TET
Unlisted investments at AR EET AER
FVTPL B ETMRE - 409,147 - 409,147
Unlisted equity investment ’D\mﬁ@uﬁg\ﬁ/\
at FVTPL B ETRIER A - - 34,051 34,051

- 409,147 34,061 443,198
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (cont’d)

Company

TEC—FH A=t —HIENMBFE

HIERARCHY OF 38
(%)

DR

x

i

EHER (&)

o
ol

As at 31 December 2021
R-_ZE-_—-%+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AABEFERANUTEE

287 «

TRITANAABERAIABERER

As at 31 December 2020
RZE-ZEF+-A=+—H

Significant Significant
observable observable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 2)
ERABERA Total EXRAHEHA Total
g (=) #Eg g (E=4) HaE
Unlisted investments AR {BEET A 1B
at FVTPL: B EMIRE 222,880 222,880 409,147 409,147
Group and Company REBEMAEAN T

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 2

E-MARBESERBEANZ 2

during the year are as follows: LU
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TABTT
Unlisted equity investment at FVTPL: LA A A BEST ABZERIIELS
IR E
At 1 January n—H—H8 409,147 431,035
Fair value loss (note 6) AREEEZEEE (H:E6) (58,583) (48,629)
Exchange realignment DEE 37, 58 B 9,893 26,741
Redemption FE (137,577) -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 222,880 409,147
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
Fair value hierarchy (cont’d)

Group

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

TRIANAABERAIABEER
(%)

AABERR (
AR

F-RAnBEFERNHERNZ#
(N

B

=

3

Unlisted equity investment at FVTPL:

At 1 January

Fair value gain (note 6)
Exchange realignment
At 31 December

The Group and Company did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both

financial assets and financial liabilities.

%+:HE+—E

2021 2020

- —ECTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FETT

34,051 31,010

968 883

1,103 2,158

36,122 34,051
AEER-ZZE-_—FR-_ZF_FF

T e RumEfRAREE
HEMSREE .

HE_ZT-_— - -_FTF+-A
—t—HIEFERN EF—LENE_R
Qﬁﬁﬁ%%ZﬁﬁﬁEﬂL% o ¥

cRMEELRCREE  BZHNE
E@%Aﬁ%ﬁo
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of each financial year are as

follows:

Financial assets

39. RERBSNEMIA

289 .

RNEMRERER SRR TANK
EEEDT

TREE

As at 31 December 2021
R-E-_—-F+=-HA=+-—H

Financial Financial

assets at assets at

amortised FVTPL

cost RAAREEE
REBHRAST ABZENEE Total
ENEREE BE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Group REH FET FHET FHET

Financial assets included in T AEURBRE S R E A
trade and other receivables FEWRIBEZ R EE 2,723,451 - 2,723,451
Other financial assets HthemEE - 259,002 259,002
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIReEEY 2,281,986 - 2,281,986
5,005,437 259,002 5,264,439
As at 31 December 2020
RZZE-ZF+-_A=+—8H

Financial Financial

assets at assets at

amortised FVTPL

cost IEAREER
REIERAST ABmHER Total
ENEREE BE FEEE]
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
Group REE FHET FHET FHET

Financial assets included in T AFEURER ZN N EoAth

trade and other receivables EYRIEZ R E = 1,642,473 - 1,642,473
Other financial assets EherEE - 443,198 443,198
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 1,719,530 - 1,719,530
3,362,003 443,198 3,805,201
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (cont’d) 39. BRERIBAMERIE (&)

TREE — RESEATENSRAE

Financial liabilities - financial liabilities at amortised cost

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Group AEE FERT FHET
Financial liabilities included in T AERTRR R R E A fE A~
trade and other payables TR eMmEE 3,019,103 2,314,050
Borrowings 5B 14,441,938 11,078,133
17,461,041 13,392,183
Financial assets THREE
As at 31 December 2021
R-ZE-_—-F+=-R=+—H
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised FVTPL
cost RAAREES
REBERATT ABZNESE Total
ENSREE BE L]
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Company ¥ /N FH&T F#&T FHET
Financial assets included in T A A FE Y GRIE 2
other receivables CRNEE 8,483,239 - 8,483,239
Other financial assets HEibepEE - 222,880 222,880
Cash and cash equivalents He MREEEY 134,962 = 134,962
8,618,201 222,880 8,841,081
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (cont’d) 39. REREINEMIA (H)

Financial assets (cont’d) SMEE (HF)

As at 31 December 2020
R-ZE-ZF+-_A=+—H

Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised FVTPL
cost  EAREER
RIS ABmHER Total
ENEREE BE Pk
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
Company ARATE TET TFET FET
Financial assets included in T AE MY GRIE 2
other receivables TREE 6,502,231 - 6,502,231
Other financial assets HEmmEE - 409,147 409,147
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRSEEY 23,128 - 23,128
6,525,359 409,147 6,934,506
Financial liabilities - financial liabilities at amortised cost SREE — RERALIENESREE
As at 31 December
W+=—HA=+—AH
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Company ¥ /N FET FH&T
Financial liabilities included in ST AEABR 3K N E At FE A~
trade and other payables REZEBAE 147,539 99,253
Borrowings BE 8,944,503 7,084,457

9,092,042 7,183,710
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
borrowings and cash. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
and other receivables, contract assets and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in
relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.4.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and balances with
group companies. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk, respectively. The Group does
not use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest
rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

40.

MHEREEBRERBR

AEEBZFEcRIABREEREERE
T oNFEMIAZIBENERR
AEBZEBESRHEES - AKE
EEHMEMEELARE  BHEEK
RN EMEWRIR ANEENE
MR R HAMMENFRIR - TDEERIRA
HEXBES °

AEEERMTAELZTZ2AKRERE
MERER - SMNERR - EERER LR
BlERR EFSBEXRLEREES
HABRR ZHE - ARBRRBAR
TX - REBAEBITETAZ K
REMNMIEE2.4 -

FIE 2R

REEZMXRARTEZREAEE RS
LIRS EBY)  FELEBNEIREER
BB R R BN RS 2 EE SRR
B RAZIREREN R L AR EE
MR - AEENEFNASRITETA
HEDRRRER - AEE 2 FEREE
BRI  FHENTX) -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  40.
POLICIES (cont'd)

BHEREEEERBE (&)

Interest rate risk (cont’d) FIEEfm ()
ISR

The following table details the interest rate profile of the R AR S B E B HF R
Group’s net borrowings (being interest-bearing financial ZEEFE (st eemadn
liabilities less bank deposits and cash and cash fifﬂ_m&fﬁi&fﬁ/\ﬁfﬂ%)
equivalents) at the end of each of the financial year. Z ARG

(i) Interest rate profile (i)

As at 31 December 2021
R-E--5+-B=+—H

As at 31 December 2020
RZTEZZF+=A=1+—H

Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRA= ERME
HK$’000 HK$'000
% TET % FET
Net fixed rate TREE (73
borrowings/(deposits): HEE
Borrowings EE 3.28 - 4.60 5,350,199 2.98 - 4.60 4,074,328
Less: Amount due from RN — R
an associate NEIFIE 4.75 (9,843) 4.75 (17,614)
5,340,356 4,056,714
Net variable rate ZEEE (R
borrowings/(deposits): HEE
Borrowings Ep-} 1.20-490 9,091,739 1.21-466 7,003,805
Less: Cash and cash woREkReE
equivalents 47 0.01-2.03  (2,281,986) 0.01-2.03  (1,719,530)
6,809,753 5,284,275
Total net borrowings BIEE SR 12,150,109 9,340,989
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont'd)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of
1% in interest rates at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s profit before tax by approximately
HK$109,905,000 and HK$93,410,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before tax
that would arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to remeasure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s
profit before tax is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a change in
interest rates. The analysis was performed on the
same basis throughout the financial year.

40.

BHEREEEERBEK (&)

FIEm

(i)

b (&)

BURME DT

RZEBE-_—FR_ZFTE_FF
—A=+—8B &M AEMD
FEHEFTENBERT » FIX

EEE T/ TR E1% » (HEF S E R

KREFHE_ZE-_—FR_F
“EF+_A=+—HIFE
B B B BT 2 A 3 BIRL A /3G N4
109,905,0007% 7T 293,410,000
BIT ©

TR BURNE S mam¢%nm&
MAIRN I EEENERE
BURNE D AT R AR 2 “@Fﬁi
HIRELEA - WEARENG
ERKEFFA TN IREBRE
REBEBRA L EENEERA
SHMIA - HRBEAEENRE
R BREBFERIENTET
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HEREER R AR
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont'd)

Foreign currency risk

U

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits
with maturity period over three months, receivables
and payables that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily HKS,
RMB, US$, SGD and EUR.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in HK$, translated using the spot rate at the end
of the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation in the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

40.

BHEREEEERBE (&)

SRR

M

FAX 2 ERER

REBRERAINE (BEREEE 2
WREEB AN 2 EE) HEZE
5 H2MReFEY  2HA
A=EA A EREFR - UK
TR K FE A R OR 1 E e R
%o SIERABNER TR LA
7T AR - TT - BT R
BT °

TRAVNAEERHEMARHD
EREEXBE (CAERER
WREEBUIN EEEHE) FIE
ErERRAR - BRHEE2®H &
KRR 2B IRREHREEE
B 2 BVHARE R 53 BB TToIlR -
BEBIN BRI RRENEE
2INEBRELZER - Tast
N

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)

BARZ 2B R

(BB THIR)

As at 31 December 2021
R-®=—£+=A=+-8

RMB SGD HK$ USs$ EUR
AR N T BT E Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FTET FERT FTEx FET
Cash and cash Belfes
equivalents BY) 9,545 5,131 11,233 121,810 -
Borrowings 11 — - (2,702,395) (1,108,516) (21,133)
Amounts due FEU/ () &
from/(to) group B AERIE
companies, net SRR (12,834) (54) 2,842,691 - 25,496
Trade and other FETER R E A
payables FERTEE (5,895) (3,648) (5,611) (6,762) @)
(9,184) 1429 145918  (993,468) 4,350
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (cont’d)
Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (cont’d)

—F+ZRA=t+—HIENHBFE

40. HHEREEBERBE (#)

SpE R ()
0) FARAXZERAR (8)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)
FHEE 2 HNE R

(AVBTTIITR)

As at 31 December 2020
RZE-ZF+-A=+—H

RVB SGD HK$ us$ EUR
AR AT AT ETT (Z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAT FAT FHL FAT
Cash and cash RekReE
equivalents =4 2,880 2,919 12,285 9,436 -
Borrowings e - - (2,054,151) (1,221,637) (28,096)
Amounts due e/ () &
from/(to) group EAEFIE -
companies, net EER 393,633 20,002 2,189,945 (860,685) 400
Trade and other FEN R R E A
payables e FIR (5,489) (1,368) (2,536) (15,137) (5)
391,024 21,553 145,543 (2,088,023) (27,701)
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit before tax that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the HKS$
and the US$ would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the US$ against
other currencies. Except for those subsidiaries with
their functional currencies other than HK$, the impact
of foreign exchange rate fluctuations with respect
to the assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
insignificant as the HK$ is pegged to the USS.

As at 31 Decem

40. HMHEEBMREEEERBE (&)

SRR

(i)

ber 2021

(%)
GURNES T

TREIIBRNE MERHRAE
% [ 4 BRSNS L B ) B SR A
BHIRES) - MM 2R

SRFERFFTE - NEERRR
RIANGEXI N ERTZE - 5l
%ﬁm @&%ER%EWH%
EEXTEREXTHEMEE 2
BEHMEZINERTE - FTIL
FELABTERREER 2B L
AIN AR BEZEER
BEME  ARNBITEETH
9 - BULIE RN EN B H AW T
EXe

As at 31 December 2020

R-ZB=-—-%+=-A=+—H RZZB_TF+_H=+—8H
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange rate before tax exchange rate before tax

EBREA  BKREAEF e |7t/ BRA AT & A

(TF&)  L£FH/ (FHB&) (FE&) kA CFEE)
HK$’000 HK$’000
% THET % T
RMB NG 10 (918) 10 39,102
RMB AR (10) 918 (10) (39,102)
SGD AN T 10 143 10 2,155
SGD N T (10) (143) (10) (2,155)
HK$ BT 10 14,592 10 14,554
HK$ BT (10) (14,592) (10) (14,554)
USs$ ETT 10 44,388 10 (65,527)
uss$ E7T (10) (44,388) (10) 55,527
EUR LT 10 436 10 (2,770)
EUR BT (10) (436) (10) 2,770
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit before
tax measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis was performed on the same basis throughout
the financial year.

Crediit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures

to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis. Debts are

usually due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.

Trade receivables of the Group represent receivables

in respect of revenue from environmental water project
operation services which are settled on a monthly basis.
In addition, the Group has contract assets in respect of
the Build-Transfer (“BT”), BOT, TOT and certain BOO
arrangements.

40.

BHEREEEERBEK (&)

SpE R ()
M  BERRMEDT (B)

EREVODITERBIE T AR
BERBRSANNEEHTEN
BRAIBNNERTE AR
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UM DT B350 FE 2 B

ERREHEZHEPRALE
BT A REAEEFAZING
RiE e TE - BRABERA
HERANTIEEE AN E
AHEMSEERR R Z FEEN IR
Ko JEMSRIA o %3 AT IR #5851
EBNPBHRRBESAEEZ
SIEMMELNZER - 2R
BESTFERRA—EERT

ZE/mE

BRERERTEENR - WHEE
EEBEMELZEERR - ERBFA
FSEHHRE5T30A E90H NEIH -

REE 2 ERWIRFIERB/KRFEIAE 2

BERBIBAZ BKARTR - B BFIAR
AUER o th5) - RNEBIRE S M2’ —
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BOOLHE 2 BAfR S Fr a4 S HEARRER &



ANNUAL REPORT 2021
—EC-FEHE

299.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)

Credit risk (cont’d)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, “Trade and other
receivables” and “Contract assets” amounted to
HK$25,378,853,000 and HK$21,285,406,000, respectively,
of which HK$4,629,965,000 and HK$3,022,564,000 were
due from the largest customer and HK$8,843,599,000 and
HK$4,849,227,000 were due from the five largest customers
in aggregate of the Group, respectively. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statements of
financial position. Since the parties to BT, BOT, TOT and BOO
arrangements are local government authorities in the PRC,
the Group considers the credit risk is low as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

From 1 January 2018, upon the adoption of IFRS 9,
management groups financial instruments on basis of shared
credit risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit
risk ratings for the purpose of determining significant increase
in credit risk and calculation of impairment. The carrying
amounts of each financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event;

- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

40.

BHEREEEERBEK (&)

=EEE (&)

RZBEZ—FR_FT_FF
_+fH*F%W$ﬁ&A@%
WsmE] R [EHEE]
25,378,853,000,%75&21,285,40
BT HARKSZKEFRED A
4,629,965,00078 7T }.3,022,564,000
B MEWAEBRAKRKERE K
THEEE D R A8,843,599,000/8 7T &
4,849,227,000 BT - EERBAZK
THRAGAVEMRRIRPESHSRE
ENEREEEE - A®WBT » BOT » TOT
NBOOZHEMIRZ 5 4 7 A B 75
TR  XEBRAR _-_Z-_—FK
—ECEFE+ A=+ —HAEERR
BE - NEBWERSEZEEHHEM
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)

Credit risk (cont’d)

To manage credit risk arising from trade receivables and
contract assets, the credit quality of the debtors is assessed,
taking into account their financial position, historical
settlement records, past experience and other factors. The
Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The ECLs
also incorporated forward looking information.

The Group has established a policy to perform an
assessment as at 31 December 2021, of whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
The Group groups its other receivables into Stage 1, Stage 2
and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1 When other receivables are first recognised, the
Group recognised an allowance based on 12
months’ ECL.

Stage 2 When other receivables have shown a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the Group
records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3  Other receivables considered credit-impaired. The

Group records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Management also makes periodic collective assessments
for other receivables as well as individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience and other factors.
The Group classified other receivables in stage 1 and
continuously monitored their credit risk. Management
believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balance of other receivables as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, all cash and cash equivalents
were deposited with creditworthy financial institutions without
significant credit risk.

40.
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)

Credit risk (cont’d)

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. Further quantitative
disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from “Contract assets” as well as “Trade and other
receivables” are set out in notes 21 and 23, respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

40.

BHEREEEERBE (&)

ZEmE (&)

AEBWKRIEHBFSAEEAREER
SETAER BEAEER [AHE
El & [EREEREEMEWFIE]
AR EERBNE— S TEREDF
M 21 R EE23 ©

—

REE/m R

AEBANNELELERABITEER
TEETE  BREASAKNERRE
LEBREFNERHERRESFR - KE
BB RETMERRDUERRKLER
HERRHENETIEN - BREEER
EHRNREHELLETESHEBENG
RANAGEERE  UEHEHEE
HRB)IEFE K -

TREJIAEERHERARNIITET
AT A ENRISGAOHRIEN - J1E
REHRTRESRE (BEREOFN
g, (WEER) RIFHEHRAITH
MEEFEONLE) RAKBARERRH
PR HHMSIL -

As at 31 December 2021
R-B-—-5+ZA=+-H

Total More than  More than
contractual Within 1 year 2 years
undiscounted 1yearor but within but within
Carrying cash flow on demand 2 years 5years  More than
amount AAXRITEE —FERy —FNEE WEULE 5 years
EEEE ERERR REX RMER REFR RENLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER ThR FER FER FhR TEx
Financial liabilities AR R
included in trade H NI
and other payables ~ £RLEE 3,019,103 3,019,103 3,019,103 = = =
Lease liabilities HERE 6,402 6,790 5,383 874 72 461
Borrowings fEE 14441938 16075274 3774419 4715394 4,882,834 2,702,627
17,467,443 19,101,167 6,798,905 4,716,268 4,882,906 2,703,088
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)

Liquidiity risk (cont’d)

Included in borrowings are Corporate Bond and ABS with a
carrying amount of HK$2,672,695,000 and HK$237,739,000,
respectively, containing options to sell back to the Group. For
the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total contractual
undiscounted cash flow amount of HK$2,737,331,000 related
to the Corporate Bond is presented as: HK$1,756,275,000
is classified as repayable “within 1 year or on demand”, HK$
981,056,000 classified as repayable “more than 1 year but
within 2 years”. The total contractual undiscounted cash flow
amount of HK$246,086,000 related to the asset-backed
securities is presented as: HK$76,409,000 is classified as
repayable “within 1 year or on demand”, HK$169,677,000
classified as repayable “more than 1 year but within 2 years”.

The Corporate Bond will be due for repayment on the
respective maturity dates unless being sold back to the
Group prior to the maturity pursuant to the terms of the
Corporate Bond. In accordance with the terms of the
Corporate Bond, the maturity terms as at 31 December 2021
are HK$934,131,000 in 2022, HK$1,014,522,000 in 2023
and HK$855,610,000 in 2024 to 2026.

The ABS will be due for repayment on the respective maturity
dates unless being sold back to the Group prior to the maturity
pursuant to the terms of the ABS. In accordance with the
terms of the ABS, the maturity terms as at 31 December 2021
are HK$76,409,000 in 2022, HK$77,563,000 in 2023 and
HK$98,249,000 in 2023 to 2025.

40.
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BEEREEBEESD A
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. B¥EREEEEREX (F)
POLICIES (cont’d)

Liquidity risk (cont’d) JTENEE R ()

As at 31 December 2020
E/\— ? —= ¢+ H + E

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year 2 years
undiscounted 1 year or but within but within
Carrying cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years More than

amount ’Hi?ﬁfﬂfﬁ —FRgk —FHEE  BMENLE 5 years
REEE ERELE BREX RRER iR RAFUE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TETL TEL TEL TEL
Financial liabilities BN
included in trade S NN Lo
and other payables ~ £BIEE 2,314,050 2,314,050 2,314,050 - - -
Lease liabilities HEaE 11,756 12,397 8,757 3,123 46 471
Borrowings EE 11,078,133 12,322,948 2,584,139 3,050,538 4,539,397 2,148,874

13,403,939 14,649,395 4,906,946 3,053,661 4,639,443 2,149,345

Included in borrowings are Corporate Bond and ABS with a EE e EE@TBE A A
carrying amount of HK$2,599,849,000 and HK$293,756,000, 2,599,849,000/8 7T #1293,756,000/8 7T
respectively, containing options to sell back to the Group. For WARIEHFREEZRES BB
the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total contractual SHESODE FAEEREE - 5L L
undiscounted cash flow amount of HK$2,704,648,000 related MEIEAERME r BEEARBEEFENA
to the Corporate Bond is presented as: HK$1,032,713,000 AARFIRIRS M ELLFE2,704,648,000
is classified as repayable “within 1 year or on demand”, }%ﬁhﬂﬂ—ﬁ‘tzﬁu 1,032,713,000
HK$1,671,935,000 classified as repayable “more than 1 B MS [ —E R ES R

year but within 2 years”. The total contractual undiscounted 8% ~ 1,671,935,0008 T »EA
cash flow amount of HK$311,243,000 related to the ABS [ — 4 L/( J:{EI RWRERN] EBE - B
is presented as: HK$72,787,000 is classified as repayable E%;QFSE%.; FHAEHNARTRRE R
“within 1 year or on demand”, HK$74,028,000 classified 4RE311,243,0008 LIEA T AR E
as repayable “more than 1 year but within 2 years” and §|J 72,787,000 LN ER [ —F
HK$164,428,000 classified as “more than 2 years but within NSk EESK | 8% © 74,028,000/8 T
5 years”. DA [—FUALERMEA] EERM

164,428,000 T DA [RFIAR
BRFAR] EE -

The Corporate Bond will be due for repayment on the 7Tfiﬂ#ﬁA$EE§ 'JHHEIEHE;}; MEAR
respective maturity dates unless being sold back to the ?f AE 55 2 AR50 B 2 A 2 BT A
Group prior to the maturity pursuant to the terms of the f AIEY 15 %D“B?;b ° RERFES 2 &
Corporate Bond. In accordance with the terms of the 11,75/*\ o \ij‘fjﬂ +H H -

Corporate Bond, the maturity terms as at 31 December 2020 ERIRRIT - ;= %_U IR

are HK$103,226,000 in 2021, HK$918,742,000 in 2022 and 103,226,000/87C ° W—%——%ﬂfﬁﬂ
HK$1,834,593,000 in 2023 to 2025. F7%918,742,00078 70 Rk —F — =

=T RFHHEE,834,593,000
AT °
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’d)

Liquidiity risk (cont’d)

The ABS will be due for repayment on the respective maturity
dates unless being sold back to the Group prior to the maturity
pursuant to the terms of the ABS. In accordance with the
terms of the ABS, the maturity terms as at 31 December 2020
are HK$72,787,000 in 2021, HK$74,028,000 in 2022 and
HK$170,360,000 in 2023 to 2025.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to
maximise shareholders’ value.

In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment, issue
new shares or obtain new borrowings. The Group’s strategies
are to maintain a prudent balance between the advantage
and flexibility afforded by a sound capital position and the
higher return on equity that is possible with greater leverage.
There was no change in capital management policies during
the reporting period.

Consistently, the Group monitors capital based on a net
debt against equity ratio. The net debt against equity ratio
is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total liabilities (as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group, excluding tax
payables and deferred tax liabilities) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total equity comprises share capital, reserves
and non-controlling interests.

40.
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40.

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. H¥ERREEEERBE (E)
POLICIES (cont’d)
Capital management (cont'd) BAREE ()
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—AH
2021 2020
—E-——F TECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade and other payables JESTBR R S ELAb B~ 3R 3,215,673 2,540,938
Borrowings BE 14,441,938 11,078,133
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B REeERIREEEY (2,281,986) (1,719,530)
Net debt (EVoE L] 15,375,625 11,899,541
Total equity i En et 13,163,232 11,405,859
Net debt against equity ratio B PR R & 117% 104%
Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment of BB SRR 2T E ZRITRE
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios as BREBEARES T X 22 H%
disclosed in note 27, the Group does not subject to externally N REFEHYESINRIEINZ BEXRRE
imposed capital requirements. FRFR I o
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 41. HiREE

On 3 January 2022, the Company announced that it had entered
into a concession agreement to secure Ji'nan International Centre
for Medical Sciences Waste Water Treatment Project Phase 1
(“di’man Medical Centre Project”) based on a Build-Operate-
Transfer model with an investment amount of approximately
RMB319,519,000. J'nan Medical Centre Project has a designed
daily municipal waste water treatment capacity of 50,000 m® and
a concession period of 30 years.

On 13 January 2022, the Company announced its completion
of the issuance of second tranche of RMB-denominated SCP in
mainland China with a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000,
an interest rate of 2.50% per annum and a maturity period of 150
days. The proceeds from the second tranche of the SCP issuance
will be used to replenish working capital of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

—E-_F—-—A=RH" $A7 i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR Y RE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ —Z - —F+ - A=1+—HIFWHBFE

41.

42,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (cont’d)

On 25 February 2022, the Company announced the
result of the resale exercise in respect of the third tranche
RMB-denominated corporate bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of RMB700,000,000 (“Third Tranche
Corporate Bonds”). The Company had (i) repurchased
Third Tranche Corporate Bonds with an aggregate value
of RMB251,100,000 (“Repurchased Third Tranche
Corporate Bonds”); and (i) resold Repurchased Third
Tranche Corporate Bonds with an aggregate value of
RMB251,100,000. Accordingly, there were no unsold
Repurchased Third Tranche Corporate Bonds which required
to be cancelled.

AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
ISSUE

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 28 February 2022.

41.

42.
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R+=A=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“B—F _—T-THE —"T-NF —T-N\F _"T+F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FEL FEL FHEL TAT
Assets and liabilities BENERE
Property, plant and Y% BENRE 1,160,372 181,222 170,491 150,151 152,038
equipment, right-of-use FHREEE
assets and investment Ee-LES
properties
Intangible assets B EE 2,280,920 1,880,919 1,658,437 1,536,169 1,489,718
Goodwill FEES 1,531,576 1,295,475 1,213,509 1,242,713 1,259,922
Interests in associates B\ RIRERS 231 8,143 3,588 3,011 1,445
Contract assets BHEBE 19,750,324 17,348,620 14,144,440 11,727,822 10,313,724
Trade and other receivables JE U BR R 771,809 289,902 113,892 159,259 10,515
Hib EUGRIE
Deferred tax assets ERERBEE 6,127 - - - -
Other financial assets HibemaE 36,122 443,198 462,045 - -
Net current assets REEERRE 740,566 595,027 359,125 664,686 1,313,319
Total assets less BEETER 26,278,047 22,042,506 18,125,527 15,483,811 14,540,681
current liabilites mEAE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (13,114,815) (10,636,647) (8,576,775  (6,820,114)  (5,998,876)
NET ASSETS BEFH 13,163,232 11,405,859 9,548,752 8,663,697 8,541,805
Share capital [N 2,860,877 2,860,877 2,860,877 2,676,062 2,625,642
Reserves e 9,009,206 7,673,416 5,949,192 5,307,128 5,231,541
Equity attributable to KARIESEEA 11,870,083 10,534,293 8,810,069 7,983,190 7,857,183
equity holders of the FEIhER
Company
Non-controlling interests e 1,293,149 871,566 738,683 680,507 684,622
TOTAL EQUITY R 13,163,232 11,405,859 9,548,752 8,663,697 8,541,805
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AY I P4 E
hFEEME
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—ER--F —T-F —T-NFE ZE-N\EFE T+F
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT FEL FEL FHEL FAL
Results o
Revenue WA 6,912,371 5,663,292 5,550,773 4,768,318 3,591,633
Profit from operating A SE B B | 2,129,954 1,827,857 1,549,752 1,342,715 1,085,838
activities
Finance costs ER (435,302) (348,795) (355,287) (291,398) (241,391)
Share of profits and e NI (6,758) 4,224 614 422 158
lossed of associates REE
Profit before tax B AT E R 1,687,894 1,483,286 1,195,079 1,051,739 844,605
Income tax 5% (404,908) (396,922) (310,350) (314,984) (263,812)
Profit for the year NEZ BT 1,282,986 1,086,364 884,729 736,755 580,793
Attributable to: eI -
Equity holders of the RRAIEEFAA 1,200,329 1,024,271 833,483 676,459 513,356
Company
Non-controlling interests Elsupiys 82,657 62,093 51,246 60,296 67,437
Profit for the year KEZEF 1,282,986 1,086,364 884,729 736,755 580,793
Basic earnings per share BREARET 41.96 35.80 30.07 25.58 19.61
(Hong Kong cents) (L)
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Project Water Supply Capacity
HE (m®/day)
fKRE (ZFK/B)
1 Tongxiang West Area Drinking Water Sources Protection PPP Project 600,000
8 75 EPEX F7KIR R &2 7R TA2PPPIE B
Water Supply Projects / #t7k1EH
Projects in Operation / #%3& 18 B
Project Water Supply Capacity
HH (m%/day)
fkRE (ZFK/B)
1 Zhanggiu Yellow River Water Transfer and Water Resource 100,000
Replenishment Project
& 5| = AKEIRE R
2 Zhanggiu Chengdong Industrial Water Supply Project 50,000
B RERITEBEMKIER
Project in Preparatory Stage / #7218 B
Project Water Supply Capacity
HA (mé/day)
fkBRE (Z5K/8)
1 Zhanggiu Baiyun Water Plant Water Supply Project Phase | 100,000

EEAEKE—HTREA
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Projects in Operation / #3&18 B

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
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Project Waste Water Treatment
5H Capacity (m?/day)
FKEBRERE (XFKR/B)

1 Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project (Maidao Plant) 140,000
FESKEEEE (ESR)

2 Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project (Haibohe Plant) 80,000
EEKERER CHRTH)

3 Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project (Maidao Plant) Upgrading N/A
FETKERIBEE (XBRK) RIZMEE A5 A

4 Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project (Southern & Northern Plants) 250,000
SESKERER (RASERALR)

5 Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project (Upgrading) N/A
EIESKEIEEE (FHARBGERR ) i A

6 Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project (Northern Plant) Relocation and 50,000
Expansion Project
MESKEEER (i) BRRIEEER

7 Zibq Waste Water Treatment Project (Southern Plant) Upgrading N/A
S KEEER (MR EIEMEER o

8 Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1 & 2) 420,000
BRSKEEER (—HEZ/)

9 Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1 & 2 Expansion and 80,000
Upgrading )
HRSKERER (—BR BRI AR )

10 Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1) Expansion 50,000
BESKEIBIER (—RR) B

11 Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1) Phase IV Expansion 100,000
A KEEER (—H) MER

12 Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 2) Phase Ill Expansion 100,000
FESKEIBIER (ZRR) =HiER

13 Zibo High-tech Zone Waste Water Treatment Project 100,000
MERBEE S KERAE

14 Zibo High-tech Zone Waste Water Treatment Project Upgrading N/A
SRR SRS /KEIEIE B IR IF2uE A5 A

15 Jiangyin Waste Water Treatment Project 190,000

TReIEKEIEIR A
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Project Waste Water Treatment
HE Capacity (m®/day)
FKEERE (ZFK/A)

16 Jiangyin Waste Water Treatment Project (Upgrading) N/A
IRRSKEBIEER (FRSGE) NiEM

17 Jiangyin Waste Water Treatment (Binjiang Plant and Chengxi Plant) N/A
Upgrading Project i A
TRSKEE CRTRMETR) RIZSEER

18 Zibq Zhoucun Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 40,000
SRS KEEER — 5

19 Zibo Zhoucun Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Upgrading N/A
ETE AR TR EIRTE B —HiR IR S TiE A

20 Zibq Northern Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project 20,000
EIEAL R S KR IR R B R IE B

21 Binzhou Boxing Waste Water Treatment Project (Phase ) 30,000
BMNEETKERIEE (—H)

22 Binzhou Boxing Waste Water Treatment Project (Upgrading and Phase I 30,000
Upgrading & Expansion)
BMNEETKERIER (ARSuER — 8K - #BE1ER)

23 Binzhou Boxing Waste Water Treatment Project (Upgrading & Expansion) 20,000
BMNEETKEIRIER (FHRsuE REEIER )

24 Ji'nan Licheng Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase | 100,000
BEBEHTKEIEER (=) —H

25 Ji'nan Licheng Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase |l 100,000
BEREHTKERER (=) —H

26 Ji'nan Xike Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 4) 30,000
BT TKEEEE (M)

27 Ji'nan Xike Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 4) Phase |l 70,000
EEARS/KEEER (U —5

28 Dezhou Lingcheng Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1) 30,000
EMERETKEEER (—/K)

29 Dezhou Lingcheng Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1) Upgrading N/A
MR SKEIRIEE (—/) R=IRsE i A

30 Dezhou Lingcheng Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 2) 30,000
MR TKERIER (Z/)

31 Dezhou Lingcheng Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 2) Upgrading N/A
MR TKERIEE (/) RIE%uE TiE A
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Project Waste Water Treatment
HE Capacity (m®/day)
FKEERE (ZFK/A)

32 Dezhou Lingcheng Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 2) Expansion 30,000
MR TKEIRIEE (/) B2

33 Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 75,000
EMEERTKEIEIER —H

34 Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase || 75,000
EMEERTKEIEEE —H

35 Zhanggiu Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 3) 30,000
Er5KERER (B=M)

36 Zhangqiu Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 1) 50,000
E5KEERIER (B—H)

37 Zhangqiu Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 2) 40,000
BER5KEERIER (M)

38 Zhanggiu Waste Water Treatment (Plant 4) PPP Project 50,000
E R VKB FCBPPPIE B

39 Binzhou Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 40,000
BEINFEERSKEEIER —H

40 Binzhou Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | N/A
Upgrading TEHA
BN RTKEIEIE B — R RS

41 Binzhou Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project Phase || 20,000
BMFERSKERIER 8

42 Binzhou Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project Phase I 40,000
Expansion
BN FE R TKEIETE B — HiERE

43 Kunshan Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 25,000
B R5/KEEEE —H

44 Kunshan Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l 25,000
BILFERS/KEEIER —H

45 Lianyungang Dapu Waste Water Treatment Project 100,000
EEBAHTKEIEEE

46 Lianyungang Xugou Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 40,000
EEBEETKEEIER —H

47 Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 40,000

M RUR A ERINT5/KERIEIE B —H]
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Project Waste Water Treatment
HE Capacity (m®/day)
FKEERE (ZFK/A)

48 Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il and Upgrading 40,000
MU Sk IRTE B — B R BRI

49 Nanjing Liuhe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 20,000
FRNE/KEEIER — 8

50 Nanjing Liuhe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il and Upgrading 20,000
BRAASKERIEE — R LIRS

51 Suzhou Wuzhong Chengnan Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 75,000
Stage |
MR TKEEIEE — -2

52 Suzhou Wuzhong Chengnan Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 75,000
Stage Il and Upgrading
M RAP G SKEIEIE R — - RIREEUE

53 Yangzhou Jiangdu Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project 12,500
Phase |
BN IEF =5 /KEEE R —H

54 Yangzhou Jiangdu Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project 12,500
Phase Il and Upgrading
BN =5 /KEIRIA B — SRR

55 Sanmenxia Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 30,000
=PSRRI A —H

56 Sanmenxia Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Upgrading N/A
=PI EKERIRTE B —HAtRIR BuE A5 A

57 Daxing Tiantanghe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 40,000
ABE K5 /KEIEE R — 5

58 Daxing Tiantanghe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il and Upgrading 40,000
A ER K= 5K R IR IE B — Bl R IR IR E

59 Xianyang Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 100,000
[R5 R 85K ERIRIE B —HA

60 Xianyang Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Upgrading N/A
SR RB)5/K B IRTE B — AR IR S NEA

61 Xianyang Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l 100,000
RS ERRE 5K EEIETE B —HA

62 Dalian Quanshui Waste Water Treatment Project 35,000

RETRAOFKEE LT B
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Project Waste Water Treatment
HE Capacity (m®/day)
FKEERE (ZFK/A)

63 Dalian Malanhe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase I 80,000
AHE S5 KEIRIAE —

64 Dalian Chunliuhe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l 120,000
REH AN E/KEEEE — 8

65 Dalian Siergou Waste Water Treatment Project 100,000
NEF B 5KEIRIEE

66 Lvshun Bailanzi Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 30,000
HRIEHR 75 KRR — 5

67 Lvshun Bailanzi Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l N/A
IRIEfEE FI5KEIEIEE —H A5 A

68 Lvshun Sanjianpu Waste Water Treatment Project 10,000
IRIE=RE5/KEIEIEE

69 Pulandian Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 20,000
EREm5/KEEIEER —Hf

70 Zhuanghe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 30,000
AT KERIEIE R —HA

71 Panjin 1st Waste Water Treatment Project 100,000
BRIFTE — 5/KEIRIER

72 Panijin 1st Waste Water Treatment Project Upgrading N/A
BRIRTH S — /KR IR B IRIR S A5 A

73 Anshan West 2nd Waste Water Treatment Project 100,000
LTS —)5/KEEIEE

74 Shenyang Hunnan New District Waste Water Treatment Project 40,000
B Em AT E 5K I B

75 Dandong Waste Water Treatment Project 100,000
FHRM)5/KEEIRIE R

76 Inner Mongolia Tongliao Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project 50,000
ARG BEMERSKEEIER

77 Inner Mongolia Tongliao Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project N/A
Upgrading TiEA
WS R R 5/KEIRIE B IRIRsE

78 Pulandian Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Expansion 20,000
LRE TS /KEEIEIEE — BB

79 Pulandian Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l 30,000

EH 5 5/KERIZTER — 8
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Project Waste Water Treatment
HE Capacity (m®/day)
FKEERE (ZFK/A)

80 Pulandian Waste Water Treatment Plant Phase | and Reusable Water Plant 40,000
Integration Project
ERE SRR IR —HA R KR — 88 1E B

81 Dalian Liangjiadian Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 20,000
A 5 KR E — 5

82 Dalian Quanshui Waste Water Treatment Project Upgrading N/A
RERKFKEIRTE B IR IR 00E A5 A

83 Dalian Chunliuhe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il Upgrading N/A
REFYNAF/KEIRIE B — SRR siE NiE A

84 Lvshun Bailanzi Waste Water Treatment Project Upgrading N/A
IEIEARE 5K ERIRIE B iR suE i A

85 Zhuanghe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase I 50,000
FEA TS /KERIEIE B — B

86 Xinyi City Waste Water Treatment Project 70,000
O 5K EIETE B

87 Xinyi City Waste Water Treatment Project Upgrading N/A
T 5K R IR IE B RIS SUE i A

88 Xinyi City Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l 30,000
T SKEIEIEE = HA

89 Ju County Shudong Waste Water Treatment Project 20,000
BENE5/KEIREEB

90 Jiangyin Chengxi Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l 30,000
LR BT KEIEIE B =

91 Jiangyin Chengxi Phase Il Pipeline Network Pump Station N/A
LR =R ET MR TiEmA

92 Ji'nan Huashan Waste Water Treatment Project 30,000
BEELIKE#EIER

93 Dezhou Lingcheng Waste Water Pipeline Network PPP Project N/A
INFES R 57K B HEPPPIE B i A

94 Dezhou Lingcheng Waste Water Pipeline Network PPP Project Expansion N/A
INFES )5 /K B MPPPIE B &1 NEA

95 Laiyang Waste Water Treatment Sub-Project 15,000
G aKEIEFIER

96 Ji'nan East Station Area Underground Waste Water Treatment Project 100,000

PRI R UG R T 5K IR IE B
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Project Waste Water Treatment
HE Capacity (m®/day)
EKEERE (ZFHK/AB)

97 Huaiyin Eastern City Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 50,000
R BRI T/KEIEIE B —H

98 Ji'nan Tangye New Area Waste Water Treatment PPP Project Phase | 25,000
BrEE AR5 /KEEIEPPPIAE B —HA

99 Ju County Urban Waste Water Treatment Project 80,000
BB TKEIEIER

100 Changzhou Zhenglu Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 20,000
BNERRE 5K R IR IE B — A

101 Beitang Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | and Upgrading 150,000
JE¥E5/KEEIE B —HRIRIRSGE TR

102 Gangdong Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | and Upgrading 25,000
BRSKERIETE R — BRI ME TR

103 Huanghua Tengzhuangzi Waste Water Treatment Project 20,000
R T IKEIRIE B

104  Huanghua Town Waste Water Treatment Project 10,000
B TKEIRIER

105 Huanghua Urban Area Waste Water Treatment Project 10,000

ERER)SKEIEIER

Projects under Operation and Management / Z L8 & 18 B

Project Waste Water Treatment
HH Capacity (m?®/day)
FKEERE (ZFK/A)
1 Zhenjiang Zhengrunzhou Waste Water Treatment Plant Operation and 125,000
Management Project
BOTAEEMN KR EHEESIAR
2 Shenyang Dadong Zhuertun Waste Water Treatment Plant Operation 5,000
and Management Project
BHEARBARE TKEERETESER
3 Mauritius St. Martin Waste Water Treatment Plant Operation and 69,000

Management Project
EBERIES T KRERETELER
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Project Waste Water Treatment
5H Capacity (m?®/day)
FKBRERE (LFKR/B)

1 Lianyungang Xugou Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il 40,000
EEBERITKEEEE — 8

2 Suzhou Wuzhong Chengnan Waste Water Treatment Plant Effluent N/A
Upgrading Project i A
N R I FE S KR IR R KR EMETE B

3 Xianyang Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrading and Advanced N/A
Sludge Dewatering Project i A
B RS BRRB)5 7K BR 3R R HR AR Bt K5 e R R A /K TR B

4 Dandong Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il (Stage 1) 100,000
FHRTS7/KEIRIER — 8 (—F&ER)

5 Jiangyin Waste Water Treatment Project (Binjiang Plant 2) and 40,000
Ancillary Pipeline Project
TRKEIEIEE (BLIR) MEEEHIER

6 Jiangyin Lingang Economic Development Zone Xili Center Waste Water 50,000
Treatment and Ancillary Pipeline Network and Pumping Station Project
TRERBLERERANP LI TRKEERIEEEMRIMIER

7 Huaiyin Eastern City Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l 50,000
SRR TKEIEIEE —H

* Gangdong Waste Water Treatment Project Phase I N/A
ABRSKEEIEE — 5 TiEM

*

regarded as an independent project.
Y U R BTN R B BRSOk IE A A9 E B - AR VB o

As the second phase of Gangdong Waste Water Treatment Project, the municipal waste water treatment project listed above is not
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Projects in Preparatory Stage / £&#18 B

Project Waste Water Treatment

5H Capacity (m?®/day)
FKBRERE (LFKR/B)

1 Qingdao Maidao Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion and 80,000

Upgrading Project
FEEETKEERMERATIZEA

2 Zibo Zhoucun Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrading Project N/A
I AR SRR IR R SGETE B NEA

3 Binthu Boxing Waste Water Treatment Project Upgrading N/A
BN EE5 KGR IR IR B 1R IR UE NEA

4 Deodorisation work of Binzhou Development Zone Waste Water N/A
Treatment Project TEA
BMNFRERTKEEBERRRIE

5 Yancheng No.3 Flood Control Area Water Environment Treatment 50,000
PPP Project
BRI 58 =P B KRG AR &R IEPPPIE R

6 Ji'nan International Centre for Medical Sciences Waste Water 50,000

Treatment Project Phase |
7 B PR B R 0 5K R TR TR B — A

* Ji'nan Tangye New Area Waste Water Treatment PPP Project phase |l 20,000
B E e ¥ )5 /KBRIEPPPIH B — 5

*  As the second phase of Ji'nan Tangye New Area Waste Water Treatment PPP Project, the municipal waste water treatment project listed
above is not regarded as an independent project.

Y U ERRECAITIE TR R FEIR B A R A R Tk FEPPPIR B 9 E — B - TA REIRE ©
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Project Waste Water Treatment
5H Capacity (m?/day)
BEKEERE (ZLFHK/B)

1 Xinyi Economic Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project 10,000
Phase |
OB R EEKERIEEE — 5

2 Xinyi Economic Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project 10,000
Phase |l
TSR R BRI A = 5

3 Nanjing Pukou Industrial Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 10,000
R RUR A LEEKERIEIAE — 5

4 Ju County Chengbei Waste Water Treatment Project 40,000
Bl N2

5 Ju County Chengbei Waste Water Treatment Project Upgrading N/A
E Rt 5K IR IE B IRIRSGE TiEMA

6 Ju County Chengbei Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project 20,000
Phase |
E SISk R R A E —

7 Suizhou Xihe Town Waste Water Treatment Plant and Ancillary Pipeline 10,000
Network Project
BENAT R SR 57K R IR R M ic E B A9TE B

8 Yangzhou Jiangdu Development Zone Industrial Waste Water Centralised 6,000
Pre-treatment and Ancillary Pipeline Network Project
BNIEFE R TREKEPERERREERER

9 Zhangdian East Chemical Industry Park Industrial Waste Water Treatment 5,000
Project Phase |
oRJE R EME TR TR EE/KEIE1E B — 8

10 Shenyang Dadong Zhuertun Waste Water Treatment Plant Retrofitting 5,000

and Expansion Project

JERGR R E R R 5 7K B IR R B R 2 IR
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Projects Completed Construction / ZA5E T H

Project Waste Water Treatment

5H Capacity (m?®/day)
BEKEERE (L FHK/B)

1 Haimen Waste Water Treatment Project and Upgrading 10,000

BFEKERIEITA R K iRiRiE

Projects in Preparatory Stage / £&#18 B

Project Waste Water Treatment
EH Capacity (m?/day)
BEKEERE (ZFHK/B)
1 Nanjing Pukou Industrial Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | (Stage 2) 20,000
FRUBH T RKEEIHE — 8 (ZRER)
2 Nanjing Pukou Industrial Waste Water Treatment Project Phase |l 50,000
FRUBRH IEREKEIETER — 5
3 Changzhou Zhenglu Industrial Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 5,000

BNERRE T KR IEIE B — B

Leachate Treatment Project / 28 & EE1EH

Project in Operation / #%E18 B

Project Leachate Treatment

HA Capacity (m®/day)
BIRBEERE (XFK/AB)

1 Xuzhou Yanqun Household Waste Landfill Leachate Treatment Project 600

TRINFER AR S R IES 2R R iR 1218 B
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Project Reusable Water Supply
5H Capacity (m?/day)
ROKERE (ZF5K/B)

1 Ji'nan Licheng Reusable Water Project 42,000
B R KIE R

2 Jiangyin Reusable Water Project 10,000
IRed/KIER

3 Jiangyin Chengxi Waste Water Treatment Plant Reusable Water Project 33,000
LR BTSRRI /KO AIER

4 Zibo Reusable Water Project 9,600
SEEFRKEAIEER

5 Nanjing Pukou Reusable Water Project Phase | 20,000
OB ARKIEER —H

6 Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment and Reusable Water Plant Project 40,000
Phase |l
F OB RS 7K R IR R /K R IE B — A

7 Beitang Reusable Water Project 45,000
EyEBE/KIER

Project Completed Construction / #mk5E T8 H

Project Reusable Water Supply
EH Capacity (m?®/day)

RKHERE (ML5K/R)

* Zhanggiu Waste Water Treatment (Plant 4) PPP Project —
Reusable Water Project
B FIN/KE S ERRPPPIE B - KEIFAIE B

30,000

regarded as an independent project.
Y KRR K EIFIE B 23 E  ETTKEFEBPPPIE B A E R H 8w - TFT 2B/ EE e

As a supplementary facility to Zhangqgiu Waste Water Treatment (Plant 4) PPP Project, the reusable water project listed above is not
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Project in Preparatory Stage / &i27E H
Project Reusable Water Supply
5H Capacity (m?®/day)
ROKERE (ZFK/B)
1 Nanjing Pukou Industrial Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il - 12,000
Reusable Water Project
R OB A TEREKERIEIE R —#-F /KB RIER
* Nanjing Pukou Industrial Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | 9,000

(Stage 2) - Reusable Water Project
MR OTEEKERIEEE — 8 (ZRER) -HF/KEIAIER

* As a supplementary facility to Nanjing Pukou Industrial Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | (Stage 2), the reusable water project listed

above is not regarded as an independent project.

Y U LR FOKEFIEE B ROE O T REKERIEE — A (—[ER) AIEEEA R - Ti BB IHE -

River-basin Ecological Restoration Projects / g 421 B

Projects in Operation / #:87A H

Project Waste Water Treatment

HA Capacity (m®/day)
FRERERE (LFK/B)

1 Nanjing Municipal Water PPP Project N/A
F R SK I Ti2PPPIE B iE A

Projects under Construction / £ H H

Project Waste Water Treatment
HA Capacity (m®/day)
FKEERE (LFK/E)
1 Zhenjiang Sponge City Construction PPP Project 75,000
LB ZRPPPIER
2 Nanning Shuitang River Integrated Restoration PPP Project 40,000
MEKELAA B TIZPPPIER
3 Laiyang Water Environment Management Sub-Project N/A
RIGKIRFEGIEFIE R NiE A
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Projects in Preparatory Stage / £&#18 B
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Project Waste Water Treatment
5H Capacity (m?®/day)

FKEERE (ZFK/AB)
Suizhou Fuhe Riverbanks Landscaping Project N/A
BE N TR M = B IE B A5 A
Suizhou Piaoshui Park Phase | Construction Project N/A
BENZKAE—HITIZIER iE A

Waste Water Source Heat Pump Projects / 55K R &R 1EH

Projects in Operation / #8178 B

Project
HHE

Service area (m?)

REHE (F5XK)

ZibQ Waste Water Source Heat Pump Project Phase |
I EKRARIBE —H

125,000

Zibo Ceramic Technology Development Park Heat Pump Project

HEREERERREAR

170,000

Sludge Treatment and Treatment Projects / 55 R & B 1E B

Projects in Operation / #%3&18 B

Project Sludge Treatment

HH Capacity (tonnes/day)
FREESRE (H/B)

Zibo Sludge Treatment and Disposal Project 530

EE SRR R EER

Ji'nan Sludge Treatment Project 430

BT ELIRE

Ji'nan Licheng Sludge Treatment Project 200

B TR E(LIEE

Jiangyin Sludge Treatment and Disposal Project 340

LRI RERR

Pulandian Sludge Treatment and Disposal Project Phase | 50

ERE S REERERRE — 4

*

As supplementary facilities to respective waste water treatment projects, the above-listed sludge treatment and disposal projects are not
regarded as independent projects.
VTR R B IR B (E 431 )T /KR B rYAIETE B a8t - Tat 3/ IE A e
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Statistics of Shareholdings
HQ*EH‘JL I:I—l_ﬁ*sl'

As at 4 March 2022 W—ZT - —F=HH

Authorised share capital : HK$10,000,000,000

TETE AR 10,000,000,000/%8 7T

Issued and fully paid-up capital : HK$2,860,876,723

BEETIE 2BEERRA 2,860,876,7237% 7T

Class of shares : Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
REEE B - FREMEET.0087T
Number of shares : 2,860,876,723

RinEE

Voting rights : One vote per ordinary share
RERE T —H#

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

IR
NO. OF NO. OF

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS % SHARES %
RERE REHE Btk R EE B
1~99 513 9.22 14,497 0.00
100 ~ 1,000 1,142 20.52 569,694 0.02
1,001 ~ 10,000 2,061 37.03 9,686,179 0.34
10,001 ~ 1,000,000 1,812 32.55 122,574,642 4.28
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 1,000,0018k A = 38 0.68 2,728,041,911 95.36
TOTAL #5t 5,566 100.00 2,860,876,723 100.00

As at 4 March 2022, no shares issued in the share capital of the Company (the “Shares”) were held as treasury shares
or by any of the Company’s subsidiary.

MRZZTZZF=AWAB - ERRRRAFETHRG ( [RABRM] ) KREIEREFRREE - hREARRINEM
MEBARIMEE -

Based on the information available to the Company, approximately 27.05% of the equity securities of the Company are
held in the hands of the public. This is in compliance with Rule 8.08 of the SEHK Listing Rules and Rule 723 of the SGX
Listing Manual, which require at least 25% and 10% respectively of a listed issuer’s equity securities to be held by the
public.

ERARRBIEGNER - NARIR27.05%H RN EARIFR © sk OITF & AT ET iR BISE8.08 &M FT 2P L F
ME723GRMNER - ZERAUDFBRAREDERHAE LT A THER M ESFE25%FM10% A £ o
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RESRTER

As at 4 March 2022 W—ZT - —F=HH

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

Al =+ KRR

NAME NO. OF SHARES %

=L BREE Bk
1. CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER HOLDINGS LIMITED 2,084,724,572 72.87

B RRISIZER B R AR
2 HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 349,121,568 12.20
3 MAYBANK SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 56,776,131 1.98
4. CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 50,709,329 1.77
5. RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED 43,569,149 1.52
6 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 41,423,575 1.45
7 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 15,910,105 0.56
8 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 10,699,797 0.37
9. OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 9,365,552 0.33
10. DBSN SERVICES PTE. LTD. 6,633,901 0.23
11. HENG SIEW ENG 6,505,000 0.23
12. ASDEW ACQUISITIONS PTE LTD 4,369,453 0.15
13. DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 3,152,229 0.11
14. PANG LIM 3,082,400 0.11
15. KUEK SIAW KIA @ QUEK SHIEW POH 3,035,988 0.11
16. CHIEW CARLTON 2,832,667 0.10
17. CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 2,616,197 0.09
18. OCBC NOMINEES SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED 2,425,932 0.08
19. UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,232,527 0.08
20. WOON TAI MENG 2,201,984 0.08

TOTAL #5t 2,701,288,056 94.42
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Statistics of Shareholdings
IR RE St & B

As at 4 March 2022 W—ZT - —F=HH

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

FERR
DIRECT INTEREST DEEMED INTEREST
HiEfEs EEER
NO. OF NO. OF
NAME OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER SHARES HELD % SHARES HELD %
FERREE EREgE Bokt EREE Aot
China Everbright Water Holdings Limited 2,084,724,572 72.87 - -
AR S KOK ISR B R A 7]
China Everbright Environmental Protection - - 2,084,724,572 72.87
Holdings Limited"”
B RIRIRIEIR B BR A &)
China Everbright Environment Group Limited® - - 2,084,724,572 72.87
PR KIRE (SE) BRAH
Guildford Limited® -~ - 2,084,724,572 72.87
Datten Investments Limited” - - 2,084,724,572 72.87
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited® -~ - 2,084,724,572 72.87
PRI AREEBR AT
China Everbright Group Ltd.® - - 2,084,724,572 72.87
B R ERERD AR
Central Huijin Investment Ltd."” - - 2,084,724,572 72.87

P RESRERREERT]

Notes:

B =E -

Q)

@

China Everbright Environmental Protection Holdings Limited, which is the holding company of China Everbright Water Holdings Limited,
is deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by China Everbright Water Holdings Limited.

REERRRIZFRER A B AR B A ARKBIEZERBR A B2 IERAR] - WA B AOKEIER AR A RFRA AR ARG =6 Bk -
China Everbright Environment Group Limited (“Everbright Environment”) is the holding company of China Everbright Environmental

Protection Holdings Limited and is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which China Everbright Environmental Protection
Holdings Limited has an interest.

REEAIRIE (RE) BRAF ( [XRBE] ) BREXARRREBRERARZZERAFR - WHHBENARRIZRERAFFEN
RRRRD Z A MR -

Guildford Limited holds more than 20 per cent. but not more than 50 per cent. of the total issued shares in Everbright Environment and is
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Everbright Environment has an interest.

Guildford Limited #5748 Y RIRIBAAMD B8 20% A £ (BTEEB 50%) - WX RIRFFRENARD AR =4 MR -

Datten Investments Limited is the holding company of Guildford Limited and is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which

Guildford Limited has an interest. N _

Datten Investments Limited 7 Guildford Limited Z %A 7] + ¥ Guildford Limited #58 KIAR A R ) FH HEER o

China Everbright Holdings Company Limited is the holding company of Datten Investments Limited and is deemed to have an interest in
the Shares in which Datten Investments Limited has an interest.

fR Bl K E BB BR A F A Datten Investments Limited 2 A& A 7] + I % Datten Investments Limited 58 B2 Q Bli (0 = B B ER
China Everbright Group Ltd. (“China Everbright Group”) is the holding company of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited and is
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which China Everbright Holdings Company Limited has an interest.

REXAREEROG AR ( [RPEAXAEE] ) ATPBEAXAREEBR AR ZERAR - WHHBEKXREEFRARFENRARRGF
Bl -

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. holds 63.16 per cent. of the shares in China Everbright Group and is deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which China Everbright Group has an interest.

HRESIREBREERFHE T B AEB RN B 63.16% » WHF B AEBEHH AR RN FAMEER -
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IR RE St & B

As at 4 March 2022 R=ZZT === AIYH

(i) Relationship between the Company and each of China () ZAAFENEREGREETATRAMPR
Investment Corporation and Central Huijin Investment Ltd. ESHREFRETQATNER

Each of China Investment Corporation and Central Huijin Investment R E&EHR S A FARIMPRESKRERR
Ltd., which is ultimately owned by the State Council of the People’s E TR A& K B EFE AR LM B %k
Republic of China (the “State Council”), is deemed to have a ( [EI8PE] ) %ﬁ qz‘l?xéfﬁﬁﬁﬁfi’&ﬁ
controlling interest (via Everbright Environment) in the issued share M RESIEE AR E T A GRIB N AIRES

_\

\

capital of the Company. ARAMBEBETRAZ A REIERES -
Based on the information furnished to the Company, below is the — ERIEHERNAFNEE » FRXM T KA A
shareholding structure of the Company: HIRR M AEHE -
State Council
BB
| 100%
National Council for Ministry of Finance China Investment Corporation
Social Security Fund BB FERERREEAT
FEHEREELEEY F— [ 00%
3.40% (Neteffiz) Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
FRESREERETAT
| 63.16% (Note Fffzx)
China Everbright Group Ltd.
PEEREE RS AR
100%
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
FEXAREEETRA A
100% |
Datten Investments Limited 45% 100%
| 55%

Guildford Limited Everbright Investment & Management Limited

HARREERFRDTF

39.57% 3.44%

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEEARERIR (@) ARAA

100%

China Everbright Environmental Protection
Holdings Limited

RERARRRERERATE

| 100%
China Everbright Water Holdings Limited
g KA RRERAT
HisE
The percentages may not add | 72.87%

up to 100% due to rounding.

. - e China Everbright Water Limited
R o P IER FEEAKBERAT
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As at 4 March 2022 W—ZT - —F=HH

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Huijin”)

Huijin, established in December 2003, is a state-owned investment
company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC, with a mandate to exercise the rights and the obligations as an
investor in major state-owned financial enterprises, on behalf of the
PRC. Huijin, in accordance with authorisation by the State Council
makes equity investments in major state-owned financial enterprises,
and shall, to the extent of its capital contribution, exercise the rights
and perform the obligations as an investor on behalf of the PRC in
accordance with applicable laws, to achieve the goal of preserving
and enhancing the value of state-owned financial assets.

China Investment Corporation (“CIC”)

CIC was founded in September 2007 as a wholly state-owned
company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC. CIC was established as a vehicle to diversify China’s foreign
exchange holdings and seek maximum returns for its shareholder
within acceptable risk tolerance. Huijin is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CIC. However, Huijin’s principal shareholder rights are exercised
by the State Council. Strict operational firewalls exist among CIC’s
overseas business and the domestic business run by Huijin.

Extract of the articles of association of Huijin and CIC

The articles of association of each of Huijin and CIC provide that
each of Huijin and CIC “shall not interfere in the day-to-day business
operations of the state-owned major financial enterprises it controls”.
The articles of association of CIC further provide that “as a matter of
principle, [CIC] shall not actively seek investment in domestic non-
financial enterprises, except for purchasing overseas listed stocks,
passive shareholdings and other circumstances as approved by the
relevant governmental authorities”.

Board of Directors of Everbright Environment and the Company

In addition, neither CIC nor Huijin has any nominees sitting on the
board of directors of Everbright Environment. Similarly, neither CIC
nor Huijin has any nominees sitting on the board of directors of the
Company.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
FEXRKBEERD A

PREGRERREENA] ([EE] )

BEER _TZ=F+ K - 2K (hFE
ARAMBERENE) ABRREERINEEE
BERE - RIFEKREE  HREEH SR
FETERERE  NHERRBRARERME
HEREEHTRERITELE AENMMETH
BAER  BEREATREERERE-

THERERREFEAF] ([PR] )

PERRIN_FZLFNA - BERE (FEA
RAMBLARDE) RUMNBEABE QR - 12
FERBRBEZFINEESSTILIRE @ EAXK
ZEBREENERBRESRAL - ESE

RO ENBAR - ESNERRRBEH
FBER1TIE » PIHPIRINE TS RIE S FHRMIEA
EBEBITEREN [THAE] #HiE -

P A0 AR 1 ) ) B S AR IR %

ESMPRNRRERGREESMRER [T
STEREZRNBEESHEREXNBEELEE
mE) ] c AIRNERE—FRE [ [FR] R
Bl ETEB2REAF LR  BEEFI)
égf%‘%ﬂ#%%@ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

HABERAAAMEEE

SN - IR ANE SRR E R 2 EKNIRIR
MEEE - A FRNESHRRERESES
HEARNFNESRE -
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(ii) Not regarded as “controlling shareholders”

On the basis that each of Huijin and CIC does not in fact exercise
control over the Company, the SGX has confirmed that each of
Huijin and CIC will not be regarded as “controlling shareholders” of
the Company for the purposes of the SGX Listing Manual.

Accordingly, each of the State Council, Huijin and CIC and their
respective associates (other than China Everbright Group and its
associates) will not be regarded as “interested persons” of the
Company and consequently, will not be subject to the rules and
requirements under Chapter 9 of the SGX Listing Manual governing
interested person transactions. For the avoidance of doubt, China
Everbright Group is regarded as a “controlling shareholder” of
the Company for the purposes of the SGX Listing Manual and
accordingly, China Everbright Group and its associates are subject
to the rules and requirements under Chapter 9 of the SGX Listing
Manual governing interested person transactions.

329 .

(iy EEMPRTIER [ERERER]

ESMPREE EREANRREHEES - it
A P2 AR FT S P _E T RERR - S Al
RTBRARRIN [HERBIR] -

Eitt - B - B MR R E R B EIRE T
(TERPEEREELEBRE ) 54
BRARAN [EBAL] @ ARHILE
MR ETFMENETEARERALRS
MBS - RerEE - ST
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREBFAGEA

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of
China Everbright Water Limited (the “Company”) will be convened
and held at 37 Jalan Pemimpin #08-18 Mapex Singapore 577177
on Tuesday, 26 April 2022 at 9:30 a.m. (Singapore time), in
compliance with Bermuda law, to transact the businesses below.
However, due to the current COVID-19 situation in Singapore, the
Annual General Meeting will be convened, and will be held, via
electronic means in accordance with the COVID-19 (Temporary
Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for Meetings for Companies,
Variable Capital Companies, Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and
Debenture Holders) Order 2020, and accordingly, the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) will NOT be able to attend the
Annual General Meeting in person, and can only participate in the
Annual General Meeting via electronic means.

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and consider the Directors’ Statement and Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

(Resolution 1)

2. To declare and pay a final one-tier tax exempt dividend of
6.83 Hong Kong cents (equivalent to 1.19 Singapore cents)
per ordinary share for the financial year ended 31 December
2021 as recommended by the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company.

(Resolution 2)

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of S$340,000
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. (2020:
S$$340,000)

(Resolution 3)

4, To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Bye-law
85(6) or Bye-law 86(1) (as the case may be) of the Company’s

Bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”), and who, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as the Directors:

(@) Mr. Hu Yanguo; (Resolution 4a)
(See Explanatory Note i)
(b) Mr. Tao Junjie; and (Resolution 4b)
(See Explanatory Note i)
(c) Mr. Luo Junling. (Resolution 4c)

(See Explanatory Note i)

B - REDLAOKBAERAR ( [RAF] )
RRBAFAEHR_ZT__FHA=+AH
(EHZ) EFAR=1TH GRmERRE)
HRIE B 5 E A2 E37 Jalan Pemimpin #08-18
Mapex Singapore (&4 : 577177) AR
BT LEBETEIE - AM - ARETINE
IREFRICOVID-197K 5 - Hﬁ%?@ﬁk@ﬂ%ﬂ%
(CovID-19 (FfyiEiE) (2 BEK
AR EFEER ME.:JEZ’LIJE%“%%AE.:&
MERZH) 2020F%2%) MBS F TR
- ARARIRE ( [RR] ) #EERSHE
Hﬁi;@(iﬁ@ - BEREBABE T A2 MRE

BEKRE -

EEESE]

1. BENEZEREFSBRAURBE—_T—_—
F+ZA=1+—RALMBEENLET
AR R TSR R BRI RS

(F1IERE)

2. REARFRE=R ([EE]) g ([E
Eg®|) g% EMKEEE_T_—_—
FHZA=T—HALMBFENERE
BAR6.83 8 (FE119¥ MK D) B
—RBIER R RIS

(3278 R )

3. HESNBEE T - —F+_-_A=+—
B IEBRFEHEEEE340,000%7 00
WrE o (ZEZFF : 340,000%1 0

W)
(E3ERE)
4. BERBEANRERE ( [AARER] )
F85(6) 155 FE86(1)1E (BB RME)
HEBETHUTES  BFEHFA
B BREEARNNREEWEHRE
B
(@) FAIERESLA (F4a1ER:E)
(Z K723 a785i)
(b)  FEEARLAE K (F4bERE)
(2 H1aFa485i1)

(c) #1& (SBACTERE)

(2 K722 27 5Hii)
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BRREBFAGEA

5. To re-appoint Ermnst & Young LLP as Auditor of the Company,
to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

(Resolution 5)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary
resolutions with or without modifications:

6. Authority to allot and issue shares

(@) That, pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Listing Manual
(the “SGX-ST Listing Manual”) of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX” or
“SGX-ST”) and the Rules (the “SEHK Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”),
approval be and is hereby given to the Board at any
time to such persons and upon such terms and for
such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute
discretion deem fit, to:

0) allot and issue shares in the capital of the
Company (the “Shares”) whether by way of
right, bonus or otherwise;

(ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options
that might or would require Shares to be issued
or other transferable rights to subscribe for or
purchase Shares (collectively, “Instruments”)
including but not limited to the creation
and issue of warrants, debentures or other
instruments convertible into Shares; and/or

(iii) issue additional instruments arising from
adjustments made to the number of
Instruments previously issued in the event of
rights, bonus or capitalisation issues; and

(b) (notwithstanding THAT the authority conferred by
the Shareholders may have ceased to be in force)
issue Shares in pursuance of any Instrument made
or granted by the Board while the authority was in
force, provided always, that subject to any applicable
regulations as may be prescribed by SGX-ST and the
SEHK,

5. fEEEErst & Young LLP AR RIE:T
Bl THEZETERRBAFTFASERA
b UEEEESETETH -

(SE5IERR)
B RIER
ZEMBNBEBREATEBRRER (BERBD
CHIDEE

6. D ECANEETTR D 2 #E R

(a) REARAEIR - FINESFZS
PrARAR ( [#XA] ) £m
Fi C[HXmERFM] )
EEBERZMERRDA
( (B ) ExLmAA
( (X EmRA ) - =
EE2RNBRBEE NGRS
&am ARELENERRE
BRIATL

(i)  EBHEAL - ATFSEADTS
A B R EIT AR A
( [&28KH] )

(i) fEHEER FrgeskAgEEE
TIARRBROHEL -
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R B B B AR R AR 1D
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(i)

the aggregate number of Shares to be issued
pursuant to this resolution (including Shares to
be issued in pursuance of Instruments made
or granted pursuant to this resolution) does
not exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the total
number of issued Shares excluding treasury
shares of the Company, of which the aggregate
number of Shares (including Shares to be
issued in pursuance of Instruments made or
granted pursuant to this resolution) to be
issued other than on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders does not exceed twenty per cent.
(20%) of the total number of issued Shares
excluding treasury shares of the Company, and
for the purpose of this resolution, the issued
Shares shall be the Company’s total number of
issued Shares excluding treasury shares at the
time this resolution is passed, after adjusting for:

a) new Shares arising from the conversion or
exercise of any convertible securities, or

b) new Shares arising from exercising
share options or vesting of share awards
outstanding or subsisting at the time this
resolution is passed provided the options
or awards were granted in compliance
with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the
SGX-ST Listing Manual and Chapter 13
of the SEHK Listing Rules; and

C) any subsequent bonus issue,
consolidation or subdivision of Shares,
and

in exercising the authority conferred by this
resolution, the Company shall comply with
the provisions of the SGX-ST Listing Manual
as amended from time to time (unless such
compliance has been waived by SGX-ST), the
SEHK Listing Rules as amended from time to
time (unless such compliance has been waived
by the SEHK) and the Bye-laws; and

CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

(ii)

HEIERKBEERD A
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) SUE S T TR R A
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(50%) » E A 3ERR L B A
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(iii) such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by
the Company at a General Meeting, continue
in force until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting or the date by which the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held, whichever is the

(i)

BRIEARDRIERRAE £
BEHIER] - BRIETH
REBHEEM  BEE T
JER R K& R
ERMEARNRRART T
ERFBEFREER (A

earlier. REBEERE) Bl -
(Resolution 6) (SE6IERE)
(See Explanatory Note iv) (B K17 5Eiv)

Authority to allot and issue Shares under the China Everbright
Water Limited Scrip Dividend Scheme (the “Scrip Dividend
Scheme”)

That authority be and is hereby given to the Board to allot
and issue from time to time such number of Shares as may
be required to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Scrip
Dividend Scheme.

R B RKIE AR AR AR S5 3
( TARARBETE ] ) BT OEMET
AR R B

g =g TNt D B METTIREAMR

REFHEIR]

RER B BCAIE TR BN

BHARDARL -

(Resolution 7) (SB7TIERE)
(See Explanatory Note v) (B KT aFaE5EY)
Renewal of the share buy-back mandate BT DR
That: ElIE

(a) the Directors be and are hereby authorised to
exercise all the powers of the Company to purchase
or otherwise acquire issued Shares not exceeding in
aggregate the Maximum Limit (as hereinafter defined),
at such price or prices as may be determined by the
Directors from time to time up to the Maximum Price
(as hereinafter defined), whether by way of:

0) market purchase(s) on the SGX-ST and/or the
SEHK; and/or

(ii) off-market purchase(s) (if effected otherwise
than on the SGX-ST and/or the SEHK, as the
case may be) in accordance with any equal
access scheme(s) as may be determined or
formulated by the Directors as they consider
fit, which scheme(s) shall, as required under the
SGX-ST Listing Manual, satisfy all the conditions
prescribed by Section 76C of the Companies
Act 1967 of Singapore (the “Singapore
Companies Act’),

(a)

e
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in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the SGX-ST Listing
Manual, the SEHK Listing Rules, the Code on
Share Buybacks of Hong Kong, and the Code
on Takeovers and Mergers of Hong Kong, as
may for the time being be applicable (the “Share
Buy-back Mandate”);

unless varied or revoked by the Company in General
Meeting, the authority conferred on the Directors
pursuant to the Share Buy-back Mandate may be
exercised by the Directors at any time and from time
to time during the period commencing on and from the
date of the passing of this Resolution and expiring on
the earliest of:

(i) the date on which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is held;

(ii) the date on which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to
be held; and

(iii) the date on which purchases and acquisitions
of Shares pursuant to the Share Buy-back
Mandate are carried out to the full extent
mandated;

in this Resolution:

“Average Closing Price” means the average of the
closing market prices of the Shares over the last five
(5) market days on which the Shares were transacted
on the SGX-ST or the SEHK (“Market Days”), as the
case may be, before the date of the market purchase
by the Company, or as the case may be, the date
of the making of the offer pursuant to the off-market
purchase, and deemed to be adjusted in accordance
with the listing rules of the SGX-ST for any corporate
action which occurs during the relevant five (5) Market
Days and the day on which the purchases are made;

“date of the making of the offer’ means the date on
which the Company makes an offer for the purchase
or acquisition of Shares from the Shareholders,
stating therein the purchase price (which shall not be
more than the Maximum Price) for each Share and
the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for
effecting the off-market purchase;
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“Maximum Limit” means that number of Shares
representing 10 per cent. (10%) of the total number
of issued Shares as at the date of the passing of this
Resolution (excluding any treasury shares and any
Shares held by subsidiaries of the Company in the
circumstances referred to in Sections 21(4), 21(4B),
21(6A) and 21(6C) of the Singapore Companies Act);
and

“Maximum Price” in relation to a Share to be
purchased or acquired, means the purchase price
(excluding brokerage, commission, applicable goods
and services tax and other related expenses), which
shall not exceed:

0) in the case of a market purchase of a Share,
five per cent. (5%) above the Average Closing
Price; and

(ii) in the case of an off-market purchase of a
Share, five per cent. (5%) above the Average
Closing Price; and

the Directors and each of them be hereby authorised
to complete and do all such acts and things (including,
but not limited to, executing all such agreements and
documents as may be required in connection with this
Resolution and the Share Buy-back Mandate) as they or
he/she may consider necessary, desirable or expedient
or in the interests of the Company to give effect to this
Resolution and the Share Buy-back Mandate.
(Resolution 8)

(See Explanatory Note vi)

9. Renewal of the interested person transaction mandate

That:

(@)

approval be and is hereby given, for the purposes of
Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual (“Chapter
9”), for the Company, its subsidiaries and associated
companies that are entities at risk (as defined in
Chapter 9), or any of them, to enter into any of the
transactions falling within the categories of interested
person transactions described in Appendix 1 to the
Company’s Circular to Shareholders dated 22 March
2022 (the “Circular”) with any party who is of the
class of interested persons described in Appendix 1
to the Circular, provided that such transactions are
made on normal commercial terms and in accordance
with the review procedures for such interested person
transactions (the “IPT Mandate”);
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(b) the renewal of the IPT Mandate above shall unless
revoked or varied by the Company in General Meeting,
continue in force until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company; and

(c) the Directors and each of them be hereby authorised
to complete and do all such acts and things (including,
but not limited to, executing all such agreements
and documents as may be required in connection
with this Resolution and the IPT Mandate) as they or
he/she may consider necessary, desirable or expedient
or in the interests of the Company to give effect to this
Resolution and the IPT Mandate.

(Resolution 9)

(See Explanatory Note vii)

10.  To transact any other ordinary business which may be
properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Peng Pei
Legal Counsel and Joint Company Secretary

Singapore and Hong Kong, 22 March 2022

Notes:

1. The Annual General Meeting is being convened, and will be held, by
electronic means pursuant to the COVID-19 (Temporary Measures)
(Alternative Arrangements for Meetings for Companies, Variable Capital
Companies, Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order
2020.

2. Arrangements relating to attendance at the Annual General Meeting
via electronic means (including arrangements by which the meeting
can be electronically accessed via live audio-visual webcast, live audio-
only webcast or live audio-only stream), submission of questions to the
Chairman of the Annual General Meeting in advance of the Annual General
Meeting, submission of questions during the Annual General Meeting via
an online chat box, addressing of substantial and relevant questions at
the Annual General Meeting and voting by appointing the Chairman of the
Annual General Meeting as proxy at the Annual General Meeting and/or
voting electronically during the Annual General Meeting, are set out in the
accompanying Circular.
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Due to the current COVID-19 situation in Singapore, the Annual
General Meeting will be convened, and will be held, via electronic
means, and accordingly, Shareholders will NOT be able to attend
the Annual General Meeting in person, and can only participate in
the Annual General Meeting via electronic means. A Shareholder
(whether individual or corporate) must either appoint the Chairman
of the Annual General Meeting as his/her/its proxy or (in the
case of a Depositor (as defined in section 81SF of the Securities
and Futures Act 2001 of Singapore)) nominate the appointment
of the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting as the proxy of
The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”) to attend, speak
and vote on his/her/its behalf at the Annual General Meeting or
pre-register as a Shareholder if such Shareholder or Depositor
wishes to exercise his/her/its voting rights at the Annual General
Meeting, whether as CDP’s proxy or on his/her/its own via
electronic means.

Where a Shareholder (whether individual or corporate) appoints the
Chairman of the Annual General Meeting as his/her/its proxy, he/she/it
must give specific instructions as to voting, or abstentions from voting, in
respect of each of the resolutions set out in the proxy form, failing which
the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting may vote or abstain from
voting at his/her/their discretion.

Completion and return of an instrument appointing the Chairman of the
Annual General Meeting as proxy will not prevent a Shareholder from
attending and voting via electronic means at the Annual General Meeting
if he/she/it subsequently wishes to do so, provided that in the event of
such attendance by the Shareholder via electronic means, the relevant
instrument submitted by the Shareholder shall be deemed to be revoked.

The instrument appointing the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting as
proxy must be signed by the appointer, or his/her attorney duly authorised
in writing, or if in the case of a corporation, must be either executed under
its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney so authorised
on that corporation’s behalf.

The Chairman of the Annual General Meeting, as proxy, need not be a
Shareholder of the Company.

For Singapore Shareholders, the depositor proxy form appointing the
Chairman of the Annual General Meeting as proxy of CDP, duly completed,
must be submitted by the Depositor in the following manner:

(i) if submitted by post, by depositing the duly completed depositor
proxy form at the office of the Company’s Singapore Share
Transfer Agent, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte.
Ltd., at 1 Harbourfront Avenue, #14-07 Keppel Bay Tower,
Singapore 098632; or

(ii) if submitted electronically, by scanning and submitting the duly
completed depositor proxy form via email to the Company’s
Singapore Share Transfer Agent, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory
Services Pte. Ltd., at CEWLAGMZ2022@boardroomlimited.com,

in either case, at least 72 hours before the time for holding the Annual
General Meeting.
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For Hong Kong Shareholders, the instrument appointing the Chairman of
the Annual General Meeting as proxy must be submitted in the following
manner:

(i) if submitted by post, by depositing the duly completed proxy form
with the Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at 2103B, 21/F,
148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong; or

(ii) if submitted electronically, by scanning and submitting the duly
completed proxy form via email to the Company’s Hong Kong Share
Registrar and Transfer Office, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK)
Limited, at srinfo.hk@boardroomiimited.com,

in either case, at least 72 hours before the time for holding the Annual
General Meeting.

In view of the current COVID-19 situation and the related
safe distancing measures which may make it difficult for the
Shareholders to submit completed proxy forms by post, the
Shareholders are strongly encouraged to scan and submit the
completed proxy forms electronically via email.

The Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2021
(the “2021 Annual Report”) and the Circular may be accessed at the
Company’s website at (www.ebwater.com) as follows:

(i) for the 2021 Annual Report, by going to “Investor Relations” and
clicking on the hyperlink “Annual & Interim Reports”; and

(ii) for the Circular, by going to “Investor Relations” and clicking on the
hyperlink “Announcements & Circulars — SGX” or “Announcements &
Circulars — HKEX”.

Copies of the 2021 Annual Report and the Circular may also be accessed
on the SGXNet (www.sgx.com) and the website of Hong Kong Exchanges

and Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hkK).

Explanatory Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

Detailed information relating to Mr. Hu Yanguo is set out on page 44 of
the 2021 Annual Report and in the section entitled “Biographical Details of
Directors” and Appendix 2 of the Circular.

Detailed information relating to Mr. Tao Junjie is set out on page 45 of the
2021 Annual Report and in the section entitled “Biographical Details of
Directors” and Appendix 2 of the Circular.

Detailed information relating to Mr. Luo Junling is set out on page 46 of
the 2021 Annual Report and in the section entitled “Biographical Details of
Directors” and Appendix 2 of the Circular.
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(v)

(V)

(vii)

The Ordinary Resolution 6 proposed in item 6 is to authorise the Directors,
subject to the applicable regulations as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST
and the SEHK, from the date of the above Meeting until the next Annual
General Meeting to allot and issue Shares and convertible securities in
the Company up to an amount not exceeding in aggregate 50 per cent.
(50%) of the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares of the
Company, of which the total number of Shares and convertible securities
issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders shall not
exceed 20 per cent. (20%) of the total number of issued Shares excluding
treasury shares of the Company at the time the resolution is passed, for
such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the Company.
This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a General Meeting, expire at
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the Special General Meeting of the Company held on
28 October 2005, the Shareholders approved the passing of the ordinary
resolution relating to the Scrip Dividend Scheme. In the circular dated
11 October 2005, the Scrip Dividend Scheme provides the Shareholders
with the option to elect to receive Shares in lieu of the cash amount of any
dividend declared on their holding of Shares. The Ordinary Resolution 7
proposed in item 7, if passed, will empower the Directors to allot and issue
Shares in the Company pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Scrip
Dividend Scheme.

The Company intends to use internal sources of funds, external borrowings
or a combination of internal resources and external borrowings, to finance
the purchases or acquisitions of its Shares. The amount of financing
required for the Company to purchase or acquire its Shares, and the
impact on the Company’s financial position, cannot be ascertained as
at the date of this Notice as these will depend on, inter alia, the manner
in which the purchase or acquisition is funded, the aggregate number of
Shares purchased or acquired, and the consideration paid at the relevant
time. For illustrative purposes only, the financial effects of an assumed
purchase or acquisition by the Company of 10 per cent. (10%) of its
issued Shares as at 10 March 2022, at a purchase price equivalent to the
Maximum Price per Share, based on the audited financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December
2021 and certain assumptions, are set out in the section entitled “Financial
Effects” of the Circular.

The Ordinary Resolution 9 proposed in item 9 is to approve the renewal of
the IPT Mandate to enable the Company, its subsidiaries and associated
companies that are entities at risk (as defined in Chapter 9 of the
SGX-ST Listing Manual), or any of them, to enter into certain interested
person transactions with specified classes of interested persons, as
described in the Circular. Please refer to the Circular for more details.

Personal data privacy:

By submitting a proxy form appointing the Chairman of the Annual General
Meeting as a proxy to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting
and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company consents to the
collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company
(or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the
Company (or its agents) of the appointment of the Chairman of the Annual
General Meeting as proxy for the Annual General Meeting (including any
adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists,
minutes and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including
any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply
with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines.
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